
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MARCH 21, 2019 • Page 1 of 6 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

MEETING OF THE 
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 2019 
 

3:00 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for Thursday, 

March 21, 2019. 
 

2. Receive a presentation on the Hillcrest Cemetery. 
 

3. Discuss the Strategic Investment Zone Program. 
 

4. Discuss the status of right-of-way acquisitions for the Poison Oak Road and Outer Loop, Phases 
1-6, expansion projects. 

 
Pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 551.072, the City Council may meet in closed 
session to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in 
an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in 
negotiations with a third person. 
 

  



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MARCH 21, 2019 • Page 2 of 6 
 

5:00 P.M. 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

TEMPLE, TX 
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
1. Invocation           
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance   
 
II. PUBLIC APPEARANCE 
 
3. (A) Receive comments from Barbara Cooper related to right-of-way acquisition for the Outer 

Loop Phase 6 project parcels 5, 6, and 7. 
 

(B) Receive comments from Steve Ward related to right-of-way acquisition for the Outer Loop 
Phase 6 Project parcels 15 and 16. 

 
III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting.  
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting. Please limit comments to three 
minutes. No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council.  
 
IV. AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 
4. Recognize Park and Maintenance Staff for The Texas Recreation and Parks Society (TRAPS) 

Maintenance Rodeo. 
 
5. Recognize Jackson Park for receiving The Texas Recreation and Parks Society (TRAPS) Lone 

Star Legacy Park distinction. 
 
6. Presentation of the 25th Anniversary of Habitat for Humanity – Fort Hood Chapter. 
 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be removed 
from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered separately. 
 
7. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate 
 resolutions and ordinances for each of the following: 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MARCH 21, 2019 • Page 3 of 6 
 

 Minutes 
 

(A)      March 7, 2019 Special & Regular Called Meeting   
   

Contracts, Leases, & Bids 
 

(B) 2019-9585-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., of Austin, in the amount of $331,210 
for professional services required to design and bid South Pea Ridge Road from 
Westwood Hills Boulevard to the proposed realignment of Poison Oak Road, as well as, 
declare an official intent to reimburse the expenditures with the issuance of the 2019 
Combination Tax & Revenue Bonds. 
 

(C) 2019-9586-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with MRB Group, of Temple, to perform the South 41st to 57th Street Utility 
Assessment in the amount of $263,800. 
 

(D) 2019-9587-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 
agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, for final design of the Outer Loop 
Phase 4 Drainage Channel in the amount of $85,042.50. 

 
(E) 2019-9588-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a services agreement for West 

Temple Parks maintenance, turf management, and athletic field management with Sports 
Field Holdings, dba Sports Field Solutions, of Dallas in the estimated annual amount of 
$440,000. 
 

(F) 2019-9589-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an interlocal agreement with 
Bell County for the use of the election equipment necessary for the May 4, 2019 General 
Election. 
 

(G) 2019-9590-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying a meet and confer agreement with 
the Temple Police Association. 

 
(H) 2019-9591-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an Airport Hangar Lease 

Agreement with Kachemak Bay Flying Service, Inc. for the lease of Hangar No. 26 at the 
Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport. 

 
(I) 2019-9592-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract with Lone Star 

Grading & Materials, LLC of Salado, to construct roadway and sidewalk improvements 
on 7th Street from Avenue H south to the dead-end, in the amount of $344,616.16. 

 
(J) 2019-9593-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract between the City of 

Temple and the Department of the Army, Corps of Engineers to reimburse the city for 
salary and benefit expenses and vehicle cost related to police patrols at Temple Lake 
Park from May 4, 2019 through September 2, 2019. 

 
(K) 2019-9594-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the submission of an application 

and acceptance of funding for a Victims of Crime Assistance Grant through the Criminal 
Justice Division of the Governor’s Office. 

 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MARCH 21, 2019 • Page 4 of 6 
 

(L) 2019-9595-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a one-year renewal to the lease 
between the City of Temple, City of Belton and the Secretary of the Army for the Miller 
Springs Nature Center. 

 
(M) 2019-9596-R: Consider adopting a resolution granting an easement to Oncor Electric 

Delivery Company, LLC for electric utilities necessary for the construction of Crossroads 
Park. 

 
(N) 2019-9597-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an emergency construction 

contract for the repair of a 30-inch transmission main repair with McLean Construction, 
Inc. of Killeen in the amount of $49,119. 

 
(O) 2019-9598-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying a change order to an emergency 

construction contract for the repair of a 20-inch water transmission main at 909 West Park 
with All-Tex Utilities, LLC of Hillsboro, in the amount of $63,000. 

 
(P) 2019-9599-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying the purchase of property situated 

515 South 18th Street in an amount not to exceed $10,500. 
 

(Q) 2019-9600-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying the conveyance of 16.659 acres of 
property from the Temple Economic Development Corporation to the City of Temple for 
use as public right-of-way. 

 
(R) 2019-9601-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of right-of-way 

and a temporary construction easement necessary for the Poison Oak Road Expansion 
Project and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase in an estimated 
amount of $46,000. 

 
(S) 2019-9602-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of two rights-of-

way necessary for the expansion of Old Waco Road, Outer Loop Phase 6, and authorizing 
closing costs associated with the purchase in an estimated amount of $305,000 and 
relocation benefits associated with this project in estimated amount of $150,000. 

 
Ordinances- Second & Final Reading 

 
(T) 2019-4957: SECOND READING – FINAL HEARING – FY-19-4-ZC: Consider adopting 

an ordinance authorizing the rezoning of 86.91 +/- acres, situated in the Redding Roberts 
Survey, Abstract 692, and located at the intersection of FM 93 and Southwood Drive from 
Agricultural district to Planned Development Agricultural, with a required 
site/development plan. 

 
Misc. 
 
(U) 2019-9603-R: Consider adopting a resolution appointing election judge(s) and setting 

their compensation for the City’s General election to be held on Saturday, May 4, 2019. 
 

(V) 2019-9604-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal 
year 2018-2019. 

 
 
 
 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MARCH 21, 2019 • Page 5 of 6 
 

VI. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
ORDINANCES – SECOND READINGS 
 
8. 2019-4955: SECOND & FINAL READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting the following 

ordinances amending: 
 

(A) The Code of Ordinances, Chapter 4, “Alcoholic Beverages,” to include a general update 
of the Chapter, additional clarification of terms used in Chapter, a better alignment of 
City’s regulations with state law, and an addition of an enforcement provision. 

(B) Temple Unified Development Code Section 5.3.15, “Alcoholic Beverage Sales for On-
Premise Consumption,” by clarifying Subsection 5.3.15(A)(2) with additional language 
and removing the reference to City Code, Chapter 4, “Alcoholic Beverages,” Subsection 
5.3.15(B)(2) to better conform with state law.  

 
ORDINANCES 
 
9. 2019-4958: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Z-FY-19-6-ZC: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a rezoning with a site/development plan, from Commercial district to 
Planned Development Multi-Family Two district, with conditions and requiring a site development 
plan, on 9.055 +/- acres, and 0.433 +/- acres, out of and a part of Block One, Temple Commercial 
Park, Section 1, Bell County, Texas, as 2602 South 39th Street, Temple. 

 
10. 2019-4959: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – FY-19-7-ZC: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a rezoning request from Agricultural zoning district to Planned 
Development-General Retail zoning district, on 54.592 +/- acres, situated in the Baldwin 
Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17, Bell County, Texas, addressed as 8901 West Adams 
Avenue. 

 
11. 2019-4960: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – FY-19-8-ZC: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing rezoning from Light Industrial zoning district to Single-Family One zoning 
district, on 0.189 +/- acres, being Lot 7, Block 5, Rylander Addition, addressed as 14 North 12th 
Street. 

12. 2019-4961: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance granting 
to Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC an electric power franchise to use the present and future 
streets, alleys, highways, public utility easements, public ways, and public property of the City of 
Temple.  

 

RESOLUTIONS 
 
13. 2019-9605-R: Consider adopting a resolution to take action on the Temple Professional 

Firefighters Association’s “Petition Requesting Recognition of Bargaining Agent” as required by 
Texas Local Government Code Chapter 142. 

 
14. 2019-9606-R: Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 

2206.053 finding that two properties situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract #5, Bell 
County, Texas, are necessary for the Outer Loop Phase 6 project and authorizing the use of 
eminent domain to condemn the properties.  



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MARCH 21, 2019 • Page 6 of 6 
 

 
The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session whenever permitted by the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
8:45 am, on Monday March 18, 2019. 
 
 
_________________________ 
City Secretary, TRMC 
 
SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS: Persons with disabilities who have special communication or 
accommodation needs and desire to attend this meeting should notify the City Secretary's Office by 
mail or telephone 48 hours prior to the meeting date. 
 
I certify that this Notice of Meeting Agenda was removed by me from the outside bulletin board in front of the City Municipal 
Building on ________________ day of _____________2018. 
______________Title_________________________ 



 
 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
03/21/19 
Item #3 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Timothy A. Davis, Mayor 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   
(A) Receive comments from Barbara Cooper related to right-of-way acquisition for the Outer Loop 

Phase 6 Project parcels 5, 6, and 7. 
 
(B) Receive comments from Steve Ward related to right-of-way acquisition for the Outer Loop Phase 

6 Project parcels 15 and 16. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Receive comments as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: (A) Ms. Cooper submitted a Request for Placement on the City Council Agenda, 
please see the attached forms. 
 
(B) Mr. Ward submitted a Request for Placement on the City Council Agenda, please see the attached 
forms. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Requests for placement on agenda  
  







COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(A) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 

(A) March 7, 2019 Special & Regular Meeting

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve minutes as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
March 7, 2019 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes / Video 

http://temple.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?clip_id=950


TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL

MARCH 7, 2019

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a workshop on 
Thursday, March 7, 2019 at 3:30 PM, at the Municipal Building, 2 North Main 
Street, in the 3rd Floor Conference Room.

PRESENT:

Councilmember Susan Long
Councilmember Jessica Walker
Mayor Timothy A. Davis

ABSENT:

Mayor Pro Tem Judy Morales

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the
meeting posted for Thursday, March 7, 2019.

Ms. Myers, City Manager, offered a brief presentation regarding item 5 on
the regular agenda related to zoning case FY-19-4-ZC.  This case is to
rezone a 86.91 +/- acres located at the intersection of FM 93 and
Southwood Drive from Agriculture to Planned Development Agriculture,
with a site/development plan.  We have heard several proposals for this
property over the last year.

The current proposal is different from the last, as it is for a Planned
Development Agriculture; while the most recent was for Planned
Development Urban Estates.  The proposal today is much less dense.  By
right in the AG District you can construct on one acre lots. The developer is
asking for flexibility, providing some of the lots can be less than one-acre.
His proposal is the minimum lot be 0.75-acre.

The lots closest to the Valley Ranch are being proposed to be the more
dense and the larger tracts will be near the creek.  In exchange for
flexibility, the developer has agreed to construct only single family homes.
By right, HUD Manufactured Homes could be located on the is property.
That too, is part of the what is being requested with the flexibility, that only
on-site homes be allowed.  At this density the developer would also, by
right, be allowed to construct on one-acre lots with one site septic systems.

At the P&Z level, there was a recommendation was to approve the request
with the trail easement. That trail easement is not part of Staff's
recommendation at this time.  There is a lot of neighboring opposition from
property owners, but it does not trigger a majority vote.  Ms. Myers noted

Page 1 of 18City Council Meeting



concern has been expressed by some at the P&Z Meeting.  Planning and 
Zoning hear zoning cases and then make a recommendation to 
the Council; they are not the final authority.  Whether the P&Z Commission 
votes to approve, disapprove, or no motion is made, the case being heard 
would still move forward to the Council.  Had this particular case died for 
lack of a second, the case would still be before you tonight.

Councilmember Walker, asked about the five courtesy notices.

Ms. Myers stated that if the property owner was in the ETJ and 
still within 200-feet, they were sent notices. 

2. Discuss possible amendments to the City’s Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 6, “Animals & Fowl”.

Amanda Rice, Deputy City Attorney provided a brief presentation.

Kayla Landeros, City Attorney explained this presentation would be a high
level overview of Chapter 6 as it currently reads, as well as some proposed
amendments.  Staff has completely rewritten this Chapter, but there are
some policy decisions that will need to be addressed. There are many
departments involved with the Chapter, and it will be necessary to offer
presentation to the Animal Services Advisory Board.

Chapter 6 convers a variety of topics related to keeping and care of
animals.  This includes the city's regulations for at-large animals; animal
cruelty; impounding of animals at our shelter; adoption of animals;
dangerous animals; and rabies regulations.  Dangerous animals, and
rabies regulations are also regulated by State law; but we've incorporated
that into Chapter 6.

Chapter 6 establishes the Animal Services Division, which consists of the
Animal Services Manager who is appointed by the City Manager.  Recently,
the Animal Services Division moved under the supervision and
management of the Police Department.  In doing this, the Animal Services
Manager title no longer exists; instead there are two supervisor positions
managed by a Lieutenant at the Police Department.  The Animal Services
Division will still include Animal Service Officers and other employees, and
will be tasked with enforcing the regulations in Chapter 6 as well as
managing Animal Services.

Mr. Landeros review some of the current regulations.

At-Large Animals is defined as an animal that is off the premises of the
owner, and not on a leash, or otherwise under the immediate control of a
person physically capable of restraining the animal.  It is unlawful to allow
or permit an animal to run "at-large" within the City limits.  All animals at-
large may be impounded by Animal Services.  We are not as strict on the
leash laws as other cities are.

Page 2 of 18City Council Meeting



Animal Nuisance is defined as an animal that unreasonably annoys 
humans; endangers the life or health of person or other animals; or 
substantially interferes with the rights of citizens to enjoy life or property.   
Ms. Landeros noted this is very outdated and broad language.  But this 
would include, (1) an at-large animal; (2) an animal that damages, soils, or 
defecates on any property other than that of its owner; (3) an animal that 
makes continued and repeated noises (howling, barking, etc.) that causes 
an unreasonable disturbance; (4) an animal that chases motor vehicles in 
an public right-of-way; or (5) an animal that attacks other domestic animals 
without provocation.

Care of Animals provides that owners give proper care to include food, 
water, shelter, and veterinary care if ill or injured.  The owner may not 
abandon an animal.  Leaving it without proper food, water, or shelter for 
more than three days, or in conditions which endanger the health, life, and 
safety of the animal, or it will be considered abandoned and other actions 
may be taken.

Animal Cruelty prohibits a person from striking or beating an animal; 
intentionally running over an animal; dog fighting; poisoning an animal; or 
leaving an animal inside a vehicle and subjecting it to extreme 
temperatures. 

Ms. Landeros continued, noting there are several instances where the City 
many impound an animal.  If an owner later redeems the animal, the owner 
must pay impoundment fees or reclaimed fees.  An animal may be adopted 
after three days, if not reclaimed by the owner.

Ms. Landeros noted dogs and cats must be vaccinated against rabies and 
a vaccination tag must be worn. Dogs and cats suspected of having rabies 
may be quarantined by the City of Temple or at the home of the animal.  A 
person may only keep up to three dogs, and up to three cats, plus a litter of 
puppies and/or kitten up to the age of three months.

A person may not have more than two rabbits or hares as pets.  Pigs are 
allowed only in a pen or enclosure on land 10-acres or larger, which is zone 
agriculture.  A person may not keep any animal or bird in a pen or 
enclosure that is in, near, or on a creek or stream.  It is prohibited to keep 
guineas, peacocks, horses, mules, donkeys, cattle, goats, sheep, chicken, 
turkeys, geese, ducks, or pigeons in a pen, yard, or other place that is less 
thank 150-feet from the residence of another person. The only exception is 
that in a residentially zone area, a person may keep up to 6 hens if the pen 
or enclosure is more than 50-feet away from the nearest residence.

Bees may not be kept less than 300-feet from the residence of any person.

Councilmember Long asked if 'pigs' includes pot bellied pigs.

Page 3 of 18City Council Meeting



Ms. Landeros, replied yes. This was addressed n 2014.

There are processes set out in the Health and Safety Code, Chapter 822 
that sets forth regulations related to "dangerous dogs"; and those have 
been adopted and incorporated into Chapter 6.  Ms. Rice explained that 
Chapter 822 regulates dangerous dogs and is very complicated. She noted 
this allows the Animal Control Authority to determine if the dog is 
dangerous, and requires the owner to comply with this section and 
requirements.  This is typically done as part of an investigation.  Once 
determined the dog is dangerous, a letter is mailed and time is allowed for 
the owner to become compliant with the regulations within Chapter 822.  
This includes, always keeping the dog in an enclosure, on a leash, and 
acquiring insurance, as well as registering with the City. The City may 
add additional restrictions if they choose.  

If/should the owner not comply, there are Municipal Court hearing 
procedures; the court would rule on the matter, and determine whether the 
dog is dangerous and allow time for the owner to comply.  The only 
exception for dog that cause serious bodily injury, is to appeal to County 
Court.

Ms. Rice continued noting that cities may elect to be governed by Chapter 
822.0422, but we are not. This requires that an owner of dangerous dog,  
turn the dog over to the City within five days of the determination, and allow 
the City to seize the dog, if the owner does not turn it over.  This process is 
another layer of protection for the surrounding neighbors. It allows the dog 
to be impounded until the dangerous dog hearing is held.  If the dog is 
found to be dangerous by the Court, the Court can order that the dog 
remain impounded until the owner complies with the requirements as set 
out.  Currently, the dog is allowed to remain at the owner's home until all 
dangerous dog requirements are met.

Ms. Landeros noted this is a very important part of Chapter 6 because we 
want the ability to regulate dangerous dogs.  Dangerous dogs are defined 
as a dog that causes serious injury to a human.

Ms. Rice added that a dangerous dog is a dog that makes an unprovoked 
attack on a person that causes bodily injury and occurs in a place other 
than the enclosure in which the dog is being kept, and the enclosure was 
reasonably certain to keep the dog inside; or a dog that has an unprovoked 
attack in a place other than the enclosure the dog is being kept, and is 
reasonably secured to keep the dog from leaving on its own, and has 
caused a person to believe the dog will attack on cause bodily injury to that 
person.  Seriously bodily injury to a person is the tearing of a muscle, or 
laceration sever enough to seek medical attention.  At that point, the owner 
does not have an opportunity to appeal the determination, and the dog 
could be destroyed.  

Ms. Landeros added, we currently have an section in our code for 

Page 4 of 18City Council Meeting



dangerous animals, but we need to incorporate the State law, and lay out a 
detailed process to allow people to know what their rights are in this 
situation.

Ms. Landeros then discussed some of the possible amendments.  Further 
discussion will be needed with the Animal Services Advisory Board and 
Council on whether or not we're comfortable with our current leash laws or 
do we want to make it more strict.  Several cities have enacted some part 
of a leash law that requires an animal to be on a leash if off he property of 
their owner, except in designated area such as dog parks, or if an 
electronic device is used, or if it's a service dog.

We currently don't have restrictions in our code on tethering, which means 
tying a dog/animal to a stationary object.  At the State level, there have 
been attempts made to implement some laws regarding this, but they have 
been unsuccessful.  In response to the lack of success, some cities have 
incorporated their own regulations on tethering.  Staff would like to present 
some options on this.

As for the Animal Nuisance, we'd like to address specifically barking dogs 
and the process for filing a complaint.  Currently, the complainant must 
send the owner of the dog a letter, notifying him of the 'nuisance' or 
violation.  The City cannot take any action until this process has been 
completed.  We'd like to look at other options, and what can be required 
such as audio recordings, or logging of the instances.  We want the 
process to be helpful for our citizens; and clear for Staff.

Staff needs to update and clarify the vaccinations and sterilization process.

We'd like to discuss the number of dogs and cats that are allowed, and 
make sure everyone is comfortable with the current standard.

One of the more critical amendments is to incorporate the "dangerous 
dogs" section and Chapter 822 of the Health and Safety Code.  Other cities 
have done this by adding a definition and procedures for 'aggressive dogs'.  
This would include dogs that have not caused serious bodily injury to 
anyone (human), but have maybe attacked other animals.  This would 
then allow the City the ability to take those dogs if necessary.

Ms. Landeros noted that people are very protective and attached to their 
animals, and so any regulations that we propose for this Chapter, will be 
discussed so that everyone is comfortable. 

3. Discuss receipt of the Petition Requesting Recognition of Temple
Professional Firefighters Association, Local 846 of the International
Association of Fire Fighters as the bargaining agent for all the
firefighters employed by the City of Temple.

Page 5 of 18City Council Meeting



Brynn Myers, City Manager provided a presentation to the Council.  This 
process allows a venue for communication and collaboration between the 
Firefighters and the City regarding employment issues.  On February 27, 
2019, the Temple Professional Firefighters Association (TPFA) filed a 
petition with the City Secretary, requesting recognition of TPFA as the sole 
and exclusive bargaining agent.  The petition contained 105 of the 119 
signatures from those eligible; this excludes the Fire Chief, and his 
Assistant.

The Meet and Confer process is governed by Chapter 142, of he Local 
Government Code.  It allows a "firefighters association" to file a petition with 
the City seeking such recognition.  Once the petition is filed, the Council 
must determine whether or not, it recognizes the association as the sole 
and exclusive bargaining agent, and adopt the Meet and Confer process.  
If, the Meet and Confer process is adopted by the Council, or through an 
election, the city may then meet and confer with the TPFA over issues such 
as wages, salaries, rates of pay, hour of work, or any other terms and 
conditions of employment.  The City Manager must also select one or more 
person(s) to represent the City as its sole and exclusive agent during this 
process.  Ms. Myers noted that all deliberations must occur in a meeting 
that is open to the public.  During this process, the City and TPFA are not 
required to reach any agreement on any topic, or any agreement at all.

Should an agreement be reached on any issue discussed, it must be in 
writing, and then ratified by the Council, and a majority of the firefighters.  A 
written Meet and Confer agreement preempts all contrary State statutes, 
local ordinances, executive orders, and civil service provisions or rules.  
Ms. Myers added that while a Meet and Confer agreement in in effect, the 
City may not accept a petition requesting an election to adopt Collective 
Bargaining under Chapter 174 of the Local Government Code.

Ms. Myers reviewed the different options that could be taken by the 
Council.  Action by the Council must be taken within 30-days of filing the 
petition.

Option 1: Grant the petition to the Temple Professional Firefighters 
Association as requested in the petition, and determine by a majority vote 
that the City may meet and confer under Chapter 142 of the Local 
Government Code.  If council chooses this option, the Council may 
withdraw the recognition at a later date providing TPFA not less thank 90-
day written notice that the City Council is withdrawing recognition.  Any 
agreement reached between the parties, will not be renewed.

Option 2: Defer granting the recognition of the Temple Professional 
Firefighters Association and order an election by the voters in the City to 
determine whether the City may meeting and confer.  This would be done 
at the next regularly scheduled municipal election in May 2020.  The ballot 
language would read as "Authorizing the City of Temple to operate under 
the state law allowing a municipality to meet and confer and make 

Page 6 of 18City Council Meeting



agreements with the association representing municipal firefighters as 
provided by state law, preserving the prohibition against strikes and 
organized work stoppages, and providing penalties for strikes and 
organized work stoppages.”  If an election is had in May, you could not 
order another election, any sooner than the second anniversary of the date 
of the election, to determine whether the City may continue to meet and 
confer.

Mayor Davis if an election is order, but denied by the voters what is the 
option?

Ms. Myers noted that the Association would have to wait two years before 
filing another petition.

Option 3: Order a Certification Election to determine whether the Temple 
Professional Firefighters Association represents a majority of the affected 
firefighters.  Ms. Myers noted that typically this process is used in situations 
where there may be a question as to whether the association bringing 
forward the petition, truly represents the majority of the firefighters.  Staff 
would work with the TPFA to determine how the certification election would 
be conducted.  All costs associated with the certification election would be 
the responsibility of TPFA.

If a certification election is conducted, and a majority of the firefighters vote 
to have TPFA serve as their representative, then the Council retains the 
option to then grant recognition (option 1) or order an election (option 2).

Ms. Myers reminded Council that in October 2015, the Meet and Confer 
process was adopted for the Police Department, after the Temple Police 
Association (TPA) filed a petition.  The course of action was to first certify 
that TPA was the preferred association for the majority.  Temple Police 
Department has three different associations within the department.  Once 
the certification election was conducted, and it was determined that the 
majority wanted TPA to represent them as their agent, the Council then 
granted TPA recognition by resolution.

Temple Professional Firefighters Association is the only known association 
within the Fire Department.

Councilmember Long added that 105 of the 119 is indicative of a majority of 
the firefighters.

Ms. Myers added another consideration is that the petition is a secret ballot, 
and some may have felt pressured to sign it.  She didn't believe this to be 
the case for the current petition.  The Meet and Confer process is timely 
and could have cost associated with any agreements that are reached.

Mayor Davis noted he was part of the 2015 process for the Police 
Department and thought it went smooth.  Staff likes the Meet and Confer 

Page 7 of 18City Council Meeting



process and how it works for communication and collaboration.

Ms. Myers noted that if the Meet and Confer process is adopted by the 
Council, she would recommend interest based bargaining training similar to 
what was done in the process for the Police Department, TPA and the City. 
This helps to identify mutual interests and how to negotiate.

Councilmember Long asked that Staff provide a recommendation.

At approximately, 4:17 p.m., Mayor Davis announced the City Council would 
enter into an executive session, with no final action.  Mayor Pro Tem was present 
for this item.

4. Discuss the status of right-of-way acquisitions for the Poison Oak
Road and Outer Loop, Phases 1-6, expansion projects. Pursuant to
Texas Government Code Section 551.072, the City Council may meet
in closed session to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value
of real property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a
detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in
negotiations with a third person.

At approximately, 4:59 p.m., Mayor Davis adjourned the executive session.

The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Regular Meeting on 
Thursday, March 7, 2019 at 5:00 PM in the Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 2nd Floor, 2 North Main Street.  

Present: 
Councilmember Susan Long 
Councilmember Jessica Walker 
Mayor Pro Tem Judy Morales 
Mayor Timothy A. Davis 

I. CALL TO ORDER

1. Invocation

Superintendent Shelton Rhodes, voiced the Invocation.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Troy Myers, son of Brynn & Blake Myers lead the Pledge of
Allegiance.

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Laurissa Dodson, 6917 Sun Valley Drive, spoke in opposition of the FM 93
and Southwood Drive (regular agenda item 5).  Ms. Dodson wants the tree
line behind her fence to be used as a buffer, so that homes in the new

Page 8 of 18City Council Meeting



development could not use her fence as their fence.  There is also concern 
that ONCOR will not have adequate access to the telephone poles in this 
area.

III. REPORTS

3. Receive the annual Temple Economic Development Corporation
report.

Adrian Cannady, President of Temple Economic Development
Corporation provided the Annual Report.  The Funding and Operating
Agreement allows TEDC to give an annual report to the City each
year.  He recognized the staff, Scott Connell, Vice President; Bridget
Weber, Communications and Marketing; and Jennifer Avery,
Operations. Mr. Cannady, stated TEDC has been busy in 2018.

We are truly in growth mode as a community.  Over the past five to
six years the number of jobs has grown from 41,000 to 44,000; and
the Temple Metro population has grown.  This is all very positive for
the community.  We are faced with projects that provide the
opportunity to pitch on, that are higher in capital investment, but also
high in job creation.  This is critical, as our unemployment rate is 3.6%
-3.7%.

He reviewed the investment growth over the last ten years. There is
over 1/2 a billion dollars in new investment in the community which is
significant.  That excludes the Panda Temple Power Plant at $2.1
billion.  There has been a lot of activity and job growth, resulting in
over 1,500 new jobs.

Sales tax revenue continues to trend upward over the last seven
years, more than $5 million.  In 2018 specifically, we have seen
$16.55 million in capital investment due to three projects, Hudson
MFG $2.35 million; Reynolds Consumer Products, LLC $3.2 million;
and Temple Bellaire North, LLC $11 million.  All investments have an
age, and the new investment in the community is a significant part of
the growth in 2018.

The expansion project of the year is Cargill for $32 million.
Excellence in Workforce, goes to TTEC for hiring more than 800
customer care associates at the Temple location.  Corporate Partner
of the Year, is Johnson Brothers Ford Lincoln for their support and
involvement in the community.

The existing industry is so important to the community.  These are the
companies that have been creating hundreds of jobs and millions of
dollars have been invested over decades.  It is our job to ensure that
we understand their needs and are continuing to support them.

Page 9 of 18City Council Meeting



Workforce development is also critical.  With our unemployment rate 
at 3.6%-3.7% it can be challenging to fill the new jobs being created 
by the investments being made.  Our partners are essential to this 
process.  Our partners are, P2O Regional Council; Temple ISD 
Career Day; and the Temple ISD Industry Advisory Council. This is 
done in an effort to see that connections between the industry and our 
local resources are made.

A recent success in FY19 is the East Penn, Battery Finishing Facility 
at $106 million in capital investment, and creating 266 new jobs.  The 
other is Niagara, water bottling company, a $90 million capital 
investment project.  

Mr. Cannady mentioned the the FY19 Initiative, (1) Maintain & 
Improve High Quality Capital & Jobs in Temple - “Temple Business 
First” Program; (2) Manage Opportunities for Target Industry 
Expansion & Growth - Marketing Plan Execution; (3) Help to Build a 
Higher Quality Workforce in Temple and Across the Region 
- Workforce Ready Strategy; (4) Tell the Temple story - Reimagined
Storytelling; and (5) Be a leader for directed economic development &
growth within Temple: Statewide Community Engagement.
Ms. Myers thanked Mr. Cannady and the TEDC Staff. The partnership
is strong between the two entities.

Mayor Davis added that Mr. Cannady hit the ground running in 
September 2018, and is doing a great job.

IV. CONSENT AGENDA All items listed under this section, Consent
Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be
enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any
item may be removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of any
Councilmember and will be considered separately.

4. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda
items and the appropriate resolutions and ordinances for each of
the following:

(A) February 21, 2019 Special & Regular Called Meeting

(B) 2019-9575-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a
professional services agreement with Clark & Fuller, PLLC, of
Temple, to perform the Garden District Utility Assessment in an
amount of $219,492.50.

(C) 2019-9576-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing
contract amendment #3 with Clark & Fuller, PLLC, of Temple, for
additional services required to complete final design of Phase IV
of the Knob Creek Trunk Sewer Improvements in the amount of
$36,100.

Page 10 of 18City Council Meeting



(D) 2019-9577-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing
change order #4 to the construction contract with Archer
Western Construction, LLC, of Irving, to construct Phase 1 of the
Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion in the
amount of $91,397.85.

(E) 2019-9578-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing
granting an easement to Oncor Electric Delivery Company, LLC
for electric utilities necessary for the construction of the
Shallowford Lift Station.

(F) 2019-9579-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an
amendment to Resolution 2018-9445-R for additional funds to
purchase properties necessary for the Poison Oak Road
Expansion Project and authorizing closing costs and relocation
benefits associated with the purchases in an additional
estimated amount of $35,000.

(G) 2019-9580-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the
purchase of playground equipment for a pocket park within the
Alta Vista subdivision from Gametime/Total Recreation Products,
Inc. of Cypress in the estimated amount of $43,867.07.

(H) 2019-9581-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the
purchase of one marked police vehicle from Caldwell Country
Ford dba Rockdale Country Ford of Rockdale in the amount of
$52,958.

(I) 2019-9582-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the
purchase of a property necessary for the Poison Oak Road
Expansion Project and authorizing closing costs and relocation
benefits associated with the purchase in an estimated amount of
$171,000.

(J) 2019-4956: SECOND READING – FINAL HEARING – FY-19-5-
ZC: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing a rezoning from
Agricultural zoning district to Neighborhood Service  zoning
district on 1.28 +/- acres, situated in the J.J. Simmons, Survey
Abstract No. 737, Bell County, Texas, addressed as 4940 State
Highway 317.

(K) 2019-9583-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying the
payment of the annual invoice from Brazos River Authority in the
amount of $130,356.87 which covers the availability of 9,453
acre-feet of water to the City for FY 2019.

Page 11 of 18City Council Meeting



(L) 2019-9584-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing
budget amendments for fiscal year 2018-2019.

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Judy Morales approve the Consent 
Agenda as presented, seconded by Councilmember Susan Long.

Motion passed unanimously.

V. REGULAR AGENDA

ORDINANCES

5. 2019-4957: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – FY-19-4-
ZC: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing the
rezoning of 86.91 +/- acres, situated in the Redding Roberts
Survey, Abstract 692, and located at the intersection of FM
93 and Southwood Drive from Agricultural district to
Planned Development Agricultural, with a required
site/development plan.

Tammy Lyerly, City Planner presented this case to the Council.
The applicant is J.C. Wall III, WGG Land, LLC.  The request
is for a rezoning of 86.91 +/- acres, located at the intersection of
FM 93 and Southwood Drive from Agricultural district to Planned
Development Agricultural, with a required site/development
plan.  The Valley Ranch Subdivision is located to the West of
the subject property; and Legacy Ranch Subdivision is to the
Northeast of the subject property.

The applicant requests a rezoning of this property to allow for a
78-foot single-family residential development and individual on-
site septic system on 86.91 acres. Currently, by right, this
property allows for HUD code manufactured homes, with
screening on one-acre lots.

The subject property fronts FM 93, which is a major arterial; and
the adjacent properties are single family urban estate sized lots,
which are greater than half acre lots.

The Future Land Use Maps identifies the land with two
designations, (1) the northern portion is characterized as
Suburban Residential, and (2) Agricultural Rural for the
southern portion of the subject property.  The Suburban
Residential district is characterized by mid-sized single family
lots, allowing for greater separation between dwellings and
more emphasis on green space.  The Agricultural Rural is
characterized by rural properties, of newly annexed tracts.

Page 12 of 18City Council Meeting



The Thoroughfare Map identifies FM 93 as a major arterial, 
which is characterized as a high traffic streets, that is only 
appropriate for subdivision entrances.  Residential frontage is 
not allowed along a major arterial.

Ms. Lyerly continued noting that water and sewer is partially in 
compliance, as water is available along South FM 93 right-of-
way; but there is no sewer available for the site.  Sewer in the 
adjacent Valley Ranch Subdivision is unavailable due to no 
easement from the property owner; and the cost of a required lift 
station is high.  The next nearest sewer line in Legacy Ranch, is 
across the street to the North and will require an extension.  At 
this time the applicant is requesting septic systems for the 
proposed development.

Several photos of the surrounding properties were provided. 
Across the street to the North of the subject property is 
undeveloped. To the South at the end of Southwood Drive is a 
cul-de-sac which has access to the ONCOR substation.  
Property to the east our outside of the city limits.  The developer 
proposes to build a fence with stone columns along the FM 93 
frontage on the property line to the south of the tree line, which 
is in the TXDOT right-of-way.

Ms. Lyerly reviewed the development regulations and standards 
for agricultural districts in comparison with the proposed 
planned development-agricultural district.  The proposal is for 
minimum lot sizes of 0.75-acres, with some larger lots ranging 
from 1-acres to 2.89-acres.

       AG             PD-AG Proposal
Minimum Lot Size             1 Acre         0.75 Acre
Minimum Lot Width          100 Feet     94.9 Feet
Minimum Lot Depth          150 Feet    194 Feet
Front Setback     50 Feet      25 Feet
Side Setback                    15 Feet      15 Feet
Side Setback (corner)       15 Feet      15 Feet
Rear Setback       10 Feet      10 Feet
Max Building Height          3 Stories      -

During the Planning and Zoning Commission there was 
opposition to a 25-foot trail easement along the property’s east 
boundary along Friar’s Creek, and due to that overwhelming 
opposition, Staff is not supporting that trail easement as 
proposed by the applicant.  The applicant has willing removed 
that as part of the proposed Planned Development Site Plan.  At 
this same meeting of the Commission, ONCOR noted that they 
were working with the applicant to have the access more in line 
with the entrance of there substation at the southern border.   

Page 13 of 18City Council Meeting



The applicant has modified that access in the plan, and it is now 
a straight street.

In prior proposed Site Plans for this development, the applicant 
was keeping Southwood Drive in its present location. In working 
with the residence of Valley Ranch, to the west, it is being 
proposed to remove Southwood Drive and use that room to 
make the lots that are adjacent to Valley Ranch larger.  A new 
road would be built to replace Southwood Drive. The Site Plans 
shows two entrances into the subdivision. 

Total number of proposed lots is 78; with the larger lots will be 
placed along the creek area.  The applicant was proposing 
7.5-feet for the building line; but Staff's recommendation is to 
increase that to 15-feet which is what is currently required in the 
agricultural zoning district.  The applicant commits to having 
only single family residential homes in this development; one 2" 
caliper at breast height canopy tree in the front yard of every lot, 
and shall conform to the approved City of Temple Tree List; the 
fence along FM 93 shall be wood fence with masonry columns; 
and no on street parking.

Ms. Lyerly continued stating 20 notices were mailed out; and 
two were returned in disagreement from residents within the 
Valley Ranch Subdivision; and one verbal disagreement was 
offered at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.  As a 
courtesy, five notices were mailed to ETJ property owners within 
200-feet.

The Planning and Zoning Commission voted 4/1 at their 
February 4, 2019 meeting, to approve the rezoning and 
site/development plan which included the trail easement.  This 
trail easement has since been removed at the request of Staff.

Staff recommends approval of the zoning from Agricultural to 
Planned Development Agricultural and the Site/Development 
Plan with no trail easement and the following conditions:
1. Development will be subject to the Planned Development
Site Plan;
2. Development will also be subject to all Unified Development
Code (UDC) platting requirements during the platting process;
3. Single Family Residential ‘Site Built’ Development Only;
4. Minimum lot size is 0.75 acre;
5. Minimum front yard setback is 25 feet;
6. Side building line is 15 feet (applicant proposed 7.5 feet);
7. Rear building line is 10 feet;
8. One 2-inch caliper (Diameter at Breast Height) canopy tree
to be planted in the front yard of every lot. Species shall
conform to the approved City of Temple Tree list, per the Unified

Page 14 of 18City Council Meeting



Development Code (UDC); 
9. A fence along FM 93 shall be a wood fence with masonry
columns; and
10. No on-street parking is allowed due to the proposed 22-foot
wide streets.

Mayor Davis declared the public hearing open with regards to 
agenda item 5, and asked if anyone wished to address this 
item.  

Ms. Laurissa Dodson, 6917 Sun Valley Drive addressed the 
Council with her concerns related to the development.  She 
noted the reduction in number of lots to 78 is agreeable. Ms. 
Dodson is opposed to her fence being used as the back fence 
for the homes adjacent to her property. She requested that a 
tree buffer be required to remain between the two subdivision.  
Ms. Dodson also noted that ONCOR will need access to the 
telephone poles on the west side of Valley Ranch, and these 
poles are currently within the fence line.  The other request was 
that they leave a tree line between the Boutwell residents of 
7-acres, as a barrier between them and the building.

Ms. Dodson noted her opposition to mobile homes being 
allowed; as well as three-story homes, and that that is evasive 
to her privacy. She asked that homes on the backside only be 
one-story homes.

Mayor Davis clarified that as part of the site plan, mobile homes 
would not be allowed. This developer has agreed that only site-
built homes would be built. 

Ms. Lyerly noted that as the property is currently zoned, 
Agricultural, that three-story homes could be built.

Debbie Shine, 3018 Forrester Road, expressed her concerns for 
flooding and drainage, and traffic.  She noted that she has the 
most acreage that abuts this proposed development. There is 
not a huge concern for mobile homes being moved in.  Those 
that live in the ETJ were unable to register opposition due to a 
change in procedure, but wanted to make sure the Council 
knew of the surrounding neighborhood concerns.  It is 
understood that the engineer's plans in theory only allow the 
same amount of water, at the same rate, to enter into Friar's 
Creek.  In reality, with every development being built, the 
flooding, erosion, and destruction increases.  

Traffic at 31st/FM 93 is deadly.  Mr. Bill DiGaetano outlines this 
concern in the e-mail sent earlier today to each of the 
Councilmembers.  By adding two more entrances along FM 93 

Page 15 of 18City Council Meeting



for this proposed development will only cause more the situation 
to become more dangerous.

We request that from this point, that the P&Z Commission begin 
evaluating projects, not only on the individual project and merit, 
but also on the bigger picture, and look at the developments 
being added to any particular waterway.  Friar's Creek currently 
has a lot coming on-line with all the new development in this 
area. Those of us downstream are suffering from that.  

Ms. Shine requested a 'no' vote, but asked that if approved, that 
the Council conduct a study with implementation processes for 
drainage, and how to improve this problem.  She also asked 
that a traffic study be done in conjunction with TXDOT to 
address the growing traffic on FM 93.

Ms. Myers noted there is a drainage study underway, but need 
enough rainfall to calibrate the modules.   We are studying three 
basins at this time. The study is comprehensive.  We have a 
capital program that the council has authorized a rate structure 
that could support some level of investment.  Without the benefit 
of the study and the scope of the projects are the needed, we 
may need additional conversation once the results are in.

Richard Wilson, City Engineer agreed with Ms. Myers.  A 
significant amount of rain will be needed to move this study 
forward.

Mayor Davis asked for clarification on Ms. Dodson's concern for 
the tree line.  Is that in this request?

Ms. Lyerly replied no.

Ms. Myers noted, no preservation of a tree line is a current 
condition of this request. However, it could be a condition if 
Council desired.

J.C. Wall, 8702 Adams Lane explained that a 20-foot easement
was added to the rear, near Valley Ranch Subdivision. Not sure
how we preserve that tree line if on someone's private property
once they purchase the property.

Brian Chandler, Planning Director noted it could be a 20-foot 
landscape buffer preserving trees that are on the City's 
approved list at 16-inches or greater in diameter at breast 
height.  This site has several substantial trees and that could be 
a potential condition. 

Mr. Wall, as a developer we won't remove trees, but cannot 

Page 16 of 18City Council Meeting



regulate if a homeowner removes it from their own property.  

Ms. Dodson, reiterated that she wanted the tree buffer to divide 
the property and not be owned by anyone.  Other subdivision 
are done like this. 

Councilmember Long reminded Ms. Dodson that Southwood 
was being moved to allow for more room.  If the buffer is 
allowed on the 'no mans' land and a tree falls onto your fence 
who's responsibility is that.

Ms. Dodson replied it would be her responsibility as a home 
owner to repair her fence and clean up the debris.

Ms. Lyerly noted that when there is an approved planned 
development/site plan that is approved by council and it is time 
for building permits, the person that reviews and issues the 
permits, uses the approved site plan.

Councilmember Long asked Mr. Wall if he planned for multi-
story homes to be on the back side that abuts Valley Ranch?

Mr. Wall said he'd allow Council to determine that.

Ms. Myers noted that she would caution Council from leaving a 
strip of 'no-mans' land for the tree buffer. This has potential for 
over growth in the area, and possible nuisance in terms of 
rodents.  This is a unique situation, as the City would have not 
ownership or responsibility for the property. 

There being none, Mayor Davis declared the public hearing 
closed.

Councilmember Walker noted that we are actively pursuing and 
committed to a traffic study for that intersection.  This is a 
frightening and unsafe road.  Mr. Wall has been willing to work 
with Staff, and this is the least dense population.

Councilmember Long thanked both the developer and City Staff 
for working so diligently on this proposal.  This proposed 
development is better than what we saw a year ago.

Mayor Pro Tem Morales recognized the concerns for the 
neighbors in the area of this proposal, and appreciate their 
comments.  We are growing as a community and we need to be 
willing to grow with it and see that the infrastructure is adequate 
for each development.

Mayor Davis agreed.  This is the democratic process and we 

Page 17 of 18City Council Meeting



have rules and parameters to work within.  He thanked all that 
were involved with this proposal.

Motion by Councilmember Jessica Walker adopt ordinance as 
presented on first reading, with the original conditions 
recommended by Staff, and adding two additional conditions to 
(1) require only single-story homes on the west side of the
property that abuts Valley Ranch subdivision; and (2) to require
the developer to keep a line buffer along the west side of the
property consisting of 20 feet in width and trees identified in the
City approved tree list, which are a minimum size of 16 inches
DBH (Diameter-At-Breast-Height), seconded by Councilmember
Susan Long.

Motion passed unanimously.

________________________ 
Timothy A. Davis, Mayor 

ATTEST:

____________________ 
Lacy Borgeson, TRMC 
City Secretary 

Page 18 of 18City Council Meeting



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Don Bond, P.E., City Engineer   
James Billeck, P.E., Sr. Project Engineer 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., of Austin, in the amount of $331,210 for professional services 
required to design and bid South Pea Ridge Road from Westwood Hills Boulevard to the proposed 
realignment of Poison Oak Road, as well as, declare an official intent to reimburse the expenditures 
with the issuance of the 2019 Combination Tax & Revenue Bonds. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in Item Summary. 

ITEM SUMMARY: This project consists of roadway improvements to South Pea Ridge Road from 
Westwood Hills Boulevard to the proposed realignment of Poison Oak Road. Improvements include 
expanded pavement sections, pedestrian facilities, and drainage conveyance. See attached engineer’s 
proposal and project map for more details and project limits. 

Consultant services recommended under this professional services agreement include: 

Project Management $   20,500 
Surveying and ROW $   57,500 
Environmental $   11,000 
Route and Design Studies $   36,000 
Geotechnical  $     7,750 
Roadway Design  $ 110,340 
Drainage Design  $   69,480 
Traffic Engineering  $   10,440 
Bidding Services  $     8,200 

Total $ 331,210 

Time required for design is 300 calendar days after the notice to proceed and rights-of-entry have 
been obtained. The engineer’s preliminary opinion of probable cost for construction is $3,700,000. 



03/21/19 
Item #7(B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT: This professional services agreement is being funded with the issuance of the 2019 
Combination Tax & Revenue Bonds. We are declaring an official intent to reimburse for this purchase. 
A budget adjustment will be prepared at the time of the bond sale to reimburse expenditures incurred 
prior to the issuance of the bonds.  

Once the budget adjustment is approved, funding will be available in account 365-3400-531-6860, 
project 101874, for the professional services agreement with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc in the 
amount of $331,210 for professional services required to design and bid South Pea Ridge Road as 
shown below: 

Project Budget  $        1,375,000 
Encumbered/Committed to Date      - 

Professional Service Agreement - Kimley-Horn   (331,210) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $        1,043,790 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Project Map 
Resolution 



South Pea Ridge Road Page 1 of 13
Engineering Scope January 16, 2019

Sharon Carlos, P.E.
3210E. Avenue H
Building A
Temple, Texas 76501

Re: City of Temple
South Pea Ridge Road
Design Services

Dear Ms. Carlos:

At the request of the City of Temple Kimley-Horn is submitting this proposal for the
above referenced project. This project will develop final plans, specifications and estimates
(PS&E) and bidding phase services for the South Pea Ridge Road Project. The beginning
of  the  proposed  improvements  will  connect  to  the  proposed  realignment  of  Poison  Oak
Road and extend to Westwood Hills Boulevard. The project will also connect to the
realignment of South Pea Ridge Road as shown in the Reserve at Pea Ridge development
plans. The final PS&E will include final plans, Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
(OPCC), geotechnical investigations, environmental investigations and metes and bounds
for acquisition of rights-of-way. Based on the current bidding landscape for projects of
this nature, we believe the order of magnitude of preliminary opinion of probable
construction cost is $3,700,000. We have included an exhibit with this proposal for
reference purposes.

The work to be performed by Kimley-Horn under this contract consists of providing
engineering services for design of the project as described above to include design and
preparation of plans and OPCCs. The project includes the design of approximately 1.0
mile of South Pea Ridge Road reconstruction and widening, culvert design, pedestrian
improvements, intersection improvements, storm drain design, driveway modifications,
striping and signage.  The timeframe for design of the project is ten (10) months from the
notice to proceed and receipt of all necessary rights-of-entry. Metes and bounds for rights-
of-way and easements will be delivered to the designated City of Temple Project Manager.
Acquisition processes shall be the responsibility of the City.

Kimley-Horn will perform all work and prepare all deliverables in accordance with the
latest version of AASHTO and City of Temple specifications, standards and manuals.

Kimley-Horn will perform quality control and quality assurance (QA/QC) on all
deliverables associated with the project. All traffic control will be in accordance with the
Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (TMUTCD).



South Pea Ridge Road Page 2 of 13
Engineering Scope January 16, 2019

Kimley-Horn’s Services consist of the services specifically described in Sections 1.1
through 9.4 including the specific engineering services to be performed through the
following consulting disciplines as subcontractors to Kimley-Horn:

(1) CP&Y – Survey, ROW
(2) Intertek-PSI – Geotechnical

TASK 1 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Kimley-Horn will:

1.1 Meet with the project team at a kickoff meeting to set the production schedule and
parameters for all subsequent work, to verify the components within which all project
participants must perform, and to identify all parties and significant deadlines involved in
the comprehensive schedule strategy.  Based on this information, Kimley-Horn will
prepare a detailed schedule of its work for the project addressing each component of the
work to be done, indicating the points of involvement of all project participants.  Kimley-
Horn will maintain the schedule throughout project development.

1.2 Perform general administrative duties associated with the project, to include
monitoring/reporting, scheduling, general correspondence, office administration,
subconsultant coordination and invoicing.

1.3 Maintain an “issues list” identifying the date the Project related issues become
known, the person(s) responsible for solution(s), date solution(s) will be provided, and
final resolution of the issue.

1.4  Participate  in  meetings  with  the  City  to  update  the  City  on  the  progress  of  work
for up to:

a) 1 initial kickoff meeting;
b) 5 progress meetings;

1.5 Attend up to three (3) design coordination meetings with the City, and attend
Design Review meetings for the 30%, 60%, and 95% PS&E design submittals.  Prepare
meeting minutes and distribute to project attendees.

1.6 Prepare comment responses as applicable for comments received during design
review submittals.

1.7 Perform Quality Control of deliverables prior to submission to the City.

1.8 Prepare and submit monthly progress reports and invoices to the City for review
and approval.



South Pea Ridge Road Page 3 of 13
Engineering Scope January 16, 2019

TASK 2 – SURVEY AND RIGHT-OF-WAY DATA

CP&Y will:

2.1 Utilize the current ownership to conduct the right-of-way survey and will recover
existing right-of-way corners. CP&Y will analyze the available recorded documents and
will provide an existing right-of-way line in the AutoCAD file.

2.2 Provide the professional and technical staff necessary to perform a detailed
topographic survey of the area 40 foot on either side of the edge of asphalt of South Pea
Ridge Road, in Temple, Texas, from 500 feet south of Poison Oak Road to 500 feet west
of Westwood Hills Blvd. The 40 foot on either side of the asphalt will be limited to the
rear property fence lines in the area of the residential subdivisions. This will also include
the 100 feet down the side streets of South Pea Ridge Road. The topographic survey will
be based on an on-the-ground survey and will include elevations adequate across the site
to develop one-foot contours. The survey will show above-ground and visible utilities,
above-ground existing improvements. The survey will also include hardwood trees 6” or
greater.

2.4 Coordinate with Texas811 and Utility Locators to request underground utilities
and will field locate the paint marks and pin flags of the utility companies for segments
adjacent to public rights-of-way.

2.5 Obtain right-of-entries for all the tracts that are within the project limits

2.6 Prepare metes and bounds description and sketch for up to twenty (20) parcels for
right-of-way acquisition.

Exhibit cost with monuments - $1,300 Each – 1 total
Exhibit cost without monuments - $900 Each – 19 total

TASK 3 – PHASE 1 ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT

Kimley-Horn will:

3.1 Prepared an environmental database search encompassing the minimum search
distances listed in ASTM E1527-13, 8.2.1.  This report will be reviewed for known and
suspect contaminated sites.  Kimley-Horn will review readily available databases on
institutional and engineering (IC/EC) controls and Activity Use Limitations (AULs) as
well as available historical aerial photographs of the site and surrounding vicinity.  Kimley-
Horn will obtain and review readily available historical city directories, fire insurance
maps, and historical topographic maps.

3.2 Conduct a site reconnaissance consistent with ASTM E 1527-13, 9.  This
reconnaissance will be non-invasive and will not consist of any sample collection or



South Pea Ridge Road Page 4 of 13
Engineering Scope January 16, 2019

analyzing.  Should, an additional site reconnaissance be required due to access limitations,
the additional site reconnaissance shall be considered additional services.

3.3 Consistent with ASTM E 1527-13, 10.5.2.3 and 10.5.4, Kimley-Horn will make a
reasonable attempt to conduct the interviews with current and past owners, operators, and
occupants  of  the  property.   In  the  case  of  abandoned  properties  as  defined  in  ASTM  E
1527-13, 3.2.1, where there is evidence of uncontrolled access or unauthorized uses,
Kimley-Horn will attempt to interview current neighboring or nearby property owners
(ASTM E 1527-13, 10.5.5).

3.4 Upon completion of the Tasks 3.1 through 3.3, Kimley-Horn will prepare a
summary report of the results of the Phase I ESA.  The report will be formatted consistent
with Appendix X4 of ASTM E 1527-13.

3.5 Perform an Aquatic Resources Delineation in general accordance with the USACE
1987 Wetlands Delineation Manual and appropriate USACE Regional Supplement as
detailed below.

3.6 Locate readily available resource documents which may include aerial
photographs, historic topographic maps, soil surveys, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
(USFWS) National Wetlands Inventory (NWI) maps, Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM), soil survey maps, and other related
data for a desktop review of site conditions.  Potential wetlands and waterbodies will be
identified to guide the site visit.

3.7 Perform a site visit to evaluate the existence and approximate locations of aquatic
resources on the site generally following the USACE 1987 Wetlands Delineation Manual
and the applicable USACE Regional Supplement.  If applicable, the site visit will include
completion of USACE wetland determination data forms.  Following the site visit,
Kimley-Horn will prepare exhibits showing the boundaries (polygons) and acreage and/or
linear footage (if applicable) of aquatic resources identified onsite during the site visit.
Flagging of aquatic resources in the field will not be performed as part of this scope.

3.8 Prepare a report for the project documenting the results of the Aquatic Resources
Delineation performed onsite.  The report will address the applicable regulatory
framework, describe the assessment methodology, limitations and findings, and provide
site-specific conclusions and recommendations pertaining to compliance with Section 404
of the Clean Water Act.  This will include an evaluation as to if potential impacts to
possible jurisdictional areas would require a Nationwide Permit (NWP) or an Individual
Permit (IP).  If formal USACE notification and authorization does not appear to be
required upon review of final plans and specifications, but a NWP still appears applicable,
Kimley-Horn will also document this information specific to the project and how to use
the perceived applicable NWP.  If applicable, this section of the report will include
regulatory language for the applicable NWP with discussion of selected noteworthy
General Conditions.  If it appears that proposed construction activities will not result in



South Pea Ridge Road Page 5 of 13
Engineering Scope January 16, 2019

impacts to potentially jurisdictional features, recommendations will be provided to not
consult with the USACE (unless consultation is warranted by the Client).

It is important for the City to understand that the EPA and the USACE occasionally issue
guidance concerning what they intend to assert jurisdiction over.  Changes that impact our
strategy or scope will cause additional work and will be addressed as an additional service.
Observations will be made under the applicable regulatory guidance at the time of the
observations.

Official authority to make a determination defining applicable jurisdictional limits rests
with the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA); however, authority has been delegated
to the USACE.  Jurisdictional Determinations (JD) are made by the USACE, upon
specific written request, on a case-by-case basis and may make use of certain information
at its disposal (such as other permits in the local area) that may not be readily available to
the public.  The Aquatic Resources Delineation should not be considered authoritative,
and it may not wholly eliminate uncertainty regarding the USACE's jurisdictional limits.

3.9 Review readily available resources including, but not limited to, federally and state
listed threatened and endangered species on a county-wide basis, current and historical
topographic maps, aerial photographs, Texas Parks and Wildlife Department’s (TPWD)
ecoregion maps and Natural Diversity Database (NDD), and available existing information
regarding topography and geology of the site in an attempt to identify potentially suitable
threatened and endangered species habitat.

3.10 Perform as site visit to evaluate the presence of federally and/or state-listed
threatened and endangered species and the presence of suitable habitat for federally-listed
threatened and/or endangered species.  It is assumed that this site visit will be performed
in conjunction with the Aquatic Resources Delineation (Task 1, above).  If this task is
authorized at a separate time requiring a second mobilization for the site visit, additional
fees will apply.  Kimley-Horn will prepare a report documenting the threatened and
endangered species assessment.  The report will address the applicable framework,
describe the assessment methodology, limitations and findings, and provide site-specific
conclusions and recommendations.

3.11 Prepare appropriate project location and description information and will upload a
request to the Texas Historical Commission (THC) to review the scope of the proposed
project to determine if a cultural resources survey will be required.  It is our understanding
that the THC may take up to 30 days to review the request and respond.  This scope does
not include any desktop review for cultural resources or a cultural resources survey.  If
required, Kimley-Horn will retain a subconsultant to perform additional work if requested
by the THC.



South Pea Ridge Road Page 6 of 13
Engineering Scope January 16, 2019

TASK 4 – ROUTE AND DESIGN STUDIES

Kimley-Horn will:

4.1 Obtain and review any existing data from the City and other entities that may have
record documents and can release the information.

4.2 Perform a site visit to evaluate site and traffic characteristics, topography, utilities,
and potential environmental issues.

4.3 Design preliminary horizontal and vertical roadway geometrics utilizing
Microstation and Geopak roadway design software. All designs shall be in accordance
with AASHTO and City of Temple design guidelines and criteria.

a) Kimley-Horn will provide preliminary Plan-Profile Sheets for South Pea Ridge
Road at a scale of 1”=40’ horizontal and 1”=10’ vertical for review and approval
from the City prior to moving onto 30% plans.

4.4 Coordinate with utility companies to determine if relocations and adjustments are
required to accommodate the proposed project development.

a) Field surveys shall locate horizontally: crossings of all utilities identified by
markings obtained from performing a one call utility locate service.

b) After design surveys have located marked utilities from the one call service,
verification of utilities will be performed as available from meeting with the utility
companies  (Atmos,  AT&T,  Oncor,  etc.).   This  scope  of  services  includes  (1)
kickoff meeting and (1) one coordination meeting with the utility owners.

c) Initial notifications of the project details and expected time lines for project
development shall be conveyed to all utility owners existing within the project
limits.

d) Upon determination of required relocation and/or adjustments, coordination with
impacted utility owners shall be initiated.  Kimley-Horn will not be responsible for
design or plans production of any utility relocations necessary to accommodate the
proposed improvements unless authorized by the City for additional services.



South Pea Ridge Road Page 7 of 13
Engineering Scope January 16, 2019

TASK 5 – GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATIONS

Intertek-PSI will:

5.1 Explore subsurface conditions by soil borings following the provided Intertek-PSI
drilling program. The table below summarizes the exploratory boring program.

TABLE 1: SUMMARY OF BORINGS

a) borings locations will be identified in the field using available natural landmarks or
GPS coordinates. Surveying of the boring locations to obtain surface coordinates
and elevations is beyond the scope of work and should be surveyed by others prior
to construction. References to elevations of various subsurface strata will be based
on depths below existing grade at the time of drilling.

b) During the field activities, the subsurface conditions will be observed, logged, and
visually classified. Field notes will be maintained to summarize soil types and
descriptions, water levels, changes in subsurface conditions, and drilling
conditions.

c) Final depths of the borings may be extended or reduced depending on the
subsurface materials identified during field activities.

d) Intertek-PSI will contact Texas One Call/Dig Tess, etc. or other public utility
clearance companies prior to the start of drilling activities. It is our experience that
these companies do not mark the locations of privately owned utilities. This
proposal is based on private utility lines and other subsurface appurtenances are
located in the field by others prior to field activities.

e) Intertek-PSI will exercise reasonable caution to avoid damages to underground
utilities by contacting local utility companies prior to the field activities. However,
private utility locations are often unknown by public utility companies and by the
utility owners. Therefore, Intertek-PSI will not be responsible for damage to the
site or any buried utilities that are not made known to us.

f) Some damage to the ground surface may result from the drilling operations near
the work areas and along ingress/egress pathways. The field crew will attempt to
limit such damage, but no restoration other than backfilling the borings is included
in this proposal. Excess auger cuttings and drilling spoils would be spread out on
site.

5.2 Obtain representative soil samples during the field exploration program and transport
to the Intertek-PSI laboratory for testing. The nature and extent of this laboratory testing
program will be dependent upon the subsurface conditions identified during the field
exploration program. The laboratory testing program on selected samples may include

Design Element Number of
Borings

Boring Depth(s)
(feet)

Drilling Footage
(feet)

Roadway 10 15 150
TOTAL 10 --- 150



South Pea Ridge Road Page 8 of 13
Engineering Scope January 16, 2019

moisture content tests, Atterberg limits tests, unconfined compressive strength tests, swell tests
and other tests as required to identify the engineering characteristics of the subsurface
materials. Portions of any samples that are not altered or consumed by laboratory testing will
be retained for 30 days after the issuance of the geotechnical report and will then be discarded.

TABLE 2: ANTICIPATED FIELD EXPLORATION DESCRIPTION

Drilling Equipment Truck Mounted Drilling Equipment

Drilling Method Continuous Flight Auguring, Hollow-Stem Augers,
Wet Rotary, Air Rotary

Drilling Procedure Applicable ASTM and Intertek- PSI Safety Manual

Field Testing Hand Penetrometer
Split Spoon Testing (ASTM D1586)

Sampling Procedure ASTM D1587/1586

Sampling Frequency Continuously to a Depth of 10 Feet

Frequency of Groundwater Level Measurements During and After Drilling

Boring Backfill Procedures Soil Cuttings, Bentonite Pellets

Sample Preservation and Transportation Procedure General Accordance with ASTM D4220

5.3 Obtain results of the field exploration and laboratory testing and use in the
engineering analysis and in the formulation of the recommendations. The results of the
subsurface exploration, including the recommendations and the data on which they are
based, will be presented in a written geotechnical report. The geotechnical report may
include the following items:

a) General site development and subgrade preparation,
b) Estimated potential soil movements associated with shrinking and swelling soils

and methods to reduce these movements to acceptable levels;
c) Recommendations for site excavation, fill compaction, use of on-site and imported

fill material under pavements;
d) Recommendations for the design of flexible asphaltic and rigid concrete roadways

per City of Temple pavement requirements.

A pdf version of the geotechnical report will be prepared and submitted by email to the
Client and design team. If requested by the Client, additional hard copies can be provided.
The geotechnical report will be reviewed, signed, and sealed by a registered Professional
Engineer.



South Pea Ridge Road Page 9 of 13
Engineering Scope January 16, 2019

TASK 6 – ROADWAY DESIGN

Kimley-Horn will:

6.1 Prepare existing and proposed typical section sheets.

6.2 Prepare a Title Sheet, Index of Sheets, and a Project Layout which references
survey control benchmarks.

6.3 Develop Removal Plans identifying and quantifying removals.

6.4 Prepare final Plan-Profile Sheets for South Pea Ridge Road at a scale of 1”=40’
horizontal and 1”=10’ vertical.

6.5 Prepare intersection grading and details sheet detailing intersection modifications
at Westwood Hills Boulevard and Poison Oak Road associated with the reconstruction of
South Pea Ridge Road.

6.6 Develop driveway/intersection modification details for approximately 16 locations.

6.7 Prepare proposed grading cross sections at a spacing no less than 50 feet and at
driveways, cross drainage structures, utility crossings, and intersections.

6.8 Prepare Temporary Traffic Control Plans
a) Develop a Sequence of Work and General Traffic Control Notes for

construction
b) Prepare traffic control plans for a multiple-phase traffic control sequence

identifying lane geometry channelizing devices, construction zones, and
buffers.

c) Design traffic control to maintain one lanes in each direction where
possible incorporating the use of temporary pavement where applicable.

d) Prepare traffic control typical sections for each construction phase.

6.9 Calculate quantities and prepare Item Summaries Sheets tabulating project
quantities.

6.10 Incorporate City standard details as applicable.

6.11 Prepare General Notes and a Construction Timeline Estimate.

6.12 Prepare an opinion of probable construction costs (OPCC) at each milestone
deliverable.

6.13  Prepare project specifications.



South Pea Ridge Road Page 10 of 13
Engineering Scope January 16, 2019

6.14 Kimley-Horn will prepare the following deliverables during Final Design:
a)  Five (5) bond copies and one (1) electronic copy of 30% plans and OPCC

in 11x17 format
b)  Five (5) bond copies and one (1) electronic copy of 60% plans and OPCC

in 11x17 format
c)  Five (5) bond copies and one (1) electronic copy of 95% plans in 11x17

format, preliminary general notes, construction timeline, specifications, and
OPCC

d) Five (5) bond copies and one (1) electronic copy of Final plans in 11x17
format, general notes, construction timeline, specifications, and OPCC

TASK 7 – DRAINAGE DESIGN

7.1 Prepare final culvert hydrology & hydraulics

a) Delineate offsite watershed contributing flow to the road alignment.
b) Calculate offsite peak flow in the 25-year (4% annual chance event) and 100-year (1%

annual chance event) events.
c) Determine outfall locations for internal drainage system.
d) Design outfall channels to convey offsite and internal drainage to identified outfall

locations. This scope of services assumes that existing outfall channels will be utilized.
Design of a new outfall channel will be considered additional services.

e) Deliverables: Offsite drainage area map, hydrologic/hydraulic computations, culvert
layout sheet (plan/profile), construction notes, quantities, and special specifications

7.2 Storm Drain Design
a) Produce interior drainage area maps at 1"=40' scale
b) Calculate run-off to each inlet and produce inlet hydraulic information using

"GEOPAK Drainage" software and City of Temple Drainage Criteria and Design
Manual.

c) Produce storm drain calculations per the City of Temple Drainage Criteria and Design
Manual using GEOPAK Drainage software.

d) Provide runoff, inlet and storm drain calculation sheets.
e) Produce plan and profile sheets at 1"=40' scale for the storm sewer system and include

limits of trench protection and hydraulic grade line.
f) Produce lateral profile sheets for the storm sewer system at 1"=40' scale.
g) Provide non-structural drainage detail sheet.

7.3 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SW3P)

a) Produce Erosion Control Sheets double banked at 1"=40' scale showing controls per
Traffic Control Phase



South Pea Ridge Road Page 11 of 13
Engineering Scope January 16, 2019

TASK 8 – TRAFFIC ENGINEERING

8.1 Prepare Signing and Pavement Marking sheets at a scale of 1”=40’.  Design signing and
pavement markings in accordance with the Texas Manual for Uniform Traffic Control
Devices.

8.2 Develop details for non-standard traffic signs.

TASK 9 – BIDDING

Kimley-Horn will:

9.1 Assist the City in advertising for bids on the Project including the preparation and issuance of
addenda (if any) following the City’s prior approval.  Kimley-Horn will respond to bidder clarification
questions during the bidding process.  Kimley-Horn will attend a pre-bid conference.

9.2 Assist the City in tabulating bids and preparing bid tabulation forms, including a comparison to
estimated costs.  Kimley-Horn will NOT attend a bid opening.

9.3      Assist the City in reviewing all bids, the Statement of Bidder’s Qualifications, financial
statements of bidders, lists of bidders’ proposed subcontractors, and all other documents required to
be submitted with the bids for responsiveness and for bid amount.  Kimley-Horn will verify through
reasonable investigation the financial and performance history documentation submitted by the low
bidder and second low bidder, and their references.  The City will provide copies of all of the bid
documents to Kimley-Horn within one day from the date of receipt of bids and Kimley-Horn will
prepare a report of its review and evaluation of within ten calendar days of receipt of the bid
documents of the contract for construction, or other action as may be appropriate. The City will make
the final decision on the award of the construction contract and the acceptance or rejection of bids.
Kimley-Horn will provide technical (but not legal) advice in bid protest situations.

9.4      Have no authority to issue a Notice to Proceed to any Contractor.



South Pea Ridge Road Page 12 of 13
Engineering Scope January 16, 2019

LUMP SUM FEE SCHEDULE

TASK 1 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT_____________________________________$20,500

TASK 2 – SURVEY AND RIGHT-OF-WAY DATA___________________________$57,500

TASK 3 – PHASE 1 ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT_________________$11,000

TASK 4 – ROUTE AND DESIGN STUDIES_________________________________$36,000

TASK 5 – GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATIONS_____________________________$7,750

TASK 6 – ROADWAY DESIGN__________________________________________$110,340

TASK 7 – DRAINAGE DESIGN___________________________________________$69,480

TASK 8 – TRAFFIC ENGINEERING______________________________________$10,440

TASK 9 – BIDDING____________________________________________________$8,200

TOTAL LUMP SUM FEE______________________________________________$331,210



South Pea Ridge Road Page 13 of 13
Engineering Scope January 16, 2019

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Any services not specifically provided for in the above scope will be billed as additional services and
performed at our then current hourly rates.  Additional services we can provide include, but are not
limited to, the following:

· Phase II ESA
· Preparation of a Soil Management Plan
· Preparation of a Health and Safety Plan
· Geophysical investigations to identify subsurface anomalies
· Additional site visits beyond what is presented herein
· USACE consultation, coordination, and permitting
· Mitigation assistance/study
· Threatened and Endangered Species presence/absence surveys
· Cultural Resources Desktop Review
· Cultural Resources Survey
· Traffic Studies
· Signal Warrant
· Water Utility Design
· Sanitary Sewer Utility Design
· Landscape Design
· Illumination Design
· Metes and Bounds description and sketch for easements

Kimley-Horn Standard Rate Schedule for Additional Services
(Hourly Rate)
Senior Professional I $240 - $265
Senior Professional II $180 - $250
Professional $160 - $210
Senior Technical Support $115 - $190
Technical Support   $70 - $100
Analyst $105 - $175
Support Staff   $75 - $115

CP&Y Standard Rate Schedule for Additional Services
(Hourly Rate)
Survey Crew $135
Survey Crew w/GPS $165
Sr. Survey Tech $100
RPLS/PM $140
Administrative $75

CP&Y Construction Easement description $750 Each





1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9585-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. OF AUSTIN, TEXAS IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $331,210, FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
REQUIRED TO DESIGN AND BID SOUTH PEA RIDGE ROAD FROM 
WESTWOOD HILLS BOULEVARD TO THE PROPOSED REALIGNMENT 
OF POISON OAK ROAD; AS WELL AS, DECLARE AN OFFICIAL 
INTENT TO REIMBURSE THE EXPENDITURES WITH THE ISSUANCE 
OF THE 2019 COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE BONDS; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

Whereas, this project consists of roadway improvements to South Pea Ridge Road from 
Westwood Hills Boulevard to the proposed realignment of Poison Oak Road - improvements include 
expanded pavement sections, pedestrian facilities, and drainage conveyance;   
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. in the amount of $331,210, for professional services required to 
design and bid South Pea Ridge Road from Westwood Hills Boulevard to the proposed realignment 
of Poison Oak Road; 

 
 Whereas, the City finds, considers and declares that the reimbursement of the City for the 
payment of such expenditures will be appropriate and consistent with the lawful objectives of the 
City and, as such, chooses to declare its intention, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations, to reimburse itself for such payments at such time as it issues a 
Combination of Tax and Revenue Bonds to finance the Project; 
 

Whereas, the City hereby certifies that such expenditures have not been made prior to the 
date of passage of this Resolution; 
 

Whereas, upon issuance of the Combination of Tax and Revenue Bonds, the City desires to 
reimburse these prior expenditures with proceeds of the Notes;  

 
Whereas, Section 1.150-2 of the Treasury Regulations provides that an expenditure on the 

Project may not be reimbursed from Tax and Revenue Bonds proceeds unless, along with other 
requirements, the City declares official intent to reimburse the expenditure prior to the date that the 
expenditure to be reimbursed was paid;  

 
Whereas, this professional services agreement is being funded with the issuance of 2019 

Combination Tax and Revenue Bonds, and the City is declaring an official intent to reimburse for this 
purchase - a budget adjustment will be prepared at the time of the bond sale to reimburse expenditures 
incurred prior to the issuance of the bonds; 

 
Whereas, once the budget adjustment is approved, funding will be available in Account No. 

365-3400-531-6860, Project No. 101874; and  
 
 



2 
 

 
 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with Kimley-Horn and 
Associates, Inc. of Austin, Texas in the amount of $331,210, for professional services required to 
design and bid South Pea Ridge Road from Westwood Hills Boulevard to the proposed realignment 
of Poison Oak Road. 
 

Part 3: This Resolution is a declaration of official intent by the City under Section 1.150-
2 of the Treasury Regulations that it reasonably expects to reimburse the expenditures described 
in Part 1 with proceeds of debt to be incurred by the City, such debt to be issued on or before 
eighteen (18) months after the date of (i) the date the first expenditure is paid; or (ii) the date on 
which the property is placed in service, but in no event three years after the first expenditure is 
paid. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time,  
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS  
 
 
       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, Interim Public Works Director 
James Billeck, P.E., Sr. Project Engineer 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with MRB Group, of Temple, to perform the South 41st to 57th Street Utility Assessment in the amount 
of $263,800. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item summary.

ITEM SUMMARY: Public Works has identified that the aging wastewater and water mains bounded by 
South 41st Street, South 57th Street, Avenue R, and Avenue Z are failing and need to be replaced. See 
project map for reference. The project will evaluate approximately 29,900 linear feet of wastewater 
main ranging from six-inch to 12-inch diameter, 124 manholes, and 38,200 linear feet of water main 
ranging from two-inch to 18-inch diameter.  

Assessment activities include cleaning and video inspection of the sewer mains and manholes in 
accordance with the National Association of Sewer Service Companies (NASSCO) Pipeline 
Assessment and Certification Program (PACP). Recommendations for phasing/prioritization, 
rehabilitation methods and an OPC will be developed as a result of the assessment. Per attached 
engineer’s proposal, the proposed services are divided up as follows: 

Preliminary Assessment - General Services  $   10,500 

Preliminary Assessment - Wastewater Rehabilitation $ 228,000 

Preliminary Assessment - Water Rehabilitation  $   25,300 

TOTAL $ 263,800 

The time required for the assessment is 270 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed. 



03/21/19 
Item #7(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding for the professional services agreement with MRB Group to perform the 
South 41st to 57th Street Utility Assessment in the amount of $263,800 is available in account 561-5200-
535-6994, project 101949, as follows:

Project Budget  $       500,000 
Encumbered/Committed to Date      - 

Professional Services Agreement - MRB Group   (263,800) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $       236,200 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Project Map 
Resolution 



 
 

www.mrbgroup.com 

5250 South 31st Street, Temple, TX 76502 – Phone: 254-771-2054 

TBPE Firm Registration Number F-10615 

 

March 6, 2019 

 

Sharon Carlos, P.E., Project Manager 

City of Temple – Engineering 

3210 E. Avenue H 

Building A, Suite 107 

Temple, Texas 76501 

 

RE: PROPOSAL FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE REHABILITATION 

 CITY OF TEMPLE 

 

Dear Sharon: 

 

MRB Group, PC (MRB) appreciates the opportunity to offer this proposal for 

professional engineering services for the rehabilitation of water and wastewater 

system infrastructure within the City of Temple. The project area is southwest of the 

City center generally between South 41st Street and 57th Street, and Avenue R 

and Avenue Z.  

 

I. Project Overview  

The Project Area is primarily residential with many water and wastewater 

lines over 80 years old. Scott Elementary School is just north of the Project 

Area and Jaycee Park and the Church of Christ border the Project Area on 

the southeast side. 57th Street on the west side of the Project Area serves 

some commercial establishments and connects with SW H K Dodgen Loop 

(Loop 363) just south of Avenue Z. 

 

City Staff has indicated that they envision a phased project approach as 

follows: 

 

• Phase I – Preliminary Assessment 

• Phase II –Design 

• Phase III – Bidding 

• Phase IV – Construction  

 

 



Sharon Carlos, P.E. 

City of Temple 

RE: WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE REHABILITATION 

March 6, 2019 

Page 2   

J:\630006\Proposals\Temple, City of\Avenue R to Z WL and WW ReHab\Letter Proposal Ave R to Z Rehab_r3-6-18.docx 

 
 

 

Our proposal contains our scope of work and fee for the Preliminary 

Assessment Phase work with scope and fee for subsequent project phases 

provided following completion of the Preliminary Assessment Phase.  

 

The Preliminary Assessment phase is needed to define the specific 

improvements required in sufficient detail so that major design and project 

approach issues and questions are resolved prior to beginning the design 

phase (preparation of plans and specifications). Our approach in 

conducting the work required under this Preliminary Assessment Phase is 

provided below. 

 

Wastewater System Rehabilitation 

The wastewater system within the Project Area includes approximately 

29,900 linear feet (LF) of sanitary sewer line consisting of primarily 6-inch 

diameter pipe, with also 8-inch and 12-inch diameter pipe within the area. 

There are approximately 58 sanitary sewer manholes identified within this 

area as well, based on the GIS data provided. However, there are up to 66 

additional locations where manholes would be anticipated, but are not 

shown on existing mapping.  Many of the wastewater lines are clay pipe 

and with mostly brick sanitary sewer manholes. The sanitary sewer lines are 

generally located in service drives (alleyways) behind residences and 

within easements in backyards rather than within City streets. The City has 

expressed a desire to rehabilitate all sanitary sewer lines and manholes 

within the Project Area.  

 

In many cases, rehabilitation of existing wastewater collection system lines 

can be effectively accomplished without new line construction using in-

place methods such as spot repair, pipe bursting and cured-in-place pipe 

(CIPP) relining. These methods minimize above ground disruptions and are 

considerably less expensive and less disruptive than new construction. CIPP 

methods result in a line capacity essentially the same as existing, and pipe 

bursting is generally limited to moderate increases in line size. Rehabilitation 

of brick or concrete manholes is generally accomplished using a 

combination of sand blasting, pressure washing, grouting and epoxy 

coating. Other methods can include grouting in place, fiberglass or 

polymer concrete liners within the existing manhole.  



Sharon Carlos, P.E. 

City of Temple 

RE: WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE REHABILITATION 

March 6, 2019 

Page 3   

J:\630006\Proposals\Temple, City of\Avenue R to Z WL and WW ReHab\Letter Proposal Ave R to Z Rehab_r3-6-18.docx 

 
 

 

 

MRB has considerable experience with sewer line spot repairs and 

replacements as well as pipe bursting and CIPP sewer line rehabilitation 

methods and multiple techniques for manhole rehabilitation. In order to 

fully evaluate the best methods of rehabilitation, MRB recommends careful 

video inspection of both sewer lines and manholes to confirm pipe sizes, 

locate service connections, to generally establish existing conditions to 

determine appropriate repair methods as well as to provide information to 

bidders once the final design is complete. We propose to subcontract the 

video inspection work to qualified subcontractors who regularly conduct 

this work, and will provide deliverables (video files, and inspection reports) 

in electronic format suitable for loading into a GIS database. 

 

We propose that our deliverables to the City include: 

 

• a summary of our analysis and recommended methods for 

rehabilitation method for sewer lines and manholes,  

• prioritize the line segments and manholes to be rehabilitated, spot 

repaired or replaced based on observed condition, 

• opinion of probable construction costs for the proposed work, and 

• a Preliminary Assessment Phase Report summarizing the above 

deliverables. 

 

We will also provide an electronic deliverable of the video inspection work 

and field log. We will need to coordinate with the City as to the preferred 

formatting of this deliverable. We have attached our specification video 

inspection work and a sewer system map we developed for this project for 

your reference.   

 

Sanitary sewer lines serving a portion of the service area are located within 

easements on private property within the backyards of residences. We will 

assist the City in notifying residents prior to entry on private property.    

 

Water System Rehabilitation 

The water system within the Project Area includes approximately 38,200 LF 

(per City records) of water lines ranging in size from 2-inch to 18-inch 



Sharon Carlos, P.E. 

City of Temple 

RE: WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE REHABILITATION 

March 6, 2019 

Page 4   

J:\630006\Proposals\Temple, City of\Avenue R to Z WL and WW ReHab\Letter Proposal Ave R to Z Rehab_r3-6-18.docx 

 
 

diameter with approximately 10,800 LF of pipe less than 6-inch diameter. 

Most of the waterlines south of Avenue T are located within City streets; 

however, north of Avenue T, most lines are located within alleyways or 

within a mid-block easement. The City has expressed a desire to replace 

water lines less than 6-inch diameter, to provide proper line looping and 

interconnection to eliminate dead end mains, to eliminate the lines within 

a mid-block easement, and to replace lost/inoperable valves.   

 

A key issue in defining the methodology for the rehabilitation work will be 

to determine how to reconnect existing customer services and meters, 

especially when replacing lines within alleyways with lines in the street. We 

propose that during the Preliminary Phase, we identify specific properties 

affected and use best available information to estimate the location of 

existing meters. For project construction cost estimating purposes, we will 

estimate the length of a new service line from the proposed new meter to 

a connection point on existing service line.  

 

We propose that our deliverables to the City include the following: 

 

• our preliminary drawings showing preliminary alignment of water 

lines to be constructed, and points of connection to existing lines 

and existing customer meters,  

• opinion of probable construction costs, and  

• Preliminary Assessment Phase Report summarizing the above 

deliverables.  

 

Based on the general approach described above, our scope of work and 

compensation for conducting the Preliminary Assessment Phase is provided 

below. 

 

II. Scope of Services and Compensation 

 

We have provided a scope of work and compensation for conducting the 

portions of the Preliminary Assessment Phase common to both the 

wastewater and water system (General Services), and separate tasks for 

project elements specific to the Wastewater System Rehabilitation and 

Water System Rehabilitation.   



Sharon Carlos, P.E. 

City of Temple 

RE: WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE REHABILITATION 

March 6, 2019 

Page 5   

J:\630006\Proposals\Temple, City of\Avenue R to Z WL and WW ReHab\Letter Proposal Ave R to Z Rehab_r3-6-18.docx 

 
 

 

A. Preliminary Assessment Phase, General Services  

 

1. Kickoff Meeting – MRB will attend a project Kickoff with City Staff 

to establish project goals, discuss relevant design parameters, 

project approach and requirements, and discuss schedules, 

milestones, and types of deliverables. MRB will prepare meeting 

notes and provide them to the City following the meeting.  

2. Existing Records – MRB will work with the City and other agencies 

to obtain existing project relevant information including as-built 

drawings, GIS mapping, aerial photography, property ownership 

information, and utility records   

3. Assist the City in notifying property owners of upcoming video 

inspection work.  Access may be required to permit video 

inspection where manholes are located within easements on 

private property.   

4. Project Review Meetings – MRB will coordinate and attend project 

review meetings during the project. We have assumed that two 

(2) meetings will be conducted to review our recommendations 

and analyses regarding new water lines and sewer rehabilitation, 

and to review our draft Preliminary Assessment Phase Report.   

5. Reporting – We have assumed that the results of our analyses, 

recommendations, preliminary layouts and design, and opinion of 

probable construction costs will be summarized in Preliminary 

Assessment Phase Report. We have assumed that a single report 

will be prepared for both water and wastewater system 

improvements.  

 

 

Subtotal of A, Items 1-5 ........................................................ $10,500.00 

 

B. Preliminary Assessment Phase, Wastewater System Rehabilitation 

 

1. Video Inspection – MRB will procure sanitary sewer and manhole 

video inspection services based on proposals from qualified 

subconsultants. The inspection services shall include 

approximately 29,900 LF of sanitary sewer line within the Project 



Sharon Carlos, P.E. 

City of Temple 

RE: WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE REHABILITATION 

March 6, 2019 

Page 6   

J:\630006\Proposals\Temple, City of\Avenue R to Z WL and WW ReHab\Letter Proposal Ave R to Z Rehab_r3-6-18.docx 

 
 

Area consisting of approximately 24,100 LF of 6-inch, 2,400 LF of 8-

inch, approximately 3,400 LF of 12-inch diameter pipe, and 910 LF 

of unknown size pipe. Inspection services shall also include 

cleaning and video inspection of approximately 124 sanitary 

sewer manholes. Our subcontractor will be required to clean the 

sewer lines to the degree necessary to obtain clear video that 

shows the condition of pipe and location of laterals. MRB has 

developed specifications for sewer cleaning and video inspection 

work and has included those specifications as an attachment for 

the City review. MRB will work with the City to provide an electronic 

deliverable of this work in a format acceptable to the City.  

2. Rehabilitation Methods – MRB will identify and compare methods 

available for rehabilitation of the sanitary sewer lines and 

manholes. Methods to be considered for line rehabilitation include 

spot repairs, pipe bursting and CIPP liners. MRB will compare these 

technologies for applicability to this project using estimates from 

local contractors and from past projects. We will also provide a 

comparison based on other non-cost factors including 

construction impacts and disruptions, long-term performance and 

risk. Output from this work will be a recommendation for which of 

these two methods to use for the design phase or, if comparable 

in cost and impact, to specify one of the methods as an 

alternative method under our bidding documents.  

3. Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs – MRB will 

prepare an opinion of probable construction costs for the 

recommended improvements. 

 

 

Subtotal of B, Items 1-3....................................................... $228,000.00 

 

 

C. Preliminary Assessment Phase, Water System Rehabilitation 

 

1. Water Service Reconnections – Based on best available 

information, MRB will identify water meter locations where new 

waterlines are to be constructed and show these meters on a map 

of proposed improvements. These preliminary design maps will also 



Sharon Carlos, P.E. 

City of Temple 

RE: WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE REHABILITATION 

March 6, 2019 

Page 7   

J:\630006\Proposals\Temple, City of\Avenue R to Z WL and WW ReHab\Letter Proposal Ave R to Z Rehab_r3-6-18.docx 

 
 

provide property lines from existing mapping, likely locations for 

the service line connecting to the residence and a proposed 

location for a new meter and service.  

2. Preliminary Assessment Mapping – MRB will utilize available 

information to prepare preliminary maps for the water system lines 

and inoperable values (as indicated by the City) to be replaced. 

This mapping will include existing and proposed service 

connections and proposed replacement waterline alignments. 

3. Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs - MRB will 

prepare an opinion of probable construction costs for the 

recommended improvements. 

 

Subtotal of C, Items 1-3 ........................................................ $25,300.00 

 

 

Total Compensation ........................................................... $263,800.00 

 

The cost figures shown above represent our lump sum amount. Any 

additional work beyond this fee and outside the scope of this 

proposal would be reviewed with the Client. MRB Group shall submit 

monthly statements for services rendered during each invoicing 

period based on the efforts performed during that period.  MRB 

Group Standard Rates are subject to annual adjustment.   

 

III. Additional Services 

 

The following items, not included in the above services can be provided on 

a personnel time-charge basis, but would only be performed upon receipt 

of your authorization. 

A. Our scope of work includes Phase I, Preliminary Assessment. 

Subsequent work phases to include Design, Bidding, Construction 

may be added at a later time. 

B. MRB has obtained preliminary pricing for sewer cleaning and video 

inspection of the existing sanitary sewer system based on the 

attached specifications, as described in Section II, and has included 

a fee for that work in this proposal.  Any significant deviations from 



Sharon Carlos, P.E. 

City of Temple 

RE: WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE REHABILITATION 

March 6, 2019 

Page 8   

J:\630006\Proposals\Temple, City of\Avenue R to Z WL and WW ReHab\Letter Proposal Ave R to Z Rehab_r3-6-18.docx 

 
 

this work scope of work as described in the specification can be 

provided as an additional service. 

C. MRB has not included surveying, subsurface utility evaluation (SUE), 

geotechnical and environmental permitting and clearances in our 

proposal.   

D. We have assumed that the City will direct MRB on replacement pipe 

sizes for water and wastewater lines. Our scope of work does not 

include any level of effort to determine appropriate pipe sizes.  

E. MRB will not be able to confirm exact locations for proposed service 

line extensions and connection points to existing lines. We will assume 

a service line alignment, connection point and length based on best 

available information.  

F. Coordination with land owners, preparation of right of entry requests 

or other documents required for design and construction can be 

provided as an additional service. 

G. Our proposal does not include video inspection of wastewater lateral 

lines but can include that work as an additional service if desired by 

the City. We estimate that our cost to add this work is $600 per lateral.  

 

IV. Commencement of Work 

 

MRB Group is committed to providing the City of Temple prompt and 

responsive services. We will commence work upon receipt of the signed 

contract for this project.  We anticipate completion of the video inspection 

within four (4) months of notice to proceed, and the overall project within 

nine (9) months of the notice to proceed.   

 

V. Standard Terms and Conditions 

 

MRB Group understands that the City of Temple will furnish its Standard 

Contract for review and execution, with this proposal as an attachment to 

that contract serving to define the scope of work and fee for this current 

project.  

 

  



Sharon Carlos, P.E. 

City of Temple 

RE: WATER AND WASTEWATER INFRASTRUCTURE REHABILITATION 

March 6, 2019 

Page 9   

J:\630006\Proposals\Temple, City of\Avenue R to Z WL and WW ReHab\Letter Proposal Ave R to Z Rehab_r3-6-18.docx 

 
 

 

 

Thank you for your consideration of our firm.  We look forward to working with you 

on this project. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

James J. Oberst, P.E., LEED AP    Tanya Mikeska-Reed, A.I.A. 

Executive Vice President / C.O.O.   Project Manager 

 

Attachments:  

1) Sanitary Sewer Video Inspection Specification 

2) Sanitary Sewer Base Map 

3) Water System Base Map  

 

























FILE PATH LOCATION     J:\630006\Proposals\Temple, City of\Avenue R to Z WL and WW ReHab\From the City\57th to 41st and Ave R to Ave Z Project\WaterDistributionSystemSample_11x17_L1.mxd

")")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")") ")

") ") ")

") ")")

")
")

")
")

")") ") ")

")

")

")

")")") ") ")
")

")")
")

")
")

")
")")

")

") ")

")

")
") ")

")")")

")

")")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")")")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")")
")

") ")

")
")

")

")
")

")

")

")

")

")

")")

")

")

")

")

")
")

")")")
")")

")")

")")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")")

")

")

")

")

")

")
")")

")

")")

")
")

")
")

")")
")

")
")

")")

")")

")

")
")

")

")
")

")

")")")
")
")")
")
")

")

")

")
")

")

")
") ") ")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")
")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

") ") ")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")

")")

")
")

")

")")")")")
")

")
")")")")

")")") ")
")

")

")")")")

")

")
")

")

")
")

") ")

")")

")

")")

") ")
")

")")
")

")

")

")

")")")
")

")

")

")

")

")#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*#*#*

#*#*

#*

#*#*

#*#*
#*#*

#*

#*
#*#*

#*
#*

#*
#*

#*
#*

#*
#*

#*
#*

#*
#*#*

#*#*#*

#*
#*#*

#*#*
#*

#*

#*
#*

#*

#*#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*#*

#*

#*#*

#*

#*#*

#*

#*

#*
#*

#* #*#*#*
#*#*

#*#*

#*#*

#*

#*

#*

#*#*#*#*#* #*#*

#*#*#*

#*#*#*

#*#*

#*#*#*#*#*

#*
#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*

#*
#*#*

!(!(
!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

_̂

W AVE P

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

S 3
9TH

 ST

SCOTT BLVD

S 4
1S

T S
T

W AVE Z

W AVE V

55T
H S

T

W AVE R

S 5
3R

D S
T

W AVE T

W AVE T
S 5

5TH
 ST

W AVE S

W AVE R

S 55TH ST TER

SKYLINE DR

S 5
1ST

 ST
RE

ET 
TER

W AVE Q

RAMCON DR

CHEVY CIR

IRA YOUNG DR

S51S
T ST

S 5
1S

T S
T

S 5
7T H

ST

S 5
7TH

ST

S 4
9TH

ST

S 4
9TH

 ST

S 5
7TH

 ST

S 61ST ST

S 6
1S

T S
T

S 4
7TH

 ST

S 4
5TH

 ST

S 4
3R

D S
T

S 47T
H ST

S 4
5TH

ST

S 4
3RD

ST

W AVE Z

FH_4047FH_4048FH_4049

FH_4493

FH_4039

FH_10660
FH_4068

FH_11144
FH_4056

FH_4044

FH_4033

FH_4052

FH_4294

FH_3161

FH_4051

FH_4041

FH_4042

FH_4034

FH_4040

FH_4067
FH_10830

WSV_12

WSV_2629

WSV_1307

WSV_1317

WSV_2704

WSV_2705
WSV_2706

WSV_2707

WSV_2708

WSV_2709

WSV_2710

WSV_2711
WSV_2712

WSV_6712
WSV_6713WSV_6714

WSV_6715

WSV_6716
WSV_6717

WSV_6718

WSV_6719
WSV_6720

WSV_6721

WSV_6722

WSV_6723
WSV_6724
WSV_6725

WSV_6726
WSV_6727

WSV_3718
WSV_4235

WSV_4236

WSV_4237

WSV_4238

WSV_7146 WSV_7148
WSV_7149

WSV_7150
WSV_7151

WSV_7152
WSV_7153
WSV_7154WSV_7156WSV_7157

WSV_5348

WSV_5330

WSV_5331WSV_5332

WSV_5333

WSV_5335

WSV_5336

WSV_5337

WSV_5341

WSV_5342
WSV_5343

WSV_4185
WSV_4186

WSV_4212

WSV_4214
WSV_2735

WSV_2736

WSV_2739
WSV_2740

WSV_2741
WSV_2742WSV_2743

WSV_2744

WSV_2745
WSV_2746

WSV_2747
WSV_2748

WSV_2749
WSV_2750

WSV_2751
WSV_2752

WSV_2760

WSV_2761

WSV_1090WSV_1093 WSV_1094

WSV_1101
WSV_1102

WSV_1103

WSV_1104
WSV_1105

WSV_5387
WSV_5388

WSV_5389
WSV_5390

WSV_5391

WSV_8231 WSV_8234

WSV_8389

WSV_8385

WSV_8384

WSV_8383

WSV_8379

WSV_8459

WSV_8458

WSV_8457

WSV_8456

WSV_8454
WSV_8929

TJ
V

1"
 =

 3
60

'

DE
C 

20
18

5

Dr
aw

n B
y:

Sc
ale

:

Da
te:

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

1  of  1

P630006

BA
SE

 M
AP

PIN
G

CI
TY

 O
F T

EM
PL

E, 
BE

LL
 C

OU
NT

Y, 
TE

XA
S

WA
TE

R 
DI

ST
RI

BU
TIO

N 
SY

ST
EM

Arc
hite

ctu
re &

 En
gin

eer
ing

 Se
rvic

es,
 P.C

.
525

0 S
out

h 3
1st  S

tree
t | 

Tem
ple

, Te
xas

 76
502

 | 2
54-

771
-20

54 
 FA

X  2
54-

442
-04

81
TBP

E F
irm

 No
. F-

106
15

ww
w.m

rbg
rou

p.c
om

MR
B

grou
p

Legend
Water Main
Water Lateral
Water Line Abandoned

!( Hydrant
#* Water System Valve
_̂ Water Control Valve
") Water System Fitting

Pressure Zone



FILE PATH LOCATION     \\mrbgroup.prv\Admindata\630006\Proposals\Temple, City of\Avenue R to Z WL and WW ReHab\From the City\57th to 41st and Ave R to Ave Z Project\SanitarySewerSample_11x17_L1.mxd

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(
!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(!(!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(!(!(

!(!(

!(!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!( !(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

W AVE P

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

S 3
9TH

 ST

SCOTT BLVD

S 4
1S

T S
T

W AVE Z

W AVE V

55T
H S

T

W AVE R

S 5
3R

D S
T

W AVE T

W AVE T
S 5

5TH
 ST

W AVE S

W AVE R

S 55TH ST TER

SKYLINE DR

S 5
1ST

 ST
RE

ET 
TER

W AVE Q

RAMCON DR

CHEVY CIR

IRA YOUNG DR

S51S
T ST

S 5
1S

T S
T

S 5
7T H

ST

S 5
7TH

ST

S 4
9TH

ST

S 4
9TH

 ST

S 5
7TH

 ST

S 61ST ST

S 6
1S

T S
T

S 4
7TH

 ST

S 4
5TH

 ST

S 4
3R

D S
T

S 47T
H ST

S 4
5TH

ST

S 4
3RD

ST

W AVE Z

VCP - 6"

VCP- 6"

VC
P -

 6"

PV
C -

 6"

VC
P -

 6"

VCP - 6"

VCP
- 6"

UN
K -

 6"
VC

P - 
6"

VCP - 6"

VC
P -

 6"

VC
P -

 6"

VCP - 6"

VC
P - 

6"

VC
P -

 6"

VCP - 6"

VCP
- 6"

VC
P -

 6"

VCP - 6"

PV
C -

 6"

VC
P -

 6"

VC
P -

 6" VC
P - 

6"

UNK - 6"

UNK - 8"

UNK - 8"

VCP
- 6"

VC
P -

 6"

UNK - 6"

- "

VCP - 6"

UN
K -

 6"

VC
P -

 6"

VC
P -

 6"

VCP - 6"

VCP - 8"

VCP- 6"

VCP - 6"

VC
P -

 12
"

VCP - 6"

VCP - 6"

UN
K -

 6"

VC
P -

 6"

UNK - 8"

VC
P - 

6"

VCP - 6"

VC
P -

 6"

VC
P -

 6"

VCP - 6"

VCP - 6"

UNK - 8"

UN
K -

 6"

UN
K -

 6"

VC
P - 

6"

VCP - 6"

VC
P -

 6"

MH_729

MH_730

MH_731

MH_1198

MH_1212MH_1213

MH_1214

MH_1215

MH_1216 MH_1217
MH_1218

MH_1219

MH_1220

MH_1414

MH_1415

MH_1416

MH_1668

MH_1669

MH_1670

MH_3433

MH_3434

MH_3435

MH_3436

MH_3437

MH_3438

MH_3439

MH_3440

MH_3441MH_3442

MH_3443

MH_3444

MH_3453

MH_3456

MH_3457

MH_3458

MH_3459

MH_3460

MH_3461

MH_3462

MH_3463
MH_3464

MH_3465

MH_3468

MH_3509
MH_3510

MH_3511

MH_3520

MH_3522

MH_3523

MH_3588

MH_3826
MH_3827

MH_3830MH_3831
MH_6148

MH_6149

MH_5881

MH_5884 TJ
V

1"
 =

 3
60

'

DE
C 

20
18

5

Dr
aw

n B
y:

Sc
ale

:

Da
te:

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

1  of  1

P630006

BA
SE

 M
AP

PIN
G

CI
TY

 O
F T

EM
PL

E, 
BE

LL
 C

OU
NT

Y, 
TE

XA
S

SA
NI

TA
RY

 SE
WE

R
Arc

hite
ctu

re &
 En

gin
eer

ing
 Se

rvic
es,

 P.C
.

525
0 S

out
h 3

1st  S
tree

t | 
Tem

ple
, Te

xas
 76

502
 | 2

54-
771

-20
54 

 FA
X  2

54-
442

-04
81

TBP
E F

irm
 No

. F-
106

15
ww

w.m
rbg

rou
p.c

om

MR
B

grou
p

Legend
!( Sanitary Sewer Manhole
!( Sanitary Sewer Tap

Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main
Sanitary Sewer Lateral Line



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9586-R 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH MRB GROUP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT OF $263,800, 
TO PERFORM THE SOUTH 41ST TO 57TH STREET UTILITY 
ASSESSMENT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, Public Works Staff has identified that the aging wastewater and water mains 
bounded by South 41st Street, South 57th Street, Avenue R, and Avenue Z are failing and need 
to be replaced - the project will evaluate approximately 29,900 linear feet of wastewater main 
ranging from 6-inch to 12-inch diameter, 124 manholes, and 38,200 linear feet of water main 
ranging from 2-inch to 18-inch diameter;  
 
 Whereas, assessment activities include cleaning and video inspection of the sewer mains 
and manholes in accordance with the National Association of Sewer Service Companies 
(NASSCO) Pipeline Assessment and Certification Program (PACP); 
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with 
MRB Group of Temple, Texas in the amount of $263,800 to perform the South 41st to 57th Street 
Utility Assessment; 
 

Whereas, funding for this professional services agreement is available in Account No. 
561-5200-535-6994, Project No. 101949; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
  
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with MRB Group of 
Temple, Texas in the amount of $263,800, to perform the South 41st to 57th Street Utility 
Assessment. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney  



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
James Billeck, P.E., Sr. Project Engineer 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, for final design of the Outer Loop Phase 4 Drainage Channel 
in the amount of $85,042.50. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item summary. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The Outer Loop south of FM 2305 is a critical north-south arterial that will connect 
the Adams Avenue growth corridor to IH 35. Phase 3A at Adams Avenue has recently been constructed 
and phase (3B) to extend the Outer Loop just south of Jupiter Drive is currently under construction. 
Phase 4 design is in process and will consist of 6,500 linear feet of arterial roadway from Jupiter Road 
to just north of Riverside Trail.   

This project will provide an adequate channel for stormwater drainage from Outer Loop Phase 4 and 
adjacent offsite areas. The proposed design is for 6,200 linear feet of grass-lined channel, discharging 
drainage to Pepper Creek (see project map). 

The following tasks and costs are recommended for authorization: 

Drainage Design  $   35,000.00 
Field Surveying $   16,500.00 
Easement Metes & Bounds $     9,742.50 
Environmental   $   19,800.00 
Project Management $     4,000.00 

TOTAL    $     85,042.50  

Design will be completed within five months from the notice to proceed and receipt of all necessary 
rights-of-entry. The opinion of probably cost for construction of this project is $850,000.  



03/21/19 
Item #7(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, 
LP (KPA), for final design of the Outer Loop Phase 4 Drainage Channel in the amount of $85,042.50 is 
available in account 353-2900-534-6813, project 102016, as follows: 

Project Budget  $         85,043 
Encumbered/Committed to Date      - 

Professional Services Agreement - KPA     (85,043) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $        - 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Project Map 
Resolution

















1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9587-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KASBERG, PATRICK AND ASSOCIATES, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $85,042.50, FOR FINAL DESIGN OF THE OUTER 
LOOP PHASE 4 DRAINAGE CHANNEL; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

Whereas, the Outer Loop south of Farm-to-Market 2305 is a critical north-south arterial that 
will connect the Adams Avenue growth corridor to Interstate Highway 35; 

 
Whereas, Phase 3A at Adams Avenue has recently been constructed, and Phase 3B to extend 

the Outer Loop just south of Jupiter Drive is currently under construction; 
 
Whereas, Phase 4 design is in progress and will consist of approximately 6,500 linear feet of 

arterial roadway from Jupiter Road to just north of Riverside Trail;   
 
Whereas, this project will provide an adequate channel for stormwater drainage from Outer 

Loop Phase 4 and adjacent offsite areas - the proposed design is for approximately 6,200 linear feet of 
grass-lined channel, discharging drainage to Pepper Creek; 
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a professional services agreement with 
Kasberg, Patrick and Associates, LP of Temple, Texas in the amount of $85,042.50, for final design 
of the Outer Loop Phase 4 Drainage Channel; 
 

Whereas, funding for this professional service agreement is available in Account No. 353-
2900-534-6813, Project No. 102016; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick and 
Associates, LP of Temple, Texas, in the amount of $85,042.50, for final design of the Outer Loop 
Phase 4 Drainage Channel. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS  
 
 
       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



77 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:    
Kevin Beavers, Director of Parks & Recreation 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing & Facility Services 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a services agreement for West 
Temple Parks maintenance, turf management, and athletic field management with Sports Field 
Holdings, dba Sports Field Solutions, of Dallas in the estimated annual amount of $440,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Authorization of this services agreement with Sports Field Solutions (SFS) will 
provide for maintenance, turf management, and athletic field management at Crossroads Park (opening 
the fall of 2019), West Temple Park (121 Montpark Road), Von Rosenberg Park (7918 Tarver Drive), 
Freedom Park (8456 Tarver Drive), Freedom Village Park (7007 Freedom Drive), and Oaks at 
Westwood (8423 Skyview).    

On February 28, 2019, two proposals were received in response to a Request for Proposals (RFP) to 
provide parks maintenance, turf management, and athletic field management for six West Temple 
Parks. Below is a summary of the proposed fees received: 

    Heart of Texas  
    SFS    Landscape & Irrigation 

Proposed Annual Price $419,427 $1,239,450 
Labor Rates – Weekend Tournaments    $         25 $    60 
Labor Rates – Emergencies $         30 $  100 
Irrigation Material (Cost plus %)    10%      50% 

A Staff committee comprised of representation from Parks, Recreation, City Attorney’s Office, Finance, 
and Purchasing reviewed and evaluated the two proposals. The evaluation criteria as defined within 
the RFP is as follows: proposed pricing, 40%; demonstrated understanding of scope of work and 
proposed plan for implementing, 25%; experience and reputation, 20%; and skilled staffing available to 
deliver services, 15%. Based on the defined evaluation criteria, Staff is unanimously recommending 
the award of the services agreement to SFS. In addition to SFS providing the lowest proposed fees, 
Staff has been impressed with the quality of services currently being provided by SFS as the contracted 
installer of the sports fields and landscaping at Crossroads Park.  



03/21/19 
Item #7(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

An outline of the provided services by Park is as follows: 
Common Ground 
     Maintenance Turf Management Athletic Field Mgmt 

Crossroads Park     X      X    X 
West Temple Park    X      X 
Von Rosenburg Park    X 
Freedom Park     X     X 
Freedom Village Park    X 
Oaks at Westwood    X 

Common ground maintenance consists of mowing, trimming, weed control, irrigation system monitoring 
and maintenance, debris disposal, along with custodial services at Crossroads Park. Turf management 
for athletic field playing surfaces includes fertilization, core aeration (two times per years), turf grass 
weed control, verticut and slicing (one time per year if needed), disease control, over-seeding, sod 
replacement (as needed), and insect control (Crossroads Park only). Athletic field management at 
Crossroads Park includes dragging of the baseball and softball fields, infield lip work, field surface 
repair, athletic field markings, portable outfield fence adjustments, laser-grading (once every two 
years), and tournament field preparation and maintenance.     

The proposed agreement will commence May 1, 2019, and continue through September 30, 2023, with 
the option for two three-year renewal terms. The annual rate will stay at $419,427 through FY 2021 
with subsequent annual rate increases for future years at the lesser of 2% or the increase in the CPI 
for the DFW area.    

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the services agreement with Sports Field Solutions for May 1, 2019 
through September 30, 2019 at an estimated amount of $183,333 is available in account 110-3500-
552-2623. Funding for forthcoming years will be included in future year budget requests with the
services agreement including a non-appropriation clause which will terminate the agreement should
adequate funding not be appropriated by Council.

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9588-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH SPORTS FIELD 
HOLDINGS, DBA SPORTS FIELD SOLUTIONS, OF DALLAS, TEXAS IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $440,000, FOR MAINTENANCE, TURF MANAGEMENT, 
AND ATHLETIC FIELD MANAGEMENT OF SIX WEST TEMPLE PARKS; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, this services agreement with Sports Field Solutions (SFS) will provide for 
maintenance, turf management, and athletic field management at Crossroads Park, West Temple 
Park (121 Montpark Road), Von Rosenberg Park (7918 Tarver Drive), Freedom Park (8456 
Tarver Drive), Freedom Village Park (7007 Freedom Drive), and Oaks at Westwood (8423 
Skyview);    
 

Whereas, on February 28, 2019, two proposals were received to provide parks 
maintenance, turf management, and athletic field management for six West Temple parks; 

 
 Whereas, a Staff committee reviewed and evaluated the two proposals and unanimously 
recommend Council authorize a services agreement with Sports Field Solutions, of Dallas, Texas 
in the amount of $440,000 - in addition to SFS providing the lowest proposed fees, Staff has 
been impressed with the quality of services currently being provided by SFS as the contracted 
installer of the sports fields and landscaping at Crossroads Park; 
 
 Whereas, common ground maintenance consists of mowing, trimming, weed control, 
irrigation system monitoring and maintenance, debris disposal, along with custodial services at 
Crossroads Park - turf management for athletic field playing surfaces includes fertilization, core 
aeration, turf grass weed control, verticut & slicing, disease control, over-seeding, sod 
replacement, and insect control (Crossroads Park only) 
 
 Whereas, athletic field management at Crossroads Park includes dragging of the baseball 
& softball fields, infield lip work, field surface repair, athletic field markings, portable outfield 
fence adjustments, laser-grading, and tournament field preparation & maintenance;     
 

Whereas, the proposed agreement will commence May 1, 2019, and continue through 
September 30, 2023, with the option for two 3-year renewal terms - the annual rate will be 
$419,427 through fiscal year 2021, with subsequent annual rate increases for future years at the 
lesser of 2% or the increase in the CPI for the DFW area; 

 
Whereas, funding for this services agreement is available in Account No. 110-3500-552-

2623; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
  

 



2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute a services agreement with Sports Field Holdings, dba 
Sports Field Solutions, of Dallas, Texas in the amount of $440,000, for the maintenance, turf 
management, and athletic field management of six West Temple Parks. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney  



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(F) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an interlocal agreement with Bell 
County for the use of the election equipment necessary for the May 4, 2019 General Election.    

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: This agreement will allow for the City to procure all necessary voting machines and 
equipment, transport machines and equipment to and from the polling places, and prepare the voting 
machines and equipment for use at the polling places. Bell County will also prepare the ballots 
necessary for the May 2019 General Election. 

Equipment includes: 
1. ES&S ExpressVote BMD Terminal ($210 each)
2. ES&S Model DS200 Digital Image Scanner ($230 each)
3. Delivery Fee ($70.00)

At this time, the City anticipates needing four ExpressVotes BMD Terminals, and two DS200 Digital 
Scanners for the General Election in May 2019. 

Bell County will also perform any necessary maintenance or repair on the furnished machines and 
equipment. 

We recommend approval of this interlocal agreement with Bell County for a period of one year. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funds are appropriated in account 110-1400-511-2517 in the amount of $7,800 to 
fund the interlocal agreement with Bell County for the use of the election equipment. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9589-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH BELL 
COUNTY FOR THE USE OF ELECTION EQUIPMENT NECESSARY FOR 
THE MAY 4, 2019 GENERAL ELECTION; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, on May 4, 2019, the City of Temple will conduct a Special Election and 
Bell County has authorized the use of its election equipment;  

Whereas, this interlocal agreement will allow the City to utilize all necessary voting 
machines and equipment, transport machines and equipment to and from polling places, 
prepare the voting machines and equipment for use at the polling places, and prepare the 
ballots necessary for the General Election; 

Whereas, Bell County will be responsible for any necessary maintenance or repair to 
the machines and equipment; 

Whereas, Staff has utilized the services of Bell County and its election equipment in 
the past and therefore recommends Council approve a one-year interlocal agreement for 
these services;  

Whereas, funding is available for this interlocal agreement in Account No. 110-1400-
511-2517; and

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval 
as to form by the City Attorney, to enter into an interlocal agreement with Bell County for the 
use of election equipment necessary for the May 4, 2019 General Election. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 11 

DEPT.  / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   

Erin Smith, Assistant City Manager 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution ratifying a meet and confer agreement with the 
Temple Police Association. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Overview of Meet & Confer.  The “meet & confer” process is governed by Chapter 
142 of the Local Government Code. Chapter 142 allows a “police officers association” to file a petition 
with the City requesting that the City recognize the association as the sole and exclusive bargaining 
agent for all officers and adopt the meet & confer process. The meet and confer process allows the City 
to meet & confer with police officers association over wages, salaries, rates of pay, hours of work, or 
other terms and conditions of employment. The meet and confer deliberations must occur in meetings 
open to the public. The City and a police officers association are not required to reach agreement on 
any particular topic. An agreement on any issue must be in writing and ratified by the Council and a 
majority of the police officers. A written meet & confer agreement preempts all contrary state statutes, 
local ordinances, executive orders, civil service provisions, or rules and allows variation of civil service 
rules regarding hiring requirements, pay, benefits, promotion standards, and the disciplinary process. 

Members of the City Administration negotiating team include: 

Erin Smith, Assistant City Manager, Lead Negotiator 
Nan Rodriguez, Deputy City Attorney 
Jeff Clark, Deputy Police Chief 
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 
Tara Raymore, Director of Human Resources 

Members of the Temple Police Association negotiating team include: 

Chris Jones, Training Coordinator-CLEAT, Lead Negotiator 
Larry Wilkey, Sergeant, TPA President 
Marlon Reed, Corporal 
Corey Powell, Detective 
Casey Sheppard, Detective 



03/21/19 
Item #7(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 11 

Overview of the Draft Agreement. In compliance with the terms of the FY 2019 meet and confer 
agreement, City Administration and TPA began meeting in December, 2018 to adopt the ground rules 
and discuss any issues with the current agreement.  

The FY 2019 agreement includes articles covering the same 11 issues as in the FY 2018 agreement: 

1. Association Business
2. Additional Deputy Chief Position
3. Military Leave Time Account
4. Compensation
5. Overtime
6. Higher Classification Pay / Rank Structure
7. Education Incentives for Promotion
8. Lateral Entry Program
9. Individual Vehicle Assignment Program (IVAP)
10. Disciplinary Actions and Appeals
11. Grievance Procedure

The FY 2019 agreement included a change to Article 4 - Compensation and also a change to Article 
13 - Duration of the Agreement which changed the termination date of the agreement from September 
30, 2018 to March 31, 2019.  

In the current agreement, both Parties agreed to diligently work together to develop the criteria for a 
professionally prepared compensation study to be conducted in fiscal year 2018 that will include a full 
study of the City of Temple’s Civil Service Pay Plan structure including, but not limited to, an evaluation 
of the step system and compression between steps.  

City of Temple staff are diligently working to complete the civil service compensation study in-house. 
Once the study is complete, members of City administration and the TPA negotiating teams will meet 
to discuss the compensation study findings and a draft agreement will be created for TPA and City 
Council consideration. This termination date of September 30, 2019, will allow for the civil service pay 
plan structure to follow the fiscal year 2020 budget cycle starting October 1, 2019.   

Members of City administration and the Temple Police Association (TPA) negotiating teams met and 
decided to move forward, with taking a vote to extend the current agreement six months to September 
30, 2019. There are no other changes proposed to the current agreement, except the change in the 
termination date of the agreement from March 31, 2019 to September 30, 2019. A ratification election 
was held from March 4th to March 8th. The results of the meet and confer agreement extension election 
are as follows: 

• 120 – For
• 8 – Against
• 9 – Did not vote (results in an against vote)

The election for proposed draft agreement to extend the termination date passed and the next step in 
the process is City Council consideration.   



03/21/19 
Item #7(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 11 

Overview of the Articles. 

Article 1: Association Business 
Proposed by TPA 

Overview: 

This Article is intended to establish provisions that enable the Association to adequately represent 
Association members, and administer the terms of the Agreement. 

Key Provisions: 

• Recognizes TPA as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all covered police officers;
• Allows TPA access to the Departmental new hire orientation to explain and answer questions

about the Association, the Agreement, and the meet & confer process;
• Establishes a three member team designed to be advisory to the Police Chief;

• One member is to be appointed by the Police Chief and two members by the Association
President

• Commits the City to continue its Association dues deduction program;
• Allows the Association reasonable access to the premises of the Department for the purpose of

administering this Agreement;
• Permits the Association to install one bulletin board (at their expense) at each police facility to

facilitate communication by the Association to its members;
• Allows the Association to utilize the City’s email system to communicate with police officers

regarding issues related to provisions of the Agreement and upcoming meet and confer
sessions;

• Establishes an Association Business Leave Time Pool to be used for the purpose of conducting
Association business. This provision allows officers the option of donating two hours of accrued
vacation leave to the Pool each calendar year;

• Commits the City to pay up to a maximum of five members of the Association’s meet and confer
team their regular pay for attendance at meet and confer sessions between the City and the
Association; Police Administration may adjust Association member’s schedules to
accommodate meeting attendance.

Article 2: Additional Deputy Chief Position 
Proposed by City Administration 

Overview: 

This Article authorizes the creation of an additional appointed Deputy Police Chief position to enable 
the future alignment of the Departmental command structure into 3 bureaus: Patrol, Investigations, and 
Administration. 

Key Provisions: 

• Allows the creation of a single additional Deputy Chief position in addition to the two Deputy
Chief positions authorized by Section 143.014(c) of the Local Gov’t Code;



03/21/19 
Item #7(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 4 of 11 

• Establishes minimum standards that the person appointed to the additional Deputy Chief
position must meet and extends these standards to the subsequent appointment of any person
to a Deputy Chief position;

• Establishes a procedure for posting a vacancy in a Deputy Chief position a minimum of 10
calendar days in order to allow eligible candidates to express interest in the position by
submitting documentation of their qualification to the Chief;

• The final appointment remains solely the Police Chief’s discretion.

Article 3: Military Leave Time Account 
Proposed by TPA 

Overview: 

This Article is intended to clarify the provisions for administration of the City’s Military Leave Time 
Account. 

Key Provisions: 

• Reiterates the requirements of Chapter 143.074 of the Local Gov’t Code relating to Military
Leave Time Accounts;

• Clarifies that a police officer wishing to donate accrued time to the Military Leave Time Account
must do so on a form provided by the City;

• Requires the City to provide a report to the Association each December that includes the current
balance of the military leave time account and the amount of leave used by each police officer
from the account during the previous year.

Article 4: Compensation 
Proposed by TPA 

Overview: 

This Article is intended to communicate the City’s commitment to a maintaining a fair and competitive 
pay and compensation package, with due regard for fiscal restraints and sustainability. 

Key Provisions: 

• Establishes an agreement that City Administration and TPA will work together to develop criteria
for a professionally prepared compensation study.

• The City agrees to prepare and release a request for proposals (RFP) for a civil service
compensation study.

• The City agrees to include two representatives from Temple Police Association on the proposal
evaluation committee.

• The City will work diligently to award a contract for the compensation study by October 31, 2018.
The award of the contract is subject to successful negotiations with a qualified firm and approval
by City Council, if required based on contact price.



03/21/19 
Item #7(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 5 of 11 

Article 5: Overtime 
Proposed by TPA 

Overview: 

This Article is intended to establish a uniform Departmental policy governing overtime compensation. 

Key Provisions: 

• Establishes an agreement that the overtime exemption provided for by the FLSA known as the
7(k) exemption is adopted by the City;

• Establishes the maximum work period to be used as 14 days and the maximum number of hours
worked without overtime pay within the work period at 80 hours;

• Commits the City to provide guaranteed overtime for overtime assignments subject
to contractual agreements with third parties;

• Requires overtime assignments that will be compensated at guaranteed time and half to be
identified and posted as such in advance;

• States that overtime assignments for City sponsored events (such as the Christmas Parade) will
not be guaranteed overtime assignments;

• Clarifies that if an officer takes leave during a work period and later is required to work an
overtime assignment which is not guaranteed overtime during that same work period, s/he may
choose to apply the overtime assignment to their regular hours in lieu of using leave time;

• Provides a minimum of two hours of overtime compensation for call-outs and court appearances
prior to, or after an officer’s regularly scheduled shift;

• Requires overtime assignments that will be compensated in the form of compensatory leave to
be identified and posted as such in advance;

• Allows officers to choose paid overtime or compensatory time for overtime assignments in which
the form of compensation has not been identified in advance;

• Maintains the Police Chief’s authority to implement flex time in managing the Department’s
budget;

• Commits supervisors to work with officer to schedule flex time off, subject to the needs of the
Department.

Article 6: Higher Classification / Rank Structure 
Proposed by TPA 

Overview: 

This Article is intended to establish a uniform Departmental policy governing the temporary designation 
of an officer to perform the duties of a higher rank.   

Key Provisions: 

• Requires a Corporal to be temporarily designated as “Acting Sergeant/Field Supervisor” when
no Sergeant or Lieutenant is available to act as a field supervisor for a shift due to absence,
illness, or injury;



03/21/19 
Item #7(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 6 of 11 

• Allows a Lieutenant to designate a Corporal to be temporarily designated as “Acting
Sergeant/Field Supervisor” when the Lieutenant determines an additional field supervisor is
necessary to meet staffing needs;

• Requires the designation to be noted in writing on the Duty Roster;
• Establishes that a person serving in this temporary designation shall have full authority and

responsibility for performing all of the duties of the Sergeant rank for the duration of the
designation;

• Requires that the officer designated as Acting Sergeant shall be paid the base salary of the
Sergeant rank, plus the officer’s own longevity and seniority pay, educational incentive pay, and
certification pay during the period of the designation;

• Establishes that the designation will be made on a rotating basis to all Corporals within the Unit,
but the Police Chief retains discretion to deviate from the order of the list;

• Allows a Lieutenant to designate a Corporal to act as Mentoring Sergeant under the supervision
of a Sergeant or Lieutenant, for training and mentoring purposes and not to meet a Departmental
staffing need;

• Requires the designation to be noted in writing on the Duty Roster;
• Establishes that a person serving in this temporary designation will have immediate authority of

a Sergeant for the duration of the designation, however ultimate authority and responsibility for
the shift remains with the available Sergeant or Lieutenant;

• Establishes that a Mentoring Sergeant will not receive higher classification pay during the
designation period;

• Establishes that the designation will be made on a rotating basis to all Corporals within the Unit,
but the Police Chief retains discretion to deviate from the order of the list;

• Allows a Sergeant to be temporarily designated to perform the administrative duties of a
Lieutenant/Watch Commander when a Lieutenant will be absent or unavailable for at least 28
consecutive days;

• Requires the designation to be noted in writing on the Duty Roster;
• Establishes that a person serving in this temporary designation shall have full authority and

responsibility for performing all of the duties of the Lieutenant rank for the duration of the
designation;

• Requires that the designated Watch Commander shall be paid the base salary of the Lieutenant
rank, plus the officer’s own longevity and seniority pay, educational incentive pay, and
certification pay during the period of the designation;

• Establishes that the designation will be made on a rotating basis to all Sergeants within the Unit,
but the Police Chief retains discretion to deviate from the order of the list;

• Retains authority for the Police Chief to designate a Watch Commander for a period of less than
28 days, based on Departmental needs;

• Establishes authority for the Police Chief to temporarily assign an officer to perform the duties
of a position in the next higher rank when a position has been funded, but not yet created by the
governing body or when there is a vacancy in an existing position for which no promotional list
exists;

• Establishes that a person serving in this temporary assignment shall have full authority and
responsibility for performing all of the duties of the higher rank for the duration  of the assignment;

• Requires that an officer temporarily assigned to a position in the next higher rank shall be paid
the base salary of the higher rank, plus the officer’s own longevity and seniority pay, educational
incentive pay, and certification pay during the period of the assignment.



03/21/19 
Item #7(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 7 of 11 

Article 7: Educational Incentives for Promotion 
Proposed by City Administration 

Overview: 

This Article establishes incentives to encourage and recognize continuing education as a way to 
improve professionalism for both officers and the Department. 

Key Provisions: 

• Establishes additional points for promotional candidates for continuing education as follows:
• 0.50 points for an Advanced Peace Officer Certificate;
• 1.0 points for having completed 60 college hours credit
• 1.5 points for a Master Peace Officer Certificate;
• 2.0 points for having received an Associates Degree;
• 3.0 points for having received a Bachelor's Degree or higher

Article 8: Lateral Entry Program 
Proposed by City Administration 

Overview: 

This Article establishes an expedited process for hiring qualified applicants with previous law 
enforcement experience. 

Key Provisions: 

• Establishes the following eligibility requirements to be eligible for hire under this program:
• have a current TCOLE license;
• be currently employed with a law enforcement agency;
• have an honorable standing within their current department;
• not be under any type of investigation with their current department;
• have three or more years of work experience with a comparable law enforcement agency;
• take and pass the locally given Civil Service exam; and
• complete and pass a background investigation and the City of Temple hiring process.

• Requires that an eligibility list for lateral applicants be maintained and that the score from the
locally given Civil Service exam be used to rank applicants on that list;

• Allows the Police Chief the authority to give preference in selection to any person on the lateral
eligibility list based on the applicant’s years of experience and type of experience;

• Allows the Police Chief to fill a vacant within the Department by selecting an applicant from the
lateral eligibility list, or by following the process defined in section 143.026 of the Texas Local
Government Code;

• Establishes that actual work experience in another law enforcement agency will not be
considered for promotional eligibility purposes or seniority purposes;

• Establishes that applicants hired under this program, once they have successfully completed the
Probationary classification, will be placed in the pay grade on the compensation plan
commensurate with their full-time prior service as a police officer, as follows:



03/21/19 
Item #7(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 8 of 11 

• Applicants with prior municipal service in a City with a population of 30,000 or greater will
receive one credit year for each full year of police service, not to exceed ten 10 credit
years;

• Applicants with prior municipal service in a City with a population of less than 30,000 will
receive one credit year for each two full years of police service, not to exceed five credit
years;

• Applicants with prior service in a Sherriff Department in a County with a population of
175,000 or greater will receive one credit year for each full year of police service, not to
exceed ten 10 credit years;

• Applicants with other prior service will receive one credit year for each two full years of
police service, not to exceed five credit years.

• The credited time is for starting salary only and does not count as time served with the
Temple Police Department for any other purposes including benefits, step pay, etc.

Article 9: Individual Vehicle Assignment Program (IVAP) 
Proposed by TPA 

Overview: 

This Article establishes a policy for administering the City’s Individual Vehicle Assignment Program 
(IVAP) and establishes the eligibility criteria for take-home patrol vehicles. 

Key Provisions: 

• Establishes requirements to be eligible to participate in the IVAP program;
• Allows an officer participating in IVAP to take a vehicle home, provided that the officer’s

residence is no more than seven miles outside the Temple city limits;
• Establishes a fee of $23 per pay period for officers participating in the take-home vehicle

program who reside outside the city limits;
• Provides the following exceptions to the distance and fee requirements:

• Any officer who resides ½ a mile or less outside the City and is currently allowed to take
a vehicle home is exempt from the payment of the fees unless the officer moves more
than ½ a miles outside the city limits after the effective date of this Agreement

• Any officer who is assigned a take home vehicle because of their duty assignment (e.g.
K-9 Officers) and who resides outside the city at the time this Agreement is adopted is
exempt from the distance limitations and the payment of the fees

• CID Supervisors and CID Detectives are exempt from the distance limitations and the
payment of the fees when they are on-call unless they are eligible and elect to fully
participate in the take-home vehicle program



03/21/19 
Item #7(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 9 of 11 

Article 10: Disciplinary Actions & Appeals 
Proposed by City Administration 

Overview: 

This Article establishes a policy for disciplinary actions and appeals within the Department. 

Key Provisions: 

• For suspensions of 36 hours or less, allows an officer to forfeit vacation, compensatory, or
holiday time equal to the length of the suspension, to serve the suspension with no loss of paid
salary and no break in service. Suspensions served in this manner may not be appealed;

• Limits the appeal for suspensions of 36 hours or less to the Civil Service Commission;
• Establishes that suspensions of 36 hours or less that were imposed on or after the effective date

of this Agreement will no longer be considered for purposes of transfer or promotion after 24
months have passed;

• For suspensions of 37-120 hours, establishes that the Police Chief may allow an officer to forfeit
vacation, compensatory, or holiday time equal to the length of the suspension, to serve the
suspension with no loss of paid salary and no break in service. Suspensions served in this
manner may not be appealed;

• Allows the Police Chief and an officer to agree to a suspension of 121-720 hours, and establishes
that the Police Chief may allow an officer to forfeit vacation, compensatory, or holiday time equal
to the length of the suspension. Suspensions served in this manner may not be appealed;

• Allows the Police Chief to require an officer be evaluated by a qualified professional designated
by the Police Chief. If that professional recommends a program of counseling and/or
rehabilitation for the officer, the Police Chief may:

• in lieu of or in combination with a suspension or demotion, require that the officer
successfully complete the recommended program (an officer retains right to appeal)

• offer an “alternative disciplinary agreement” to the officer under which the officer would
accept demotion or suspension of up to 720 hours and agree to successfully complete
the recommended program of counseling and/or rehabilitation

• offer the officer, as an alternative to indefinite suspension, the opportunity to enter into a
“Last Chance Agreement” which would include, in addition to any provisions agreed upon
by the Police Chief and officer, a probationary period not to exceed 1 year, during
which if the officer commits the same or a similar act of misconduct, the officer will be
indefinitely suspended without right of appeal;

• Allows an officer to request an opportunity to be evaluated by a qualified physician, psychiatrist
or psychologist in order to seek counseling and/or rehabilitation. The officer’s request will toll the
180 day deadline for imposing discipline. The Department Head may consider any counseling
and/or rehabilitation voluntarily undertaken by an officer under this section before imposing any
discipline;

• Codifies the Loudermill Hearings process followed by the Department in protection of the due
process rights of an officer facing any level of formal discipline;

• Establishes procedures for appeal hearings before Hearing Examiners to facilitate the efficient
and effective conclusion of such appeals including an agreement that a hearing examiner will be
selected within 10 days of the receipt of a list of Hearing Examiners and that the Hearing



03/21/19 
Item #7(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 10 of 11 

• Examiner selected shall render a decision within 30 business days of the conclusion of the
hearing;

• Allows a Hearing Examiner the authority to impose a disciplinary suspension of any length of
time, including suspensions in excess of 15 days, and time already served between the
imposition of discipline and the appeal decision

• (overrides the judicial limitation imposed on the authority of the Commission or Hearing
Examiner by the City of Waco v. Kelley case).

Article 11: Grievance Procedure 
Proposed by TPA 

Overview: 

This Article establishes a dispute resolution procedure to provide a just and equitable method for 
resolving disagreements between the Parties regarding the application or interpretation of the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

Key Provisions: 

• Requires that a dispute be presented in writing to the Police Chief or his designee;
• Requires an officer to initiate a request for dispute resolution with the Association Executive

Board and disallows an officer from filing a dispute directly with the City;
• Establishes a 15 day timeline for an officer to file a claim or dispute from the date they knew or

should have reasonably known the facts giving rise to the dispute;
• Establishes a five step process for disputes by the Association Executive Board or police officer:

• Step 1: Association Executive Board
• Step 2: Police Chief
• Step 3: City Manager
• Step 4: Mediation
• Step 5: Arbitration

• Establishes a process for the City to enforce Association compliance with this Agreement
through notification and subsequent options including termination of agreement.

Ratification & Term of the Agreement. A meet and confer agreement is enforceable and binding if 
the governing body of the municipality ratifies the agreement by a majority vote and the recognized 
police officers association ratifies the agreement by conducting a secret ballot election at which the 
majority of the police officers who would be covered by the agreement favored ratifying the agreement. 
The Temple Police Association conducted a secret ballot election. During that election, 84 police 
officers voted “yes” to the ratification of the meet and confer agreement and 14 police officers voted 
“no”. 

If this resolution is adopted by the City Council, the agreement will become effective immediately and 
continue in effect until September 30, 2019. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Below is a table outlining the fiscal impact of the meet and confer agreement for 
each of the eleven issue points. This agreement becomes effective immediately and continues in effect 
until September 30, 2019. 



03/21/19 
Item #7(G) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 11 of 11 

Issue Fiscal Impact 
Funded 

In FY 
2019 

Article 1: Association Business Not Applicable N/A 

Article 2: Additional Deputy Chief 
Position 

Base salary plus benefits: $136,425. Yes 

Article 3: Military Leave Time Account Not Applicable N/A 

Article 4: Compensation Compensation study funded in FY 2019. 

Compensation study results would be 
implemented in FY 2020. 

Yes 

No 
Article 5: Overtime 3rd Party reimbursed overtime and benefits 

is estimated for FY 19 at $420,000. 
Yes 

Article 6: Higher Classification / Rank 
Structure 

Step up pay: $9,784. Yes 

Article 7: Educational Incentives for 
Promotion 

Not Applicable N/A 

Article 8: Lateral Entry Program Not Applicable N/A 

Article 9: Individual Vehicle 
Assignment Program (IVAP) 

The estimated net cost based on officers 
who are currently employed by the City is 
$28,831.  

Yes 

Article 10: Disciplinary Actions & 
Appeals 

Not Applicable N/A 

Article 11: Grievance Procedure Not Applicable N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Draft Agreement 
Resolution 



Page 1 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  

MEET & CONFER AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

AND 

TEMPLE POLICE ASSOCIATION 

CITY OF TEMPLE FISCAL YEAR 
2018 



 Page 2 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

Definitions ...............................................................................................................5 
 
Article 1 – Association Business............................................................................6  

Section 1 Intent ............................................................................................6  
Section 2 Recognition ..................................................................................6  
Section 3 Association Access to New Hires ................................................6 
Section 4 Labor Relations ............................................................................6 
Section 5 Association Rights and Indemnification ......................................7 
Section 6 Association Business Leave Time Pool .......................................9 
Section 7 Negotiating Time for Negotiating Team Members .....................9 

 
Article 2 – Creation of Additional Deputy Chief Position…………………....11  

Section 1 Intent ..........................................................................................11  
Section 2 Minimum Standards ...................................................................11  
Section 3 Procedure ...................................................................................11 
Section 4 Adoption and Publication of Rules ............................................11 

 
Article 3 – Military Leave Time Account…………………………………… ..12  

Section 1 City to Maintain Account...........................................................12  
Section 2 Adoption and Publication of Rules ............................................12  

 
Article 4 – Compensation…………………………………………………….. ..13  

Section 1 Intent ..........................................................................................13 
Section 2 Implementation of 2017 Compensation Study ..........................13  
Section 3 2018 Compensation Study .........................................................14 

 
Article 5 – Overtime Compensation………………………….... .......................15   

Section 1 Intent ..........................................................................................15  
Section 2 General Guidelines.....................................................................15  
Section 3 Overtime Exception ...................................................................15 
Section 4 Amendment of Work Period ......................................................15 
Section 5 Scheduled Overtime Assignments .............................................15 
Section 6 Unscheduled Overtime ...............................................................16 
Section 7 Court Appearances .....................................................................16 
Section 8 Compensatory Time ...................................................................16 
Section 9 Administrative Challenge ..........................................................17 
Section 10 Statutory Override ....................................................................17 
Section 11 Adoption and Publication of Rules ..........................................17 

 
 
 
 
 



 Page 3 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

Article 6 – Temporary Work in Higher Classification/Rank Structure…….18 
Section 1 Intent and Scope .........................................................................18  
Section 2 Corporal Rank ............................................................................18  
Section 3 Sergeant Rank ............................................................................19 
Section 4 Temporary Performance of Duties in a Higher Rank ................19 
Section 5 Preemption .................................................................................20 
Section 6 Adoption and Publication of Rules ............................................20 

 
Article 7 – Promotional Incentives for Education………………………… ....21 

Section 1 Intent ..........................................................................................21 
Section 2 Additional Points on Promotional Exams ..................................21 
Section 3 Adoption and Publication of Rules ............................................21 

 
Article 8 – Lateral Entry Program .................................………………………22 

Section 1 Intent and Scope .........................................................................22 
Section 2 Eligibility Requirements ............................................................22 
Section 3 Guidelines ..................................................................................22 
Section 4 Preemption .................................................................................23 
Section 5 Adoption and Publication of Rules ............................................23 

 
Article 9 – Individual Vehicle Assignment Program (IVAP)………………...24  

Section 1 Intent ..........................................................................................24 
Section 2 Eligibility ...................................................................................24 
Section 3 Applicable Guidelines ................................................................24 
Section 4 Fee ..............................................................................................24 
Section 5 Exceptions ..................................................................................24 
Section 6 Adoption and Publication of Rules ............................................25 

 
Article 10 – Disciplinary Actions and Appeals……………………………….. 26  

Section 1 Intent ..........................................................................................26 
Section 2 Suspensions of 36 Hours or Less ...............................................26 
Section 3 Suspensions of 37 to 120 Hours.................................................27 
Section 4 Suspensions of 121 to 720 Hours...............................................27 
Section 5 Alternate Discipline by the Department Head ...........................27 
Section 6 Alternate Discipline by Agreement ...........................................28 
Section 7 Last Chance Agreement .............................................................29 
Section 8 Officer’s Request for Professional Evaluation ..........................30 
Section 9 Due Process – Loudermill Hearings ..........................................30 
Section 10 Hearing Examiner Retained / Suspensions in Excess of 36 Hours .. 32 
Section 11 Procedure Before Commission and Hearing Examiners .................. 32 
Section 12 Appeal Procedures Before Hearing Examiners .......................32 
Section 13 Jurisdiction of Hearing Authority to Modify Discipline..........33 
Section 14 Preemption ...............................................................................34 
Section 15 Adoption and Publication of Rules ..........................................34 
 

 



 Page 4 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

Article 11 – Grievance Procedure ………………………………... ..................35  
Section 1 Intent and Scope of Procedure ...................................................35 
Section 2 Application of Procedure ...........................................................35 
Section 3 Arbitration Option ......................................................................36 
Section 4 Decision Final and Binding .......................................................37 
Section 5 Mutual Extension .......................................................................38 
Section 6 Grievance of Non-Association Members ...................................38 
Section 7 Association Compliance with Agreement .................................38 

 
Article 12 – Savings Clause .................................................................................39  
 
Article 13 – Duration of Agreement ...................................................................40  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 Page 5 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

 
DEFINITIONS 

 
 

1. "Agreement" refers to this Meet and Confer Agreement, negotiated between the City 
of Temple and the Temple Police Association. 

2. "Association" means the Temple Police Association.  
3. "City" means the City of Temple.  
4. "College hours" "Degree" or College Degree" means credit hours or degree from a 

college or university recognized by the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools 
or a similar regional association recognized and approved by the United States 
Department of Education.  

5. "Commission" means the Firefighters’ and Police Officers’ Civil Service 
Commission of the City of Temple. 

6. “Day(s)” means calendar days, unless otherwise specified. 
7. "Department" means the Police Department of the City of Temple. 
8. “Department Head” means the administrative head of the Police Department or the 

Chief of Police, including any interim or acting Chief of Police.  
9. "Director" means the Director of the City of Temple Firefighters' and Police Officers' 

Civil Service Commission. 
10. “Dues” means the cost of membership in the Association. 
11. “FY” means financial year.  
12. “Guaranteed Overtime” refers to assignments compensated at a rate of time and a 

half, without regard to the number of hours worked in a pay period. 
13. “IVAP” means the Individual Vehicle Assignment Program. 
14. “Local rules” refers to the Rules and Regulations of the City of Temple Firefighters' 

and Police Officers' Civil Service Commission. 
15. "Party" or "Parties" means the City of Temple and the Temple Police Association. 
16. "Police Officer" or "Officer" means a person who is a peace officer under Article 

2.12, Code of Criminal Procedure, or other law, and who is employed by the City of 
Temple Police Department.  

17. "TCOLE" means the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement, or its successor 
organization.  

18. "TLGC" means the Texas Local Government Code. 



 Page 6 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

ARTICLE 1 
Association Business 

 
Section 1. Intent. In adopting this Article, the Parties acknowledge and agree to the following 
provisions for the purpose of enabling the Association to adequately represent Association 
members, and administer the terms of the Agreement. 
 
Section 2. Recognition. The City recognizes the Temple Police Association (TPA) as the sole 
and exclusive bargaining agent for all covered police officers, pursuant to section 142.053 et. 
seq. Texas Local Government Code, excluding the Department Head, employees of the Temple 
Police Department who are exempt under section 142.058(b) Texas Local Government Code, 
and employees occupying appointed positions pursuant to section 143.014 Texas Local 
Government Code. The Agreement is intended to include all permanent paid employees of the 
Temple Police Department who have been hired in substantial compliance with the provisions of 
Chapter 143 of the Texas Local Government Code, but does not include civilian employees, 
other employees, or those excluded above. The Agreement is not intended to, and does not, deny 
local control by the City, or restrict or diminish the management rights of the City, except as 
expressly provided by the Agreement under section 142.059 of the Texas Local Government 
Code. 
 
Section 3. Association Access to New Hires. The Association shall have the right to meet with 
new officers during the Academy and/or Departmental in-house employee orientation sessions to 
ensure they have received a copy of the Agreement, and to be able to explain and answer 
questions about the Association, the Agreement, and the meet and confer process. 
 
Section 4. Labor Relations 
 

1. To improve communications between the Department Head and the Association, and 
to facilitate resolution of issues related to implementing the provisions of this 
Agreement, the Department Head shall establish an Advisory Team comprised of 
three (3) members, including one (1) member of the Department designated by the 
Department Head, and two (2) members of the Department designated by the 
Association. The Association and the Department Head may designate a substitute 
representative to the Team in the event that the designated Team member is unable to 
attend a meeting. The Department Head or his designee will meet with this Team at 
least once every three (3) months. The purpose of the Team is advisory to the 
Department Head, and to provide police managers input on City and Departmental 
policy, procedures, and employee issues.  

 
2. The Association President or the Department Head may request additional meetings 

when issues arise that warrant concern or discussion. The Department Head retains 
discretion regarding the scheduling of additional meetings.  

 



 Page 7 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

3. Members of the Advisory Team will not be required to use leave in order to attend 
Team meetings. Members of the Advisory Team will not receive overtime 
compensation for attendance at Team meetings. 

 
Section 5. Association Rights and Indemnification 
 

(a) Dues Deduction. Upon receipt of a signed authorization from an officer on a form 
supplied by the City, the dues and assessments to the Association and affiliated state 
organizations that existed on the date of this Agreement shall be deducted from each 
member officer’s pay. Officers who are not members are not obligated to pay 
Association dues. Officers who are currently having dues deducted as of the 
execution date of this Agreement are not required to submit a new dues deduction 
form. 

 
The dues deduction shall be remitted promptly to the Treasurer of the Association. 
The City agrees to provide a list of those members for whom deductions are made 
each month. The Association may change the amount of the deduction for those 
employees who have authorized payroll deductions by providing the City with a 
letter, at least thirty (30) days in advance of the change, from the Association 
President advising the City that the amount of the dues deduction has changed 
pursuant to the requirements of the Association’s Constitution and Bylaws. The 
Association will promptly refund to the City any amount paid to the Association in 
error on account of this dues deduction provision. 
 

(b) Indemnification. As a condition of being granted and continuing payroll deduction of 
dues, the Association shall indemnify the City and any departments of the City, and 
hold it harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits, or other form of liability 
that may arise out of, or by reason of, any actions taken by the City or any department 
of the City for any purpose of complying with the provisions of this Agreement.  
 

(c) Association Access to Premises. Subject to reasonable advance notice from the 
Association and approval from the Department Head or his designee, the Association 
may be permitted reasonable access to the premises of the Department and the Police 
Academy for the purpose of administering this Agreement, including but not limited 
to Departmental in-house employee orientation. Such visits shall be limited to the 
purpose for which approval was granted and shall be conducted in a manner that does 
not interfere with the functions of the Department or Academy. 
 

The Association’s access to the Department facilities and equipment to communicate 
with its membership shall include the use of one (1) bulletin board installed at the 
main police station and one (1) board at each police facility. The Department Head 
must approve in advance the size of, and materials used for, said bulletin boards.  All 
costs incurred in the purchase, installation, and maintenance of said bulletin boards 
shall be at the Association’s expense. All posted materials must be directly related to 
Association business. The following guidelines shall apply to materials properly 
posted on the bulletin boards: 



 Page 8 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

1. recreation and social affairs of the Association; 
2. Association meetings; 
3. Association elections; 
4. reports of Association Committees; 
5. rulings or policies of the state or national Association, without added 

commentary, and 
6. legislative enactments and judicial decisions affecting public employee labor 

relations, without added commentary. 
7. At no time shall the bulletin boards contain any political endorsement, 

whether at the local, state, or federal level. 
8. The Department Head or his designee retains the right to remove material 

which is not directly related to Association, or is offensive or inappropriate. 
 

(d) Communications. Subject to the Temple Police Department General Orders, the 
City’s administrative regulations, and the applicable provisions of this Agreement, the 
Association may utilize electronic communications (“E-mail”) to communicate with 
Temple police officers regarding issues related to provisions of the Agreement and 
upcoming meet and confer sessions in accordance with the following restrictions and 
limitations: 

 
1. Association email communications shall relate solely to the following 

subjects: 
i. issues related to the Agreement; 
ii.   issues related to upcoming meet and confer sessions;  
iii.  issues related to the grievance policy, and 
iv.  Association meetings for the purpose of discussing issues related to 
the Agreement, upcoming meet and confer negotiations, and/or the 
grievance policy. 
 

2. Email communications shall not contain any political commentary, any 
solicitation for membership in, or financial contributions to, any special 
interest organization or political action organization, or derogatory or 
offensive propaganda or commentary which reflects negatively upon the City, 
its officials, its employees, City employee associations or groups, or upon 
citizens of the City. On a case-by-case basis, the Department Head or his 
designee may consider requests from individual officers for approval to 
distribute email communications regarding solicitations for officers (or their 
families) needing financial or other forms of assistance. 
 

3. In the event of a violation, the Department Head shall notify the Association 
of the violation. Subsequent violations of these guidelines will subject the 
Association to the loss of the privilege of using the City’s electronic 
communications system. Such loss will not be subject to review by any 
administrative or judicial body, or the grievance process. 

   
 



 Page 9 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

Section 6. Association Business Leave Time Pool 
 

(a) Time Off for Association Business. An Association Business Leave Pool shall be created 
for the purpose of conducting Association business, defined herein as time spent 
adjusting grievances, attending the annual conference of state affiliated organizations, the 
Association’s Executive Board meetings, and regular Association business meetings.  
 
While Temple Police officers are on Association Business Leave, they shall not wear 
Temple Police Department uniforms or insignia of any kind. 
 

(b) Establishment of Association Leave Time Pool. The Association Business Leave (ABL) 
Pool shall be funded during the first pay date of each calendar year by reduction of 
accrued vacation leave in the amount of two (2) hours for each member of the Temple 
Police Association who provides notice in writing to the City at least thirty (30) calendar 
days prior to the beginning of that calendar year of his/her wish to donate said hours to 
the ABL Pool. Once a contribution has been made to the ABL Pool, there shall be no 
transfer of leave back into any individual officer’s leave account, and there will be no 
cash payout for any remaining time in the Pool. Unused ABL Pool hours will remain in 
the Pool to be utilized the following year. ABL Pool hours shall never have any cash or 
surrender value. The City will track contributions to and deductions from the ABL Pool. 
 

(c) Use of Association Leave Time Pool. The Association President shall request any use of 
Association business leave in writing, and submit the request in advance for approval by 
the Department Head. The Department Head may waive the requirement that the request 
and approval be in writing. Requests for ABL time shall be made as far in advance as is 
practicable, but no less than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date for which leave is 
requested. There shall be no entitlement for overtime pay for any hours worked on 
Association business, as such time is not for the benefit of the City, but for the sole 
benefit of the Association. Unless approved by the Department Head, not more than two 
(2) members may be on ABL at the same time, and such leave may be cancelled by the 
Department Head in the event of any emergency or shortage of manpower, as determined 
by the Department Head. Cancellation of ABL time by the Department Head under these 
circumstances shall not be subject to review by any administrative or judicial body, or the 
grievance process. 
 

(d) Indemnification. The Association shall indemnify the City, its officials and employees, 
and hold them harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits, or other forms of 
liability that may arise out of, or by reason of, any actions taken by the City for any 
purpose of complying with the provisions of this section. 
 
 

Section 7. Negotiating Time for Negotiating Team Members. The City agrees to pay up to a 
maximum of five members of the Association’s meet and confer team their regular pay for 
attendance at meet and confer meetings between the City and the Association. If subcommittees 
are jointly assigned to work on specific matters, Association members of the subcommittee shall 
receive their regular pay during joint subcommittee meetings.  Association team member time 



 Page 10 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

spent preparing for meetings, or attending internal Association meetings, will not be paid by the 
City. Police administration may adjust Association representatives’ schedules in order to 
minimize overtime expense.  
  
 



 Page 11 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

ARTICLE 2 
Creation of Additional Deputy Chief Position 

 
Section 1. Intent. In adopting this Article, the Parties agree to the creation of a single additional 
Deputy Chief position in addition to the two (2) Deputy Chief positions authorized by Section 
143.014(c) Texas Local Government Code. The Parties believe this additional position is necessary 
to align the Departmental command structure with the organization of the Department into three (3) 
bureaus (Patrol, Investigations, and Administration) and to efficiently address the continued growth 
of the Department and the community. 

 
Section 2. Minimum Standards. In addition to the minimum standards required by Sections 
143.013(b) and 143.014(d) Texas Local Government Code, the person appointed to the additional 
Deputy Chief position must have: 

1.  obtained a minimum educational level of a Bachelor’s degree within two (2) calendar 
years from the date of appointment to the position; 

2.  successfully completed a major law enforcement management school, e.g., the FBI 
National Academy, Southern Police Institute, or be able to complete this requirement 
within the first eighteen (18) months of promotion to the position; 

3. served in the rank of Sergeant or above, and have demonstrated effective supervision, 
leadership and management of the personnel under their control; 

4. obtained the level of Master Peace Officer Certification by the Texas Commission on 
Law Enforcement (TCOLE) or its successor. 

 
The Parties agree that these minimum standards shall apply to the subsequent appointment of 
any person to a Deputy Chief position.  
 

Section 3. Procedure. Upon a vacancy in any Deputy Chief position, the position will be posted for 
a period of ten (10) calendar days during which eligible candidates may submit documentation of 
their qualifications, e.g., resumes, transcripts, certifications, for review by the Department Head. The 
Parties agree that the final appointment will be made solely at the Department Head’s discretion and 
that this procedure is not intended to, and does not, provide a basis for appeal of the appointment. 
 
Section 4. Adoption and Publication of Rules. The Commission shall adopt Local Rules in 
accordance with this article upon approval by the City Council. 
 
 



 Page 12 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

ARTICLE 3 
Military Leave Time Account 

 
Section 1. City to Maintain Account.   
 

(a) The City of Temple shall maintain a military leave time account for the Police 
Department. The account shall benefit a police officer who: 

(1) is a member of the Texas National Guard or the armed forces reserves of 
the United States;  

(2) was called to active federal military duty while serving as a police officer 
for the City; and 

(3) has served on active duty for a period of 3 continuous months or longer. 

(b) A police officer may donate any amount of accumulated vacation, holiday, sick, 
or compensatory leave time to the military leave time account to help provide 
salary continuation for police officers who qualify as eligible beneficiaries of the 
account under this Article.  

(c) A police officer who wishes to donate time to an account under this section must 
authorize the donation in writing on a form provided by the Police Department 
and approved by the City. 

(d) The City shall equally distribute the leave time donated to the military leave time 
account among all police officers who are eligible beneficiaries of that account. 
The City shall credit and debit the applicable military leave time account on an 
hourly basis, regardless of the cash value of the time donated or used. 

(e) A police officer who wishes to use military leave from the military leave time 
account shall submit the request in writing. 

(f) In December of each year, the City shall provide a report to the Association that 
includes the current balance of the military leave time account and the amount of 
leave used by each police officer from the account during the previous year. 

Section 2. Adoption and Publication of Rules. The Commission shall adopt Local Rules in 
accordance with this article upon approval by the City Council. 
 

 



 Page 13 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

ARTICLE 4 
Compensation 

 
 
Section 1. Intent. The Parties agree that in order to attract and retain qualified police officers, it 
is necessary to maintain a fair and competitive pay and compensation package, with due regard 
for fiscal restraints and sustainability. When considering total compensation, the Parties agree 
that base pay, longevity pay, education incentive pay, TCOLE certificate pay, shift differential 
pay, and other forms of compensation need to be evaluated with other cities comparable to the 
City of Temple.    
 
While the City of Temple desires to provide competitive salaries for all of our employees, 
attaining market competitiveness can be costly and may not be affordable in a single year.  
 
Additionally, for all civil service positions other than Police Officer and Firefighter, obtaining an 
accurate comparison on position minimums, and thus averages, is difficult. This is because that 
while most of our peer cities structure their pay plan minimum based on tenure within the 
position, the City of Temple’s pay plan minimum is based on tenure within the department.  
 
Section 2. Implementation of 2017 Compensation Study.   
 
The 2017 Civil Service Compensation Study will be implemented as follows: 
 
2.00% base pay salary increase for all Civil Service employees effective September 22, 2017, as 
well as an additional 3.00% base pay increase for police officers and corporals effective July 13, 
2018;  
 
Increase in educational incentive pay, effective September 22, 2017 as follows: 
 

Degree Current Revised 
Associate’s Degree $720 per year $1,200 per year 
Bachelor’s Degree $1,440 per year $1,800 per year 
Master’s Degree $1,800 per year $2,400 per year 

 
Addition of language incentive pay of $720 per year, effective not later than November 3, 2017, 
with eligibility requirements to be recommended by the Department Head and adopted by the 
Civil Service Commission as part of Local Rules. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Page 14 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

Section 3. 2018 Compensation Study.   
 
The Parties agree to diligently work together to develop the criteria for a professionally prepared 
compensation study to be conducted in fiscal year 2018 that will include a full study of the City of 
Temple’s Civil Service Pay Plan structure including, but not limited to, an evaluation of the step 
system and compression between steps. The Parties agree to meet not later than June 1, 2018 to 
discuss criteria and a schedule for the completion of the study. 



 Page 15 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

ARTICLE 5 
Overtime Compensation 

 
Section 1. Intent. In adopting this Article, the Parties agree to the creation of a uniform 
Departmental policy governing overtime compensation, consistent with Section 142.0015 Texas 
Local Government Code, the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), and City policy.  
 
Section 2. General Guidelines. 

  
a. The allocation of budgeted overtime funds is solely within the discretion of the 

Department Head. 
 

b.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to, and this Agreement does not, limit the 
Department Head’s discretion to assign employees as necessary to achieve 
Departmental objectives. 

 
Section 3. Overtime Exception. The Parties understand and agree that the overtime exemption 
provided for by the FLSA known as the 7(k) exemption is hereby adopted by the City and shall be 
used to determine an applicable work period for purposes of overtime under the FLSA for certain 
work groups. The City reserves the right to make an initial determination regarding whether an 
overtime exemption applies, based on its own evaluation, or based on a request for an evaluation 
from the Department of Labor (DOL). 
 
Section 4. Amendment of Work Period. The City reserves any and all rights to alter or amend the 
work period, if to do so serves the legitimate governmental and management interests of the City. 
The Parties agree that the maximum work period that will be utilized by the City is a fourteen (14) 
day period. The maximum number of hours that will be worked without overtime pay within a 14-
day work period will be eighty (80). 
 
Section 5. Scheduled Overtime Assignments.  
 

a. All scheduled overtime assignments subject to contractual agreements with third parties 
will be compensated at a guaranteed rate of time and a half, without regard to the number 
of hours worked by an officer during that pay period.  

 
b. Other overtime assignments for which compensation will be at a guaranteed rate of time 

and a half, without regard to the number of hours worked by an officer during that pay 
period, shall be identified and posted as such in advance. 

 
c. All scheduled overtime assignments for City events will be paid at time and half, unless 

an officer has worked less than 80 hours during the relevant pay period. In the event that 
an officer scheduled to work a City event has not worked 80 hours due to taking sick or 
vacation leave during that pay period, the officer will be compensated at his regular 
hourly rate for the City event. The officer shall have the option to elect whether to apply 
straight “additional regular” time in lieu of the leave taken, or to receive additional 
compensation for working the City event, but in no case shall the officer be compensated 
at the rate of time and a half.  



 Page 16 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

 
d. Supervisors shall not require officers who are scheduled to work a City event to take flex 

days prior to the City event in order to avoid paying the officers overtime for working the 
City assignment. 

 
Section 6. Unscheduled Overtime.  
 

a. Call-Outs – Non-exempt officers who are off-duty and receive notification to return to 
duty status shall be entitled to a minimum of 2 hours of overtime compensation, 
regardless of actual time worked. Time worked, in this circumstance, shall begin when 
the notification is received and continue until the officer is cleared from the call. 

 
b. If an officer is required to work unscheduled overtime, the officer shall have the 

opportunity to elect whether (s)he will be compensated with compensatory time, or paid 
overtime for that assignment, subject to leave balance restrictions. If the supervisor does 
not flex the officer’s time, the overtime slip submitted by the officer will be processed as 
submitted. No supervisor shall amend a payment form submitted by an officer for such an 
assignment without the officer’s prior consent.   

 
c. If the supervisor does flex the officer’s time, the supervisor will work with the officer to 

schedule the flex time off, subject to the needs of the Department. 
 
Section 7. Court Appearances. An officer who makes a required court-related appearance prior to, 
or after his/her regularly scheduled shift, is guaranteed a minimum of 2 hours of overtime 
compensation, regardless of the actual time spent in court. Time worked, in this circumstance, 
includes scheduled report time until released by the court. 
 
Section 8. Compensatory Time. The Parties agree to the following: 
 

a. Overtime assignments for which compensation will be in the form of compensatory time 
off in lieu of paid overtime shall be identified and posted as such in advance. 

 
b. Unless an overtime assignment has been posted as a compensatory time assignment, 

compensation for that assignment shall be paid overtime.  
 

c. If an officer is required to work an overtime assignment for which the form of 
compensation has not been identified prior to the start of the overtime assignment, the 
officer shall have the opportunity to elect whether (s)he will be compensated with 
compensatory time or paid overtime for that assignment, subject to leave balance 
restrictions. If the supervisor does not flex the officer’s time, the overtime slip submitted 
by the officer will be processed as submitted. No supervisor shall amend a payment form 
submitted by an officer for such an assignment without the officer’s prior consent.   

 
d. If the supervisor does flex the officer’s time, the supervisor will work with the officer to 

schedule the flex time off, subject to the needs of the Department. 
 



 Page 17 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

e. This section is not intended to limit the Department Head’s ability to assign officers to 
work overtime assignments paid with compensatory time off as necessary to meet 
Departmental objectives. 

 
f. This section is not intended to limit the Department Head’s authority to implement flex 

time in managing the Department’s budget. 
 

g. Subject to staffing needs, supervisors and officers will schedule compensatory time off at 
a mutually agreeable time.  

 
Section 9. Administrative Challenge. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent or preclude an 
individual officer or class of officers from exercising their administrative rights to challenge the 
application of an exemption using applicable DOL procedures and protocols. Further, nothing in the 
Agreement shall prevent or preclude the City from defending its application of an exemption.  
 
Section 10. Statutory Override. This Article supersedes Section 142.0015(j) Texas Local 
Government Code and any and all other contrary state provisions to allow the adoption of the FLSA 
7(k) overtime exemption, and provide for an alternate work period. 
 
Section 11. Adoption and Publication of Rules. The Commission shall adopt Local Rules in 
accordance with this article upon approval by the City Council. 
 

 
 



 Page 18 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

ARTICLE 6 
Temporary Duties in Higher Classification/Rank Structure 

 
Section 1. Intent and Scope. The Parties acknowledge that an officer’s experience, training and 
performance contribute significantly to his/her efficiency and ability, and the Department’s ability to 
meet public safety needs. The Parties agree that temporarily designating an officer to perform the 
duties of a higher rank may be necessary to meet Departmental staffing needs, and can also provide 
the officer a unique and valuable training opportunity as part of career development.  
 
Section 2. Corporal Rank 
 

(a) Acting Sergeant – When no Sergeant or Lieutenant is available to act as a field supervisor for 
a shift due to absence, illness or injury, a Corporal shall be designated as “Acting 
Sergeant/Field Supervisor” for that shift. When no Sergeant is available to act as a field 
supervisor for a shift due to absence, illness or injury, and the Lieutenant determines an 
additional field supervisor is necessary to meet staffing needs, the Lieutenant may designate a 
Corporal as an “Acting Sergeant/Field Supervisor” for that shift. 

1. The designation shall be made by a Lieutenant, Deputy Chief, or the Department 
Head, and be noted in writing on the Duty Roster. 

2. A person serving in this designation shall have full authority and responsibility for 
performing all of the duties of the Sergeant rank for the duration of the designation. 

3. The officer designated as Acting Sergeant shall be paid the base salary of the 
Sergeant rank, plus the officer’s own longevity and seniority pay, educational 
incentive pay, and certification pay during the period of the designation. 

4. The designation shall be made on a rotating basis to all Corporals, from a list which 
will be distributed to the Unit. 

5. The Department Head, or his designee, retains discretion to deviate from the order of 
names on the list when designating an Acting Sergeant. This decision is not subject to 
appeal and shall not be the basis for a grievance. 

6. If no list is available, the designation will be made on the basis of seniority. 
 

(b) Mentoring Sergeant – A Lieutenant may designate a Corporal to act as Mentoring Sergeant 
under the supervision of a Sergeant or Lieutenant.  

1. The designation is specifically intended for training and mentoring purposes, as part 
of a comprehensive career development plan. The Mentoring Sergeant designation is 
not to be made for the purpose of meeting Departmental staffing needs. 

2. The designated officer will have the immediate authority of a Sergeant for the 
duration of the designation, however ultimate authority and responsibility for the shift 
remains with the available Sergeant or Lieutenant. 

3. The designation shall be made by a Lieutenant, Deputy Chief, or the Department 
Head, and be noted in writing on the Duty Roster. 

4. The Mentoring Sergeant shall not receive higher classification pay during the 
designation period. 

5. The designation shall be made on a rotating basis to all Corporals, from a list which 
will be distributed to the Unit. 



 Page 19 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

6. The Department Head, or his designee, retains discretion to deviate from the order of 
names on the list when designating a Mentoring Sergeant. This decision is not subject 
to appeal and shall not be the basis for a grievance. 

7. If no list is available, the designation will be made on the basis of seniority. 
 
Section 3. Sergeant Rank 
 

Watch Commander – When a Lieutenant will be absent or unavailable for a period of at least 
twenty-eight (28) consecutive days, the Department Head, or his designee, may designate a 
Sergeant to perform the administrative duties of a Lieutenant/Watch Commander. 

 
a. The designation shall be made by a Deputy Chief, or the Department Head, and be 

noted in writing on the Duty Roster. 
b. A person serving in this designation shall have full authority and responsibility for 

performing all of the duties of the Lieutenant rank for the duration of the designation. 
c. The designated Watch Commander shall be paid the base salary of the Lieutenant 

rank, plus the officer’s own longevity and seniority pay, educational incentive pay, 
and certification pay during the period of the designation. 

d. The designation shall be made on a rotating basis from a list of Sergeants. If no list is 
available, the designation shall be made on the basis of seniority. The Department 
Head retains discretion to deviate from the order of names on the list when 
designating a Watch Commander. This decision is not subject to appeal and shall not 
be the basis for a grievance. 

e. The Department Head retains authority to designate a Watch Commander, pursuant to 
this section, for a period of less than twenty-eight (28) days, based on Departmental 
needs.  

  
Section 4. Temporary Performance of Duties in a Higher Rank 
 
In order to meet immediate Departmental staffing needs, the Department Head shall have the 
authority to temporarily assign an officer to perform the duties of a position in the next higher rank 
under the following circumstances: 
 

a. when that position has been funded, but not yet created or authorized by the City’s 
governing body, or 

 
b. when there is a vacancy in an existing position for which no promotional list exists. An 

officer temporarily assigned under this subsection has no property right or interest, in law 
or equity, to continued employment in the temporarily assigned position, and will be 
demoted to the position (s)he occupied prior to the temporary assignment immediately 
upon determination of the officer occupying the first position on the eligibility list. This 
subsection does not preclude back-pay due to the person who is ultimately promoted to 
fill the position from the promotional list once established.  

 
Assignments made pursuant to this provision are temporary in nature, and specifically intended to 
address immediate, pressing Departmental staffing needs. Assignments made pursuant to this 
provision are expressly limited to such period of time as is necessary for the City to formally create 
the position by ordinance, or complete the process of creating a promotional list for the position. 



 Page 20 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

 
A person temporarily serving in a higher rank shall have full authority and responsibility for 
performing all of the duties of the assigned rank for the duration of the assignment. 
 
Under no circumstances is this provision intended to, and it does not, circumvent the express intent 
of Chapter 143 of the Texas Local Government Code, which specifies that promotions are to be made 
solely through the promotional testing process. 
 
An officer temporarily assigned to a position in the next higher rank under this provision shall be 
paid the base salary of the rank to which (s)he has been temporarily assigned, and the officer’s own 
longevity or seniority pay, educational incentive pay, and certification pay for the period of the 
temporary assignment. 
 
Under no circumstances is this provision intended to, and it does not, authorize the Department Head 
to, directly or indirectly, create a position that has not been funded by the City’s governing body. 
 
Section 5. Preemption. It is the specific intent of the Parties to the Agreement that any express 
written provision that specifically provides for a procedure, standard, or practice other than what is 
provided for in Subchapter D, Chapter 143 of the Texas Local Government Code is intended to 
override the applicable statutory provision as allowed by Subchapter C, Chapter 142 of the Texas 
Local Government Code. 
 
Section 6. Adoption and Publication of Rules. The Commission shall adopt Local Rules in 
accordance with this article upon approval by the City Council. 

 
 
 



 Page 21 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

ARTICLE 7 
Promotional Incentives for Education 

 
 
Section 1. Intent. The Parties agree that it is the goal of the Department to maintain high 
professional standards.  Continuing education is encouraged and recognized as a way to improve 
professionalism for both officers and the Department.   

 
Section 2.  Additional Points on Promotional Exams.   
 

(a) In addition to the points a promotional candidate is entitled to receive under Chapter 
143.033, Local Government Code, for seniority, promotional candidates are also 
entitled to receive points for continuing education as follows: 

 
 Level 1 - 0.50 points for having received an Advanced Certificate issued by the 

Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (TCOLE); 
 Level 2 - 1.0 points for having completed 60 college hours credit with a passing 

grade from an accredited institution of higher education, college or university; 
 Level 3 - 1.5 points for having received a Master Peace Officer Certificate issued 

by the Texas Commission of Law Enforcement (TCOLE); 
 Level 4 - 2.0 points for having received an Associates Degree from an accredited 

institution of higher education, college, or university; 
 Level 5 - 3.0 points for having received a Bachelor's Degree or higher from an 

accredited institution of higher education, college, or university. 
 

(b) A promotional candidate is entitled to receive the points for only the highest level 
attained listed above. 
 

(c) Points awarded to a promotional candidate under this Article shall be added to the final 
score received after the testing process has been completed. 

 
Section 3. Adoption and Publication of Rules.  The Commission shall adopt Local Rules in 
accordance with this article upon approval by the City Council. 

 
 



 Page 22 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

ARTICLE 8 
Lateral Entry Program 

 
Section 1. Intent and Scope. The Parties acknowledge that the ability to attract and hire qualified 
candidates is beneficial to the Association, the Department, and the City. The Parties agree that an 
expedited process for hiring qualified applicants with previous law enforcement experience will 
support and enhance this goal. 
 
Section 2. Eligibility Requirements. To be eligible for hiring under this Article, an applicant must: 

 
1. have a current TCOLE license; 
2. be currently employed with a law enforcement agency; 
3. have an honorable standing within their current department; 
4. not be under any type of investigation with their current department; 
5. have three (3) or more years of work experience with a municipal, county, or state 

law enforcement agency in a community comparable in size and population to the 
City of Temple;  

6. take and pass the locally given Civil Service exam; and 
7. complete and pass a background investigation, and the City of Temple hiring process. 

 
In addition to the above, the probationary officer, once hired, must:  
 

1. successfully complete a modified Field Training Program of not less than eight (8) 
weeks, and 

2. successfully complete a twelve (12) month probationary period.  
 
The candidate will not have to attend the full training academy. 
 
The Department Head’s final determination regarding whether an applicant meets the Lateral Entry 
Program criteria shall be final. The decision is not subject to appeal to the Commission, and shall not 
be the basis of a grievance under this Agreement.  
 
Section 3. Guidelines 

1. Hiring: An eligibility list for lateral applicants shall be maintained in addition to an entry-
level eligibility list. The score to be placed on the lateral eligibility list for each lateral 
applicant shall be the applicant’s score from the locally given Civil Service exam. That score 
will be used to rank applicants on the lateral eligibility list, however, the Department Head 
may give preference in selection to any person on the lateral eligibility list based on the 
applicant’s years of experience and type of experience. The lateral eligibility list shall expire 
at the discretion of the Department Head. To fill a vacant position within the Department, the 
Department Head may select an applicant from the lateral eligibility list, or follow the 
process defined in section 143.026 of the Texas Local Government Code.  

2. Promotional Eligibility: The Lateral Entry Program is for pay purposes only, and actual work 
experience in another law enforcement agency will not be considered for promotional 
eligibility purposes. 

3. Salary: Applicants hired under this lateral entry program will be placed in the current pay 
grade on the Temple Police Department compensation plan commensurate with their full-



 Page 23 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

time prior service as a police officer. Applicants with prior municipal police service in a city 
with a population of 30,000 or more will receive one credit year for each full year of police 
service, not to exceed ten (10) credit years. Applicants with prior municipal police service in 
a city with a population of less than 30,000 will receive one credit year for each two (2) full 
years of prior police service, not to exceed five (5) credit years. Applicants with prior field 
deputy service with a county sheriff’s office with a population of 175,000 or more will 
receive one credit year for each full year of field deputy service, not to exceed ten (10) credit 
years. Applicants with prior field service experience with any TCOLE certified organization 
other than a municipal police organization or a county sheriff’s office will receive one credit 
year for each two (2) full years of prior field service, not to exceed five (5) credit years. The 
“credited time” will NOT count as time served in the Temple Police Department for any 
purpose(s) except determining the starting pay grade. For example, it will not count towards 
any benefits, assignment, promotions, longevity or retirement. Applicants who receive prior 
service credit will remain in the assigned starting pay grade until they have the required years 
of actual service with the Temple Police Department to advance to the next pay grade. Prior 
service will be calculated on full years of service with an entity. Partial years of service with 
different entities will not be added together to make a full year. The City will use the latest 
official census figures from the U.S. Census Bureau at the time the applicant is hired to 
determine city and county populations. 

4. Seniority: Seniority will be based on the applicant’s date of hire within the Department. No 
credit for prior service outside the Department will be granted for seniority purposes.  

 
Section 4. Preemption. It is the specific intent of the Parties to the Agreement that any express 
written provision that specifically provides for a procedure, standard, or practice other than what is 
provided for in Subchapter D, Chapter 143 of the Texas Local Government Code is intended to 
override the applicable statutory provision as allowed by Subchapter C, Chapter 142 of the Texas 
Local Government Code. 

 
Section 5. Adoption and Publication of Rules.  The Commission shall adopt Local Rules in 
accordance with this article upon approval by the City Council. 
 

 



 Page 24 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

ARTICLE 9 
Individual Vehicle Assignment Program (IVAP) 

 
Section 1. Intent. In adopting this Article, the Parties agree to implement an Individual Vehicle 
Assignment Program for the purpose of providing take-home patrol vehicles to eligible officers. 
The Parties recognize the benefits of reduced vehicle maintenance expense, reduced response 
times, crime deterrence and enhanced police presence in neighborhoods where the vehicles are 
located. 

 
Section 2. Eligibility.  

(a) For an officer to be eligible for the IVAP program, the officer must: 
1. be employed as a Temple Police Officer; 
2. have successfully completed all phases of the Field Training Program, and 
3. have been assigned a designated vehicle. 

 
(b) Except as provided by Section 5, an officer participating in the IVAP program is eligible 

to take a vehicle home, providing the officer’s residence is no more than seven (7) miles 
outside the Temple city limits.  

 
Section 3. Applicable Guidelines.  

(a) Vehicles will be assigned, when available, to new officers on the basis of their civil 
service ranking. 

(b) In addition to the eligibility standards established in Section 2, officers assigned a vehicle 
shall abide by Temple Police Department General Orders, Chapter 803, “Police 
Vehicles,” as amended. 

 
Section 4. Fee. Except as provided by Section 5, officers who are assigned a vehicle in the 
IVAP program and elect to take that vehicle home shall be assessed a fee for the use of the 
vehicle as follows: 

1. Officers residing within the city limits – no charge 
2. Officers residing outside the city limits but no more than seven (7) miles outside 

the city limits - $23/pay period 
 

Section 5. Exceptions.  
(a) Any officer who resides .5 miles or less outside the City and is assigned a vehicle that the 

officer elects to take home at the time this Agreement is adopted is exempt from the 
payment of the fees described in Section 4, unless the officer moves more than .5 miles 
outside the city limits after the effective date of this Agreement. 
 

(b) Any officer who is assigned a take home vehicle because of their assignment and who 
resides outside the city at the time this Agreement is adopted is exempt from the distance 
limitations and the payment of the fees described in this Article.  Officers who are 
assigned a take home vehicle because of their assignment after the effective date of this 
Agreement may be assessed the fees described in Section 4 as a condition for accepting 
the position. The city may impose residential distance restrictions on officers as a 



 Page 25 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

condition of eligibility for assignment to future positions in which an assigned vehicle 
and the ability to respond in a timely manner is a requirement for the position. 
 

(c) One (1) Criminal Investigation Division Supervisor and three (3) Criminal Investigation 
Division Detectives assigned by the Department Head are exempt from the distance 
limitations and the payment of fees described in this Article as follows: 
 

1. If an officer in one of the above listed positions lives more than seven (7)       
miles from the city limits, the officer may utilize an assigned vehicle and take that 
vehicle home when the officer is on-call, and the officer is exempt from the 
payment of the fees described in Section 4 for the use of the vehicle while on-call. 
 

2. Any officer who is assigned to one of the above listed positions and lives 
outside the city limits, but within seven (7) miles from the city limits and does not 
elect to take the vehicle home and pay the fees described in Section 4, may utilize 
a take-home vehicle when the officer is on-call, and the officer is exempt from the 
payment of the fees described in Section 4. 

 
Section 6. Adoption and Publication of Rules. The Department shall adopt rules in 
accordance with this article upon approval by the City Council. 

 
 



 Page 26 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

ARTICLE 10 
Disciplinary Actions and Appeals 

 
Section 1. Intent. In adopting this Article, the Parties understand and agree that most officers will 
make some errors during their career involving rule violations, including those who are good, 
professional police officers. The Parties agree that some disciplinary suspensions are for the purpose 
of reinforcing the need for compliance with Departmental standards and not necessarily as 
punishment.  
 
Section 2. Suspensions of Thirty-Six (36) Hours or Less.   
 

(a)  The Parties agree that when an officer is suspended for 36 hours or less, the officer may 
choose one of two methods of dealing with the suspensions as set out below: 

 
1. Suspensions that may not be appealed. The officer may forfeit vacation, compensatory, or 

holiday time equal to the length of the suspension, to serve the suspension with no loss of 
paid salary and no break in service for purposes of seniority, retirement, or promotion. 
The forfeited vacation, compensatory, or holiday time will not constitute hours worked. 
In the event an officer has received a disciplinary suspension within the preceding 24-
month period, the officer may only forfeit vacation, compensatory, or holiday time with 
the Department Head’s permission. The officer must agree that there is no right to appeal 
the suspension before any administrative or judicial body if this method of suspension is 
chosen, and the officer must sign a waiver of appeal. Forfeiture of vacation, 
compensatory, or holiday time will not preclude an officer from being paid overtime at 
the rate of time and a half for those overtime assignments that have been identified as 
“guaranteed overtime” assignments. 

 
2. Suspensions that may be appealed. The officer may appeal the suspension solely to the 

Civil Service Commission. If the officer chooses to appeal the suspension, the hearing 
will be conducted as set forth in Section 143.053 Texas Local Government Code.  

 
(b)  Consideration of Suspensions of 36 Hours or Less. The Parties agree that disciplinary 

suspensions of 36 hours or less that were imposed on or after the effective date of this 
Agreement will no longer be considered for purposes of transfer or promotion after 24 
months have passed from the date the suspension ended, without regard to whether the 
suspension was appealed. After the 24 months have passed, the Department Head shall notify 
the Civil Service Commission in writing. A copy of the notification document shall be 
included in the Internal Affairs Division (IAD) investigative file or the file maintained by the 
Director, whichever is appropriate, and the Department shall enter a notation reflecting this.  

 
(c) The Parties agree that the Department and the Civil Service Commission will not alter, 

destroy, conceal, or remove any documents related to the temporary suspension, including 
but not limited to the notice of temporary suspension that was filed with the Commission as 
required by Section 143.052(c) Texas Local Government Code, or the IAD investigative file 
itself. The original suspension paperwork shall still be subject to open records requests and as 
evidence to negate any civil liability claim. 

 



 Page 27 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

Section 3. Suspensions of Thirty-Seven (37) to One Hundred and Twenty (120) Hours. The 
Parties agree that, when an officer is suspended for 37 to 120 hours, the officer may choose one of 
two methods for dealing with the suspension, as set out below: 
 

1. Suspensions that may not be appealed. The Department Head may allow the officer to 
forfeit vacation, compensatory, or holiday time equal to the length of the suspension, to 
serve the suspension with no loss of paid salary and no break in service for purposes of 
seniority, retirement, or promotion. The forfeited vacation, compensatory, or holiday time 
will not constitute hours worked. Forfeiture of vacation, compensatory, or holiday time 
will not preclude an officer from being paid overtime at the rate of time and a half for 
those overtime assignments that have been identified as “guaranteed overtime” 
assignments.  Approval of the use of vacation, compensatory, or holiday time will be 
noted in the suspension paperwork. The officer must agree that there is no right to appeal 
the suspension before any administrative or judicial body if this method of suspension is 
chosen, and the officer must sign a waiver of appeal. 

 
2. Suspensions that may be appealed. The officer may appeal the suspension to the Civil 

Service Commission, or a Hearing Examiner as provided in Section 143.057 Texas Local 
Government Code.  

 
Section 4. Suspensions of One Hundred and Twenty-One (121) to Seven Hundred and Twenty 
(720) Hours. The Parties agree that, when an officer is suspended for 121 to 720 hours, one of the 
two following methods for dealing with the suspension will be used: 
 

1. Mutually Agreed. Either the Department Head or the officer facing discipline may offer 
to impose or accept a suspension without pay for a period from one hundred and twenty-
one (121) to seven hundred and twenty (720) hours. If the officer accepts the mutually 
agreed suspension, there shall be no right to appeal the suspension to any administrative 
or judicial body, and the officer must sign a waiver of appeal. It is also understood and 
agreed that, if the Department Head permits the forfeit of vacation, compensatory, or 
holiday time for suspension, said vacation, compensatory, or holiday time shall be 
considered as equal discipline to unpaid hours of suspension. In no case will sick leave be 
substituted for unpaid hours of suspension. The forfeited vacation, compensatory, or 
holiday time will not constitute hours worked. Forfeiture of vacation, compensatory, or 
holiday time will not preclude an officer from being paid overtime at the rate of time and 
a half for those overtime assignments that have been identified as “guaranteed overtime” 
assignments. 

 
2. Not Agreed. If the Department Head imposes a suspension under this section, the officer 

may appeal to the Civil Service Commission or to a Hearing Examiner as provided in 
Section 143.057 Texas Local Government Code.  

 
Section 5. Alternative Discipline by the Department Head.  
 

(a) In considering appropriate disciplinary action involving suspension of at least 37 hours, the 
Department Head may require that an officer be evaluated by a qualified professional 
designated by the Department Head. If that professional recommends a program of counseling 
and/or rehabilitation for the officer, the Department Head may, as an alternative to demotion, 



 Page 28 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

or temporary or indefinite suspension, or in combination with demotion or temporary 
suspension, require that the officer successfully complete the recommended program. The 
program of counseling and/or rehabilitation will be completed on the officer’s off-duty time, 
unless the Department Head approves the use of accrued vacation leave or sick leave. The 
officer shall be responsible for paying all costs of the program of counseling and/or 
rehabilitation which are not covered by the officer’s health insurance plan.  

 
(b) If the officer’s misconduct involves alcohol or substance abuse related behavior, the 

Department Head may require that the officer submit to mandatory alcohol or drug testing for 
a specified period of time. If the officer fails or refuses to enter into the program, or, after 
entering the program of counseling and/or rehabilitation, the officer fails or refuses to 
complete the program, or fails to submit to mandatory alcohol or drug testing, the officer may 
be indefinitely suspended for failing or refusing to complete the program, or for failing or 
refusing to submit to mandatory alcohol or drug testing.  
 

(c) The officer has the right to appeal to the Civil Service Commission or to a third party Hearing 
Examiner any discipline imposed under this section by filing an appeal notice in accordance 
with the provisions of Chapter 143.  
 

(d) On appeal, the Commission or Hearing Examiner shall have the same duties and powers set 
forth in Chapter 143, but shall not have the power to substitute a program of counseling and/or 
rehabilitation different from the program imposed by the Department Head, or to substitute 
any period of suspension for the required program of counseling and/or rehabilitation. 

 
Section 6. Alternative Discipline by Agreement 
 

(a) In considering appropriate disciplinary action, the Department Head may require that an 
officer be evaluated by a qualified professional designated by the Department Head. If that 
professional recommends a program of counseling and/or rehabilitation for the officer, the 
Department Head may offer the officer the opportunity to enter into an alternative 
disciplinary agreement under which the officer would accept demotion or a temporary 
suspension of up to seven hundred and twenty (720) hours and agree to successfully complete 
the program of counseling and/or rehabilitation recommended by the qualified professional 
designated by the Department Head. 
 

(b) The program of counseling and/or rehabilitation will be completed on the officer’s off-duty 
time, unless the Department Head approves the use of accrued vacation leave or sick leave. 
The officer shall be responsible for paying all costs of the program of counseling and/or 
rehabilitation which are not covered by the officer’s health insurance plan.  

 
(c) If the officer’s misconduct involves alcohol or substance abuse related behavior, the 

Department Head may require that the officer submit to mandatory alcohol or drug testing for 
a specified period of time. If the officer accepts the opportunity for agreed alternative 
discipline, the officer may not appeal any terms of the Agreement or the disciplinary action. 
If the officer fails to complete the program of counseling and/or rehabilitation without good 
cause, the officer may be indefinitely suspended without right of appeal regarding the 
Agreement or the disciplinary action before any administrative or judicial body.   
 



 Page 29 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

(d) In considering whether the officer had good cause for failing to complete the program, the 
Department Head will consider whether the officer was prevented from completing the 
program by circumstances not reasonably within his/her control, e.g. serious illness or death 
in the family, unavailability of the professional. 

 
Section 7. Last Chance Agreement 
 

(a) In considering appropriate disciplinary action, the Department Head may require that an 
officer be evaluated by a qualified professional designated by the Department Head. If that 
professional recommends a program of counseling and/or rehabilitation for the officer, the 
Department Head may offer the officer, as an alternative to indefinite suspension, the 
opportunity to enter into a Last Chance Agreement.  

 
(b) The Agreement may include the following provisions in addition to any other provisions 

agreed upon by the Department Head and the officer. 
 

1. The officer shall successfully complete the program of counseling and/or 
rehabilitation recommended by the qualified professional designated by the 
Department Head. 

2. The program of counseling and/or rehabilitation will be completed on the officer’s 
off-duty time, unless the Department Head approves the use of accrued vacation 
leave or sick leave. The officer shall be responsible for paying all costs of the 
program of counseling and/or rehabilitation which are not covered by the officer’s 
health insurance plan.  

3. The officer shall agree to a probationary period not to exceed one (1) year, with the 
additional requirement that if, during the probationary period, the officer commits the 
same or a similar act of misconduct, the officer will be indefinitely suspended 
without right of appeal regarding the Agreement or the disciplinary action before any 
administrative or judicial body. 

 
(c) If the officer’s misconduct involves alcohol or substance abuse related behavior, the 

Department Head may require that the officer submit to mandatory alcohol or drug testing for 
a specified period of time. If the officer accepts the opportunity for a Last Chance 
Agreement, the officer may not appeal any terms of the Agreement. Successful completion of 
a counseling and/or rehabilitation program will be specifically defined in the Agreement.  

 
(d) If the officer fails to successfully complete the agreed upon program, without good cause, the 

officer may be indefinitely suspended without right of appeal regarding the Agreement or the 
disciplinary action before any administrative or judicial body.  
 

(e) In considering whether the officer had good cause for failing to complete the program, the 
Department Head will consider whether the officer was prevented from completing the 
program by circumstances not reasonably within his/her control, e.g. serious illness or death 
in the family, unavailability of the professional. 

 
 
 
 



 Page 30 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

Section 8. Officer’s Request for Professional Evaluation 
 

(a) Prior to completion of an Internal Affairs investigation or the imposition of any discipline, 
the officer may independently request an opportunity to be evaluated by a qualified 
physician, psychiatrist or psychologist in order to seek counseling and/or rehabilitation.  

 
(b) The officer’s request will toll the 180 day deadline for imposing discipline under Section 

143.052(h) Texas Local Government Code for the duration of time required for the officer to 
be evaluated and complete any program of counseling and/or rehabilitation.  
 

(c) The officer shall be responsible for paying all costs of the program of the evaluation and 
counseling and/or rehabilitation which are not covered by the officer’s health insurance plan. 
The evaluation and the program of counseling and/or rehabilitation will be completed on the 
officer’s accrued vacation and/or sick and/or compensatory leave time.  
 

(d) If the officer has insufficient accrued vacation and/or sick and/or compensatory leave time to 
successfully complete the evaluation and any program of counseling and/or rehabilitation, the 
officer shall complete the evaluation and/or the program while on unpaid leave.  
 

(e) The Department Head may consider any counseling and/or rehabilitation voluntarily 
undertaken by an officer under this section before imposing any discipline. 

 
Section 9. Due Process – Loudermill Hearings 
 

(a) The Parties acknowledge the importance of protecting the due process rights of an officer 
facing any level of formal discipline. The essential components of due process include the 
officer’s right to have adequate notice of the allegations against him/her, the factual basis for 
the allegations, and an opportunity to be heard by the Department Head prior to the 
imposition of discipline. This process is also important to the Department Head in 
determining the nature of the alleged violations, the unique circumstances of the individual 
officer, the appropriate level of discipline, and the fairness and consistency of disciplinary 
actions throughout the Department. 

 
(b) Following completion of an Internal Affairs investigation, the Department Head shall 

conduct the following meetings: 
  

1. Initial Meeting – Delivery of Notice of Proposed Discipline: After review of the Internal 
Affairs investigation and related documents, the Department Head shall draft a Notice of 
Proposed Discipline. This document shall contain the text of any Civil Service rules, 
Departmental General Orders, City personnel policies, City ordinances, City Charter 
provisions, state or federal laws the officer is alleged to have violated, along with a 
detailed description of how the officer’s conduct violated said policies, rules or laws. Any 
documents or recordings that form the basis for the allegations shall be attached to the 
Notice as exhibits. The Notice will also state the level of discipline the Department Head 
is proposing to impose. The Notice of Proposed Discipline is not a public document, is 
not subject to an open records request and is confidential by law pursuant to section 
143.089(g) of the Texas Local Government Code. At the initial hearing, the Notice will 
be delivered to the officer. The officer’s counsel may attend this meeting. The Internal 



 Page 31 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

Affairs investigator, the officer’s supervisor and the Department’s legal advisor will also 
be present. The meeting will be recorded by the Department Head. The officer or his 
counsel may also record the meeting. If the officer appears without assistance of counsel, 
the Department Head will read the full text of the Notice aloud at the meeting. If the 
officer appears with counsel, the Notice will not be read aloud, but will be delivered to 
the officer’s counsel. After the Notice has been read, or delivered to the officer’s counsel, 
the officer will sign acknowledging receipt of the Notice of Proposed Discipline and have 
an opportunity to ask any questions. The Department Head will then schedule a date and 
time for the second meeting. The date of the second meeting will be on the 5th business 
day following the first meeting.  If any necessary party is not available to meet on the 5th 
business day, the meeting will be scheduled for the next business day when all necessary 
parties are available, provided that the second meeting must be held no later than the 8th 
business day after the first meeting. 
 

2. Second Meeting – The Officer’s Response: After a period of time during which the 
officer may review the allegations against him/her and the evidence in support of the 
allegations, the officer will have an opportunity to present his/her side of the case to the 
Department Head. The officer may present mitigating evidence, in any form, that he/she 
believes to be relevant and/or helpful to Department Head in coming to a fair and 
consistent disciplinary decision. The evidence presented by the officer, to the extent it has 
not already been publicly released or is considered ‘super-public’ pursuant to Chapter 
552 of the Texas Government Code, is not public information, not subject to an open 
records request and is confidential by law pursuant to section 143.089 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. The officer’s counsel may be present at this meeting. The Internal 
Affairs investigator, the officer’s supervisor and the Department’s legal advisor will also 
be present. The meeting will be recorded by the Department Head. The officer or his 
counsel may also record the meeting. After the officer has completed his/her presentation, 
the Department Head will schedule a date and time for the final meeting. The date of the 
final meeting will be on the 5th business day following the second meeting. If any 
necessary party is not available to meet on the 5th business day, the meeting will be 
scheduled for the next business day when all necessary parties are available, provided 
that the final meeting must be held no later than the 8th business day after the second 
meeting. 
 

3. Final Meeting – Disciplinary Decision: After review of the evidence presented by the 
officer, the Department Head shall carefully consider the allegations and the officer’s 
evidence. The purpose of the final meeting is to deliver the Department Head’s decision 
regarding the appropriate level of discipline to be imposed. If formal discipline in the 
form of a demotion, suspension or an indefinite suspension is to be imposed, the 
Department Head shall draft a Notice and Order of Demotion, Suspension or Indefinite 
Suspension, as appropriate, for delivery to the officer at this meeting. This document, 
including any supporting exhibits, is a public document and is subject to an open records 
request. Any remedial measure other than a demotion, suspension, or indefinite 
suspension imposed by the Department Head is confidential by law, pursuant to section 
143.089 of the Texas Local Government Code. The officer’s counsel may attend this 
meeting. The Internal Affairs investigator, the officer’s supervisor and the Department’s 
legal advisor will also be present. The meeting will be recorded by the Department Head. 
The officer or his counsel may also record the meeting. If the officer appears without 



 Page 32 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

assistance of counsel, and formal discipline is to be imposed, the Department Head will 
read the full text of the final Notice aloud at the meeting. If the officer appears with 
counsel, the Notice will not be read aloud, but will be delivered to the officer’s counsel. 
After the Notice has been read, or delivered to the officer’s counsel, the officer will sign 
acknowledging receipt of the Notice and Order. The officer will leave with a signed copy 
of the Notice and Order. 
 

Section 10. Texas Local Government Code, Section 143.057– Hearing Examiner Retained for 
Suspensions in Excess of Thirty-Six (36) Hours.  
 

(a) The City recognizes that during the term of this Agreement, officers have the right to an 
appeal of an indefinite suspension before a Hearing Examiner as provided in section 143.057 
of the Texas Local Government Code. During the term of this Agreement, the Parties 
specifically agree to retain this right of appeal, as modified herein, notwithstanding any 
change to section 143.057 which may occur as a result of court or legislative action. 

  
(b) It is the express intention of this provision that an officer may not appeal to a Hearing 

Examiner pursuant to section 143.057, Texas Local Government Code unless the suspension 
exceeds thirty-six (36) hours, or is an indefinite suspension, or a demotion.  

 
Section 11. Procedures for Hearings Before Commission and Hearing Examiners 
 

(a) It is expressly agreed that Commission hearings and hearings before Hearing Examiners 
under section 143.057 are informal administrative hearings and are not subject to discovery 
or evidentiary processes. Specifically, it is understood that neither the Texas Rules of 
Evidence (TRE) nor the Texas Rules of Court (TRC) apply to such hearings. 

  
(b) The burden of proof shall be by a preponderance of the evidence.  

 
(c) If the Department calls a witness to testify during a hearing and that witness has given a 

statement to Internal Affairs regarding the pending case, then the Department will supply a 
copy of that statement to the officer’s counsel at the time the witness is called to testify.  

 
Section 12. Appeal Procedures Before Hearing Examiners 
 

(a) The Parties recognize and agree that protracted, unnecessary delay of disciplinary appeals to 
third-party Hearing Examiners dilutes the primary instructive function of the underlying 
discipline.  

 
(b) The Parties agree that the following procedures are intended to promote the efficient and 

effective conclusion of such appeals. 
 

1. The Parties agree to select a third-party Hearing Examiner: 
 

a. by agreement, no later than ten (10) business days from the date the officer’s 
notice of appeal is filed with the Director of the Civil Service Commission, or 

 



 Page 33 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

b. from a list of seven (7) Hearing Examiners provided by the American 
Arbitration Association. The Director will request the list within ten (10) 
business days of receipt of the officer’s notice of appeal. The Director will 
send the list by email to the officer’s counsel and counsel for the City within 
ten (10) business days of receipt. The selection process will be completed no 
later than ten (10) business days from the date the list is received by counsel, 
using a process of alternately striking names from the list, with the officer’s 
counsel making the initial strike.  
 

2. Failure by the officer or the officer’s counsel to initiate selection of the Hearing Examiner 
by making the initial strike within ten (10) business days of receipt of the list from the 
Director shall be deemed a withdrawal of the officer’s appeal. 
 

3. The Department shall furnish the charge letter to the Hearing Examiner by delivering a 
copy far enough in advance so that the Hearing Examiner receives the copy at least five 
(5) business days prior to the start of the hearing. 

 
4. The officer may furnish a position statement to the Hearing Examiner by delivering 

copies to the Hearing Examiner and the Department far enough in advance so that the 
Hearing Examiner and the Department receive the copies at least five (5) business days 
prior to the start of the hearing.  

 
5. At the close of the presentation of evidence to the Hearing Examiner, the Hearing 

Examiner shall render a decision within thirty (30) business days. 
 

6. Post-hearing briefs shall only be allowed by mutual agreement of the Parties, and shall be 
sent simultaneously to both the Hearing Examiner and the opposing side using the same 
mutually agreed method.  

 
7. Expenses - It is agreed that the City and the officer disciplined under this Article shall 

equally share the expenses associated with a third-party Hearing Examiner. The cost of 
an expert witness or any other witness not employed by the City is to be paid by the Party 
that subpoenas that witness.  In the event a Party desires a court reporter, that Party shall 
bear 100% of that cost. In the event the officer is not a member of the Association, and 
therefore financially responsible for his/her share of any fees, the officer shall deposit 
with the Director of the Civil Service Commission his/her share of the fees three (3) days 
prior to the Hearing Examiner’s deadline to cancel. Failure to deposit the funds shall 
result in the appeal being dropped.  
 
In the event the fees for a hearing exceed the deposited amount, the non-Association 
member shall pay the remaining amount due within thirty (30) days of receipt of the bill, 
or authorize the City to deduct the amount due from his/her next four (4) paychecks.  

 
Section 13. Jurisdiction of Hearing Authority to Modify Discipline 
 

(a) In addition to the authority provided by section 143.053 Texas Local Government Code, 
the Parties agree that the Civil Service Commission, or a Hearing Examiner appointed 
pursuant to section 143.057 Texas Local Government Code and the provisions of this 



 Page 34 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

Agreement, shall have the authority to impose a disciplinary suspension of any length of 
time, including suspensions in excess of fifteen (15) days, and time already served 
between the imposition of discipline and the appeal decision.  

 
(b) It is the specific intent of the Parties to override the judicial limitation imposed on the 

authority of the Commission or Hearing Examiner by the case styled City of Waco v. 
Kelley, 309 S.W.3d 536 (Tex.2010), which restricts the jurisdiction of the hearing 
authority to imposing only indefinite suspensions, temporary suspensions of fifteen (15) 
calendar days or less, or restoring the officer’s former position.  

 
(c) It is not the intent of the Parties to modify any right or privilege of further appeal or 

appellate review that is otherwise authorized by law to review the decision of the 
Commission or Hearing Examiner. 
 

Section 14. Preemption. The provisions of this Article preempt all contrary local ordinances, 
administrative directives, legislation or rules adopted by the State or by a political subdivision, 
including a Civil Service Commission. It is the specific intent of the Parties to the Agreement that 
any express written provision that specifically provides for a procedure, standard, or practice other 
than what is provided for in Subchapter D, Chapter 143 of the Texas Local Government Code is 
intended to override the applicable statutory provision as allowed by Subchapter C, Chapter 142 of 
the Texas Local Government Code. 
 
Section 15. Adoption and Publication of Rules.  The Commission shall adopt Local Rules in 
accordance with this article upon approval by the City Council. 

 
 



 Page 35 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

ARTICLE 11 
Grievance Procedure 

 
Section 1. Intent and Scope of Procedure. The Parties acknowledge that from time to time, 
disagreements between the Parties may arise as to the application or interpretation of this Agreement. 
The Parties therefore agree that the purpose of this dispute resolution procedure is to provide a just 
and equitable method for resolving disagreements between the Parties regarding the application or 
interpretation of the provisions of this Agreement. Only matters involving the interpretation, 
application, or alleged violations of a specified provision of this Meet and Confer Agreement shall be 
subject to this dispute resolution procedure. Any matter for which the right of appeal or review is 
afforded by Chapter 143 of the Texas Local Government Code are excluded from the scope of this 
Article.  
 
Section 2. Application of Procedure 
 

(a) If the Association has a dispute with the City regarding this Agreement, the Association 
Executive Board, or the Association President’s designee, should reduce the dispute to 
writing and deliver it to the City’s designated representative, who shall be its Department 
Head or his designee. 

 
(b) A police officer may not file a request for contract dispute resolution directly with the City. 

All resolution requests must be approved and come from the Association Executive Board. 
 

(c) Each dispute shall be submitted in writing, and must include, at a minimum, the following 
information: 

1. a brief statement of the dispute, and the facts or events on which it is based; 
2. the section(s) of the Agreement alleged to have been violated; 
3. the remedy or adjustment sought, and  
4. the bargaining unit member’s signature or, if filed by the Association Executive 

Board, the signature of the Association President or his designee. 
 

(d) Any claim or dispute by a police officer or group of police officers under this Agreement 
which includes a claim for pay or benefits for any past pay periods, must be filed by the 
employee with the Association Executive Board within fifteen (15) business days of the date 
when the officer(s) knew or reasonably should have known of the claim. Disputes by the 
Association Executive Board or police officer shall proceed as follows: 

 
Step 1. An aggrieved police officer must initiate a dispute with the Association Executive Board 
within fifteen (15) business days of the date upon which the police officer knew of or reasonably 
should have known of the facts giving rise to the dispute. A copy of the notice or receipt of the 
dispute shall be forwarded to the Department Head by the Association Executive Board within three 
(3) business days of the receipt of the dispute. The Association Executive Board shall within their 
sole discretion determine if a dispute exists within fifteen (15) business days of receipt of the dispute. 
 
If the Association determines that no dispute exists, the grievance will be deemed denied, and the 
Association shall notify the Department Head in writing that no further proceedings will be 
necessary. If the Association Executive Board determines that the dispute is valid, the Association 



 Page 36 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

will notify the Department Head of such, and forward a copy of the grievance to the Department 
Head within fifteen (15) business days after their determination. 
 
Step 2. Any grievance found to be valid by the Association Executive Board shall be submitted to 
the Department Head within fifteen (15) business days of the Step 1 decision. After receipt of the 
dispute, the Department Head shall, within fifteen (15) business days, submit his/her response in 
writing to the Association Executive Board. If there is no timely reply from the Department Head, 
the grievance is deemed denied and will proceed to Step 3.  
 
Step 3. If the dispute is not resolved in Step 2, the Association Executive Board shall advance the 
dispute in writing to the City Manager or his/her designee within fifteen (15) days from receipt of the 
Step 2 decision by the Department Head. The City Manager or designated representative shall review 
the matter and render a decision in writing to the Association Executive Board and the Department 
Head within fifteen (15) business days of the receipt of the dispute in Step 3. The City Manager or 
designee may, at his/her discretion, conduct a conference to further explore the merits of the dispute 
and to explore resolution options. 
 
Step 4. If the dispute is not resolved in Step 3, either Party shall have the right to seek mediation of 
the dispute by requesting the same in writing within fifteen (15) business days from the City 
Manager’s response. The mediation will proceed before either a mediator with the Federal Mediation 
and Conciliation Service, or before a mutually agreed mediator. The mediation shall be held in 
available City of Temple facilities.  
 
Step 5. If the dispute is not resolved at Step 4, the Association Executive Board shall have fifteen 
(15) business days from the date mediation concludes to determine whether it will pursue the dispute 
under this Article through arbitration. Under this step, the Association Executive Board must deliver 
a letter indicating its election to proceed to arbitration to the Department Head and the City Manager 
within three (3) business days of that election. 
 
Section 3. Arbitration Option.   
 

(a) The Parties have agreed that all disputes under this Agreement, which concern the application 
and interpretation of this Agreement, shall be submitted to final and binding arbitration, and 
the Parties exclude from this Agreement disputes involving statutory application and 
interpretation for rights and claims not arising under sections 142 or 143 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. 

 
(b) The terms of the Agreement, and any factual issues which are determinative in applying the 

Agreement, shall be the sole province of the designated arbitrator, and his or her decision 
shall be final. However, the City will only agree to arbitration on the condition that legal 
issues which are determinative in any contract dispute are subject to judicial review. This 
represents an agreement by the Parties to submit disputes to arbitration within its scope, and 
otherwise preserves the existing jurisdiction of Texas Courts over any contract rights and 
claims not exclusively committed to arbitration.  
 

(c) The Parties have agreed that questions of law, which involve either the interpretation and 
application of state statutes or the application of legal principles from Texas appellate court 
opinions (or the failure to properly apply such legal principles or opinions) to controversies 



 Page 37 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

under this article shall be submitted initially to arbitration, but that either Party shall have a 
limited right of appeal from an arbitration award in the Courts, solely for the purpose of 
reviewing disputed issues of law. No such appeal from arbitration shall include review of any 
factual determinations by the arbitrator, including credibility of witnesses or weight of the 
evidence. If an appeal from arbitration based on erroneous application of the law is not 
successful, the appealing Party shall bear all costs of such appeal. 
 

(d) If a dispute is submitted to arbitration, within seven (7) business days, the Department Head 
and/or the City and the Association may mutually agree on the selection of an arbitrator or, if 
unable to agree, within thirty (30) days shall select an arbitrator by alternately striking names 
from the Parties’ pre-determined panel of six (6) qualified neutral arbitrators. The process 
will be as follows: the Association shall strike the first name under this article with the first 
dispute brought under this Article. Thereafter, the first strike shall alternate between the 
Parties. Should any panel member subsequently refuse or be unable to continue to serve on 
the panel, the Parties may mutually agree to his replacement. The remaining members of the 
panel will continue to serve for the duration of the Agreement. The arbitration should be held 
at the earliest available date, but may be continued for good cause shown, or upon mutual 
agreement.  
 

(e) Upon written request delivered at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the date of the 
hearing, a Party to the proceeding shall provide, no later than seven (7) days prior to the 
hearing, to the opposing Party the names and addresses of witnesses expected to be called at 
the hearing. In the absence of good or excusable cause, the arbitrator may exclude the 
testimony of a witness upon the failure of a party to disclose such a witness. The Parties, in 
writing, may request discovery from each other concerning the grievance. Should the 
opposing Party not agree to provide the requested information within seven (7) calendar days 
of the request, the request shall be deemed denied. The requesting Party may then apply to 
the arbitrator, who shall order such discovery consistent with, but not bound by, the rules of 
discovery in Texas civil cases. In considering the application, the arbitrator shall consider the 
burden and expense of producing the information, the need of the requesting Party, the 
amount of time available prior to the hearing, and such other matters as he may deem 
material. In no event shall discovery be requested within thirty-five (35) calendar days prior 
to the hearing, unless agreed to by the Parties. 

 
(f) The hearing shall be held in available facilities of the City of Temple and shall be conducted 

informally, without strict evidentiary or procedural rules. The conduct of the hearing shall be 
governed by the standard rules of the American Arbitration Association. The arbitrator shall 
consider and decide only the issue(s) in the dispute statement, or submitted in writing by 
agreement of the Parties. The hearing shall be concluded as expeditiously as possible and the 
arbitrator’s written decision shall be based on a preponderance of the evidence within thirty 
(30) days after close of the hearing, or after receipt of post-hearing briefs, if applicable. 

 
Section 4. Decision Final and Binding.  
 

(a) If arbitration is selected, the Parties specifically agree that the arbitrator’s authority shall be 
strictly limited to interpreting and applying the explicit provisions of this Agreement. The 
arbitrator shall not have authority to modify the Agreement or create additional provisions 
not included in the Agreement.  



 Page 38 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

 
(b) The Parties agree that neither the City nor the Association shall have ex parte 

communications with the arbitrator concerning any matter involved in the dispute submitted 
to the arbitrator. Each Party shall be responsible for its own expenses in preparing for and 
representing itself at arbitration, but the fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne 
equally by the Parties.  
 

(c) The written decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on both Parties and may not 
be appealed by either Party, except for any decision procured by fraud or collusion, or which 
exceeds the arbitrator’s jurisdiction, or which is based on legal conclusions or interpretations 
which are clearly contrary to existing law. 

 
Section 5. Mutual Extension. All deadlines within this article may be extended by mutual 
agreement of the Parties. 
 
Section 6. Grievances of Non-Association Members. Grievances of Non-Association members 
must follow the same procedure outlined by this article. A Non-Association member is entitled to be 
represented by counsel at the hearing at his or her own expense. However, should the grievance of a 
Non-Association member require that Association resources be used, the Non-Association member 
will be required to pay all expenses incurred while pursuing final disposition of their grievance. 
These shall include costs for payment of Arbitrator fees, counsel fees, and any other fees directly 
related to the grievance. All disciplinary appeals shall follow the procedures as outlined in chapter 
143 of the Local Government Code, or those procedures set out elsewhere in this Agreement. 
 
Section 7. Association Compliance with Agreement. If the Association fails to comply with and 
adhere to its respective obligations under this Agreement, the City shall notify, in writing, the 
Association of the alleged failure. No breach of the Agreement may be found to have occurred if the 
alleged failure by the Association is remedied within thirty (30) business days of the receipt of such 
notice. If the Association does not remedy the alleged failure within thirty (30) days of the receipt of 
such notice, the City may (i) terminate this Agreement by the delivery of written notice to the 
Association; (ii) enforce specific performance of the Agreement; and/or (iii) pursue any remedies 
available to it at law or in equity. 
 

 



 Page 39 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

ARTICLE 12 
SAVINGS CLAUSE 

 
Should any provision of this Agreement be found to be inoperative, void or invalid by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, all other provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect for the duration of this Agreement, it being the intention of the Parties that no portion of 
this Agreement or provision herein shall become inoperative or fail by reason of the invalidity of 
any other portion or provision. 
 



 Page 40 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

ARTICLE 13 
DURATION OF AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement shall become effective after ratification by the affected employees pursuant to a 
vote conducted by the Temple Police Association, and upon approval by the City Council after 
compliance with any procedural or publication requirements imposed by law.  It shall continue in 
effect until September 30, 2018; provided however, the Agreement may be extended by mutual 
consent of the Parties. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE CAUSED TO HAVE THIS AGREEMENT 
TO BE SIGNED BY THEIR DULY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES ON THIS         
____ DAY OF __________2017. 
 

 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS    TEMPLE POLICE ASSOCIATION  
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________  
Brynn Myers, Interim City Manager  Larry Wilkey, President      
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
 
 
________________________________  ________________________________  
Lacy Borgeson      City Attorney’s Office  
City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Page 41 
TTeemmppllee  MM&&CC  AAggrreeeemmeenntt  --DDrraafftt  
 

STATE OF TEXAS §  
 
COUNTY OF BELL §  
 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ___________, 2017, 
by Brynn Myers, Interim City Manager, on behalf of the City of Temple, Texas.  
 
 

________________________________  
Notary Public, State of Texas  

 
 
STATE OF TEXAS §  
 
COUNTY OF BELL §  
 
 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _________, 2017, 
by __________________, on behalf of Temple Police Association.  
 
 
 
 

________________________________  
Notary Public, State of Texas  

 
 
 
 
 



 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9590-R 
  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, RATIFYING A MEET AND CONFER AGREEMENT WITH THE 
TEMPLE POLICE ASSOCIATION; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the “meet & confer” process is governed by Chapter 142 of the Local 
Government Code - Chapter 142 allows a “police officers association” to file a petition with 
the City requesting that the City recognize the association as the sole and exclusive bargaining 
agent for all officers and adopt the meet & confer process; 
 

Whereas, the meet and confer process allows the City to meet & confer with a police 
officers association over wages, salaries, rates of pay, hours of work, or other terms and 
conditions of employment and must occur in a meeting open to the public; 

 
Whereas, the City and a police officers association are not required to reach 

agreement on any particular topic, and an agreement on any issue must be in writing and 
ratified by the Council and a majority of the police officers; 

 
Whereas, a written meet & confer agreement preempts all contrary state statutes, local 

ordinances, executive orders, civil service provisions, or rules and allows variation of civil 
service rules regarding hiring requirements, pay, benefits, promotion standards, and the 
disciplinary process; 
 

Whereas, in compliance with the terms of the fiscal year 2019 Meet and Confer 
Agreement, City Administration and Temple Police Association (“TPA”) began meeting in 
December, 2018 to adopt the ground rules and discuss any issues with the current agreement;  

Whereas, the fiscal year 2019 agreement includes articles covering the same 11 issues 
as in the fiscal year 2018 agreement:  

Association Business 
Additional Deputy Chief Position 
Military Leave Time Account 
Compensation 
Overtime 
Higher Classification Pay / Rank Structure 
Education Incentives for Promotion 
Lateral Entry Program 
Individual Vehicle Assignment Program (IVAP) 
Disciplinary Actions and Appeals 
Grievance Procedure 

 



 2 

Whereas, the fiscal year 2019 agreement included a change to Article 4 - Compensation, 
and also a change to Article 13 - Duration of the Agreement which changed the termination date 
of the agreement from September 30, 2018 to March 31, 2019;  

Whereas, in the current agreement, both Parties agreed to diligently work together to 
develop the criteria for a professionally prepared compensation study to be conducted in fiscal 
year 2019 that will include a full study of the City of Temple’s Civil Service Pay Plan structure 
including, but not limited to, an evaluation of the step system and compression between steps;  

Whereas, City Staff is diligently working to complete the civil service compensation 
study in-house and once the study is complete, members of City administration and the TPA 
negotiating teams will meet to discuss the compensation study findings and a draft agreement 
will be created for TPA and City Council consideration – the new proposedtermination date of 
September 30, 2019 will allow for the civil service pay plan structure to follow the fiscal year 
2020 budget cycle starting October 1, 2019;  

Whereas, members of City administration and the Temple Police Association (TPA) 
negotiating teams met and decided to move forward, with taking a vote to extend the current 
agreement six months to September 30, 2019; 

Whereas, a ratification election was held from March 4, 2019 to March 8, 2019 and the 
results of the meet and confer agreement extension election are as follows: 

120 – For 
8 – Against 
9 – Did not vote (results in an against vote) 

Whereas, the election to extend the termination date passed and the next step in the 
process is City Council consideration;   

Whereas, a Meet and Confer Agreement is enforceable and binding if the governing 
body of the municipality ratifies the agreement by a majority vote and the recognized police 
officers association ratifies the agreement by conducting a secret ballot election at which the 
majority of the police officers who would be covered by the agreement favored ratifying the 
agreement; 

Whereas, this Meet and Confer agreement will become effective immediately and 
continue in effect until September 30, 2019; 

 
Whereas, fiscal impact associated with the Meet and Confer Agreement for each of 

the eleven issue points is outlined in the below table and becomes effective immediately and 
continues in effect until September 30, 2019: 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

 
 
 

Issue Fiscal Impact Funded In  
FY 2019 

Article 1: Association Business 
 

Not Applicable N/A 

Article 2: Additional Deputy 
Chief Position 

Base salary plus benefits: $136,425  Yes 

Article 3: Military Leave Time 
Account 

Not Applicable N/A 

Article 4: Compensation Compensation study funded in fiscal year 
2019. 
Compensation study results would be 
implemented in fiscal year 2020. 

Yes 
 

No 

Article 5: Overtime 
 

3rd Party reimbursed overtime and 
benefits is estimated for fiscal year 19 at 
$420,000. 

Yes 

Article 6: Higher Classification / 
Rank Structure 

Step up pay: $9,784. Yes 
 

Article 7: Educational 
Incentives for Promotion 

Not Applicable N/A 

Article 8: Lateral Entry Program 
 

Not Applicable N/A 

Article 9: Individual Vehicle 
Assignment Program (IVAP) 
 

The estimated net cost based on officers 
who are currently employed by the City is 
$28,831  

Yes 

Article 10: Disciplinary Actions 
& Appeals 

Not Applicable N/A 

Article 11: Grievance Procedure 
 

Not Applicable N/A 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their 
entirety.  

 
 Part 2: The City Council ratifies a Meet and Confer Agreement with the Temple 
Police Association, as outlined in Exhibit ‘A,’ attached hereto and incorporated herein for all 
purposes.  
 



 4 

 
 
 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on the 21st day of March, 2019. 

 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              
       TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(H) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an Airport Hangar Lease Agreement 
with Kachemak Bay Flying Service, Inc. for the lease of Hangar No. 26 at the Draughon-Miller Central 
Texas Regional Airport.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY Kachemak Bay Flying Services, Inc. (KBFS) is interested in leasing Hangar No. 26 
at the Airport. KBFS plans to utilize the hangar for military training and aircraft maintenance activities. 
KBFS currently leases two other hangars and has been a long-term tenant at the Airport.  

Hangar No. 26 consists of 45,000 square feet of hangar space and 4,350 square feet of office space. 
KBFS will also have non-exclusive access to and use of the aircraft wash bays, secured gated entrance 
with guard shack, 260 auto parking spaces, aircraft parking apron, and additional paved ramp space. 

The proposed lease term is initially six months with the possibility of renewal for a multi-year term. The 
proposed rental rate is $5.00/sf annually which equals a monthly rent of $20,562.50. The lease will 
begin on April 1, 2019. KBFS has asked for a reduced rental rate of $10,281.25 for the first month and 
Staff is supportive of the request. KBFS will be responsible for all utilities necessary to operate the 
hangar.  

Staff recommends approval of the lease with KBFS. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Lease revenue for the rental of the 45,000 square feet of hangar space and 4,350 
square feet of office space to Kachemak Bay Flying Service in the amount of $113,093.75 for the initial 
six month lease term will be deposited into account 110-0000-446-3029.   

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9591-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN AIRPORT HANGAR LEASE AGREEMENT 
WITH KACHEMAK BAY FLYING SERVICE, INC., FOR LEASE OF 
HANGAR NO. 26 AT THE DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS 
REGIONAL AIRPORT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, Kachemak Bay Flying Services, Inc. (KBFS) plans to utilize Hangar No. 26 for 
military training and aircraft maintenance activities - they currently lease two other hangars and have 
been long-term tenants at the Airport; 

Whereas, Hangar No. 26 consists of 45,000 square feet of hangar space and 4,350 square feet 
of office space - KBFS will have non-exclusive access to and use of the aircraft wash bays, secured 
gated entrance with guard shack, 260 auto parking spaces, aircraft parking apron, and additional 
paved ramp space; 

 Whereas, the proposed lease term is initially six months with the possibility of renewal for a 
multi-year term - the rental rate is $5.00/sf annually, which equals a monthly rental rate of $20,562.50 
which will begin April 1, 2019; 

 Whereas, KBFS has asked for a reduced rental rate of $10,281.25 for the first month and 
Staff is supportive of the request - KBFS will be responsible for all utilities necessary to operate 
Hangar No. 26; 

 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a six-month lease agreement with Kachemak 
Bay Flying Service for lease of Hangar No. 26 at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional 
Airport; 

 Whereas, annual lease revenue for the rental of Hangar No. 26 will be deposited into Account 
No. 110-0000-446-3029;  
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, to execute a six-month lease agreement with Kachemak Bay Flying 
Service, Inc. for lease of Hangar No. 26 at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport. 
 
  



2 
 

 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Erin Smith, Assistant City Manager 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer/Interim Public Works Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract with Lone Star Grading & 
Materials, LLC of Salado, to construct roadway and sidewalk improvements on 7th Street from Avenue 
H south to the dead-end, in the amount of $344,616.16. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolutions as presented in the item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The City amended the CDBG action plan to reallocate funding for roadway and 
sidewalk improvements on 7th Street from Avenue H south to the dead-end at St. Mary’s School. 
Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, was selected to provide design and construction-phase services.    

Five bids were received on March 8th. The invitation to bid was structured with an alternate as outlined 
in the attached Bid Tabulation.   

Staff and KPA reviewed the bid results, and as stated in KPA’s attached letter, recommend award of 
the Base Bid plus Add Alternate to the lowest bidder, Lone Star Grading & Materials, LLC in the amount 
of $344,616.16. 

The time required for construction is 75 calendar days. Associated construction material testing fees 
provided by Langerman Foster Engineering Company for this project are estimated to be $10,794.  



 
 

03/21/19 
Item #6(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the contract with Lone Star Grading & Materials, LLC to construct 
roadway and sidewalk improvements on 7th Street from Avenue H south to the dead-end in the amount 
of $344,616.16 is currently available in account 260-6100-571-6317, project 102008, as follows: 
 

Project Budget  $           663,984  
Encumbered/Committed to Date                (85,710) 

Construction Award - Lone Star Grading & Materials, LLC              (344,616) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $           233,658  

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Map 
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation 
Bid Tabulation 
Resolution 
  



S. 7TH ST.

W
 
.
A

V
E

.
 
I

W
.
 
A

V
E

.
 
H

S. 9TH ST.

W
.
 
A

V
E

.
 
K

S. 7TH ST.

N

O

R

T

H

S. 9TH ST.

S. 5TH ST.

W
 
.
A

V
E

.
 
I

W
.
 
A

V
E

.
 
H

WORK AREA

LEGEND

HORIZONTAL SCALE IN FEET

50 100

P
:
\
T

e
m

p
l
e

\
2

0
1

9
\
2

0
1

9
-
1

0
3

 
7

t
h

 
S

t
r
e

e
t
\
C

A
D

\
P

L
A

N
S

\
G

E
N

-
S

H
E

E
T

S
.
d

w
g

 
 
-
 
 
P

L
A

N
 
A

R
E

A

7TH STREET ROADWAY &
SIDEWALK

IMPROVEMENTS FROM
AVE. H SOUTH TO DEAD

END (CDBG PROJECT)

EXHIBIT A - PROJECT LIMITS

MARCH 2019











1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9592-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH LONE 
STAR GRADING & MATERIALS, LLC OF SALADO, TEXAS IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $344,616.16, TO CONSTRUCT ROADWAY AND 
SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS ON 7TH STREET FROM AVENUE H 
SOUTH TO THE DEAD-END; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City amended the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Annual 
Action Plan to reallocate funding for roadway and sidewalk improvements on 7th Street from 
Avenue H south to the dead-end at St. Mary’s School - Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP, was 
selected to provide design and construction-phase services; 
 
 Whereas, five bids were received on March 8, 2019 - Staff and Kasberg, Patrick & 
Associates, LP reviewed the bid results, and recommend Council authorize a construction 
contract with Lone Star Grading & Materials, LLC of Salado, Texas in the base bid plus add 
alternate amount of $344,616.16, to construct roadway and sidewalk improvements on 7th Street 
from avenue H south to the dead-end;  

 
Whereas, funding for the construction contract is available in Account No. 260-6100-

571-6317, Project No. 102008; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, to execute a construction contract with Lone Star Grading & Materials, 
LLC, of Salado, Texas in the base bid plus add alternate amount of $344,616.16, to construct 
roadway and sidewalk improvements on 7th Street from avenue H south to the dead-end. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS  
 
 
       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   

Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract between the City of 
Temple and the Department of the Army, Corps of Engineers to reimburse the city for salary and benefit 
expenses and vehicle cost related to police patrols at Temple Lake Park from May 4, 2019, through 
September 2, 2019. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The City of Temple and the US Army Corps of Engineers have identified a need for 
increased law enforcement services for Temple Lake Park on Lake Belton during the late spring and 
summer months. This contract will provide for the city to be reimbursed for up to 504 hours of additional 
police patrols within the park and vehicle cost.  We have provided this service for the last six years that 
resulted in positive outcomes for both the City of Temple and the Corps of Engineers. 

TERM OF AGREEMENT: This contract shall commence on May 4, 2019, and end on September 2, 
2019.  

FISCAL IMPACT: Per the contract, the Department of the Army, Corps of Engineers will reimburse 
approximately $30,457 in police officer salaries and benefits, and $10,080 in vehicle costs based on 
504 hours of additional police patrols at Temple Lake Park. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9593-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF 
THE ARMY, CORPS OF ENGINEERS, TO REIMBURSE THE CITY FOR 
SALARY, BENEFIT EXPENSES, AND VEHICLE COSTS RELATED TO 
POLICE PATROLS AT TEMPLE LAKE PARK FROM MAY 4, 2019 
THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2, 2019; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, the City of Temple and the Department of the Army, Corps of Engineers have 

identified the need for increased law enforcement services at Temple Lake Park on Lake Belton 
during the late spring and summer months; 

 
 Whereas, Temple Police have provided this service for the past 6 years and it has 
resulted in positive outcomes for both the City of Temple and the Corps of Engineers – the new 
contract will begin on May 4, 2019 and end on September 2, 2019; 

 
Whereas, the Army Corps of Engineers will reimburse the City for up to 504 hours of 

additional police patrols within Temple Lake Park as well as vehicle costs; 
 
Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a contract with the Department of the 

Army, Corps of Engineers, to reimburse the City for salary and benefit expenses, and vehicle 
costs related to patrols at Temple Lake Park from May 4, 2019 through September 2, 2019;  

 
 Whereas, per the contract with the Department of the Army, the Corps of Engineers will 
reimburse approximately $30,456.72 in police officer salaries and benefits, and $10,080 in 
vehicle costs based on 504 hours of additional police patrols at Temple Lake Park; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to enter into a contract with the Department of the Army, Corps of 
Engineers for reimbursement to the City for salary, benefit expenses and vehicle costs related to 
police patrols at Temple Lake Park from May 4, 2019 through September 2, 2019. 

 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
 
       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/2019 
Item #7(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   

Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the submission of an application and 
acceptance of funding for a Victims of Crime Assistance Grant through the Criminal Justice Division of 
the Governor’s Office. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The Central Texas Council of Governments’ (CTCOG) Criminal Justice Advisory 
Committee (CJAC) will review the grant application and make their recommendations to the CJD. The 
Crisis Assistance Program would provide services to victims and survivors of crime through 
intervention, counseling, advocacy, education and information and referral 24/7 to meet the needs of 
victim and survivors as well as law enforcement by freeing them up to attend to other calls.  

The grant-funded projects must begin on or after October 1, 2019, and will be funded for two years, 
through September 30, 2021. If funding is available, we can reapply every two years. We would ask for 
services of a Licensed Professional Counselor ($49,920), General Supplies ($1,850), Emergency 
placement or shelter, clothing and transportation ($5,000), and Travel and Training ($3,000). 

FISCAL IMPACT: If awarded the grant, the City would receive $59,770 of grant funding. There is a 
match required that can be fulfilled through in-kind contributions and donations. The City’s required 
match of $14,942.50 would be met through the use of in-kind volunteer hours. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9594-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR 
A VICTIMS OF CRIME ASSISTANCE GRANT THROUGH THE CRIMINAL 
JUSTICE DIVISION OF THE GOVERNOR’S OFFICE; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
  

Whereas, the Central Texas Council of Governments’ Criminal Justice Advisory 
Committee will review all grant applications and make their recommendations to the Criminal 
Justice Division; 
 

Whereas, the Crisis Assistance Program provides services to victims and survivors of 
crime through intervention, counseling, advocacy, education and information and referral 24/7 to 
meet the needs of victim and survivors as well as law enforcement by freeing them to attend to 
other calls; 
 

Whereas, the grant-funded projects must begin on or after October 1, 2019 and will be 
funded for two years through September 30, 2021 – if funding is available, the City can reapply 
every two years; 
 
 Whereas, if awarded, the City will receive $59,770 of grant funding – the City’s required 
match can be fulfilled through in-kind contributions and donations; 
 
 Whereas, the City’s required match of $14,942.50 will be met through the use of in-kind 
volunteer hours; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents which may be necessary to apply for the 
Victims of Crime Assistance Grant and accept these grant funds. 
 

Part 3:  The City Council assures that, in the event of loss or misuse of grant funds, the 
governing body of the City of Temple, Texas will return all funds received to the Criminal 
Justice Division. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 



2 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
      
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 
___________________________    ____________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary       City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kevin Beavers, CPRP, Director of Parks & Recreation 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a one-year renewal to the lease 
between the City of Temple, City of Belton and the Secretary of the Army for the Miller Springs Nature 
Center.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY In May 2018, the City of Temple, the City of Belton, and the Secretary of the Army 
entered into a lease for the operation and maintenance of the Miller Springs Nature Center (“Nature 
Center”). The Nature Center is an approximately 258-acre scenic natural area located along the Leon 
River and 110-foot high bluffs, immediately east of Lake Belton Dam and along the boundaries of 
Temple and Belton. The land is owned by the Army Corp of Engineers. The Cities took over the 
operation and maintenance of the Nature Center in 2018 after the previous entity operating the Center 
was unable to continue.   

The lease was for an initial term of one year, but included four, one-year renewal options. As part of 
the agreement, the City of Temple is responsible for general repair and maintenance of the Nature 
Center, the City of Belton organizes volunteer efforts and events, and the Secretary of the Army shreds 
the spill way area and maintains the gate hours of operation. City Staff is interested in renewing the 
lease for an additional year. The City of Belton and the Corps are also supportive of the renewal.  

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for repair and maintenance of the Miller Springs Nature Center in the 
amount of $20,000 is appropriated in account 110-3500-552-2122.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9595-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A ONE-YEAR RENEWAL TO THE LEASE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF TEMPLE, CITY OF BELTON, AND 
THE SECRETARY OF THE ARMY FOR THE MILLER SPRINGS NATURE 
CENTER; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, in May 2018, the City of Temple, the City of Belton, and the Secretary of the 
Army entered into a lease agreement for the operation and maintenance of the Miller Springs 
Nature Center (“Nature Center”) which is an approximately 258-acre scenic natural area located 
between the Leon River and 110-foot high bluffs, immediately east of the Lake Belton Dam and 
located along the boundaries of the City of Temple and City of Belton -  the land is owned by the 
Army Corp of Engineers (“Corp”); 
 
 Whereas, the Cities took over the operation and maintenance of the Nature Center in 
2018 after the previous entity operating the center was unable to continue; 
 
 Whereas, as part of the lease agreement, the City of Temple is responsible for general 
repair and maintenance of the Nature Center, the City of Belton organizes volunteer efforts and 
events, and the Secretary of the Army shreds the spill way area and maintains the gate hours of 
operation; 
 

Whereas, the lease agreement was for an initial term of one year, but included four, one-
year renewal options - Staff is interested in renewing the lease agreement for an additional year - 
the City of Belton and the Corps are also supportive of the renewal; 
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a one-year renewal to the lease agreement 
between the City of Temple, City of Belton, and the Secretary of the Army for the Miller Springs 
Nature Center – this will be the first one-year renewal authorized under the agreement, with three 
renewals remaining; 
 
 Whereas, funding for repair and maintenance of the Miller Springs Nature Center is 
appropriated in Account No. 110-3500-552-2122; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 

 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 

to form by the City Attorney, to enter into a one-year renewal to the lease agreement between the 
City of Temple, City of Belton, and the Secretary of the Army for the Miller Springs Nature 
Center. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:   
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(M) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution granting an easement to Oncor Electric Delivery 
Company, LLC for electric utilities necessary for the construction of Crossroads Park.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The City of Temple is currently in the construction phase of Crossroads Park. The 
park includes amenities such as soccer, baseball, and softball fields, disc golf, tennis courts, and 
concession and restroom facilities. Almost all the amenities require electricity to operate. Oncor Electric 
Delivery Company, LLC (Oncor) is the local electric delivery provider. In order to deliver the needed 
electricity to Crossroads Park, Oncor is seeking an easement from the City to install, construct, operate, 
maintain, replace, repair, upgrade, and remove electrical facilities (the Facilities). Improvement and 
maintenance of the Facilities will be at the sole expense of Oncor.        

At this time, Staff is asking for authorization to grant an easement to Oncor Electric Delivery Company, 
LLC for electric utilities necessary for the construction of Crossroads Park. 

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no request for reimbursement related to this easement since the sole 
purpose of the extension by Oncor is to provide needed service for Crossroads Park. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Proposed Easement Agreement 
Easement Survey 
Resolution 



50.3200 CORPORATE ONCOR OH/UG DISTRIBUTION EASEMENT LAST REVISED 4/28/09                                                                                                                   

PT #: ____2019-0244___ 
District: _KRT /_Temple _ 
WR #:         3422729  ___ 
ER #:  _______________ 
 

 EASEMENT AND RIGHT OF WAY 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 

§  KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
COUNTY OF BELL   § 

 
That City of Temple, a Texas home rule city, hereinafter called "Grantor", whether one or 

more, for and in consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other valuable consideration to Grantor 
in hand paid by Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, 
1616 Woodall Rodgers Freeway, Dallas, Texas 75202-1234, hereinafter referred to as "Grantee", 
has granted, sold and conveyed and by these presents does grant, sell and convey unto said 
Grantee, its successors and assigns, an easement and right-of-way for overhead and/or 
underground electric supply and communications facilities, consisting of a variable number of 
wires and cables, supporting structures, surface mounted equipment, conduits and all necessary 
or desirable appurtenances over, under, through, across and upon Grantor's land described as 
follows: 
 
 SEE EXHIBIT "A" (ATTACHED) 
 

Grantor recognizes that the general course of said lines, or the metes and bounds as 
described above, is based on preliminary surveys only, and Grantor hereby agrees that the 
easement and right-of-way and its general dimensions hereby granted shall apply to the actual 
location of said lines when constructed. 

 
Together with the right of ingress and egress along and upon said easement and right-of-

way and over and across Grantor's adjoining properties for the purpose of and with the right to 
construct, maintain, operate, repair, remove, replace, reconstruct, abandon in place, and to 
change the size and capacity of said facilities; the right to relocate said facilities in the same 
relative direction of said facilities; the right to relocate said facilities in the same relative position to 
any adjacent road if and as such is widened in the future; the right to lease wire space for the 
purpose of permitting others to string or lay wire or cable along said facilities; the right to prevent 
excavation within the easement area; the right to prevent construction of, within the easement 
area, any and all buildings, structures or other obstructions which, in the sole judgment of 
Grantee, may endanger or interfere with the efficiency, safety, and/or convenient operation of said 
facilities and their appurtenances and the right to trim or remove trees or shrubbery within, but not 
limited to, said easement area, including by use of herbicides or other similar chemicals approved 
by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, to the extent in the sole judgment of Grantee, as 
may be necessary to prevent possible interference with the operation of said facilities or to remove 
possible hazard thereto. Grantor shall not make changes in grade, elevation or contour of the land 
or impound water within the easement area as described above without prior written consent of 
Grantee. 



50.3200 CORPORATE ONCOR OH/UG DISTRIBUTION EASEMENT LAST REVISED 4/28/09                                                                                                                   

Grantor reserves the right to use the land within the above described easement area for 
purposes not inconsistent with Grantee's use of such property, provided such use shall not, in the 
sole judgment of Grantee, interfere with the exercise by Grantee of the rights hereby granted. 

 
 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described easement and right-of-way unto the said 
Grantee, its successors and assigns, until all of said electric lines and facilities shall be 
abandoned, and in that event said easement and right-of-way shall cease and all rights herein 
granted shall terminate and revert to Grantor or Grantor’s heirs, successors or assigns, and legal 
representatives, to warrant and forever defend the above described easement and right-of-way 
unto Grantee, its successors and assigns, against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or 
to claim the same or any part thereof. 
 

EXECUTED  this _____ day of ___________________, A.D. 2019. 
 
 
       
      Grantor: 
 

City of Temple, a Texas home rule city 
 
By: ______________________________ 
        Timothy A. Davis, Mayor 
 
Grantee: 
 
Oncor Electric Delivery, LLC 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 
Printed Name: _____________________ 
 
Title: _____________________________ 
 
 
Attest: 
 
     ______________________________ 
        Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
     ______________________________ 
         City Attorney’s Office 

 
 
 
 
 
 



50.3200 CORPORATE ONCOR OH/UG DISTRIBUTION EASEMENT LAST REVISED 4/28/09                                                                                                                   

 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 

§ 
COUNTY OF BELL   § 
 
  BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Timothy A. Davis, as 
Mayor of the City of Temple, a Texas home rule city, known to me to be the person whose 
name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that she executed the 
same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed, in the capacity therein stated and he 
is authorized to do so. 
 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this _____ day of 
_____________________, A. D. 2019. 
 

 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
 Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

       
 









1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9596-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, GRANTING AN EASEMENT TO ONCOR ELECTRIC 
DELIVERY COMPANY, LLC FOR ELECTRIC UTILITIES NECESSARY 
FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF CROSSROADS PARK; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City is currently in the construction phase of Crossroads Park which 
includes amenities such as soccer, baseball, and softball fields, disc golf, tennis courts, and 
concession and restroom facilities; 
 
 Whereas, almost all of the amenities require electricity to operate and Oncor Electric 
Delivery Company, LLC (Oncor) is the local electric delivery provider; 
 
 Whereas, to deliver the needed electricity to Crossroads Park, Oncor is seeking an 
easement from the City to install, construct, operate, maintain, replace, repair, upgrade, and 
remove electrical facilities (the Facilities) - improvements and maintenance of the Facilities 
will be at the sole expense of Oncor; 
  
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council grant an easement to Oncor Electric Delivery 
Company, LLC for electric utilities necessary for the construction of Crossroads Park;  
 
 Whereas, there is no request for reimbursement related to this easement since the sole 
purpose of the extension by Oncor is to provide the needed service for Crossroads Park; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their 
entirety. 
 

Part 2: The City Council grants an easement to Oncor Electric Delivery Company, 
LLC for electric utilities necessary for the construction of Crossroads Park. 

 
Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval 

as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this 
easement. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(N) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Don Bond, PE, Interim Public Works Director 
Carrie Weir, Interim Utility Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an emergency construction contract for 
the repair of a 30-inch transmission main repair with McLean Construction, Inc. of Killeen in the amount 
of $49,119.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: City staff recently identified a leak in a 30-inch line on an export waterline adjacent 
to the Water Treatment Plant. Investigation by Public Works Department Staff and Kasberg, Patrick & 
Associates, LP (KPA) revealed that the leak was minor now; however, there is a risk that the leak could 
worsen causing a major issue to the City’s ability to distribute water throughout the City.  Based on the 
critical nature of this water supply main, and the need to have this repair completed prior to the peak 
water demand season, Staff proceeded with the procurement of this needed repair as an emergency.  

KPA prepared specifications for the project and four vendors who often perform utility projects for the 
City were invited to a pre-bid meeting and submit a bid for this project. As indicated in the attached 
KPA Letter of Recommendation and bid tabulation, two contractors submitted a bid for the emergency 
project in the amounts of $49,119 and $59,955.72.   

Due to the time sensitivity of this project, Staff proceeded with a contract with the low bidder, McLean 
Construction, Inc., prior to receiving Council’s approval. This process was used per the bidding 
exemption under the Local Government Code §252.022(a)(1-3), “unforeseen damage to property and 
repairs that are needed quickly to preserve the property of the City and to protect the public health and 
safety of the City’s residents”.  Staff is requesting Council’s authorization to ratify this contract.   

Per the contract, the work will be completed by April 26, 2019.  



03/21/19 
Item #7(N) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding for the emergency construction contract with McLean Construction, Inc. in 
the amount of $49,119 is available in account 520-5900-535-6357, project 102015, as follows: 

Project Budget  $         49,119 
Encumbered/Committed to Date      - 

McLean Construction, Inc. - Emergency Construction Contract     (49,119) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $        - 

ATTACHMENTS:   
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation 
Bid Tabulation 
Resolution 







1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9597-R 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, RATIFYING AN EMERGENCY CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
WITH MCLEAN CONSTRUCTION OF KILLEEN, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $49,119, FOR THE REPAIR OF A 30-INCH TRANSMISSION MAIN; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, City staff recently identified a leak in a 30-inch line on an export waterline 
adjacent to the Water Treatment Plant - investigation by Public Works Staff and Kasberg, Patrick 
& Associates, LP (KPA) revealed that the leak was minor, however, there is a risk that the leak 
could worsen causing a major issue to the City’s ability to distribute water throughout the City; 
 

Whereas, based on the critical nature of this water supply transmission main, and the 
need to have this repair completed prior to the peak water demand season, Staff proceeded with 
the procurement of this needed repair as an emergency; 

 
Whereas, KPA prepared specifications for the project and four vendors who often 

perform utility projects for the City were invited to a pre-bid meeting and to submit a bid for this 
project - two contractors submitted a bid for the emergency project in the amounts of $49,119 
and $59,955.72;   
 

Whereas, due to the time sensitivity of this project, Staff proceeded with a contract with 
the low bidder, McLean Construction, Inc., prior to receiving Council’s approval - this process 
was used per the bidding exemption under the Local Government Code §252.022(a)(1-3), 
“unforeseen damage to property and repairs that are needed quickly to preserve the property of 
the City and to protect the public health and safety of the City’s residents;” 
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council ratify an emergency construction contract with 
McLean Construction of Killeen, Texas in the amount of $49,119, for the repair of a 30-inch 
transmission main; 
 
 Whereas, funding for this emergency construction contract is available in Account No. 
520-5900-535-6357, Project No. 102015; 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 



2 
 

  
 
Part 2: The City Council ratifies an emergency construction contract with McLean 

Construction of Killeen, Texas in the amount of $49,119, for the repair of a 30-inch transmission 
main. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney  



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(O) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Don Bond, PE, Interim Public Works Director 
Carrie Weir, Interim Utility Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying a change order to an emergency 
construction contract for the repair of a 20-inch water transmission main at 909 West Park with All-Tex 
Utilities, LLC of Hillsboro, in the amount of $63,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: On February 7th Council ratified a contract with All-Tex Utilities, LLC (All-Tex) for an 
emergency repair to a 20-inch water transmission main at 909 West Park in the amount of $109,834.90.  
Due to the lead-time for All-Tex to procure the necessary parts for the emergency project, All-Tex 
commenced performance of the work the week of February 25th.   

Upon commencement of the work, it was quickly determined a fire suppression line to ER Carpenter 
was connected to the water main, and there was no way to properly make the emergency repair without 
turning off ER Carpenter’s fire suppression water supply. The connection of the fire suppression line 
was not accurately documented on the City’s utility maps. In order to make the repair to the 20-inch 
water main without turning off the water on the fire line, and to accommodate future work on water lines 
at the Park tank site, a valve needed to be added.   

Due to the time sensitivity of this project, Staff proceeded with the execution of this change order for 
the installation of a specially manufactured stop and valve as an emergency since the initial 20-inch 
water transmission main repair could not be completed without this initial work. This process was used 
per the bidding exemption under the Local Government Code §252.022(a)(1-3), “unforeseen damage 
to property and repairs that are needed quickly to preserve the property of the City and to protect the 
public health and safety of the City’s residents”. Staff is requesting Council’s authorization to ratify the 
execution of this change order.  



03/21/19 
Item #7(O) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding for the change order with All-Tex Utilities, LLC in the amount of $63,000 is 
available in account 520-5900-535-6357, project 102009, as follows: 

Project Budget  $       172,835 
Encumbered/Committed to Date  (109,835)    

Emergency Change Order – All-Tex Utilities     (63,000) 
Remaining Project Funds Available  $        - 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9598-R 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, RATIFYING A CHANGE ORDER TO AN EMERGENCY 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH ALL-TEX UTILITIES, LLC OF 
HILLSBORO, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT OF $63,000, FOR THE REPAIR OF 
A 20-INCH WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN AT 909 WEST PARK; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on February 7, 2019, Council ratified a contract with All-Tex Utilities, LLC 
(All-Tex) for an emergency repair to a 20-inch water transmission main at 909 West Park in the 
amount of $109,834.90 - due to the lead-time for All-Tex to procure the necessary parts for the 
emergency project, All-Tex commenced performance of the work the week of February 25, 
2019;  
 

Whereas, upon commencement of the work, it was quickly determined a fire suppression 
line to ER Carpenter was connected to the water main, and there was no way to properly make 
the emergency repair without turning off ER Carpenter’s fire suppression water supply - the 
connection of the fire suppression line was not accurately documented on the City’s utility maps; 

 
Whereas, in order to make the repair to the 20-inch water main without turning off the 

water on the fire line, and to accommodate future work on water lines at the West Park tank site, 
a valve needed to be added;   
 

Whereas, due to the time sensitivity of this project, Staff proceeded with the execution of 
this change order for the installation of a specially manufactured stop and valve as an emergency 
since the 20-inch water transmission main repair could not be completed without this initial 
work; 

 
Whereas, this process was used per the bidding exemption under the Local Government 

Code §252.022(a)(1-3), “unforeseen damage to property and repairs that are needed quickly to 
preserve the property of the City and to protect the public health and safety of the City’s 
residents;” 
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council ratify a change order to an emergency construction 
contract with All-Tex Utilities, LLC of Hillsboro, Texas in the amount of $63,000, for the repair 
of a 20-inch water transmission main at 909 West Park; 
 
 Whereas, funding for this change order is available in Account No. 520-5900-535-6357, 
Project No. 102009; 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
  

 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
 Part 2: The City Council ratifies a change order to an emergency construction contract 
with All-Tex Utilities, LLC of Hillsboro, Texas in the amount of $63,000, for the repair of a 20-
inch water transmission main at 909 West Park, and authorizes the City Manager or her designee, 
after approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents associated with this change 
order. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney  



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(P) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney  

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying the purchase of property situated 515 
South 18th Street in an amount not to exceed $10,500.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The property is located is in a strategic area of revitalization, in particular the 
Ferguson Park area. Staff became aware the property was listed on the March 5, 2019 delinquent tax 
sale and was able to acquire the property for $10,500. The Bell County Tax Appraisal District’s 
appraised value is 21,240. After the City receives the Sheriff’s Deed, Staff will evaluate the condition of 
the structure, along with the needs of the neighborhood, to determine the best use of the property, such 
as green space or re-build with a strategic partner.   

The Bell CAD ID number for the property is 67159. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the purchase of property situated 515 South 18th Street in an amount 
not to exceed $10,500 is appropriated in account 365-3400-531-6884, project 101234. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9599-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF PROPERTY SITUATED AT 515 SOUTH 
18TH STREET, TEMPLE, TEXAS, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $10,500; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, 515 South 18th Street (Bell CAD No. 67159) is located in a strategic area of 
revitalization, in particular the Ferguson Park area; 
 

Whereas, Staff became aware the property was listed on the March 5, 2019 delinquent 
tax sale and was able to acquire the property for $10,500 – the Bell County Tax Appraisal 
District’s appraised value is $21,240; 
 

Whereas, after the City receives the Sheriff’s Deed, Staff will evaluate the condition of 
the structure, along with the needs of the neighborhood, to determine the best use of the property, 
such as green space or re-build with a strategic partner;         
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council ratify the purchase of 515 South 18th Street, 
Temple, Texas from the March 5, 2019 Bell County Tax Appraisal District delinquent tax sale in 
an amount not to exceed $10,500; 
 
 Whereas, funding for this property purchase is appropriated in Account No. 365-3400-
531-6884, Project No. 101234; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 

Part 2: The City Council ratifies the purchase of 515 South 18th Street, Temple, Texas from 
the March 5, 2019 Bell County Tax Appraisal District delinquent tax sale in an amount not to exceed 
$10,500. 

 
 Part 3: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this purchase. 



2 
 

 
 
Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(Q) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

 Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying the conveyance of 16.659 acres of 
property from the Temple Economic Development Corporation to the City of Temple for use as public 
right-of-way. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY The Temple Economic Development Corporation (“TEDC”) owns approximately 305 
acres of property located at the southeast corner of Wendland Road and Moores Mill Road. Portions 
of this property will be conveyed to Niagara Water Bottling and East Penn Manufacturing for 
construction of their new facilities. Through the subdivision and platting process, it was discovered that 
additional property needed to be conveyed to the City for use as public right-of-way along Wendland 
Road and Moores Mill Road to ensure that the two companies had proper access to their new sites. 
On March 4, 2019, a Special Warranty Deed was executed by TEDC, as the Grantor, and the City as 
the Grantee, conveying to the City approximately 16.659 acres of property to be used for vehicular and 
pedestrian traffic.  

Staff is requesting that Council ratify the conveyance of this property and the designation of such 
property as public right-of-way.  

FISCAL IMPACT: At the present time, the property is exempt from property taxes, and it will remain so 
under the ownership of the City.  

ATTACHMENTS:  
Special Warranty Deed 
Resolution  























1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9600-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, RATIFYING THE CONVEYANCE OF APPROXIMATELY 16.659 
ACRES OF PROPERTY FROM THE TEMPLE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION TO THE CITY OF TEMPLE FOR USE AS PUBLIC RIGHT-
OF-WAY; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, the Temple Economic Development Corporation (“TEDC”) owns 

approximately 305 acres of property located at the southeast corner of Wendland Road and 
Moores Mill Road - portions of this property will be conveyed to Niagara Water Bottling and 
East Penn Manufacturing for construction of their new facilities; 

 
Whereas, through the subdivision and platting process, it was discovered that additional 

property needed to be conveyed to the City for use as public right-of-way along Wendland Road 
and Moores Mill Road to ensure that the two companies had proper access to their new sites; 

 
Whereas, on March 4, 2019, a Special Warranty Deed was executed by TEDC, as the 

Grantor, and the City as the Grantee, conveying to the City approximately 16.659 acres of 
property to be used for vehicular and pedestrian traffic; 

 
Whereas, Staff recommends Council ratify the conveyance of approximately 16.659 

acres of property from the Temple Economic Development Corporation to the City of Temple 
for use as public right-of-way;  

 
Whereas, at the present time, the property is exempt from property taxes, and it will 

remain so under the ownership of the City; and 
 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
 Part 2: The City Council ratifies the conveyance of approximately 16.659 acres of 
property from the Temple Economic Development Corporation to the City of Temple for use as 
public right-of-way. 

 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
 
       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(R) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of right-of-way and a 
temporary construction easement necessary for the Poison Oak Road Expansion Project and 
authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase in an estimated amount of $46,000. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The City is in the design phase for roadway improvements to Poison Oak Road from 
State Highway 317 to Old Waco Road. Improvements include expanding the current two-lane pavement 
section to a new four lane roadway, extending to connect to Old Waco Road, pedestrian facilities, 
drainage conveyance, utilities, street lighting, and landscaping. 

The design requires the acquisition of right-of-way from thirty-two properties. Twenty-nine of the thirty-
two properties are owned by twenty-five private citizens or entities. One right-of-way has been donated 
by Belton Independent School District. The City and the State of Texas (TxDOT) own the two remaining 
properties.   

Appraisals have been conducted on all the properties and offers have been made to those property 
owners based on the appraisals. For those properties that require relocation, Stateside Right of Way 
Services, Inc. (Stateside) has prepared and presented the necessary relocation studies. The City has 
acquired seven rights-of-way and is coordinating closing on five rights-of-way. Council authorized 
eminent domain for one property at its January 17, 2019 meeting.   

With the assistance of Stateside, the City has reached an agreement with a property owner. At this 
time, Staff is asking for authorization to purchase right-of-way and a temporary construction easement 
necessary for the Poison Oak Road Expansion Project and authorizing closing costs and associated 
with the purchase in an estimated amount of $46,000. 

The address and Bell County Appraisal District ID Number of the property is 5009 Hwy 317, #97438. 



03/21/19 
Item #7(R) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding for the purchase of right-of-way and a temporary construction easement 
necessary for the Poison Oak Road Expansion Project and authorizing closing costs associated with 
the purchase in an estimated amount of $46,000 is available in account 365-3400-531-6886, project 
101715. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9601-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF RIGHT OF WAY AND 
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT NECESSARY FOR THE 
POISON OAK ROAD EXPANSION PROJECT; AUTHORIZING CLOSING 
COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PURCHASE IN AN ESTIMATED 
AMOUNT OF $46,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City is in the design phase for roadway improvements to Poison Oak Road 
from State Highway 317 to Old Waco Road - improvements include expanding the current two-
lane pavement section to a new four-lane roadway, extending to connect to Old Waco Road, 
pedestrian facilities, drainage conveyance, utilities, street lighting, and landscaping; 
 
 Whereas, the design requires the acquisition of rights of way from thirty-two properties 
and twenty-nine of the thirty-two properties are owned by twenty-five private citizens or entities 
– one right of way has been donated by Belton Independent School District and the other two 
remaining properties are owned by the City and the State of Texas (TxDOT);   
 
 Whereas, appraisals have been conducted on all of the properties and offers have been 
made to those property owners based on the appraisals - for those properties that require 
relocation, Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc. (Stateside) is preparing the necessary relocation 
studies; 
 
 Whereas, the City has acquired seven rights of way and is coordinating closings on five 
rights of way - at its January 17, 2019, Council authorized the use of eminent domain for one 
property; 
 
 Whereas, with the assistance of Stateside, the City has reached an agreement with a 
property owner and Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of one right of way and a 
temporary construction easement necessary for the Poison Oak Road expansion project, and 
authorize closing costs in an estimated amount of $46,000 for the property addressed as 5009 
State Highway 317, Temple, Texas (Bell CAD ID No. 97438); 

 
Whereas, funding for the purchase of right of way and a temporary construction 

easement is available in Account No. 365-3400-531-6886, Project No. 101715; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 



2 
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of right of way and a temporary 
construction easement necessary for the Poison Oak Road Expansion Project, authorizes closing 
costs associated with the purchase in an estimated amount of $46,000, and authorizes the City 
Manager, or her designee, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any 
documents that may be necessary for the purchase of this property. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(S) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney  

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of two rights-of-way 
necessary for the expansion of Old Waco Road, Outer Loop Phase 6, and authorizing closing costs 
associated with the purchase in an estimated amount of $305,000 and relocation benefits associated 
with this project in estimated amount of $150,000.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The expansion of Old Waco Road, the Outer Loop, is an important north-south 
arterial that will connect the Adams Avenue growth corridor to IH 35. This phase is currently under 
design with construction planned for FY2022. At this time, it is anticipated right-of-way will be needed 
from 17 properties owned by 13 private citizens. The City purchased one property necessary in an 
arms-length transaction in December 2018 when the property was listed for sale.  

The City has contracted with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc. (Stateside) to assist with acquisition 
and relocation services for this project. Because two owners of five of the needed rights-of-way are 
also impacted by the Charter Oak Water Line Project, Staff decided it was in both the owners and City’s 
interest to acquire the needed interests at the same time. With the assistance of Stateside, appraisals 
and relocation studies were conducted for the impacted properties.   

Offers were made to the two owners based on the appraisals and relocation studies presented to the 
owners and tenants. After negotiations, and with the assistance of Stateside, the City has reached an 
agreement with one of the property owners. Negotiations continue with the remaining property owner. 
The tenants on both properties have begun the relocation process.  

At this time, Staff is asking for authorization to purchase two rights-of-way necessary for the expansion 
of Old Waco Road, Outer Loop Phase 6, and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase in 
an estimated amount of $305,000 and relocation benefits associated with this project in estimated 
amount of $150,000. 

The rights-of-way to be acquired are addressed as 4322 and 4306 Charter Oak Drive and have the 
following Bell CAD Id numbers: 84 and 85. 



03/21/19 
Item #7(S) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the purchase of two rights-of-way necessary for the expansion of Old 
Waco Road, Outer Loop Phase 6, and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase in an 
estimated amount of $305,000 and relocation benefits associated with this project in estimated amount 
of $150,000 for a total of $455,000 is available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, Line 
320, account 795-9600-531-6557, project 101585 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9602-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF TWO RIGHTS OF WAY 
NECESSARY FOR THE EXPANSION OF OLD WACO ROAD, OUTER 
LOOP PHASE 6; AUTHORIZING CLOSING COSTS AND RELOCATION 
BENEFITS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PURCHASES IN A TOTAL 
ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $455,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the expansion of Old Waco Road, the Outer Loop, is an important north-south 
arterial that will connect the Adams Avenue growth corridor to IH 35 - this phase is currently 
under design with construction planned for fiscal year 2022; 
 
 Whereas, it is anticipated that right of way will be needed from seventeen properties 
owned by thirteen private citizens - the City purchased one property necessary in an arms-length 
transaction in December 2018 when the property was listed for sale; 
 
 Whereas, the City has contracted with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc. (Stateside) 
to assist with acquisition and relocation services for this project - because two owners of five of 
the needed rights of way are also impacted by the Charter Oak Water Line Project, Staff decided 
that it was in both the owners’ and City’s interest to acquire the needed rights of way at the same 
time; 
 
 Whereas, with the assistance of Stateside, appraisals and relocation studies were 
conducted for the impacted properties and offers were made to the two owners based on the 
appraisals and relocation studies presented to the owners and tenants - after negotiations, and 
with the assistance of Stateside, the City has reached an agreement with one of the property 
owners; 
 
 Whereas, negotiations continue with the remaining property owner - the tenants on both 
properties have begun the relocation process;  
 
 Whereas, at this time, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of two rights of 
way necessary for the expansion of Old Waco Road, Outer Loop Phase 6, authorize closing costs 
associated with the purchase in an estimated amount of $305,000, and authorize relocation 
benefits associated with this project in estimated amount of $150,000; 
 
 Whereas, the property addresses are: 
 

• 4322 Charter Oak Drive, Temple, Texas, Bell CAD ID No. 84 
• 4306 Charter Oak Drive, Temple, Texas, Bell CAD ID No. 85; 

 
Whereas, funding for the purchase of two rights of way is available in the Reinvestment 

Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, Line 320, Account No. 795-9600-531-6557, Project No. 101585; 
and  



2 
 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 

Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of two rights of way necessary for the 
expansion of Old Waco Road, Outer Loop Phase 6, authorizes closing costs and relocation 
benefits associated with the purchases in a total estimated amount of $455,000, and authorizes 
the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any 
documents that may be necessary for the purchase of these properties. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

03/21/19 
Item #7(T) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  SECOND READING – FINAL HEARING – FY-19-4-ZC: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing the rezoning of 86.91 +/- acres, situated in the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract 
692, and located at the intersection of FM 93 and Southwood Drive from Agricultural district to Planned 
Development Agricultural, with a required site/development plan. 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At its February 4, 2019, meeting the 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted 4/1(Commissioner Jeanes) to recommend approval of the 
requested rezoning from Agricultural (AG) district to Planned Development Agricultural (PD-AG) district 
and its site/development plan, per Staff’s recommendation.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the requested rezoning from Agricultural 
(AG) District to Planned Development Agricultural (PD-AG) District for the following reasons: 

1. Compliance with the Future Land Use Plan;
2. Compliance with surrounding zoning and land uses; and
3. Compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan

And with the following conditions: 
1. Development will be subject to the Planned Development Site Plan;
2. Development will also be subject to all Unified Development Code (UDC) platting

requirements during the platting process;
3. Single Family Residential House Development Only
4. Minimum lot size is 0.75 acre;
5. Minimum front yard setback is 25 feet;
6. Side street building line is 15 feet;
7. Side building line is 7.5 feet;
8. Rear building line is 10 feet;
9. Sewer will be provided by on-site sewage facilities;
10. One 2-inch caliper (Diameter at Breast Height) canopy tree to be planted in the front yard

of every lot. Species shall conform to the approved City of Temple Tree list, per the Unified
Development Code (UDC);

11. A fence along FM 93 shall be a wood fence with masonry columns; and
12. No on-street parking is allowed due to the proposed 22-foot wide streets



03/21/19 
Item #7(T) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

ITEM SUMMARY: The applicant requests a rezoning from Agricultural District (AG) to Planned 
Development Agricultural District (PD-AG) to allow a 78-lot single family residential development 
consisting of lot sizes with a minimum lot area of 0.75 acres. Larger residential lots range from one acre 
to 2.89 acres along the property’s south and east boundaries. In addition to detached single-family 
homes, the current AG zoning would allow manufactured housing with screening per Sec. 5.3.2 of the 
UDC on minimum lot sizes of one acre. 

Development will be according to the proposed accompanying site/development plan. The 
development site plan reflects the creation of new local streets, as well as detention tracts for drainage. 

The property to the west in Valley Ranch along Sun Valley Drive is subdivided into half-acre lots, and 
zoned PD Urban Estates. And to the east on Boutwell Drive, in the ETJ, homes are located on larger 
lots. A creek and a vegetation buffer separates the subject property from the homes along Boutwell 
Drive. An existing home to the south along Forrester Road, and south of the electrical sub-station is 
also on a large property.   

Several property owners spoke out against the applicant’s requested rezoning during the public hearing 
at the Planning and Zoning Commission on February 4, 2019. Due to overwhelming opposition to the 
25-foot trail easement along the property’s east boundary along Friar’s Creek and the small likelihood
that the City would ever build a trail at that location, staff has withdrawn the trail easement on the
site/development plan from the recommended conditions for the proposed Planned Development. And
the applicant has submitted the attached revised site/development plan without the trail easement, but
with a second entrance along West FM 93.

Planned Development: UDC Section 3.4.1 defines a Planned Development as: 

“A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique development proposals, special design 
considerations and land use transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships to surrounding 
areas through development plan approval.”  

As a Planned Development, a site/development plan is subject to review and approval as part of the 
rezoning. As opposed to a standard rezoning, conditions of approval can be included into the rezoning 
Ordinance. The applicant has provided a site/development plan with this rezoning request.   

Per UDC Section 3.4.2C, the City Council may include additional conditions of approval into the 
rezoning ordinance. 

In approving a Planned Development, the City Council may require additional standards deemed 
necessary to create a reasonable transition to, and protection of, adjacent property and public areas, 
including but not limited to, access and circulations, signs, parking, building design, location and height, 
light and air, orientation, building coverage, outdoor lighting, landscaping, homeowners or property 
owners associations, open space, topography and screening. 

The proposed Planned Development’s “base” AG zoning district permits single-family detached 
residences and related accessory uses and accommodates large lot single-family residential 
developments.   



03/21/19 
Item #7(T) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 

Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
The north portion of the subject property along FM 93 is within the Suburban Residential character 
district of the Choices ’08 City of Temple Comprehensive Plan. The Suburban Residential land use 
classification is characterized by mid-size single family lots, allowing for greater separation between 
dwellings and more emphasis on green space versus streets and driveways than more dense 
subdivisions of urban character. The applicant’s requested Planned Development Agricultural 
District (PD-AG) complies with the Suburban Residential character district. 

The south portion of the subject property is within the Agricultural / Rural character district of the 
Choices ’08 City of Temple Comprehensive Plan. The applicant’s requested Planned Development 
Agricultural District (PD-AG) is compatible with the existing residential developments adjacent 
to the subject property. The Agricultural / Rural character district designation applies to all areas 
outside the city limits. 

Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) and Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalk Ordinance 
The subject property fronts FM 93, a major arterial. Southwood Drive bisects the subject property at 
FM 93 and runs south to a cul-de-sac for the existing electrical substation at the south property line.   

FM 93 is only appropriate as a subdivision entrance. Future homes will be prohibited from backing 
into FM 93 or accessing it directly. The proposed local streets within the subject property, 
shown on the attached Planned Development Site Plan, are ideal for residential dwellings. The 
proposed Planned Development Site Plan reflects two new ingress/egress points into the development 
along FM 93 from new proposed roads. The applicant proposes removing the existing Southwood Drive 
to allow the creation of larger residential lots along the property’s western border along the Valley Ranch 
development. 

The Temple Trails Master Plan recommends a trail along the subject property’s eastern 
boundary along the creek. City staff will evaluate other options to provide trail connectivity in 
this area in the future. 

Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Existing water lines are located along the property’s frontage along the south right-of-way of FM and 
within the Valley Ranch subdivision to the west. Existing sewer facilities are located to the west, within 
the adjacent Valley Ranch subdivision. 

Proposed water and on-site sewerage facilities, as well as proposed drainage will be addressed 
during the platting process.   

PUBLIC NOTICE: Twenty notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent 
out to all City of Temple property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State 
law and City Ordinance. As of Monday, February 25, 2019, no notices were returned in favor of the 
proposed rezoning and two notices were received in opposition to the proposed rezoning. 



03/21/19 
Item #7(T) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

Five courtesy notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent to property 
owners in the extra-territorial jurisdiction within 200-feet of the subject property. 

The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on January 24, 2019, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Maps 
Development Regulation Tables 
Notification Response Letters 
P&Z Commission Minutes Excerpts  
Site/Development Plan 
Ordinance  



 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: 
The following table shows the subject property, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

Subject 
Property AG 

Undeveloped 
Property 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
East 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No 
Zoning 
(ETJ) 

Agricultural / 
Rural 
Residential/ 
Estate Homes   

 

 

Creek – Boutwell Road View 

FM 93 



Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 
 
 
East 

 

West PD-UE Single Family 
Residential 

 

 

Boutwell Road 

FM 93 



Direction Zoning 
Current Land 

Use Photo 

South 
No 
Zoning 
(ETJ)  

Agricultural/ 
Rural 
Residential 

 

 

North AG & 
PD-GR 

 
Agricultural 
and 
Undeveloped 
Land (future 
apartments) 
 

 
 

Southwood Drive Cul-De-Sac 

FM 93 



 

 



 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Standards for the AG district are:  
 
 

 AG  
Minimum Lot Size 1 Acre 
Minimum Lot Width 100 Feet 
Minimum Lot Depth 150 Feet 
Front Setback 50 Feet 
Side Setback 15 Feet 
Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 
Rear Setback 10 Feet 
Max Building Height  3 Stories  

 
 
 
 



 
Although the property is anticipated for development of detached single family residential dwellings, 
there are a number of other uses allowed in the AG district which, include but are not limited to: 
 

Permitted & Conditional Use Table – Agricultural (AG) 
Agricultural Uses * Farm, Ranch or Orchard 

Residential Uses 
* Single Family Residence (Detached Only)                                                                
*  Industrialized Housing                                                      
* HUD-Code Manufactured Home 

Retail & Service Uses * None 

Commercial Uses *  None 

Industrial Uses * Temporary Asphalt & Concrete Batching Plat (CUP)                                                                                                       

Recreational Uses * Park or Playground                                                             

Educational & 
Institutional Uses 

* Cemetery, Crematorium or Mausoleum (CUP)                                                           
* Place of Worship 
* Child Care: Group Day Care (CUP)                                                                                                                                          
* Social Service Center (CUP) 

Restaurant Uses * None 
Overnight Accommodations * None 

Transportation Uses * Railroad Track Right-of-Way                                             
 
Prohibited uses include most commercial uses and industrial uses.  
 
 

 Surrounding Property & Uses  

Direction Future Land Use Map Zoning Current Land Use 

Site 

Suburban Residential And 
 Agricultural/Rural 

Residential  AG Undeveloped Land 

North Suburban Commercial PD-GR 

Planned Development for 
Convenience Store, 

Single Family Residential, 
and Apartments 

South 
Agricultural/Rural Residential 

(ETJ) 
  No Zoning 
     (ETJ)  

Agricultural / Rural 
Residential / Estate 

Homes 

East Agricultural/Rural Residential 
                   (ETJ) 

No Zoning 
(ETJ) 

Agricultural / Rural 
Residential / Estate 

Homes 

West Suburban Residential PD-UE Single-Family Residential 



 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following 
goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
: 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map Partial 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should 
be consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks 
Ordinance YES 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
 







 

1 
 

EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2019 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 2:  FY-19-4-ZC – Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action on a rezoning 

with a site/development plan from Agricultural (AG) district to Planned Development 
Agricultural (PD-AG) district, on 86.91 +/- acres, situated in the Redding Roberts 
Survey, Abstract 692, Bell County, Texas, located at the intersection of FM 93 and 
Southwood Drive.  

Ms. Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner, stated this rezoning is scheduled to go forward to City 
Council for first reading on March 7, 2019 and second reading on March 21, 2019. 

Subject property aerial map shown. 

Applicant requests rezoning to allow for a 78-lot single-family residential development with 
septic system. Developer proposes to build a fence with stone columns along the FM 93 
frontage on the property line to the south of the tree line which is in the Texas Department of 
Transportation (TXDOT) right of way (ROW). 

Zoning map is shown and is found in compliance. 

The Future Land Use Map is shown and is found in compliance. The Suburban Residential 
zoning district is characterized by mid-size single family lots, allowing for greater separation 
between dwellings and more emphasis on green space.  The Agricultural Rural zoning district 
is characterized by rural properties, zoning of newly annexed tracts.  

The Thoroughfare Map and Trails Plan is shown and is found in compliance. 

The existing water and sewer map is shown and found in partial compliance.  Water exists 
along South FM 93 ROW and applicant proposes a septic system as no sewer exists on site. 

On-site and surrounding property photos are shown. 

Development regulations and standards for the Agricultural (AG) District are shown.  Applicant 
proposes minimum lot size of 0.75 acres with larger residential lots ranging from one acre to 
2.89 acres along the east and south boundaries. 

Agricultural permitted and conditional use table is shown. 

Planned Development (PD) site plan is shown. 

A larger version of the PD site plan is shown exhibiting the alternate entrance and a 25-foot 
trail easement.  Ms. Lyerly stated that applicant proposes the rural local street size with the 
condition that no parking in the streets is allowed with posted signage. 



 

2 
 

Compliance Summary chart is shown, and all criteria are found to be in compliance with the 
exception of public facilities available in partial compliance. 

Twenty notices were mailed in accordance withal state and local regulations with zero notices 
returned in agreement and two notices returned in disagreement.  Five courtesy notices were 
mailed to the extra-territorial jurisdiction (ETJ) properties within 200 feet. 

Staff recommends approval of a rezoning from AG to PD-AG and the site/development plan 
with the following conditions: 

1. Development will be subject to the PD site plan; 

2. Development will also be subject to all Unified Development Code (UDC) platting 
requirements during the platting process; 

3. Single Family Residential House Development only 

4. Minimum lot size is 0.75 acre; 

5. Minimum front yard setback is 25-feet; 

6. Side street building line is 15-feet; 

7. Side building line is 7.5-feet; 

8. Rear building line is 10 feet; 

9. Sewer will be provided by on-site sewage facilities; 

10. One two-inch caliper (diameter at breast height) canopy tree to be planted in the front 
yard of every lot.  Species shall conform to the approved City of Temple Tree list, per 
the UDC; 

11. A fence along FM 93 shall be a wood fence with masonry columns; 

12. No on-street parking is allowed due to the proposed 22-foot wide streets; and 

13. A 25-foot wide trail easement along the creek is on the site-development plan for 
compliance with the Temple Trails Master Plan. 

Chair Langley opened the public hearing. 

Ms. Laurissa Dodson, 6917 Sun Valley Drive, Temple, Texas, requested to add her response 
as in disagreement to this rezoning.  Ms. Dodson questioned the removal of the tree row that 
provides a barrier to Valley Ranch and also the tree barrier on Boutwell Street.  Ms. Dodson 
requested the tree lines remain due to the power poles in the neighborhood’s back yards to 
allow access for the power trucks to work on these power lines.   

Ms. Dodson stated there is a “big, old hole” at the main entrance of the Valley Ranch water 
system because they have problems with the water flow and added that during heavy 
downpours of rain, the creek floods and destroys residents’ yards. Ms. Dodson feels this is due 



 

3 
 

to the excess housing developments being built with the water runoff not being properly 
distributed.   

Ms. Dodson commented this proposed development will disturb Mother Nature and the natural 
wildlife that lives there.   

Ms. Dodson stated that Temple School District is landlocked from building any new schools, so 
additional children from this proposed subdivision would be required to go to Belton, Rogers, 
Academy, or Holland schools. 

Ms. Dodson stated Temple is not building any new businesses and is not bringing in any new 
jobs, so she cannot see building 200 houses when there are no jobs for people to pay for 
these houses.  

Ms. Lyerly clarified that this development only proposes 78 lots. 

Mr. Bill DiGaetano, 2715 Forrester, Temple, Texas, stated he appreciated Mr. Wall’s changes 
from the 200-plus lots to what is proposed today; however, he still feels there are critical issues 
regardless of the number of lots.   

Mr. DiGaetano is concerned about the traffic congestion, drainage issues, and the 
environmental impact on this beautiful creek.  The intersection of 31st Street and Highway 93 
remains a critical safety issue that is dangerous and includes gravel trucks coming through 
their neighborhood from Interstate Highway 35.   

As Mr. DiGaetano previously reported in April 11, 2017, after one day of rain (2.9 inches) the 
creek came out of the banks from 12 to 20 feet high which would flood these proposed septic 
systems.  In his opinion it is a location that should remain something else. 

Mr. Scott Thomas, 3352 Forrester, Temple, Texas asked for clarification regarding setbacks 
and easements and appreciated the lesser density for this proposed subdivision.   

Mr. Thomas discussed the Oncor easement and flood plain on the map.   

The no parking on the street would be difficult to enforce.   

Mr. Thomas echoed the same concerns regarding safety, drainage, and runoff and would also 
like to see the trees preserved for a visual sound and light buffer. 

Ms. Lyerly stated in response that the rural street size width is 22-feet and a local street in the 
City of Temple is 31-feet.    Mr. Thomas asked if the Valley Ranch subdivision has 31-foot 
width streets.  Ms. Lyerly stated she would have to check but believes it is rural street size. 

Mr. Thomas stated that he feels there should be continuity between subdivisions, so there is 
not a market reduction or market change. 

Mr. Brian Chandler, Director of Planning, stated the rural local street classification is normally 
addressed during the platting process.  This street design is also a lay-down curb, not a raised 
curb, and the rural local street classification is consistent with other local areas allowed in 
recent years.   



 

4 
 

Oncor representative, Mr. Casey Simpson, 308 South 7th Street, Temple, Texas, stated that 
Oncor has no objections with the zoning change, but has some issues with the PD site plan as 
submitted.  Oncor is currently working with the developer and his civil engineer on these 
issues. 

Mr. Chandler clarified that the site plan is part of the zoning request because it is a PD; 
however, conditions can be added.  Examples of conditions that could be added are working 
with Oncor to ensure it meets specific needs or specific dimensions for the access that 
recommend the site plan is adjusted accordingly. 

Ms. Dodson pointed out areas on the site plan she would like to see left undeveloped and 
suggested building in the center area only to meet Oncor needs and also provide a buffer.  Ms. 
Dodson asked Mr. Wall if there would be a Home Owners Association for this subdivision. 

Mr. Lee Hubbard, 6920 Boutwell Drive, Temple, Texas, stated the 25-foot wide walkway is 
ridiculous and asked Planning and Zoning not to approve this request. Mr. Hubbard is 
concerned about drug paraphernalia that has already been found in this area and this will 
result in a “Drug Addict Super Bowl” in the timber.   Mr. Hubbard requested the walkway be 
stricken from the proposed development, and if not removed, he is totally against this 
proposed subdivision.  

Mr. Hubbard is also concerned about the septic system and feels 78-lots will eat up 35.8 acres 
of land for sewer under the 78 houses.  He feels this will be a problem and would prefer using 
the sewer system from Taylor’s Valley. 

Ms. Lyerly clarified the 25-foot width is for a trail easement, not a 25-foot wide sidewalk.  

Mr. Hubbard stated that a 25-foot walkway could be put in anywhere in that easement. 

Mr. Chandler explained this trail easement was a staff recommendation and the developer 
does not plan to build a trail. It was included to meet the City’s Trail Master Plan and is 
consistent to the trail masterplan in other developments. There are no funds allotted to build a 
trail at this time and, if built in the future, it would be a City-funded trail that would include 
public input.  At this time, it is only a public trail easement that the City has requested.  The 
Planning and Zoning Commission could recommend that the 25-foot trail easement condition 
be removed. 

Mr. Chandler added that a public easement could be used by anyone, but it would not be 
labeled and unless following the plat the public would be unaware of it.  He also stated this 
condition is for the P&Z Commission and City Council to consider.  The staff has a 
responsibility to implement the City’s Trail Master Plan. 

Mr. Hubbard stated he hoped the P&Z Commission and City Council would throw this 
easement out due to the drug issues in our country at this time.  Ms. Debbie Shine, 3018 
Forrester Road, is concerned about the flooding and erosion already being experiencing in the 
area.  Ms. Shine looks to the P&Z Commission for the City’s future and as more developments 
are built, residents will experience more flooding.  She stated the creek has at times become a 
rushing river and has washed out the bridge and water line.  The bridge was recently repaired 
as it pulled away from the road.   



 

5 
 

The residents are currently losing acreage and heritage trees every time it rains.  Ms. Shine 
asked the Commissioner to please consider how this is affecting the residents downstream.   

The traffic issue is a problem and difficult to prevent head-on-collisions.   

Ms. Shine also expressed her opposition to the trail easement due to safety reasons and 
asked the P&Z to please consider the “bigger picture” for those in South Temple.   

Ms. Shine thanked Mr. Wall for adjusting the density. 

There being no further speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Fettig asked Mr. Simpson, Oncor representative, to return to the podium and 
asked for clarification regarding solutions for the Oncor issues. 

Mr. Simpson stated Oncor officials have met with the developer and his civil engineer and 
worked out agreements that Oncor can move forward with.  These agreements involve access 
to the station and preferred a straighter route into the substation property.   

Commissioner Fettig asked Mr. Simpson if there were issues with pole accessibility to that 
area. 

Mr. Simpson stated that they have methods other than the use of large trucks to repair those 
lines and poles. 

Chair Langley reopened the public hearing. 

Ms. Dodson commented Oncor will damage her yard and fence to order to repair the poles.  

Ms. Dodson would like the tree line access to remain, to have the easement access condition 
removed, and the number of houses to be reduced further. 

Ms. Lyerly confirmed the Valley Ranch plat was approved with a utility easement in her 
backyard for access. Ms. Dodson responded that she was aware of that, but does not want Mr. 
Wall to build houses up to her fence.  There being no further speakers, the public hearing was 
closed. 

Commissioner Castillo made a motion to approve Item 2, FY-19-4-ZC, per Staff 
recommendation. 

Chair Langley requested an alternative motion since the motion of the floor did not receive a 
second. 

Ms. Kayla Landeros, City Attorney, stated the motion can be amended.  If a motion is made to 
amend the motion, then a vote on the amendment to adopt it is made and then start over.   

Commissioner Fettig asked if there is no second to the motion on the floor, what is the 
alternative? 

Ms. Landeros stated then the motion fails. If there is not another motion made, there is no 
recommendation from the P&Z Commission to send to City Council.   



 

6 
 

Ms. Landeros explained that the trail easement is Staff’s due diligence to try to implement the 
Trails Master Plan to make sure there is connectivity. However, the Commission may remove 
that condition if desired.   

Ms. Landeros stated the AG zoning district allows minimum one-acre lots and allows single-
family housing; but also allows HUD code manufactured housing.  The property 
owner/developer could plat this property tomorrow with the AG zoning in placed and build 
single-family housing as well as manufactured housing with septic.  If the property 
owner/developer does not request exceptions, that plat may never be seen by City Council.   

Ms. Landeros understands there are concerns with this proposal, but with the current zoning it 
can be platted with several lots and several homes with septic.  This proposal reduces the 
number of lots than previously seen and provides favorable conditions, such as fencing.  The 
overall point is there could be less desirable developments on this property than what is being 
proposed today. This proposal is compatible with Valley Ranch with larger lots than the 
subdivision proposed across the street. The developer and staff have worked together to get 
the lot sizes as large as possible.  There is a motion on the floor, but someone can move to 
amend the motion to change any of the conditions. 

Commissioner Alaniz seconded the motion on the floor. 

Motion passed: (4:1) 
Vice-Chair Ward, Commissioners Armstrong, Wright, and Marshall absent.  
 
 



DRAWING STATUS

VALOR ESTATES
NEW RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

1

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

WEST F. M. ROAD 93

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS:

LEGEND

EASEMENTS AND BUILDING LINES
(UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

DEVELOPMENT STATISTICS

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
127.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE DRAWINGS WERE PREPARED UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF JUSTIN B. FULLER P.E. 100183, CLARK & FULLER, PLLC FIRM NO: F-10384.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR REVIEW THIS DOCUMENT IS RELEASED FOR THE PURPOSES OF INTERIM REVIEW ONLY AS PER DATE ON DRAWING. IT IS NOT TO BE USED FOR BIDDING OR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES. ONLY DRAWINGS ISSUED "FOR CONSTRUCTION" CAN BE CONSIDERED COMPLETE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CONSTRUCTION FINAL DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUSTIN B. FULLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
100183

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plot Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project No

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drafted

AutoCAD SHX Text
Designed

AutoCAD SHX Text
ECB

AutoCAD SHX Text
171724.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
JBF

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-25-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPLE, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
240

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRYERS CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ELECTRICAL SUBSTATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL HOUSE SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL HOUSE DEVELOPMENT ONLY. 2. ONE 2" CALIPER (AT BREAST HEIGHT) CANOPY TREE TO BE PLANTED IN THE FRONT YARD OF EVERY LOT.  SPECIES SHALL CONFORM TO THE APPROVED CITY OF TEMPLE TREE LIST. 3.  FENCE ALONG FM 93 SHALL BE A WOOD FENCE ALONG FM 93 SHALL BE A WOOD FENCE WITH MASONRY COLUMNS. 4. NO PARKING ON STREETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT BUILDING LINE = 25' = 25' 25' SIDE STREET BUILDING LINE = 15' = 15' 15' SIDE BUILDING LINES = 7.5' = 7.5' 7.5' REAR BUILDING LINE = 10' = 10' 10' 20' PUE & DE ALONG ALL ROAD FRONTAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD FLOODWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEMA SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW DETENTION AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS = 78 = 78 78 MINIMUM LOT SIZE = 0.75 ACRE= 0.75 ACRE0.75 ACRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W. (22' PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W. (22' PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W. (22' PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W. (22' PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W. (24' PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W. (22' PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W. (22' PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' R.O.W. (22' PAVEMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-25-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' U.E. & 25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONCOR ELECTRIC EASEMENT



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-4957 
(FY-19-4-ZC) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL ZONING 
DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AGRICULTURAL ZONING 
DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 86.91 ACRES SITUATED IN THE REDDING 
ROBERTS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 692, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, LOCATED 
SOUTHEAST OF FM 93 AND SOUTHWOOD DRIVE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, the applicant requests rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to Planned 
Development-Agricultural zoning district to allow a 78-lot, single family residential development 
consisting of lot sizes with minimum lot area of 0.75 acres, and larger residential lots ranging from 
one acre to 2.89 acres along the property’s south and east boundaries; 

 
Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 

consideration of the conditions, recommends approval of the rezoning from Agricultural zoning 
district to Planned Development-Agricultural zoning district, on approximately 86.91 acres, situated 
in the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract 692, Bell County, Texas, with the following conditions: 

 
1. Development will be subject to the Planned Development Site Plan; 
2. Development will also be subject to all Unified Development Code (UDC) platting 

requirements during the platting process; 
3. Single Family Residential House Development only; 
4. Minimum lot size is 0.75 acre; 
5. Minimum front yard setback is 25 feet; 
6. Side street building line is 15 feet; 
7. Side building line is 7.5 feet; 
8. Rear building line is 10 feet; 
9. Sewer will be provided by on-site sewage facilities; 

10. One 2-inch caliper (diameter at breast height) canopy tree to be planted in the front yard 
of every lot and the species shall conform to the approved City of Temple Tree list, per 
the UDC;  

11. A fence along FM 93 shall be a wood fence with masonry columns;  
12. No on-street parking is allowed due to the proposed 22-foot wide streets; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved and 
incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety.   



2 
 

 
 

Part 2: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to Planned 
Development-Agricultural zoning district, on approximately 86.91 acres, situated in the Redding 
Roberts Survey, Abstract 692, Bell County, Texas, located southeast of FM 93 and Southwood 
Drive, Temple, Texas, as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof 
for all purposes, and subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. Development will be subject to the Planned Development Site Plan; 
2. Development will also be subject to all Unified Development Code (UDC) 

platting requirements during the platting process; 
3. Single Family Residential House Development only; 
4. Minimum lot size is 0.75 acre; 
5. Minimum front yard setback is 25 feet; 
6. Side street building line is 15 feet; 
7. Side building line is 7.5 feet; 
8. Rear building line is 10 feet; 
9. Sewer will be provided by on-site sewage facilities; 
10. One 2-inch caliper (diameter at breast height) canopy tree to be planted in the 

front yard of every lot and the species shall conform to the approved City of 
Temple Tree list, per the UDC;  

11. A fence along FM 93 shall be a wood fence with masonry columns; and 
12. No on-street parking is allowed due to the proposed 22-foot wide streets. 

 
Part 3: The City Council approves the Site Development Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 

‘B,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes.  
 

Part 4: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary changes to 
the City Zoning Map. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any 
such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

 
Part 6: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so 
ordained. 

 
Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance 

was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 7th day of 

March, 2019. 



3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 21st day of March, 2019.   

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(U) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution appointing election judge(s) and setting their 
compensation for the City’s General election to be held on Saturday, May 4, 2019.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: This proposed resolution recommends the appointment of election judge(s) and sets 
their compensation for the City’s Special election to be held on Saturday, May 4, 2019.    

On February 2, 2019, the City Council ordered an Election for May 4, 2019, for both the District 1 
Councilmember and the District 4 Councilmember positions. 

Attached is a resolution for election judges being recommended for appointment at the Election Day 
polling place and for the Early Voting Ballot Board. The compensation for election judge and clerks is 
recommended to be set at $10.00 per hour in accordance with provisions in §32.091 of the Election 
Code. The election judge or clerk who delivers the precinct election records, keys to ballot boxes or 
other election equipment, and unused election supplies after an election is entitled to compensation for 
that service in an amount not to exceed $25. 

The Election Judge(s) and members of the Early Voting Ballot Board are entitled to the same 
compensation as presiding election judges, in accordance with provisions in §87.005 of the Election 
Code, however, the minimum compensation to each member of the Early Voting Ballot Board is 
recommended to be $50. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding in the amount of $7,800 is appropriated in account 110-1400-511-2517, as 
part of the City Secretary’s budget for the 2019 General Election.   

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9603-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPOINTING ELECTION JUDGES AND SETTING THEIR 
COMPENSATION FOR THE CITY OF TEMPLE’S GENERAL ELECTION 
TO BE HELD ON SATURDAY, MAY 4, 2019; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
  
 Whereas, on February 2, 2019, the City Council ordered an election for May 4, 2019, 
for the election of District 1 and District 4 Councilmember positions; 
 

Whereas, compensation for election judges and clerks is recommended to be set at 
$10 per hour in accordance with the provisions of §32.091 of the Election Code;  

 
Whereas, funding for the May 4, 2019 General Election is appropriated in Account 

No. 110-1400-511-2517, as part of the City Secretary’s budget for the 2019 General 
Election; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2:  The following persons are hereby appointed Presiding Judges and alternate 
Presiding Judges, respectively, for the May 4, 2019, election: 
 
 Election Day Polling Location Fred Poteet Building 
      120 West Central Avenue 
 
 Presiding Judge   Shelly DeLoera. 
 Alternate Presiding Judge  Genevieve Stolleis  
 
 Early Voting Location  Municipal Building, 
      2 North Main Street 
      (between Central and Adams) 
 
 Presiding Judge Early Voting Ballot Board:   Laura Cloud  
 Alternate Presiding Judge Early Voting Ballot Board:  Patricia Sims  



2 
 

 
      
 Part 3:  In the case of death, inability or refusal of any person appointed as a 
presiding judge to act, the Mayor shall have the authority and he is hereby directed to appoint 
some suitable person or persons to act instead.  The presiding judges for each city council 
election district are authorized to appoint not less than two or more than three election clerks 
to assist the judge in the conduct of the election at the polling place served by the judge.  The 
Early Voting Ballot Board shall count the ballots cast during early voting for the election in 
accordance with the requirements of Chapter 87 of the Texas Election Code.  Early voting 
ballots will in every case be treated as a separate precinct and a separate set of returns will be 
made for early voting ballots. 
 
 Part 4:  As compensation for services rendered at the precinct polling place, election 
judges and clerks shall receive $10.00 per hour in accordance with provisions in §32.091 of 
the Election Code. The election judge or clerk who delivers the precinct election records, 
keys to ballot boxes or other election equipment, and unused election supplies after an 
election is entitled to compensation for that service in an amount not to exceed $25. 

 
Part 5:  The election judge and members of the early voting ballot board are entitled 

to the same compensation as presiding election judges, in accordance with provisions in 
§87.005 of the Election Code, however, the minimum compensation to each member of the 
early voting ballot board shall be $50. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #7(V) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal year 
2018-2019. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: This item is to recommend various budget amendments, based on the adopted 
FY 2018-2019 budget. The amendments will involve transfers of funds between contingency 
accounts, department and fund levels. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The total amount of budget amendments is $85,394. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Amendments 
Resolution 



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2019 BUDGET

March 21, 2019

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

110-4000-555-2122 Supplies / Other 1,000$           
110-4000-555-2225 Capital < $5,000 / Books & Periodicals 404$              
110-0000-461-0840 Other / Library Donations 1,000$           
110-0000-461-0841 Other / Donations/ Gifts 404$              

To appropriate a donation received from The Friends of Temple Public Library in the amount of
$1,000. The budget adjustment will also appropriate various donations received from patrons for
the purchase of new books.

110-2210-522-2513 Other Services / Special Services 6,856$           
110-0000-442-1629 Fire Department Revenue / Fire Donations/Gifts 6,856$           

To appropriate donations received on behalf of the Rescue Elves Program, Warm Coat Program,
Explorer Club and the Honor Guard.

520-5000-535-1150 Salaries / Separation Pay/Vac-Sk-Com 47,134$         
520-5000-535-6532 Capital / Contingency 47,134$         

To reallocate funding for separation pay for employee who termed on 01/25/19.

520-5000-535-2616 Contracted Services / Professional 30,000$         
520-5000-535-6532 Capital / Contingency 30,000$         

To reallocate funding for executive search services to be performed by Strategic Government
Resources, Inc. for the vacant Director of Public Works position and the vacant Director of Utility
Services position.

TOTAL AMENDMENTS 85,394$         85,394$         

Reconciliation
GENERAL FUND

Beginning Contingency Balance 100,000$       
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account 100,000$       

Beginning Judgments & Damages Contingency 279,725$       
Added to Contingency Judgments & Damages from Council Contingency -                    
Taken From Judgments & Damages (6,801)           
Net Balance of Judgments & Damages Contingency Account 272,924$       

Beginning Compensation Contingency 285,000$       
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency (285,000)        
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                  

Net Balance Council Contingency 372,924$       

Beginning Balance Budget Sweep Contingency -$                  
Added to Budget Sweep Contingency -                    
Taken From Budget Sweep -                    
Net Balance of Budget Sweep Contingency Account -$                  

WATER & WASTEWATER FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 219,446$       
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Taken From Contingency (14,109)         
Net Balance of Contingency Account 205,337$       

Beginning Compensation Contingency 54,000$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency (54,000)         
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                  

Net Balance Water & Wastewater Fund Contingency 205,337$       

1



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2019 BUDGET

March 21, 2019

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Compensation Contingency 16,500$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency (13,279)         
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 3,221$           

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency 3,221$           

DRAINAGE FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 336,406$       
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account 336,406$       

Beginning Compensation Contingency 10,500$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                
Taken From Compensation Contingency (9,520)           
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 980$              

Net Balance Drainage Fund Contingency 337,386$       

FED/STATE GRANT FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Carry forward from Prior Year 34,641           
Added to Contingency Sweep Account 9,024             
Taken From Contingency (43,665)         

Net Balance Fed/State Grant Fund Contingency -$                  

2



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9604-R 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE 
2018-2019 CITY BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, on the 24th day of August, 2018, the City Council approved a budget 
for the 2018-2019 fiscal year; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council deems it in the public interest to make certain 
amendments to the 2018-2019 City Budget. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and 
correct legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, 
Texas, and they are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution 
as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council hereby amends the 2018-2019 City Budget by 
adopting the budget amendments which are more fully described in Exhibit ‘A,’ 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
  
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
             

    TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Amanda Rice, Deputy City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND & FINAL READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting the 
following ordinances amending: 

(A) The Code of Ordinances, Chapter 4, “Alcoholic Beverages,” to include a general update of the
Chapter, additional clarification of terms used in Chapter, a better alignment of City’s regulations
with state law, and an addition of an enforcement provision.

(B) Temple Unified Development Code Section 5.3.15, “Alcoholic Beverage Sales for On-Premise
Consumption,” by clarifying Subsection 5.3.15(A)(2) with additional language and removing the
reference to City Code, Chapter 4, “Alcoholic Beverages,” Subsection 5.3.15(B)(2) to better conform
with state law.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinances on first reading as presented in item descriptions and 
conduct a public hearing. Second reading will be scheduled for the March 7, 2019.  

ITEM SUMMARY: In a continuing effort to review and update the City’s Code of Ordinances, Staff is 
proposing amendments to Chapter 4, “Alcoholic Beverages.” The amendments include general clean-up 
of the language and changes to formatting.  For example, Staff suggests changing the formatting of section 
titles to conform with that of other City Code chapters and capitalizing “City Manager” and “City Council.”  

Other proposed amendments to Chapter 4 include: 

• The addition of a definitions section at the top of the Chapter to clarify terms used throughout the
Chapter and to consolidate definitions.

• Clarification of the term “extended hours.” Chapter 4 currently provides that the City is an
“extended hours areas” as defined by V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 105.06 but does not
provide additional details. The proposed amendments articulate specifically the “extended
hours” the City has adopted, i.e. holders of specified Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission
(TABC) licenses or permits may offer for sale mixed drinks or beer between midnight and 2 a.m.
on any day.



03/21/19 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

• Incorporating a “grandfathering” provision required by V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code §
109.33(d) for a business that held a TABC permit or license on September 1, 1983 for the
alternative method in which to measure distance between a business and a public or private
school.

• Renaming the fees charged by the City to “municipal fees” and “City license” to City “certificate of
registration” to avoid confusion with references to licenses and permits issued by the TABC and
adding a subsection that requires a person to register with the City by paying municipal fees and
providing a copy their TABC license or permit, which codifies current City practice.  In addition, Staff
proposes adding a subsection that would make it an offense if a person sells an alcoholic beverage
without receiving a City certificate of registration.

• Adding an enforcement section that makes it a Class C misdemeanor for a person to violate any
provision of this Chapter. Each offense would be punishable by a fine not to exceed $500.

In addition to the amendments to Chapter 4, Staff proposes making two changes to the Temple Unified 
Development Code (UDC), Section 5.3.15, “Alcoholic Beverage Sales for On-Premise Consumption:”   

• UDC Subsection 5.3.15(A)(2) requires the holder of a City conditional use permit (CUP) to obtain
an applicable license or permit from TABC within six months of receiving their CUP. Staff
recommends adding a sentence to Subsection 5.3.15(A)(2) that clarifies that the issuance of a CUP
to a permittee does not grant authority for the sale of alcoholic beverages prior to the issuance of
a license or permit from TABC.

• UDC Subsection 5.3.15(B)(2) references Chapter 4 in relation to how distance must be measured
between businesses that sell alcoholic beverages and the protected uses in Chapter 4 (churches,
public hospitals, and schools). Staff recommends removing this reference to Chapter 4 in this
Subsection to conform with the measuring requirements of V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code §
109.33.

The UDC amendments will be reviewed by the Planning & Zoning Commission at its February 19, 2019 
meeting.  

Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments to Chapter 4 and the UDC. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Current Chapter 4 and Sec. 5.3.15, Unified Development Code 
Clean copy and redline copy of amendments to Chapter 4 
Clean copy and redline copy of amendments to Unified Development Code 
Ordinance 



Chapter 4 

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES 

ARTICLE I. EXTENDED HOURS 

Sec. 4-1. Extended hours. 

The City of Temple is an “extended hours area” as that term is defined in the Texas 
Alcoholic Beverage Code. (Ref. V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 105.06)  

ARTICLE II. ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE SALES NEAR SCHOOL, CHURCH, 
OR HOSPITAL 

Sec. 4-2.  Sales Prohibited 

(a) The City of Temple prohibits the sale of alcoholic beverages by a dealer whose
place of business is within: 

(1) 300 feet of a church, public or private school, or public hospital; or

(2) 1,000 feet of a private school if the City Council receives a request from the
governing body of the private school in accordance with Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code 
Section 109.33.  

(b) Subsection (a)(1) does not apply to the holder of:

(1) a license or permit issued by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission
who also holds a food and beverage certificate issued by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage 
Commission covering a premise that is located within 300 feet of a private school; or 

(2) a license or permit issued by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission
covering a premises where minors are prohibited from entering under Texas Alcoholic 
Beverage Code Section 109.53 and that is located within 300 feet of a private school.  

(c) Subsection (a)(2) does not apply to the holder of:

(1) a retail on-premises consumption permit or license issued by the Texas
Alcoholic Beverage Commission if less than 50% of the gross receipts for the premises is 
from the sale or service of alcoholic beverages;  

(2) a retail off-premises consumption permit or license issued by the Texas



Alcoholic Beverage Commission if less than 50% of the gross receipts for the premises, 
excluding the sale of items subject to the motor fuels tax, is from the sale or service of 
alcoholic beverages;  

 
 (3) a wholesaler’s, distributor’s, brewer’s, distiller’s and rectifier’s, winery, 

wine bottler’s or manufacturer’s permit or license, or any other license or permit held by a 
wholesaler or manufacturer as those words are ordinarily used and understood in Texas 
Alcoholic Beverage Code Chapter 102;  

 
 (4) a license or permit issued under Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code Chapters 

27 (Temporary and Special Wine and Beer Retailer’s Permit), 31 (Caterer’s Permit), or 72 
(Temporary Licenses) who is operating on the premises of a private school; or 

 
 (5) a license or permit covering a premise where minors are prohibited from 

entering under Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code Section 109.53 and that is located within 
1,000 feet of a private school.  

 
(d) For purposes of this Chapter, “private school” means a private school, including a 

parochial school, that: 
 
 (1) offers a course of instruction for students in one or more grades from 

kindergarten through grade 12; and 
 
 (2) has more than 100 students enrolled and attending courses at a single 

location.  
 

Sec. 4-3. Measurement of Distances for Church and Public Hospital. 
 

The measurement of the distance between the place of business where alcoholic 
beverages are sold and the church or public hospital shall be along the property lines of the 
street fronts and from front door to front door, and in a direct line across intersections. 

 
Sec. 4-4. Measurement for Public and Private School. 

 
The measurement of the distance between the place of business where alcoholic 

beverages are sold and the public or private school shall be: 
 

(a) in a direct line from the property line of the public or private school to the property 
line of the place of business, and in a direct line across intersections; or 

 
(b) if the permit or license holder is located on or above the fifth story of a multistory 

building, in a direct line from the property line of the public or private school to the property 
line of the place of business, in a direct line across intersections, and vertically up the 
building at the property line to the base of the floor on which the permit or license holder is 
located. 

 



Sections 4-5 through 4-10 reserved. 
 

ARTICLE III. LICENSE AND PERMIT FEES 
 

Sec. 4-11. Alcoholic beverage license and permit fees. 
 

A license fee and permit fee is levied in the amount of one-half of the state license and 
permit fees for each permit issued for premises located within the City, except for permits 
that are exempted from municipal fees. The city license and permit fees shall be paid to the 
City at the same time that the state license and permit fees are paid to the state. (Ref. 
V.T.C.A. Alcoholic Beverage Code § 11.38, § 61.36.   

 
Sec. 4-12. Display. 
 

It is an offense for any person licensed under this article to fail to display such the City 
license and keep the same displayed in a conspicuous place in the place of business licensed. 

 
Sections 4-13 through 4-20 reserved. 
 

 
ARTICLE IV. SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ON CITY PROPERTY 

 
Sec. 4-21. Sale of alcoholic beverages on city property prohibited except where specially 
permitted. 

 
(a) City Property. It shall be unlawful for any person to sell alcoholic beverages in 

any public park of the city, or on or in other publicly owned property, save and except that the 
city and concessionaires or caterers having a contract with the city to sell alcoholic beverages 
at the Frank W. Mayborn Civic and Convention Center, Santa Fe Depot, and at Sammons 
Park, if properly licensed, may sell alcoholic beverages upon the premises of the civic and 
convention center, depot, and within the Sammons Park Restaurant, Clubhouse, and deck 
exclusively. The city manager or his designee may authorize a special event permit for the 
sale of alcoholic beverages on city property other than a city park. 
 
 (b) Criteria for Permits. The City Council shall from time to time by resolution 
establish criteria for special event permit applications and approvals under this section. 
 
(Ordinance No. 2009-4323, 11-05-09) 



1. 

2. 

3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. 

2. 



3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

 

 

9. 



10. 

11. 

 

1. 

2. 

3. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Chapter 4 
  

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES 
  
State law reference -- Alcoholic Beverage Code § 1.01 et seq. 
 
 

ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL  
  
Sec. 4-1. Definitions.  
  
“City” means the City of Temple, Texas, the City Council of Temple, Texas, or its representatives, 
employees, agents, or designees. 
 
“City Council” means the City’s elected governing body.   
 
“City Manager” means the City’s city manager or their designee.  
 
“License or permit” means a license or permit granted by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage 
Commission. 
 
“Licensee or permittee” means a person holding a license or permit granted by the Texas 
Alcoholic Beverage Commission.  
 
“Private school” means a private school, including a parochial school, that:  
  
(a) offers a course of instruction for students in one or more grades from kindergarten through grade 

12; and  
  
(b) has more than 100 students enrolled and attending courses at a single location. 
 
  

ARTICLE II. EXTENDED HOURS 
 
 
Sec. 4-2.  Extended hours. 
 
(a)   Pursuant to Sections 105.03(d) and 105.05(d) of the V.C.T.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code, as 

amended, the City adopts extended hours sales of alcoholic beverages in any part of the City as 
follows: 

       



 

(1)   A holder of a mixed beverage late hours permit may sell and offer for sale mixed beverages 
between midnight and 2 a.m. on any day. 

       
(2)   A holder of a retail dealer’s on-premise late hours license may sell, offer for sale, and 

deliver beer between midnight and 2 a.m. on any day. 
 
 
State law reference -- V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § § 105.03, 105.05, and 105.06. 
 
  

ARTICLE III.  ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE SALES NEAR SCHOOL, CHURCH, OR 
HOSPITAL 

 
 
Sec. 4-3.  Sales near school, church, or hospital.  
 
(a) The sale of alcoholic beverages is prohibited at a place of business that is located within:  
  

 (1) 300 feet of a church, public or private school, or public hospital;  
 
 (2) 1,000 feet of a private school if City Council receives a request from the governing body of 

the private school.   
  
(b) Subsection (a)(1) does not apply to the holder of:  
  

 (1) a license or permit who also holds a food and beverage certificate issued by the Texas 
Alcoholic Beverage Commission covering a premise that is located within 300 feet of a 
private school; or  

  
 (2) a license or permit covering a premise where minors are prohibited from entering under 

V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 109.53, as amended, (i.e. a package store) and that is 
located within 300 feet of a private school.   

  
(c) Subsection (a)(2) does not apply to the holder of:  
  

(1) a retail on-premises consumption permit or license if less than 50% of the gross receipts for 
the premises is from the sale or service of alcoholic beverages;   

  
(2) a retail off-premises consumption permit or license if less than 50% of the gross receipts for 

the premises, excluding the sale of items subject to the motor fuels tax, is from the sale or 
service of alcoholic beverages; 

  



 

(3) a wholesaler’s, distributor’s, brewer’s, distiller’s and rectifier’s, winery, wine bottler’s or 
manufacturer’s permit or license, or any other license or permit held by a wholesaler or 
manufacturer as those words are ordinarily used and understood in V.T.C.A., Alcoholic 
Beverage Code Chapter 102, as amended;   

  
 (4) a license or permit issued under V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code Chapters 27 

(Temporary and Special Wine and Beer Retailer’s Permit), 31 (Caterer’s Permit), or 72 
(Temporary Licenses), all as amended, who is operating on the premises of a private school; 
or  

  
(5) a license or permit covering a premise where minors are prohibited from entering under 

V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 109.53, as amended, (i.e. a package store) and that is 
located within 1,000 feet of a private school.   

 
(Prior Code, § 4-2; Ord. No. 2017-4830) 
 
State law reference -- V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 109.33. 
  
Sec. 4-4. Measurement of distances for church and public hospital.  
  
The measurement of the distance between the place of business where alcoholic beverages are 
sold and the church or public hospital will be along the property lines of the street fronts and from 
front door to front door, and in direct line across intersections.  
 
(Prior Code, § 4-3; Ord. No. 2009-4323) 
 
State law reference -- Similar provisions, V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 109.33(b). 
 
Sec. 4-5. Measurement for public and private school.  
  
The measurement of the distance between the place of business where alcoholic beverages are 
sold and the public or private school will be:  
  
(a) in a direct line from the property line of the public or private school to the property line of the 

place of business, and in a direct line across intersections; or  
  
(b) if the permit or license holder is located on or above the fifth story of a multistory building, in 

a direct line from the property line of the public or private school to the property line of the 
place of business, in a direct line across intersections, and vertically up the building at the 
property line to the base of the floor on which the permit or license holder is located.  

  
(c)  As to any business who held a license or permit on September 1, 1983, the measurement of the 



 

distance between the place of business of the dealer and a public or private school will be along 
the property lines of the street fronts and from front door to front door, and in direct line across 
intersections. 

 
 
(Prior Code, § 4-4; Ord. No. 2017-4830) 
 
State law reference -- Similar provisions, V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 109.33(b), (d). 

 
Sections 4-6--4-10.  Reserved. 

  
 

ARTICLE IV.  MUNICIPAL FEES AND REGISTRATION 
  
State law reference -- Authority to require licenses and permits and fees, V.T.C.A., Alcoholic 
Beverage Code § § 11.38; 61.36. 
 
Sec. 4-11. Municipal fees and City registration.  
  
(a) A municipal fee is levied in the amount of one-half the state fee for each license or permit issued 

for premises located within the City, except as otherwise provided by state law.  The municipal 
fees must be paid to the City when the license or permit fees are paid to the state.  

 
(b) The City will issue a certificate of registration under this Section to a licensee or permittee 

authorizing the sale of alcoholic beverages under this Chapter and a license or permit, if the 
licensee or permittee:  

 
(1) pays the fees established by Subsection (a); and 
 
(2) provides the City with a copy of the license or permit.   
 

(c) A person who sells an alcoholic beverage at a business location before the person receives a 
certificate of registration from the City as provided by this Section commits a Class C 
misdemeanor.  

 
(d) The City’s certificate of registration must be displayed in a conspicuous place at all times on the 

licensed or permitted premises.  It is unlawful for a person in charge of such premises to fail to 
display this certificate of registration.  

 
(Prior Code, § 4-11; Ord. No. 2009-4323) 



 

 
State law reference -- Authority for license and permit fees, V.T.C.A. Alcoholic Beverage Code 
§ 11.38; § 61.36.   
  
Sections 4-12--4-20.  Reserved. 
   
 

ARTICLE V. SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ON CITY PROPERTY 
  
Sec. 4-21. Sale of alcoholic beverages on City property prohibited except where specially 
permitted.  
  
(a) City Property. It is unlawful for any person to sell alcoholic beverages in any public park of the 

City, or on or in other publicly owned property, save and except that the City and 
concessionaires or caterers having a contract with the City to sell alcoholic beverages at the 
Frank W. Mayborn Civic and Convention Center, Santa Fe Depot, and at Sammons Park, if 
properly licensed or permitted by the state, may sell alcoholic beverages upon the premises of 
the civic and convention center, depot, and within the Sammons Park Restaurant, Clubhouse, 
and deck exclusively. The City Manager may authorize a special event permit for the sale of 
alcoholic beverages on City property other than a City park.  

  
 (b) Criteria for Permits. The City Council may from time to time by resolution establish criteria for 

special event permit applications and approvals under this Section.  
  
(Prior Code, § 4-21; Ordinance No. 2009-4323) 
 
 

ARTICLE VI.  ENFORCEMENT 
 

Sec. 4-22.  Criminal offense. 
 
(a) A person violating a provision of this Chapter commits a Class C misdemeanor for each separate 

violation for each day, or part of a day, during which the violation is committed, continued, or 
permitted.  Each offense is punishable by a fine not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500.00). 

 
(b)  A culpable mental state is hereby not required to prove an offense under this Chapter.  
 



 

Chapter 4 
  

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES 
  
State law reference -- Alcoholic Beverage Code § 1.01 et seq. 
 
 

ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL EXTENDED HOURS 
  
Sec. 4-1. Definitions.  
Extended hours.  
  
The City of Temple is an “extended hours area” as that term is defined in the Texas Alcoholic 
Beverage Code. (Ref. V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 105.06)   
“City” means the City of Temple, Texas, the City Council of Temple, Texas, or its 
representatives, employees, agents, or designees. 
 
“City Council” means the City’s elected governing body.   
 
“City Manager” means the City’s city manager or their designee.  
 
“License or permit” means a license or permit granted by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage 
Commission. 
 
“Licensee or permittee” means a person holding a license or permit granted by the Texas 
Alcoholic Beverage Commission.  
 
“Private school” means a private school, including a parochial school, that:  
  
(a) offers a course of instruction for students in one or more grades from kindergarten through 

grade 12; and  
  
(b) has more than 100 students enrolled and attending courses at a single location. 
  
  

ARTICLE II. ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE SALES NEAR SCHOOL, CHURCH, OR 
HOSPITAL EXTENDED HOURS 

 
 
  
Sec. 4-2.  Extended hours.Sales Prohibited  



 

 
(a)   Pursuant to Sections 105.03(d) and 105.05(d) of the V.C.T.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code, as 

amended, the City adopts extended hours sales of alcoholic beverages in any part of the City 
as follows: 

       
(1)   A holder of a mixed beverage late hours permit may sell and offer for sale mixed 

beverages between midnight and 2 a.m. on any day. 
       
(2)   A holder of a retail dealer’s on-premise late hours license may sell, offer for sale, and 

deliver beer between midnight and 2 a.m. on any day. 
 
 
State law reference -- V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § § 105.03, 105.05, and 105.06. 
 
  

ARTICLE III.  ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE SALES NEAR SCHOOL, CHURCH, OR 
HOSPITAL 

 
 
Sec. 4-3.  Sales near school, church, or hospital.  
 
(a) The City of TempleThe sale of alcoholic beverages is prohibiteds the sale of alcoholic 
beverages at a by a dealer whose place of business is withinthat is located within:  
  

 (1) 300 feet of a church, public or private school, or public hospital; or  
 
  
 (2) 1,000 feet of a private school if the City Council receives a request from the governing 

body of the private school in accordance with Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code Section 
109.33.   

  
(b) Subsection (a)(1) does not apply to the holder of:  
  

 (1) a license or permit issued by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission who also holds a 
food and beverage certificate issued by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission 
covering a premise that is located within 300 feet of a private school; or  

  
 (2) a license or permit issued by the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission covering a 

premises where minors are prohibited from entering under V.T.C.A., Texas Alcoholic 
Beverage Code §Section 109.53, as amended, (i.e. a package store)  and that is located 
within 300 feet of a private school.   

  



 

(c) Subsection (a)(2) does not apply to the holder of:  
  
 

 (1) a retail on-premises consumption permit or license issued by the Texas Alcoholic 
Beverage Commission if less than 50% of the gross receipts for the premises is from the 
sale or service of alcoholic beverages;   

  
 (2) a retail off-premises consumption permit or license  issued by the Texas Alcoholic 

Beverage Commission if less than 50% of the gross receipts for the premises, excluding the 
sale of items subject to the motor fuels tax, is from the sale or service of alcoholic 
beverages;   

 
  

 (3) a wholesaler’s, distributor’s, brewer’s, distiller’s and rectifier’s, winery, wine bottler’s or 
manufacturer’s permit or license, or any other license or permit held by a wholesaler or 
manufacturer as those words are ordinarily used and understood in V.T.C.A., Texas 
Alcoholic Beverage Code Chapter 102, as amended;   

  
 (4) a license or permit issued under V.T.C.A., Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code Chapters 27 

(Temporary and Special Wine and Beer Retailer’s Permit), 31 (Caterer’s Permit), or 72 
(Temporary Licenses), all as amended, who is operating on the premises of a private 
school; or  

  
 

 (5) a license or permit covering a premise where minors are prohibited from entering under 
V.T.C.A., Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code §Section 109.53, as amended, (i.e. a package 
store)  and that is located within 1,000 feet of a private school.   

 
(Prior Code, § 4-2; Ord. No. 2017-4830) 
 
State law reference -- V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 109.33. 
  
(d) For purposes of this Chapter, “private school” means a private school, including a parochial 
school, that:  
  
 (1) offers a course of instruction for students in one or more grades from kindergarten through 
grade 12; and  
  
 (2) has more than 100 students enrolled and attending courses at a single location.   
  
Sec. 4-43. Measurement of dDistances for cChurch and pPublic hHospital.  
  



 

The measurement of the distance between the place of business where alcoholic beverages are 
sold and the church or public hospital willshall be along the property lines of the street fronts and 
from front door to front door, and in a direct line across intersections.  
 
(Prior Code, § 4-3; Ord. No. 2009-4323) 
 
State law reference -- Similar provisions, V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 109.33(b). 
 
  
Sec. 4-54. Measurement for pPublic and pPrivate sSchool.  
  
The measurement of the distance between the place of business where alcoholic beverages are 
sold and the public or private school shall will be:  
  
(a) in a direct line from the property line of the public or private school to the property line of the 

place of business, and in a direct line across intersections; or  
  
(b) if the permit or license holder is located on or above the fifth story of a multistory building, in 

a direct line from the property line of the public or private school to the property line of the 
place of business, in a direct line across intersections, and vertically up the building at the 
property line to the base of the floor on which the permit or license holder is located.  

  
(c)  As to any business who held a license or permit on September 1, 1983, the measurement of 

the distance between the place of business of the dealer and a public or private school will be 
along the property lines of the street fronts and from front door to front door, and in direct line 
across intersections. 

 
 
(Prior Code, § 4-4; Ord. No. 2017-4830) 
 
State law reference -- Similar provisions, V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 109.33(b), (d). 

 
 
Sections 4-6--4-10.  4-5 through 4-10 Reserved.reserved.  

  
 

ARTICLE IVII.  LICENSE AND PERMITMUNICIPAL FEES AND REGISTRATION 
  
 
State law reference -- Authority to require licenses and permits and fees, V.T.C.A., Alcoholic 
Beverage Code § § 11.38; 61.36. 



 

 
Sec. 4-11.  Municipal fees and City registrationAlcoholic beverage license and permit fees.  
  
(a) A municipal license fee and permit fee is levied in the amount of one-half of the state fee for 

each license and or permit fees for each permit issued for premises located within the City, 
except as otherwise provided by state law.  for permits that are exempted from municipal 
fees. The municipal city license and permit fees shall must be paid to the City when the at the 
same time that the state license and or permit fees are paid to the state.  

 
(b) The City will issue a certificate of registration under this Section to a licensee or permittee 

authorizing the sale of alcoholic beverages under this Chapter and a license or permit, if the 
licensee or permittee:  

 
(1) pays the fees established by Subsection (a); and 
 
(2) provides the City with a copy of the license or permit.   
 

(c) A person who sells an alcoholic beverage at a business location before the person receives a 
certificate of registration from the City as provided by this Section commits a Class C 
misdemeanor.  

 
(d) The City’s certificate of registration must be displayed in a conspicuous place at all times on 

the licensed or permitted premises.  It is unlawful for a person in charge of such premises to 
fail to display this certificate of registration.  

 
(Prior Code, § 4-11; Ord. No. 2009-4323) 
 
State law reference -- Authority for license and permit fees, V.T.C.A. Alcoholic Beverage Code 
§ 11.38; § 61.36.   
(Ref. V.T.C.A. Alcoholic Beverage Code § 11.38, § 61.36.    
  
Sections 4-12--4-20.  Reserved. 
Sec. 4-12. Display.  
  
It is an offense for any person licensed under this article to fail to display such the City license 
and keep the same displayed in a conspicuous place in the place of business licensed.  
  
Sections 4-13 through 4-20 reserved.  
  
  
 



 

ARTICLE IV. SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ON CITY PROPERTY 
  
Sec. 4-21. Sale of alcoholic beverages on Ccity property prohibited except where specially 
permitted.  
  
(a) City Property. It shall beis unlawful for any person to sell alcoholic beverages in any public 

park of the Ccity, or on or in other publicly owned property, save and except that the Ccity and 
concessionaires or caterers having a contract with the Ccity to sell alcoholic beverages at the 
Frank W. Mayborn Civic and Convention Center, Santa Fe Depot, and at Sammons Park, if 
properly licensed or permitted by the state, may sell alcoholic beverages upon the premises of 
the civic and convention center, depot, and within the Sammons Park Restaurant, Clubhouse, 
and deck exclusively. The Ccity Mmanager or his designee may authorize a special event 
permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages on Ccity property other than a Ccity park.  

  
 (b) Criteria for Permits. The City Council shall may from time to time by resolution establish 

criteria for special event permit applications and approvals under this Ssection.  
  
(Prior Code, § 4-21; Ordinance No. 2009-4323) 
(Ordinance No. 2009-4323, 11-05-09)  
 

ARTICLE VI.  ENFORCEMENT 
 

Sec. 4-22.  Criminal offense. 
 
(a) A person violating a provision of this Chapter commits a Class C misdemeanor for each 

separate violation for each day, or part of a day, during which the violation is committed, 
continued, or permitted.  Each offense is punishable by a fine not to exceed five hundred 
dollars ($500.00). 

 
(b)  A culpable mental state is hereby not required to prove an offense under this Chapter.  



1. 

2. 

3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. 

2. 



3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

 

 



9. 

10. 

11. 

 

1. 

2. 

3. 

 

 

 

 



1. 

2. 

3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. 

2. 



3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

 

 



9. 

10. 

11. 

 

1. 

2. 

3. 

 

 

 

 



 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-4955             
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, (1) AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES CHAPTER 4, 
“ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES” TO INCLUDE A GENERAL UPDATE OF THE 
CHAPTER, ADDITIONAL CLARIFICATION OF TERMS USED IN THE 
CHAPTER, BETTER ALIGNMENT OF THE CITY’S REGULATIONS WITH 
STATE LAW, AND AN ADDITION OF AN ENFORCEMENT PROVISION; 
AND (2) AMENDING TEMPLE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE SECTION 
5.3.15, “ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE SALES FOR ON-PREMISE 
CONSUMPTION,” BY CLARIFYING SUBSECTION 5.3.15(A)(2) WITH 
ADDITIONAL LANGUAGE AND REMOVING THE REFERENCE TO CITY 
CODE, CHAPTER 4, “ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES” SUBSECTION 
5.3.15(B)(2) TO BETTER CONFORM WITH STATE LAW; PROVIDING A 
REPEALER; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, in a continuing effort to review and update the City’s Code of Ordinances, 
Staff recommends amendments to Chapter 4, “Alcoholic Beverages” that include general 
language clean-up and changes to formatting; 
 

Whereas, other proposed amendments to Chapter 4 include: 
 

• The addition of a definitions section at the top of the Chapter to clarify terms 
used throughout the Chapter and to consolidate definitions; 

• Clarification of the term “extended hours” as Chapter 4 currently provides 
that the City is an “extended hours area” as defined by V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage 
Code § 105.06, but does not provide additional details - the proposed amendments 
articulate specifically the “extended hours” the City has adopted, i.e.  holders of 
specified Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC) licenses or permits may 
offer for sale mixed drinks or beer between midnight and 2 a.m. on any day;   

• Incorporating a “grandfathering” provision required by V.T.C.A., Alcoholic 
Beverage Code § 109.33(d) for a business that held a TABC permit or license on 
September 1, 1983 for the alternative method in which to measure distance between a 
business and a public or private school;   

• Renaming the fees charged by the City from “municipal fees” and “City 
license” to City “certificate of registration” to avoid confusion with references to 
licenses and permits issued by the TABC and adding a subsection that requires a 
person to register with the City by paying municipal fees and providing a copy of 
their TABC license or permit, which codifies current City practice - in addition, Staff 
proposes adding a subsection that would make it an offense if a person sells an 
alcoholic beverage without receiving a City certificate of registration;  

• Adding an enforcement section that makes it a Class C misdemeanor for a 
person to violate any provision of this Chapter making each offense punishable by a 
fine not to exceed $500.00; 

 



 2 

Whereas, in addition to the amendments to Chapter 4, Staff proposes making two 
changes to the Temple Unified Development Code (UDC), Section 5.3.15, “Alcoholic 
Beverage Sales for On-Premise Consumption:”   

 
• UDC Subsection 5.3.15(A)(2) requires the holder of a City conditional use 

permit (CUP) to obtain an applicable license or permit from TABC within six months 
of receiving their CUP - Staff recommends adding a sentence to Subsection 
5.3.15(A)(2) that clarifies that the issuance of a CUP to a permittee does not grant 
authority for the sale of alcoholic beverages prior to the issuance of a license or 
permit from TABC;   

• UDC Subsection 5.3.15(B)(2) references Chapter 4 in relation to how 
distance must be measured between businesses that sell alcoholic beverages and the 
protected uses in Chapter 4 (churches, public hospitals, and schools) - Staff 
recommends removing this reference to Chapter 4 in this Subsection to conform with 
the measuring requirements of V.T.C.A., Alcoholic Beverage Code § 109.33;  

 
Whereas, Staff recommends Council amend the Code of Ordinances Chapter 4, 

“Alcoholic Beverages” and Temple Unified Development Code (UDC), Section 5.3.15, 
“Alcoholic Beverage Sales for On-Premise Consumption;” and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their 
entirety.  

 
 Part 2: The City Council amends the Code of Ordinances Chapter 4 “Alcoholic 
Beverages” as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein for all 
purposes, and Temple Unified Development Code (UDC), Section 5.3.15, “Alcoholic 
Beverage Sales for On-Premise Consumption” as set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 
 
 Part 3: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be declared invalid by the 
final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not 
affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this 
Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this Ordinance of any such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or 
section. 



 3 

 
Part 5: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 21st day of 

February, 2019. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 7th day of March, 2019. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              
       TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



CITY COUNCIL ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Jason Deckman, Planner 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – FY-19-6-ZC: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning with a site/development plan, from Commercial district to Planned 
Development Multi-Family Two district, with conditions and requiring a site development plan, on 9.055 
+/- acres, and 0.433 +/- acres, out of and a part of Block One, Temple Commercial Park, Section 1, 
Bell County, Texas, as 2602 South 39th Street, Temple. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the following, staff recommends approval with conditions for 
a rezoning from the current C zoning district to the PD-MF-2 zoning district for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed Site/Development Plan reflects compliance with the provisions of the Planned
Development Criteria as required by Unified Development Code (UDC) Section 3.4.5;

2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan and Trails Master Plan; and
3. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.

PD Conditions: 
1. Granting an exception to the required parking ratios for multi-family residential to match the

number of spaces shown on the attached site development plan. (363 spaces)
2. Requiring a four foot sidewalk to be constructed by the applicant in the public right-of-way along

South 39th Street from the apartment entrance to the existing sidewalk along Everton Drive.
3. Compliance with the attached site development plan.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their February 19, 2019 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend approval of the rezoning to PD MF-2 with 
development/site plan per staff’s recommendation.   

ITEM SUMMARY:  The existing apartment complex at The Glen is being sold. The use table in Article 
5.1 of the UDC does not permit multi-family residential uses in a Commercial (C) district. The buyer 
asked about rebuilding in the event the complex was destroyed, which would not be allowed under the 
current zoning. For that reason, the applicant has requested to be rezoned in order to bring the property 
into compliance with the UDC. During follow-up discussions, the rezoning request was modified to a 
Planned Development Multi-Family Two (PD-MF-2) district, with conditions, in order to address current 
issues and future connectivity. 



03/21/19 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

As currently built, the property does not meet required parking ratios per UDC Article 7.5.B, see table 
below: 

Specific Use Minimum Required Parking Spaces 
Multiple-family dwelling 
(Apartment) 

(a) 1.75 per dwelling unit with 1 bedroom
(b) 2 per dwelling unit with 2 or more bedrooms
(c) 1 per dwelling unit designed exclusively for elderly or low-income persons
(d) 2 per dwelling unit if less than 3 units
(e) 0.75 per dwelling if units designed exclusively for handicapped residents

Staff proposes to grant an exception to the UDC that will reduce the requirement to the exact number 
of spaces shown on the attached site development plan (363 spaces). 

In order to provide better pedestrian connectivity, the city will require a four foot sidewalk to be 
constructed within the public right-of-way along South 39th Street from the entrance to the apartment 
complex to the existing sidewalk on Everton Drive. The applicant has agreed to construct the sidewalk. 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT: UDC Section 3.4.1 defines a PD as: 
“A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique development proposals, special design 
considerations and land use transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships to surrounding 
areas through development plan approval.”  
Per UDC Section, 3.4.3.A, a PD is subject to review and approval by City Council. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan (CP) and Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is within the Auto-Urban Multi-Family Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation. 
The designation allows for a stand-alone district to accommodate multi-family development, subject to 
minimum site area and open space ratio requirements, and subject to increased bufferyards and 
building design standards. The existing apartment complex meets the requirements for building 
coverage and setbacks. However, it does not meet the required parking ratios, which are addressed in 
the Planned Development Conditions. The property is therefore in partial compliance with the Future 
Land Use Map. 

Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from South 39th Street, a local street. The property is not located on 
or a collector or arterial street, and does not connect to any trails shown on the Trails Master Plan. The 
subject property is therefore in compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan.  

Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available via eight-inch and six-inch sewer lines running through the property. Water is 
available from an 18 inch line located along the eastern property line and generally following South 39th 
Street. 



03/21/19 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

SURROUNDING PROPERTIES AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Subject 
Property Auto-Urban Multi-Family C Multi-Family 

North Parks and Open Space 2F Jaycee Park 

South Auto-Urban Commercial C Undeveloped 

East Auto-Urban Commercial C Commercial 

West Auto-Urban Commercial C, O-1 Ronald McDonald House 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE: As required by UDC Section 3.4.2 B, the Development/Site 
Plan for the proposed PD was reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC) on January 24, 
2019. Staff discussed the parking and proposed sidewalk with the applicant. 

PUBLIC NOTICE: Twenty-five notices were sent to property owners within 200-feet of the subject 
property containing notice of the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance. As of 
Thursday February 14, 2019 at 12:00 PM, six notices in agreement and one notice in disagreement 
from adjacent property owners have been received. Staff met with the property owner who disagreed; 
his concerns have been resolved and his disagreement has been rescinded. 

The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on February 7, 2019, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliant? 

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Partial 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 

consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance Yes 
CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 



03/21/19 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Development Site Plan 
Aerial Map 
Utility Map 
Zoning Map 
Site Photos 
Future Land Use and Character Map 
Thoroughfare & Trails Map  
Notification Map 
Returned Property Notices 
Ordinance  





 

 



.  

 



 

 



SCOTTBLVD

S
43
RD

ST

M

ARKET
LO

O
P

SWHKDODGENLOOP(LOOP363)

SWHKDODGENLOOP(LOOP363)

EVERTONDR

S
37
TH

ST

W AVE Z

S
47
TH

ST

W AVE V

S5
1S
TS
T

SKYLINE DR

S 
39

T
H
 S
T

SWHKDODGENLOOP(LOOP363)

S4
5T
H
STS
49
TH

ST

TR
A
D
E 
P
L

EX
C
H
A
N
G
E 
P
L

JA

CK
RA

BBI
TR

D

M
A
R
K
ET

 P
L

W AVE T

RAMCON DR

S
55
TH

ST
RE

ET
TE
R

BU
FF
A
LO

W
A
LL
ER

ST

VANTAGE PL

S 
51
ST
 S
TR
EE
T 
TE
R

S
41
ST

ST

SWHKDODGENLOOP(LOOP363)

Jaycee Park
PR

IV
A
TE

 D
R

Ü

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

OVERVIEW MAP

 jdeckman
Date: 1/25/2019

Transportation
Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

PRIVATE

RAMP

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcel Features
Parcels

Easement

Zoning Case :
FY-19-6-ZC

C to PD-MF-2

Address :
2602 S. 39th St.



EVERTONDR

S
39

TH
ST

S
47
TH

ST

EX
CH

A
N
G
E
PL

W AVE Z

RAMCONDR

VANTAGEPL

Jaycee Park

2602

2302

2608

2103

2708

2358

2415

2609

2245

1808

2601

1908

1902

2408

2626

2615

2704

2411

2602

2018

2002

2401 2401

2405

2707

2065

2241

2402

2105

2404

1910

2602

21092405

2318

2113

2302

2067

2117

2408

2406

2702

Ü

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 jdeckman
Date: 1/25/2019

Transportation
Streets

LOCAL STREET

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcel Features
Parcels

Easement

Zoning Case :
FY-19-6-ZC

C to PD-MF-2

Address :
2602 S. 39th St.



GF

GF

GF

GF

GF GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

18

8

6

1
2

20

8

6

8

12

EVERTONDR

S
39

TH
ST

S
47
TH

ST

EX
CH

A
N
G
E
PL

W AVE Z

RAMCONDR

VANTAGEPL

Jaycee Park

2602

2302

2608

2103

2708

2358

2415

2609

2245

1808

2601

1908

1902

2408

2626

2615

2704

2411

2602

2018

2002

2401 2401

2405

2707

2065

2241

2402

2105

2404

1910

2602

2405
2109

2318

2113

2302

2067

2408

2117

2406

2702

Ü

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 jdeckman
Date: 1/25/2019

Sewer
Manhole

Gravity Main

WaterDistribution
GF Hydrant

Main

Parcel Features
Parcels

Easement

Zoning Case :
FY-19-6-ZC

C to PD-MF-2

Address :
2602 S. 39th St.



Date: 1/25/2019

2406

2404

2402

2405

2401

2245

2411

2608

2103

1908

2241

2704

2358

2318

2067

2065

2707

2615

2702

2602

1902
1910

2626

2708

2415

2117 2113
2105

2405

2602

2302

2018

2002

2408

1808

2302

2609

2602

2601

2109

2408

2401

Jaycee Park

VANTAGEPL

S 
39

T
H
 S
T

RAMCONDR

EX
C
H
A
N
G
E 
P
L

W AVE Z

EVERTON DR

S 
47

TH
 S
T

Ü

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 1/25/2019
 jdeckman

Parcel
Features

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

Easement

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP

Zoning Case :
FY-19-6-ZC

C to PD-MF-2

Address :
2602 S. 39th St.



Date: 1/25/2019

2406

2404

2402

2405

2401

2245

2411

2608

2103

1908

2241

2704

2358

2318

2067

2065

2707

2615

2702

2602

1902
1910

2626

2708

2415

2117 2113
2105

2405

2602

2302

2018

2002

2408

1808

2302

2609

2602

2601

2109

2408

2401

Jaycee Park

VANTAGEPL

S 
39

T
H
 S
T

RAMCONDR

EX
C
H
A
N
G
E 
P
L

W AVE Z

EVERTON DR

S 
47

TH
 S
T

Ü

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 1/25/2019
 jdeckman

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

Transportation
EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcel Features
Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

Easement

Zoning Case :
FY-19-6-ZC

C to PD-MF-2

Address :
2602 S. 39th St.



1718
PropID:
123522

2306
PropID:
44627

2302
PropID:
114559

2225
PropID:
74819

2206
PropID:
44264

2226
PropID:
76043

2222
PropID:
60443

2221
PropID:
127459

2225
PropID:
127455

2110
PropID:
101750

2301
PropID:
50453

2501
PropID:
32954

2417
PropID:
13320

2413
PropID:
106054

2409
PropID:
80335

2405
PropID:
52562 2302

PropID:
64891

2402
PropID:
33594

2406
PropID:
18286

2410
PropID:
10383

2414
PropID:
48044

2418
PropID:
24441

2502
PropID:
106168

2221
PropID:
127460

2106
PropID:
116636

2217
PropID:
60409

2504
PropID:
102141
2502

PropID:
23494

2418
PropID:
23498

2416
PropID:
46923

2414
PropID:
63303

2410
PropID:
117057

2408
PropID:
57000

2406
PropID:
5697

2404
PropID:
63703
2402

PropID:
63697

2501
PropID:
4904

2417
PropID:
18492

2413
PropID:
34008

2409
PropID:
103538

2405
PropID:
29205

2401
PropID:
96911

2245
PropID:
147179

2411
PropID:
21606

2608
PropID:
63638

2103
PropID:
21610

1908
PropID:
72628

2241
PropID:
233046

2704
PropID:
196200

2358
PropID:
193052

2318
PropID:
238152

2067
PropID:
396708

2065
PropID:
396710

2707
PropID:
1366

2615
PropID:
56721

2702
PropID:
61178

2703
PropID:
119625

2603
PropID:
1373

2602
PropID:
61177

1712
PropID:
53796

1520
PropID:
8690

1902
PropID:
40311

1910
PropID:
72626

1508
PropID:
480197

1616
PropID:
23455

2703
PropID:
36633

1420
PropID:
93952

2626
PropID:
167183

2708
PropID:
196200

2615
PropID:
167186

2415
PropID:
17302

2305
PropID:
24090 2217

PropID:
44226

2213
PropID:
93176

2205
PropID:
104870

2201
PropID:
126199

2117
PropID:
54939

2113
PropID:
118917 2105

PropID:
37510

2405
PropID:
64643

2602
PropID:
115117

2302
PropID:
21589

2420
PropID:
115670

2018
PropID:
53855

2002
PropID:
115669

1704
PropID:
101769

2102
PropID:
234428

2104
PropID:
234429

2408
PropID:
234430

2002
PropID:
198008

2301
PropID:
128661

2010
PropID:
1377

2112
PropID:
234424

2112
PropID:
234424

2302
PropID:
415926

2045
PropID:
415925

2055
PropID:
415924

1808
PropID:
3118

2309
PropID:
46921

2305
PropID:
76765

2302
PropID:
457665

1901
PropID:
44643

2024
PropID:
455051

2609
PropID:
455050

2505
PropID:
196279

2602
PropID:
234228

1920
PropID:
470454

2102
PropID:
447755

2601
PropID:
1367

2209
PropID:
77671

2109
PropID:
63322

2408
PropID:
53854

2609
PropID:
167185

1720
PropID:
49174

2401
PropID:
73072

2202
PropID:
470457

2704
PropID:
480198

604-J

604-B604-X

604-N

604-E

604-Q

604-O

610-B

604D-A

610-D

604C-A

Jaycee Park

SKYLINE DR

EVERTON DR

S 
39

T
H
 S
T

W AVE Z

S
45

TH
ST

TR
A
D
E 
P
L

EX
C
H
A
N
G
E 
P
L

S
37

TH
ST

RAMCON DR
VANTAGE PL

S 
47

TH
 S
T

SCOTTBLVD

S
43

RD
ST

C

O-1SF-3

CGR C

C

C

GR

GR

2F

GR

GR

GR

C

C

C

T5-EÜ

Date: 1/25/2019
 jdeckman

Zoning Case :
FY-19-6-ZC

C to PD-MF-2

Address :
2602 S. 39th St.

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

Easement















1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-4958 

(FY-19-6-ZC) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM COMMERCIAL ZONING 
DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT MULTI-FAMILY TWO ZONING 
DISTRICT WITH CONDITIONS AND REQUIRING A SITE DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN, ON APPROXIMATELY 9.055 ACRES, AND APPROXIMATELY 0.433 
ACRES, OUT OF AND A PART OF BLOCK ONE, TEMPLE COMMERCIAL 
PARK, SECTION 1, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, ADDRESSED AS 2602 SOUTH 
39TH STREET, TEMPLE, TEXAS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, the existing apartment complex at The Glen is being sold and the use table 
in Article 5.1 of the UDC does not permit multi-family residential uses in a Commercial 
zoning district; 

 
Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after 

due consideration of the conditions, recommends approval of the rezoning from 
Commercial zoning district to Planned Development Multi-Family Two zoning district, on 
approximately 9.055 acres and approximately 0.433 acres, out of and a part of Block One, 
Temple Commercial Park, Section 1, Bell County, Texas, addressed as 2602 South 39th Street, 
Temple, Texas, as outlined in the site development plan attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and 
made a part hereof for all purposes, and subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. Granting an exception to the required parking ratios for multi-family residential 

to match the number of spaces shown on the attached site development plan (363 spaces); 
2. Requiring a 4-foot sidewalk to be constructed by the applicant in the public 

right-of-way along South 39th Street, from the apartment entrance to the existing sidewalk 
along Everton Drive; 

3. Compliance with the attached site development plan; 
 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 

interest to authorize this action. 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their 
entirety. 

 
 Part 2: The City Council approves a rezoning from Commercial zoning district to 

Planned Development Multi-Family Two zoning district, on approximately 9.055 acres and 
approximately 0.433 acres, out of and a part of Block One, Temple Commercial Park, Section 
1, Bell County, Texas, addressed as 2602 South 39th Street, Temple, Texas, as outlined in the 
site development plan attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all 



2 
 

purposes, and subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Granting an exception to the required parking ratios for multi-family residential 

to match the number of spaces shown on the attached site development plan (363 spaces); 
2. Requiring a 4-foot sidewalk to be constructed by the applicant in the public 

right-of-way along South 39th Street from the apartment entrance to the existing sidewalk 
along Everton Drive; 

3. Compliance with the attached site development plan. 
 

 Part 3: The City Council approves the Site Development Plan attached hereto as 
Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 
Part 4: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 
 

Part 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 21st day 

of March, 2019. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 4th day of April, 2019. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



CITY COUNCIL ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  

Lynn Barrett, Assistant Planning Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – FY-19-7-ZC: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning request from Agricultural zoning district to Planned Development-
General Retail zoning district, on 54.592 +/- acres, situated in the Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract 
No. 17, Bell County, Texas, addressed as 8901 West Adams Avenue. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the following, staff recommends approval with conditions for 
a rezoning from the current AG zoning district to Planned Development—General Retail (PD-GR) 
zoning district for the following reasons: 

1. This large property is at a highly visible intersection of two major arterials.
2. The request is in compliance with UDC Section 3.4.5A-J Planned Development Criteria;
3. The request is consistent with Future Land Use Map designation of Suburban Commercial at

the corner of SH 317 and West Adams Avenue, with Suburban Residential on eastern portion;
4. Public facilities are present or nearby to serve the property; and
5. The request, conditioned as a Planned Development, would help ensure compatibility with

surrounding uses and the anticipated and potential growth of retail and multi-family uses along
these two important corridors and assure connectivity to neighboring residential development.

As a Planned Development with General Retail base zoning, (PD-GR), staff recommends the following: 

PD Conditions: (Applicant in agreement) 

1. PD-GR on entire property, allowing GR uses by right with the following exceptions;
a. Any GR development having a building in excess of 50,000 square feet (typical “big-

box”) will require an additional site development plan PD rezoning case and,
b. Council site plan approval showing landscaping and parking lot design, as well as

building elevations prior to construction
2. Multi-family development will be allowed on up to 15 acres, with the requirement of an

additional development site plan approval by City Council showing landscaping and parking
lot design, as well as building elevations prior to construction

3. Free standing signage bases to primarily consist of masonry and/or decorative metal
elements

4. An improved trail along the drainage area bisecting the property and landscaped
greenspace is required at development of adjacent areas to implement the Trails Master
Plan

5. Screening and buffering a minimum of 20 feet in width required along neighboring
properties with residential uses

6. Minimum four foot sidewalk along South Cedar Road at development



03/21/19 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  At their February 19, 2019, meeting, 
the Planning & Zoning Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend approval of the rezoning to PD-GR per 
staff’s recommendation.    

ITEM SUMMARY: The applicant, WBW, is proposing to rezone the subject tract to allow for future retail 
and originally asked for multi-family uses and the possibility of several Commercial type uses at the 
property. Subsequently, after the DRC process, the applicant requested the zoning change to straight 
General Retail zoning for the entire site. Staff has continued with its recommendation for a Planned 
Development General Retail on the property to include additional site review for any big box type of 
development (above 50,000 square feet), interior trail along the drainage area, sidewalk on South 
Cedar Road (which would not be required otherwise), sign masonry and buffering requirements and 
has also retained the applicant’s original request for multi-family on a portion of the property, with site 
development plan approval prior to development. Staff analysis is that the location, phasing and size 
of this proposed mixed-use project warrants the extra conditions. Site plan review by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and approval by City Council would be required prior to development of a big box 
or multi-family use. Across West Adams, for example, Wapiti Business Park was rezoned and 
developed through a PD-GR in 2016, also cited as being such a visible property on this important 
corridor.  

Planned Development 
UDC Section 3.4.1 defines a PD as: “A flexible overlay zoning district designed to respond to unique 
development proposals, special design considerations and land use transitions by allowing evaluation 
of land use relationships to surrounding areas through development plan approval.”  
Per UDC Section, 3.4.3.A, a PD is subject to review and approval by City Council and requires a binding 
site plan. In this case, the proposal would include a future site plan review and amendment prior to 
development of the property for big box retail or multi family. 

SURROUNDING PROPERTIES AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the 
property, Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Subject 
Property 

 Suburban Commercial/ 
Suburban Residential 

  AG Vacant 

North  Suburban Commercial PD-GR Commercial development 

South  Suburban Residential   SF-2 Residential Subdivision 

East  Auto Urban Residential   SF-2 Residential Subdivision 

West Suburban Commercial AG Quarry 



03/21/19 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan (CP) and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 

Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
In the FLUM, the subject property is designated as Suburban Commercial and to the east Suburban 
Residential. The proposal is partially in compliance with the FLUM as the PD-GR zoning is compatible 
with the Suburban Commercial designation and serves to support the Suburban Residential 
designation. 

Thoroughfare and Trails Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access along two sides designated as Major Arterials in the Thoroughfare 
Plan, and along South Cedar Road, which is designated as a local street. Staff has proposed a condition 
to require a sidewalk with development of the property to assist pedestrian access from surrounding 
subdivisions. A proposed local connector trail is shown traversing the property along the Floodplain 
area. The developer agreed to a staff condition to install a trail at that location upon development. 

Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Water and sewer are available to service the subject property. 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliant? 

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) Partial/Yes 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan Yes 

CP 
Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance Yes 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

PUBLIC NOTICE: Sixty-six notices were mailed to property owners within a 200 feet buffer area of the 
property. The notices included information on the public hearing as required by State Law and City 
Ordinance. As of noon on Thursday, March 14th, 2019, one notice was received in disagreement; and 
six notices in agreement (three from owner) were received, with two notices returned undeliverable. 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on February 7, 2019 in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 



03/21/19 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Location and Other Maps 
Site Photos 
Tables 
Returned Property Notices 
P & Z Meeting Excerpts 
Site Development Plan 
Ordinance  



ADAMS LN

S
CE
D
A
R
RD

STARVIEWST

FALLEN LEAF LN

VISTAVALLEYDR

KANSAS AVE

SAGEMEADOWDR

IOWA AVE

SU
N
R
IS
E 
B
LU

FF

G
R
EE

N
 P
A
ST

U
R
E 
D
R

TU
M
B
LE

W
EE

D
 T
R
L

EA
G
LE
S 
N
ES

T 
C
V

M
O
O
N
SH

A
D
O
W

CT

SILVERSPRINGCT

S 
C
ED

A
R
 R
D

WADAMSAVE(FM2305)

ST
A
TE

 H
IG
H
W
A
Y 
31

7

Village of Sage Meadows (pvt)

Village of Sage Meadows Park

Freedom Park

Ü

Zoning Case :
FY-19-7-ZC

AG TO PD-GR

Address :
8901 W ADAMS AVE

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 2/2/2019

Transportation
Streets

MAJOR ARTERIAL

LOCAL STREET

Temple Municipal Boundary



GOLDSMITH
SUBDIVISION

SAUNDERS ADDITION
FIRST EXTENSION

PEA RIDGE
CAMPUS
ADDITION

VILLAGE OF
SAGE MEADOWS

PHASE VI

J A J
ADDITION

SAGE
MEADOWS
PHASE I

SAGE
MEADOWS
PHASE III

SAGE MEADOWS
PHASE III

HILLDELL
ESTATES

SAUNDERS
ADDITION

SAUNDERS
ADDITION

SWEET
ADDITION

VILLAGE OF
SAGE MEADOWS

WINDMILL FARMS
PHASE ONE

CORNERSTONE
AUTO ADDITION

WEST
TARVER

ADDITION

ADAMS ISLAND
COMMERCIAL

ADAMS ISLAND
COMMERCIAL

WAPITI
BUSINESS
PARK

Village
of Sage

Meadows Park

Village
of Sage

Meadows (pvt)

ST
A
TE

 H
IG
H
W
A
Y 
31

7

WADAMSAVE(FM2305)

S 
C
ED

A
R
 R
D

ADAMS LN

ST
A
R
V
IE
W
 S
T

FALLEN LEAF LN

VISTA VALLEY DR

G
R
EE

N
 P
A
ST

U
R
E 
D
R

TU
M
B
LE

W
EE

D
 T
R
L

SAGE MEADOW DR

TARVER DR

SF-2

GR

SF-3

GR

SF-3

SF-2

GR

GR
GR

GR

SF-2

SF-2

GR

GR

GR

AG

Ü

Date: 2/2/2019
 lrbarrett

Zoning Case :
FY-19-7-ZC

AG TO PD-GR

Address :
8901 W Adams

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD



Date: 2/2/2019

West Temple
Park

Freedom Park

Village
of Sage

Meadows Park

Village
of Sage

Meadows (pvt)

Village of Sage
Meadows Park

ST
A
TE

 H
IG
H
W
A
Y 
31

7

W ADAMS AVE (FM 2305)

SAGE MEADOW DR

FALLEN LEAF LN

STARVIEWST

TULLYWEARYLN

VISTA VALLEY DR

S 
M
O
N
TP

A
R
K
 R
D

KANSAS AVE

N
 M

O
N
TP

A
R
K
 R
D

SA
G
EB

R
U
SH

D
R

COWPAGECT

G
R
EE

N
 P
A
ST

U
R
E 
D
R

LONESOMEOAKDR

DELAWARE AVE

ADAMS LN

IOWA AVE

S 
C
ED

A
R
 R
D

S
C
ED

A
R
R
D

IDAHO AVE

GEORGIA AVE

TU
M
B
LE

W
EE

D
 T
R
L

SU
N
SET

CA
N
Y
O
N
DR

FA
LL
EN

 L
EA

F 
LN

H
A
R
V
ES

T 
M
EA

D
O
W
 D

R

SU
N
R
IS
E
B
LU

FF

TARVER DR

S
PE

A
R
ID
G
E
R
D

Ü
Zoning Case :
FY-19-7-ZC

AG TO PD-GR

8901W ADAMS AVE

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 2/2/2019
 lrbarrett

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

Transportation
EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcel Features
Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

Production.SDE.Easement



Date: 2/2/2019

[
[

[ [
[

[
[

[
[

[
[ [ [ [ [ [ [ [

[ [ [
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[ [ [ [ [ [

[

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

West Temple
Park

Freedom Park

Village
of Sage

Meadows Park

Village
of Sage

Meadows (pvt)

Village
of Sage

Meadows Park

ST
A
TE

 H
IG
H
W
A
Y 
31

7

W ADAMS AVE (FM 2305)

SAGE MEADOW DR

FALLEN LEAF LN

STARVIEWST

TULLYWEARYLN

VISTA VALLEY DR

S 
M
O
N
TP

A
R
K
 R
D

KANSAS AVE

N
 M

O
N
TP

A
R
K
 R
D

SA
G
EB

R
U
SH

D
R

COWPAGECT

G
R
EE

N
 P
A
ST

U
R
E 
D
R

LONESOMEOAKDR

DELAWARE AVE

ADAMS LN

IOWA AVE

S 
C
ED

A
R
 R
D

S
C
ED

A
R
R
D

IDAHO AVE

GEORGIA AVE

TU
M
B
LE

W
EE

D
 T
R
L

SU
N
SET

CA
N
Y
O
N
DR

FA
LL
EN

 L
EA

F 
LN

H
A
R
V
ES

T 
M
EA

D
O
W
 D

R

SU
N
R
IS
E
B
LU

FF

TARVER DR

S 
PE

A
 R
ID
G
E 
R
D

Ü
Zoning Case :
FY-19-7-ZC

AG TO PD-GR

8901 W ADAMS AVE

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 2/2/2019
 lrbarrett

Parcel
Features

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

Production.SDE.

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP



GF

GF
GF

GF

GF
GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF
GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

6 14

8

18

1.5

1
0

2.
5

1
2

6

12

8

6

2.5

TARVER DR

ADAMS LN

S
CE
D
A
R
RD

STA
R
V
IEW

ST

VISTAVALLEYDR

FALLEN LEAF LN

KANSAS AVE

SAGE MEADOW DR

G
R
EE

N
 P
A
ST

U
R
E 
D
R

TU
M
B
LE

W
EE

D
 T
R
L

SU
N
R
IS
E 
B
LU

FF

M
O
O
N
SH

A
D
O
W

CT EA
G
LE
S 
N
ES

T 
C
V

SILVER SPRING CT

WADAMSAVE(FM2305)

ST
A
TE

 H
IG
H
W
A
Y 
31

7

Village of Sage Meadows (pvt)

Freedom Park

Village of Sage Meadows Park

Ü

Zoning Case :
FY-19-7-ZC

AG TO PF-GR

Address :
8901 W ADAMS AVE

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 2/2/2019

Sewer
Manhole

Gravity Main

WaterDistribution
GF Hydrant

Main

Parcel Features
Parcels

Production.SDE.Easement



6401
PropID:
470249

9203
PropID:
386088

9205
PropID:
386089

9208
PropID:
386095

812
PropID:
386096

724
PropID:
386099

9203
PropID:
386101

9205
PropID:
386102

9207
PropID:
386103

823
PropID:
386125

819
PropID:
386126

811
PropID:
386128

807
PropID:
386129

729
PropID:
386130

725
PropID:
386131

721
PropID:
386132

715
PropID:
386135

713
PropID:
386136

712
PropID:
386137

718
PropID:
386140

722
PropID:
386141

806
PropID:
386144

812
PropID:
386145
820

PropID:
386147

824
PropID:
386149

823
PropID:
386156

817
PropID:
386158

809
PropID:
386159

805
PropID:
386160

723
PropID:
386163

717
PropID:
386165

713
PropID:
386167

8932
PropID:
386168

8924
PropID:
386170

8920
PropID:
386171

8916
PropID:
386172

8912
PropID:
386173

8908
PropID:
386174
8904

PropID:
386175

724
PropID:
386180

720
PropID:
386181

716
PropID:
386182

712
PropID:
386183

701
PropID:
386187

8713
PropID:
99372

413
PropID:
352370417

PropID:
352372

8719
PropID:
352394

730
PropID:
386143

8988
PropID:
386177

728
PropID:
386179

9114
PropID:
451516

9330
PropID:
55224

6511
PropID:
460601

9715
PropID:
372064

728
PropID:
386121

9118
PropID:
386123

9211
PropID:
386091

9213
PropID:
386092

9212
PropID:
386093

9210
PropID:
386094

9209
PropID:
386104

9210
PropID:
386105

9208
PropID:
386106

9206
PropID:
386107

9204
PropID:
386108

9202
PropID:
386109

9128
PropID:
386111 9112

PropID:
386113

9108
PropID:
386114

9022
PropID:
386116

9014
PropID:
386118

9010
PropID:
386119

9116
PropID:
386151

7312
PropID:
207369

6707
PropID:
389306

6521
PropID:
26066

9100
PropID:
416484

9228
PropID:
451543

8872
PropID:
386189

102
PropID:
109179

8901
PropID:
69485

8901
PropID:
8959

9006
PropID:
386120

708
PropID:
386184

704
PropID:
386185

703
PropID:
386186

8774
PropID:
386077

9012
PropID:
387768

8782
PropID:
387771

8882
PropID:
392789

8801
PropID:
46753

8806
PropID:
21371

8718
PropID:
49833

8818
PropID:
198396

8732
PropID:
333120

8724
PropID:
333122

8716
PropID:
333124

8708
PropID:
3331268733

PropID:
333135

8725
PropID:
333137

8713
PropID:
3331408707

PropID:
333142

8623
PropID:
333148

8619
PropID:
333149

416
PropID:
352344

410
PropID:
352347

408
PropID:
352348

406
PropID:
352349

402
PropID:
352351

318
PropID:
352353

316
PropID:
352354

8724
PropID:
352355

8720
PropID:
352356

8626
PropID:
352403

8706
PropID:
352405

8716
PropID:
3524088720

PropID:
352409

8724
PropID:
352410

8725
PropID:
352411

8721
PropID:
352412

8717
PropID:
352413

8713
PropID:
352414

8705
PropID:
352416

110
PropID:
98922

8912
PropID:
386188

8901
PropID:
69482

128
PropID:
36852

106
PropID:
61484

8850
PropID:
63067

9336
PropID:
36617

648
PropID:
386190

648
PropID:
386190

7202
PropID:
207007

8938
PropID:
455330

8924
PropID:
455329

9219
PropID:
457395 9201

PropID:
457396 9121

PropID:
457397 9105

PropID:
471937

9214
PropID:
386124

9311
PropID:
459880

9336
PropID:
36617

9132
PropID:
386110

9204
PropID:
451540

9214
PropID:
451542

6455
PropID:
50724

9017
PropID:
457400

6218
PropID:
74277

1111-B
1111-C

1114-G

1114C-A

1115B-A

2506-A

2810-A

2507-A

Village of Sage
Meadows

Park

Village
of Sage

Meadows (pvt)

ST
A
TE

 H
IG
H
W
A
Y 
31

7

WADAMSAVE(FM2305)

S 
C
ED

A
R
 R
D

ADAMS LN

ST
A
R
V
IE
W
 S
T

FALLEN LEAF LN

G
R
EE

N
 P
A
ST

U
R
E 
D
R

TU
M
B
LE

W
EE

D
 T
R
L

SAGE MEADOW DR

TARVER DR

Ü

Date: 2/2/2019
 lrbarrett

Zoning Case :
FY-19-7-ZC

AG TO PD-GR

Address :
8901 W Adams

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

Production.SDE.Easement



SITE PHOTOS 

 

Frontage Along 317 

 



 

Frontage along West Adams

 



 



Development Standards 
 

 

Current  (AG)  
Residential 

Proposed  
(PD-GR) 
Non-Res 

Minimum Lot Size 1 Acre N/A 
Minimum Lot Width 100 Feet N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth 150 Feet N/A 

Front Setback 50 Feet 15 Feet  

Side Setback 15 Feet 10 Feet 
Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 10 Feet 

Rear Setback 10 Feet  10 Feet 
Max Building Height 3 Stories 3 Stories 

 
 
 10’ rear setback (Non-residential use abuts a residential zoning district or 

use)-  UDC Section 4.4.4.F3 
 
General provisions for buffering and screening for non-residential uses adjacent to 

residential uses are found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted provisions include: 
* landscaping or solid fencing from 6 to 8 feet in height (UDC Section 7.7.4), 
*  

NOTE: A 20-FOOT PERIMETER LANDSCAPE STRIP IS PROPOSED 

 



Permitted & Conditional Uses Table  
Comparison between AG & NS 

 

Use Type Agricultural  
(AG) General Retail (GR) 

Agricultural Uses Farm, Ranch or Orchard Same as AG 

Residential Uses 

Single Family Residence 
(Detached & Attached) 
Industrialized Housing                                                      
Family / Group Home 
(CUP)           

Single Family Detached & Attached Only 
Industrialized Housing 
Townhouse 
Family /Group Home (CUP)                                                                                                               

Retail & Service 
Uses 

None Most Retail & Service Uses 
Restaurants; Beer & Wine Sales, off-
premise consumption (CUP)                                                

Commercial Uses None                             Contractor Storage, Print Shop, 
Plumbing and Upholstery shop                                                                                        

Office Uses None Office Uses 

Industrial Uses 
Temporary Asphalt & 
Concrete Batching Plat 
(CUP)                                                                                      

Same as AG 
Laboratory, medical, dental, scientific or 
research (CUP)                                                                                                                           

Recreational Uses Park or Playground Indoor and Outdoor Amusements                                                 

Educational  
& Institutional Uses 

Cemetery (CUP) 
Place of Worship 
Social Svc. Shelter 
(CUP) 
Halfway House (CUP) 

Church, hospital, museum, school 

Vehicle Service 
Uses 

None Fuel Sales, Auto leasing, carwash, auto 
sales, motorcycle/scooter sales and 
service 

Restaurant Uses None Restaurant and with drive through 
Overnight 

Accommodations 
RV Park (CUP) Hotel and RV Park (CUP) 

 

















 

 

EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2019 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 3:  FY-19-7-ZC - Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action for a rezoning 

request from Agricultural (AG) zoning district to Planned Development-General 
Retail (PD-GR) zoning district, on 54.592 +/- acres, situated in the Baldwin 
Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17, Bell County, Texas, addressed as 8901 W. 
Adams Avenue. 

Ms. Lynn Barrett, Assistant Director of Planning, stated this rezoning is scheduled to go 
forward to City Council for first reading on March 21, 2019 and second reading on April 4, 
2019. 
Aerial map of subject property is shown, and an enlarged location map is also shown. 
The subject property is bordered on two sides by Sage Meadows Subdivision, and developer 
proposed retail uses.  Developer is requesting an option to add multi-family to no more than 
15 acres in the site. 
Ms. Barrett stated that applicant, Josh Welch for WBW, and owner, Paul Kinnison, proposes a 
mix of various retail uses including a strip center and out parcels on the property.  Planned 
Development conditions would apply due to the size and visibility of property and include 
additional site development plan review for big box retail or multi-family uses prior to 
development, for landscaping and buffering/sidewalk provisions, and sign design elements. 
Originally, developer was interested in a Commercial (C) rezoning, but after working with staff 
the PD-GR zoning was decided to be best suited for their needs. 
On-site and surrounding property photos are shown. 
Current zoning map is shown. 
The Future Land Use map is shown identifying the Suburban-Commercial zoning areas as 
well as Suburban-Residential areas found to be in partial compliance.  Regarding surrounding 
areas:  Suburban-Commercial, Suburban-Residential, and Auto-Urban Residential zoning 
areas were found to be in partial compliance. 
The utility map is shown and found to be in compliance.  Water and sewer are available to 
serve the subject property.  Due to drainage area, part of the property cannot be developed. 
Thoroughfare and Trails map is shown and found to be in compliance.  The two major arterials 
are State Highway 317 and West Adams.  An existing sidewalk is already in place  along 
State Highway 317 and a sidewalk will be required per ordinance along Adams at 
development with a a four-foot sidewalk recommended as a PD condition on South Cedar 
Road at development.  There is also a PD condition to build a trail along the drainage area. 
Ms. Barrett reviewed the definition of a PD and the PD conditions are: 

1. PD-GR on the entire property, allowing GR uses by right with the following exceptions; 



 

 

a. Any GR development having a building in excess of 50,000 square feet will 
require an additional site development plan PD rezoning case and;  

b. Site plan approval prior to construction for structure elevations, landscaping, and 
parking lot design. 

2. Multi-family development will be allowed on up to 15 acres, with the requirement of an 
additional development site plan approval as a PD amendment prior to construction for 
structure elevations, landscaping, and parking lot design; 

3. Free standing signage bases to contain masonry and/or decorative metal element; 
4. An improved trail along the drainage area bisecting the property and landscaped 

greenspace is required at development of adjacent areas to implement the Trails 
Master Plan; 

5. Screening and buffer a minimum of 20-feet in width required along neighboring 
properties with residential uses; and 

6. Minimum four-foot sidewalk along South Cedar Road at development. 
Sixty-six notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with six notices 
returned in agreement, 3 from the property owner and 3 from other owners, and zero notices 
returned in disagreement. 
Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request to PD-GR with the previously mentioned 
conditions and with Site Development Plans to follow as specified prior to development. 
Chair Langley opened the public hearing. 
There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 
Commissioner Armstrong made a motion to approve Item 3, FY-19-7-ZC, per staff 
recommendation, and Vice-Chair Ward made a second 
Motion passed: (9:0) 
 



Site Plan 8901 W Adams Ave Conditions
1. PD-GR on entire property, allowing GR uses by right 

with the following exceptions;
a. Any GR development having a building in excess 

of 50,000 square feet (typical “big-box”) will 
require an additional site development plan PD 
rezoning case and, 

b. Council site plan approval showing landscaping 
and parking lot design, as well as building 
elevations prior to construction

2. Multi-family development will be allowed on up to 15 
acres, with the requirement of an additional 
development site plan approval by City Council 
showing landscaping and parking lot design, as well 
as building elevations prior to construction 

3. Free standing signage bases to primarily consist of 
masonry and/or decorative metal elements

4. An improved trail along the drainage area bisecting 
the property and landscaped greenspace is required 
at development of adjacent areas to implement the 
Trails Master Plan

5. Screening and buffering a minimum of 20 feet in 
width required along neighboring properties with 
residential uses

6. Minimum 4’ sidewalk along S Cedar Road at 
development

7. Six foot sidewalk required along West Adams Ave.
Required sidewalk
Required trail



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-4959 

(FY-19-7-ZC) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL ZONING 
DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT-GENERAL RETAIL ZONING 
DISTRICT, ON APPROXIMATELY 54.592 ACRES, SITUATED IN THE 
BALDWIN ROBERTSON SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 17, BELL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, ADDRESSED AS 8901 WEST ADAMS AVENUE, TEMPLE, TEXAS; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Whereas, the applicant, WBW, desires to rezone approximately 54.592 acres from 
Agricultural zoning district to General Retail zoning district to allow for future retail; 

 
Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after 

due consideration to the conditions, recommends approval of the rezoning from 
Agricultural zoning district to Planned Development-General Retail zoning district, on 
approximately 54.592 acres, situated in the Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17, 
Bell County, Texas, addressed as 8901 West Adams Avenue, as outlined in the map and 
field notes attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes, and 
subject to the following conditions: 

 
• Planned Development-General Retail zoning on entire property, allowing 

General Retail uses by right with the following exceptions; 
o Any General Retail development having a building in excess of 

50,000 square feet (typical “big-box”) will require an additional site 
development plan Planned Development rezoning case; and  

o Council site plan approval showing landscaping and parking lot 
design, as well as building elevations prior to construction; 

• Multi-family development will be allowed on up to 15 acres, with the 
requirement of an additional development site plan approval by City Council 
showing landscaping and parking lot design, as well as building elevations 
prior to construction;  

• Free standing signage bases to primarily consist of masonry and/or 
decorative metal elements; 

• An improved trail along the drainage area bisecting the property and 
landscaped greenspace is required at development of adjacent areas to 
implement the Trails Master Plan; 

• Screening and buffering a minimum of 20 feet in width required along 
neighboring properties with residential uses; 

• Minimum 4-foot sidewalk along South Cedar Road at development; and 
 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 

interest to authorize this action. 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 



2 
 

 
Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 

legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their 
entirety. 

 
Part 2: The City Council approves of the rezoning from Agricultural zoning 

district to Planned Development-General Retail zoning district, on approximately 54.592 
acres, situated in the Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17, Bell County, Texas, 
addressed as 8901 West Adams Avenue, as outlined in the map and field notes attached 
hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes, and subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
• Planned Development-General Retail zoning uses by right with the 

following exceptions; 
o Any General Retail development having a building in excess of 

50,000 square feet (typical “big-box”) will require an additional site 
development plan Planned Development rezoning case; and  

o Council site plan approval showing landscaping and parking lot 
design, as well as building elevations prior to construction; 

• Multi-family development will be allowed on up to 15 acres, with the 
requirement of an additional development site plan approval by City Council 
showing landscaping and parking lot design, as well as building elevations 
prior to construction;  

• Free standing signage bases to primarily consist of masonry and/or 
decorative metal elements 

• An improved trail along the drainage area bisecting the property and 
landscaped greenspace is required at development of adjacent areas to 
implement the Trails Master Plan; 

• Screening and buffering a minimum of 20 feet in width required along 
neighboring properties with residential uses; 

• Minimum 4’ sidewalk along South Cedar Road at development; and 
 

 Part 3: The City Council approves the Site Development Plan attached hereto as 
Exhibit ‘B,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes.  

 
Part 4: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 
 



3 
 

Part 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 7: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 21st day 

of March, 2019. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 4th day of April, 2019. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 3 

DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION REVIEW: 

Mark Baker, Principal Planner 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – FY-19-8-ZC: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing rezoning from Light Industrial zoning district to Single-Family One zoning district, 
on 0.189 +/- acres, being Lot 7, Block 5, Rylander Addition, addressed as 14 North 12th Street. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from LI to SF-1 district for 
the following reasons: 

1. The proposed SF-1 zoning coupled with issued building permits will bring the subject property
into conformance with zoning;

2. The proposed SF-1 zoning is compatible with surrounding and existing residential uses in the
same street block;

3. The proposal is in compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan; and
4. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their February 19, 2019 meeting, The 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend approval per staff’s recommendation. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The applicant and property owner, Lonnie Gruner, requests rezoning of 0.189 +/- 
acres (8,232 +/- square feet) from Light Industrial (LI) zoning district to Single-Family 1 (SF-1) zoning 
district in order to bring a non-conforming use and two structures into conformance and allow expansion 
of living space, which is currently not allowed in the LI district. The property is currently platted and 
occupied by an existing non-conforming single-family residence, which is over 100 years old. The 
applicant desires to convert an accessory structure into living space as well as a remodeling of attic 
space into living space for the existing residence. While single-family residential uses are prohibited in 
the LI zoning district, rezoning to SF-1 would allow conversion for additional living space, subject to 
City Council approval of the rezoning. A second residential unit is still prohibited with SF-1 zoning.  

Per UDC Section 9.2, non-conforming uses and structures cannot be increased, enlarged or expanded. 
Further, per UDC Section 9.2.5, if destroyed by fire, a non-conforming structure cannot be rebuilt. 

The requested zoning to SF-1 coupled with the following building permits meeting all dimensional 
standards and with the front building used as a residence only, will bring the property into conformance: 



03/21/19 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

• Single Family Residence (Front) – Permit number FY-19-40-BDRR – Interior remodel (only)
to bring residence up to code and allow conversion of attic space to living space. (Issued January
23, 2019)

• Accessory Building (Rear) – Permit number FY-19-2-ACRL – Exterior & interior remodel to
bring structure up to code with no provisions as a residence (Issued January 16, 2019)

ZONING:  As the property is currently zoned LI, single-family residences are not permitted as well as 
expansion of existing single-family residences, as discussed earlier in this report. The character of the 
west side of this block of North 12th Street is primarily single-family in nature. The new Comprehensive 
Plan & East Temple revitalization efforts will want to take a closer look at preservation of this 
neighborhood. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the 
Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive 
Plan Compliance table but further described below: 

Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is within the Auto-Urban Commercial Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation. 
The Auto-Urban Commercial designation is appropriate for a majority of the areas identified for 
commercial use. The designation also lends itself to the more intense general retail uses. Single family 
uses alone are not consistent with the designation. 

However, the subject property is adjacent to the Auto-Urban Residential designation which does 
support residential uses. Additionally, there is an existing lot in the same block that is zoned 2F, which 
is occupied by a residential use and there are existing residential uses within the same street block. 
Therefore, the proposed SF-1 zoning district is in PARTIAL compliance with the FLUM.  

Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
Twelfth (12th) Street is a local street requiring a minimum 50-foot right-of-way (ROW). The existing 
ROW is approximately 60 feet and therefore, there are no impacts to the Thoroughfare Plan. 

Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Waste water is available from a 12-inch sewer line in the alley as well as from a six-inch sewer line on 
the opposite side of North 12th Street. Water is available from a two-inch water line in the alley as well 
as from a six-inch waterline on the opposite side of North 12th Street.   

Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
There are no trails, as identified by the Temple Trails Master Plan, impacted by this rezoning request. 
Since North 12th Street is a local street, no sidewalks are required. 

DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The attached tables compare and contrast, the current 
development standards for LI with the proposed SF-1 standards as provided for in UDC Sections 4.2, 
4.5 and 4.5.1 



03/21/19 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

PUBLIC NOTICE: Sixteen notices, were sent to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property 
containing notice of the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance. As of Tuesday 
March 12, 2019 at 9:00 AM, four notices, two of which are from the same owner relating to six 
properties, represent a total of eight properties have been received in agreement. 

The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on February 7, 2019, in accordance with state law 
and local ordinance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Boundary Map (Exhibit A) 
Photos 
Tables 
Maps 
Returned Property Notices 
Planning Excerpts (February 19, 2019) 
Ordinance 



mbaker
Text Box

mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 

 
 

Site (Front): Existing Single-Family Residential Uses  (LI) 
 

 
 

Site (Rear): Existing Single-Family Residential Uses (LI) 



 
 

South: Existing Single-Family Residential Uses (LI) 
 

 
 

West (Looking toward Subject Property): Existing Commercial Uses (C) 



 
 

East – Existing Commerical & Industrial Uses (LI) 
 

 
 

North: Below Grade Photo showing East Adams Ave (SH 53) ROW (LI) 



 

 
 

Aerial – 3D Google Earth Street Image of Immediate Neigborhood (2F & LI) 
 



Tables 
 

Permitted & Conditional Uses Table  
Comparison between LI & SF-1 

 
Use Type Light Industrial (LI) Single Family-1 (SF-1) 

Agricultural Uses Farm, Ranch or Orchard 
Animal Shelter 

Farm, Ranch or Orchard 

Residential Uses 

Boarding or Rooming House 
No – SF Residence 
(Detached & Attached)                                                                                                                                                                                               
Family or Group Home (CUP)       
Home for the Aged                                                     

Single Family (Detached Only) 
Industrialized Housing 
  

Retail & Service 
Uses 

Most Retail & Service Uses None                                                

Office Uses Office Uses None 

Commercial Uses All Commercial Uses                  None                                                                                             

Industrial Uses 
Most Industrial Uses 
Temporary Asphalt & 
Concrete Batching Plat (CUP)                                                                                      

Temporary Asphalt & Concrete 
Batching Plat (CUP)                                                                                      

Recreational Uses 
Alcoholic Beverage Sales, 
beer & wine only < 75% 
All Alcoholic sales - >50% 
- < 75% or more (CUP)                                                                                                                          

 None 

Educational  
& Institutional Uses 

Cemetery (CUP) 
Place of Worship 
Social Svc. Shelter (CUP) 
Child Care Day Care – No 
Family 

Same as LI 
Child Care: Family Home Only (Up to 6 
Children, including host family children)                                      

Vehicle Service 
Uses 

Most vehicle & Service Uses None 

Restaurant Uses Restaurant - Drive-In None 
Overnight 

Accommodations 
Hotel / Motel 
RV Park (CUP) 

None 

Transportation 
Uses 

All Transportation Uses                             None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Surrounding Property Uses 
 

 Surrounding Property & Uses 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Auto-Urban Commercial LI SF Residential Uses 
North Parks & Open Space /  

Auto-Urban Commercial 
LI Undeveloped & E. Adams Ave   

(SH 53 ROW) 
South Auto-Urban Residential  LI & 2F Residential Uses  

East Auto-Urban Commercial LI  Industrial Uses 

West Auto-Urban Commercial C  & GR Retail & Commercial Uses 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Comprehensive Plan Compliance 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map PARTIAL 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP Goal 4.1 - Growth and development 
patterns should be consistent with 
the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and 
Sidewalks Ordinance 

YES 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Dimensional Standards 
 

 

Current 
(LI) 

Non-Residential 

Proposed 
(SF-1) 

Residential 
Minimum Lot Size N/A 7,500 Square Feet 
Minimum Lot Width N/A 60 Feet 
Minimum Lot Depth N/A 100 Feet 

Front Setback * UDC Sec. 4.4.4F.1d 25 Feet  

Side Setback 0 Feet  
  10% Lot Width 
       6 Ft Min 

Side Setback (corner) 10 Feet 15 Feet 
Rear Setback 0 Feet 10 Feet 
Max Building Height ALH 2 Stories 

 
                                        ALH – Any Legal Height not prohibited by other laws 
 
* UDC Sec. 4.4.4F.1d: In the C, CA, LI & HI districts, a structure may not be erected nearer than 

30 feet to the centerline of any street on which such structure fronts  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Traffic Count Information 



Select - NS Permitted & Conditional Uses 
 

Peak Hour Trip Rates Table (9th Ed. ITE Manual) 
Use Peak Hour Trip Rate 

Single Family (Detached) Residence 1.00 (per Dwelling Unit) 
Townhouse 0.52 (per Dwelling Unit) 

Assisted Living Facility 0.22 (per Bed) 
General Office Building 1.49 (per 1,000 S.F.) 

Hair Salon 1.93 (per 1,000 S.F.) 
Gasoline Service Station /  with 

Convenience Store & Fuel Pumps 
13.51  

(per Fueling Station) 
Arts & Crafts Store 6.21 (per 1,000 S.F.) 

Fast Food Restaurant (No Drive-Thru)   26.15 (per 1,000 S.F.) 
Restaurant (Sit Down) 11.15 (per 1,000 S.F.) 

Bank 12.13 (per 1,000 S.F.) 
Variety Store 6.82 (per 1,000 S.F.) 

Free Standing Discount Store 4.98 (per 1,000 S.F.) 
 



Maps 
 

 
 

Location Map 
 

 
 

Aerial Map 



 
 

Zoning Map 
 

 
 

Future Land Use Map 
 



 
 

Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
 

 
 

Utility Map 



 

 
 

Notification Map 
 

 
 

 











 

 

EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2019 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
Item 4:   FY-19-8-ZC - Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action on a 

rezoning from Light Industrial (LI) zoning district to Single-Family One (SF-1) zoning 
district, on 0.189 +/- acres, being Lot 7, Block 5, Rylander Addition, addressed as 14 
North 12th Street. 

Mr. Mark Baker, Principal Planner, stated this rezoning is scheduled to go forward to City 
Council for first reading on March 21, 2019 and second reading on April 4, 2019. 
This rezoning is to allow property owner, Mr. Lonnie Gruner, to bring an accessory building up 
to code standards and convert attic space into living area for the existing residence in the front 
of the lot.  
Residential uses are not permitted in Light Industrial (LI)  

 Nonconforming uses/structures cannot be increased, expanded or enlarged (UDC Sec. 
(9.2) 

 Nonconforming structures cannot be rebuilt if destroyed by fire (UDC Sec. 9.2.5 
Currently, building permits have been issued for:   

 Accessory Building (rear) exterior and interior remodel to bring structure up to code 
with no provisions as a residence 

 Single Family Residence (front) interior remodel work only which includes conversion of 
attic space to living space (Subject to rezoning approval)  

Aerial site image and map with location is shown. 
Zoning map is shown and found to be in compliance.  Existing single-family residential uses 
are non-conforming. This rezoning along with issued permits would bring the property into 
compliance. 
The Future Land Use Map is shown and found to be in partial compliance due to adjacent 
Auto-Urban Residential zoning, which does not support single-family residential uses. 
The existing water and sewer map is shown and found to be in compliance. Water is available 
through a two-inch line in the alley and sewer is available through a 12-inch line also in the 
alley. 

The Thoroughfare Plan and Trails map is shown and found to be in compliance with no 
impacts. 
Aerial photo image of subject property is shown. 
On-site and surrounding property photo images are shown. 
Comparison of LI and SF-1 use tables are shown. 



 

 

Sixteen notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with three 
notices returned in agreement and zero notices returned in disagreement. 
Compliance Summary chart is shown with all areas found in compliance except Future Land 
Use Map found to be in partial compliance. 
Staff recommends approval of the request for a rezoning from LI district to SF-1 district. 
Chair Langley opened the public hearing. 
Mr. Lonnie Gruner, applicant, 3910 Shallow Ford Road, Temple, Texas, stated he was 
available to answer any questions the Commission might have. 
There being no further speakers, the public hearing was closed. 
Commissioner Fettig made a motion to approve Item 4, FY-19-8-ZC, per staff 
recommendation, and Vice-Chair Ward made a second 
Motion passed: (9:0) 
   
 



1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-4960 

(FY-19-8-ZC) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM LIGHT INDUSTRIAL 
ZONING DISTRICT TO SINGLE FAMILY ONE ZONING DISTRICT ON 
APPROXIMATELY 0.189 ACRES, BEING LOT 7, BLOCK 5, RYLANDER 
ADDITION, ADDRESSED AS 14 NORTH 12TH STREET, TEMPLE, TEXAS; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their entirety. 

 
 Part 2: The City Council approves a rezoning from Light Industrial zoning district to 

Single Family One zoning district on approximately 0.189 acres, being lot 7, block 5, Rylander 
Addition, addressed as 14 North 12th Street, as illustrated by the map attached hereto as Exhibit 
‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

 
Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 21st day of 

March, 2019. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 4th day of April, 2019. 
     

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
            

  
____________________________ 
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance 
granting to Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC an electric power franchise to use the present and 
future streets, alleys, highways, public utility easements, public ways, and public property of the City of 
Temple.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance on first reading as presented in item description and 
conduct a public hearing. Second reading will be scheduled for the April 4, 2019 City Council meeting. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC (“Oncor”) has a current franchise with the City 
of Temple for the delivery of electric power. The franchise expires on June 30, 2019 and Oncor has 
reached out to the City for renewal. The proposed ordinance would adopt a new franchise agreement with 
Oncor under the same terms that currently exist. The proposed franchise would expire on March 31, 2035. 
If neither party gives notice of cancellation earlier than 60 days before the expiration date, the franchise 
will automatically renew for an additional five-year period until March 31, 2040.  

Under the terms of the franchise agreement, Oncor will have the right to construct, extend, maintain and 
operate in, along, under and across the present and future streets, alleys, highways, public utility 
easements, public ways and other public property (“Public Rights-of-Way”) of the City. Oncor may install 
electric power lines, with all necessary appurtenances, for the purpose of delivering electricity to the City 
and the citizens of Temple. The City reserves the right to lay, and permit to be laid, storm, sewer, gas, 
water, wastewater and other pipe lines or other improvements in the Public Rights-of-Way.  

Franchise fees will be paid to the City in accordance with current practice and State law. 



03/21/19 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT: The City receives a franchise fee from Oncor. The amount of the franchise fee is 
calculated by a franchise fee factor of 0.002652 multiplied by each kilowatt hour of electricity delivered 
within the City on a quarterly basis. The quarterly payments are made as follows: 

In addition, the City receives 4% of gross revenues received by Oncor from services identified as 
discretionary service charges. This is paid annually to the City by April 30 of each year. The amount 
received in FY 2018 for this component of the franchise fee was $12,595. 

The total collected in FY 2018 was $3,249,425 for electric franchise fee revenue. The FY 2019 electric 
franchise fee revenue for all franchisees is budgeted at $3,445,000 and will be recognized in account 
110-0000-413-0132.

ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 

Privilege Period Payment
Basis Period (Following Year) Due Date

January 1 - March 31 January 1 - March 31 May 1
April 1 - June 30 April 1 - June 30 August 1

July 1 - September 30 July 1 - September 30 November 1
October 1 - December 31 October 1 - December 31 February 1



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-4961 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, GRANTING TO ONCOR ELECTRIC DELIVERY COMPANY LLC, 
ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, AN ELECTRIC POWER FRANCHISE TO 
USE THE PRESENT AND FUTURE STREETS, ALLEYS, HIGHWAYS, 
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENTS, PUBLIC WAYS AND PUBLIC PROPERTY 
OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR COMPENSATION 
THEREFOR; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND A TERM OF 
SAID FRANCHISE; PROVIDING FOR WRITTEN ACCEPTANCE OF THIS 
FRANCHISE; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF ALL EXISTING 
FRANCHISE ORDINANCES TO ONCOR ELECTRIC DELIVERY COMPANY 
LLC, ITS PREDECESSORS AND ASSIGNS  FINDING THAT THE MEETING 
AT WHICH THIS ORDINANCE IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 
 Part 1: That there is hereby granted to Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC, its 
successors and assigns (herein called “Company”), the right, privilege and franchise to construct, 
extend, maintain and operate in, along, under and across the present and future streets, alleys, 
highways, public utility easements, public ways and other public property (Public Rights-of-Way) 
of the City of Temple, Texas (herein called "City") electric power lines, with all necessary or 
desirable appurtenances (including underground conduits, poles, towers, wires, transmission lines, 
telephone and communication lines, and other structures for Company’s own use), (herein called 
“Facilities”) for the purpose of delivering electricity to the City, the inhabitants thereof, and 
persons, firms and corporations beyond the corporate limits thereof, for the term set out in Section 
7. 
 
 Part 2: Poles, towers and other structures shall be so erected as not to unreasonably interfere 
with traffic over streets, alleys and highways. 
 
 Part 3: The City reserves the right to lay, and permit to be laid, storm, sewer, gas, water, 
wastewater and other pipe lines, cables, and conduits, or other improvements and to do and permit 
to be done any underground or overhead work that may be necessary or proper in, across, along, 
over, or under Public Rights-of-Way occupied by Company.  The City also reserves the right to 
change in any manner any curb, sidewalk, highway, alley, public way, street, utility lines, storm 
sewers, drainage basins, drainage ditches, and the like.  City shall provide Company with at least 
thirty (30) days’ notice when requesting Company to relocate facilities and shall specify a new 
location for such facilities along the Public Rights-of-Way.  Company shall, except in cases of 
emergency conditions or work incidental in nature, obtain a permit, if required by City ordinance, 
prior to performing work in the Public Rights-of-Way, except in no instance shall Company be 
required to pay fees or bonds related to its use of the Public Rights-of-Way, despite the City’s 
enactment of any ordinance providing the contrary. Company shall construct its facilities in  



2 
 

 
conformance with the applicable provisions of the National Electrical Safety Code.  City-requested 
relocations of Company facilities in the Public Rights-of-Way shall be at the Company’s expense; 
provided however, if the City is the end use Retail Customer (customer who purchases electric 
power or energy and ultimately consumes it) requesting the removal or relocation of Company 
Facilities for its own benefit, or the project requiring the relocation is solely aesthetic/beautification 
in nature, it will be at the total expense of the City.  Provided further, if the relocation request 
includes, or is for, the Company to relocate above-ground facilities to an underground location, City 
shall be fully responsible for the additional cost of placing the facilities underground. 
 
If any other corporation or person (other than City) requests Company to relocate Company 
facilities located in City Rights-of-Ways, the Company shall not be bound to make such changes 
until such other corporation or person shall have undertaken, with good and sufficient bond, to 
reimburse the Company for any costs, loss, or expense which will be caused by, or arises out of 
such change, alteration, or relocation of Company’s Facilities.  City may not request the Company 
to pay for any relocation which has already been requested, and paid for, by any entity other than 
City. 
 
If City abandons any Public Rights-of-Way in which Company has facilities, such abandonment 
shall be conditioned on Company's right to maintain its use of the former Public Rights-of-Way and 
on the obligation of the party to whom the Public Rights-of-Way is abandoned to reimburse 
Company for all removal or relocation expenses if Company agrees to the removal or relocation of 
its facilities following abandonment of the Public Rights-of-Way.  If the party to whom the Public 
Rights-of-Way is abandoned requests the Company to remove or relocate its facilities and 
Company agrees to such removal or relocation, such removal or relocation shall be done within a 
reasonable time at the expense of the party requesting the removal or relocation.  If relocation 
cannot practically be made to another Public Rights-of-Way, the expense of any right-of-way 
acquisition shall be considered a relocation expense to be reimbursed by the party requesting the 
relocation. 
 
 Part 4: A. In consideration of the granting of this Franchise, Company shall, at its sole cost 
and expense, indemnify and hold the City, and its past and present officers, agents and employees  
harmless against any and all liability arising from suits, actions or claims regarding injury or death 
to any person or persons, or damages to any property arising out of or occasioned by the intentional 
and/or negligent acts or omissions of Company or any of its officers, agents, or employees in 
connection with Company’s  construction, maintenance and operation of Company’s system in the 
City Public Rights-of-Way, including any court costs, reasonable expenses and reasonable defenses 
thereof. 
 
 B. This indemnity shall only apply to the extent that the loss, damage or injury is 
attributable to the negligence or wrongful act or omission of the Company or its officers, agents or 
employees, and does not apply to the extent such loss, damage or injury is attributable to the 
negligence or wrongful act or omission of the City or the City’s officers, agents, or employees or 
any other person or entity.  This provision is not intended to create a cause of action or liability for 
the benefit of third parties but is solely for the benefit of Company and the City. 



3 
 

 
 C. In the event of joint and concurrent negligence or fault of both Company and the City, 
responsibility and indemnity, if any, shall be apportioned comparatively between the City and 
Company in accordance with the laws of the state of Texas without, however, waiving any 
governmental immunity available to the City under Texas law and without waiving any of the 
defenses of the parties under Texas law.  Further, in the event of joint and concurrent negligence or 
fault of both Company and the City, responsibility for all costs of defense shall be apportioned 
between the City and Company based upon the comparative fault of each. 
  
 D. In fulfilling its obligation to defend and indemnify City, Company shall have the right 
to select defense counsel, subject to City’s approval, which will not be unreasonably withheld.   
Company shall retain defense counsel within seven (7) business days of City’s written notice that 
City is invoking its right to indemnification under this franchise.  If Company fails to retain counsel 
within such time period, City shall have the right to retain defense counsel on its own behalf, and 
Company shall be liable for all reasonable defense costs incurred by City, except as otherwise 
provided in section 4.B and 4.C. 
 
 Part 5: This franchise is not exclusive, and nothing herein contained shall be construed so 
as to prevent the City from granting other like or similar rights, privileges and franchises to any 
other person, firm, or corporation.  Any Franchise granted by the City to any other person, firm, or 
corporation shall not unreasonably interfere with this Franchise. 
 
 Part 6: In consideration of the grant of said right, privilege and franchise by the City and as 
full payment for the right, privilege and franchise of using and occupying the said Public Rights-of-
Way, and in lieu of any and all occupation taxes, assessments, municipal charges, fees, easement 
taxes, franchise taxes, license, permit and inspection fees or charges, street taxes, bonds, street or 
alley rentals, and all other taxes, charges, levies, fees and rentals of whatsoever kind and character 
which the City may impose or hereafter be authorized or empowered to levy and collect, excepting 
only the usual general or special ad valorem taxes which the City is authorized to levy and impose 
upon real and personal property, sales and use taxes, and special assessments for public 
improvements, Company shall pay to the City the following: 
 

A. Final quarterly payment will be made on or before May 1, 2019 for the basis period of 
January 1, 2019 through March 31, 2019 and the privilege period of January 1, 2020 
through March 31, 2020 in accordance with the provisions in the previous franchise. 

 
B. As authorized by Section 33.008(b) of PURA, the original franchise fee factor calculated 

for the City in 2002 was 0.002526 (the “Base Factor”), multiplied by each kilowatt hour 
of electricity delivered by Company to each retail customer whose consuming facility’s 
point of delivery is located within the City’s municipal boundaries for determining 
franchise payments going forward. 

 
Due to a 2006 agreement between Company and City the franchise fee factor was 
increased to a franchise fee factor of 0.002652 (the “Current Factor”), multiplied by each 
kilowatt hour of electricity delivered by Company to each retail customer whose 
consuming facility’s point of delivery is located within the City’s municipal boundaries 
on a quarterly basis. 



4 
 

 
 

However, consistent with the 2006 agreement, should the Public Utility Commission of 
Texas at any time disallow Company’s recovery through rates of the higher franchise 
payments made under the Current Factor as compared to the Base Factor, then the 
franchise fee factor shall immediately revert to the Base Factor of 0.002526 and all 
future payments, irrespective of the time period that is covered by the payment, will be 
made using the Base Factor. 
 
Company shall make quarterly payments as follows: 

Payment Due Date Basis Period Privilege Period 
(Following Year) 

August 1 Apr. 1 - Jun. 30 Apr. 1 - Jun. 30 

November 1 Jul.1 - Sept. 30 Jul.1 - Sept. 30 
February 1 Oct. 1 - Dec. 31 Oct. 1 – Dec. 31 

May 1 Jan. 1 - Mar. 31 Jan. 1 - Mar. 31 
 

1. The first quarterly payment hereunder shall be due and payable on or before August 
1, 2019 and will cover the basis period of April 1, 2019 through June 30, 2019 and 
the privilege period of April 1, 2020 through June 30, 2020.  If this franchise is not 
effective prior to the first quarterly payment date, Company will pay any payments 
due within 30 days of the effective date of this agreement.  The final payment under 
this franchise is due on or before May 1, 2034 and covers the basis period of January 
1, 2034 through March 31, 2034 and the privilege period of January 1, 2035 through 
March 31, 2035; and 
 

2. After the final payment date of May 1, 2034, Company may continue to make 
additional quarterly payments in accordance with the above schedule.  City 
acknowledges that such continued payments will correspond to privilege periods that 
extend beyond the term of this Franchise and that such continued payments will be 
recognized in any subsequent franchise as full payment for the relevant quarterly 
periods. 

 
C. A sum equal to four percent (4%) of gross revenues received by Company from 

services identified as DD1 through DD24 in Section 6.1.2 “Discretionary Service 
Charges,” in Oncor’s Tariff for Retail Delivery Service (Tariff), effective 1/1/2002, that 
are for the account and benefit of an end-use retail electric consumer.  Company will, 
upon request by City, provide a cross reference to Discretionary Service Charge 
numbering changes that are contained in Company’s current approved Tariff. 

 
1. The franchise fee amounts based on “Discretionary Service Charges” shall be 

calculated on an annual calendar year basis, i.e. from January 1 through December 31 
of each calendar year. 

2. The franchise fee amounts that are due based on “Discretionary Service Charges” 
shall be paid at least once annually on or before April 30 each year based on the total 
“Discretionary Service Charges”, as set out in Section 6C, received during the  



5 
 

 
preceding calendar year.  The initial Discretionary Service Charge franchise fee 
amount will be paid on or before April 30, 2019 and will be based on the calendar 
year January 1 through December 31, 2018. The final Discretionary Service Charge 
franchise fee amount will be paid on or before April 30, 2036 and will be based on 
the calendar months of January 1, 2035 through March 31, 2035. 

 
3. Company may file a tariff or tariff amendment(s) to provide for the recovery of the 

franchise fee on Discretionary Service Charges. 
 

4. City agrees (i) to the extent the City acts as regulatory authority, to adopt and approve 
that portion of any tariff which provides for 100% recovery of the franchise fee on 
Discretionary Service Charges; (ii) in the event the City intervenes in any regulatory 
proceeding before a federal or state agency in which the recovery of the franchise fees 
on such Discretionary Service Charges is an issue, the City will take an affirmative 
position supporting the 100% recovery of such franchise fees by Company and; (iii) 
in the event of an appeal of any such regulatory proceeding in which the City has 
intervened, the City will take an affirmative position in any such appeals in support of 
the 100% recovery of such franchise fees by Company. 

 
5. City agrees that it will take no action, nor cause any other person or entity to take any 

action, to prohibit the recovery of such franchise fees by Company. 
 

6. In the event of a regulatory disallowance of the recovery of the franchise fees on the 
Discretionary Service Charges, Company will not be required to continue payment of 
such franchise fees. 

  
 Part 7: The City receives a franchise fee from Oncor and the amount of the franchise fee is 
calculated by a franchise fee factor of 0.002652 multiplied by each kilowatt hour of electricity 
delivered within the City on a quarterly basis. The quarterly payments are made as follows: 
 

Basis Period Privilege Period 
(Following Year) 

Payment Due 
Date 

January 1 – March 31 January 1 – March 31 May 1 

April 1 – June 30 April 1 – June 30 August 1 
July 1 – September 30 July 1 – September 30 November 1 

October 1 – December 31 October 1 – December 31 February 1 
 

In addition, the City receives 4% of gross revenues received by Oncor from services identified as 
discretionary service charges.  This is paid annually to the City by April 30 of each year. The amount 
received in FY 2018 for this component of the franchise fee was $12,595. 
 
The total collected in fiscal year 2018 was $3,249,425 for electric franchise fee revenue.  The fiscal year 
2019 electric franchise fee revenue for all franchisees is budgeted at $3,445,000 and will be recognized in 
Account No. 110-0000-413-0132. 

 
 



6 
 

 
 Part 8: This Ordinance shall become effective upon Company's written acceptance hereof, 
said written acceptance to be filed by Company with the City within sixty (60) days after final 
passage and approval hereof by City.  The right, privilege and franchise granted hereby shall expire 
on March 31, 2035; provided that, unless written notice of cancelation is given by either party 
hereto to the other not less than sixty (60) days before the expiration of this franchise agreement, it 
shall be automatically renewed for an additional period of (five) 5 years from such expiration date.  
 
 Part 9: This Ordinance shall supersede any and all other franchises granted by the City to 
Company, its predecessors and assigns. 
 
 Part 10: The sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are 
severable.  If any portion of this Ordinance is declared illegal or unconstitutional by the valid final 
non-appealable judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such illegality or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the legality and enforceability of any of the remaining portions of 
this Ordinance. 
 
 Part 11: In order to accept this franchise, Company must file with the City Secretary its 
written acceptance of this franchise ordinance within sixty (60) days after its final passage and 
approval by City. 
 
 Part 12: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 21st day of 

March, 2019. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 4th day of April, 2019.   

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Commented [KL1]: Need to add a signature line for Oncor. The 
ambulance franchise ordinance have signature lines at the end you 
can copy. Thanks! 



7 
 

 
 
 

Agreement of Franchisee 
 
 
TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS: 
 
 

The franchisee, Oncor Electric Delivery Company, LLC, acting by and through its duly 
authorized and empowered officer, hereby accepts the terms and conditions of Ordinance No. 2019-
4961 granting a non-exclusive franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency ambulance 
transfer service upon the public streets and highways of the City of Temple. 
 

SIGNED this ____day of __________________, 2019 
 
 
     Oncor Electric Delivery Company, LLC 
 
 

 
             
     By:  

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

DEPT.  / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   

Brynn Myers, City Manager 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution to take action on the Temple Professional 
Firefighters Association’s “Petition Requesting Recognition of Bargaining Agent” as required by Texas 
Local Government Code Chapter 142. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends adopting the resolution to grant recognition to 
Temple Professional Firefighters Association as requested in the Petition and determine by a majority 
vote that the City may meet and confer under Chapter 142.  

ITEM SUMMARY: The “meet and confer” process is governed by Chapter 142 of the Local Government 
Code. Chapter 142 allows a “firefighters association” to file a petition with the City requesting that the 
City recognize the association as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all firefighters and adopt 
the meet and confer process. A “firefighter association” is defined as “an employee organization in 
which firefighters employed by a municipality participate that exists for the purpose, in whole or in part, 
of dealing with the municipality or public employer concerning grievances, labor disputes, wages, rates 
of pay, hours of work, or conditions of work affecting firefighters.” 

Once a petition is filed, the City Council must determine whether it will recognize the association as the 
sole and exclusive bargaining agent and adopt the meet & confer process. The Petition must be signed 
by a majority of the firefighters, excluding the Fire Chief and Assistant Chief. The City currently employs 
119 firefighters (excluding the Chief and Assistant Chief). On February 27, 2019, the City Secretary’s 
Office received a petition requesting recognition of the Temple Professional Firefighters Association 
(TPFA), Local 846 of the International Association of Fire Fighters as the sole and exclusive bargaining 
agent for all of the firefighters employed by the City of Temple signed by a total of 105 firefighters.  

According to Sec. 142.103, Petition for Recognition: Election or Action by Governing Body, of Texas 
Local Government Code, (a) Not later than the 30th day after the date the governing body of a 
municipality receives from a firefighters association a petition signed by the majority of all firefighters, 
excluding the head of the fire department for the municipality and excluding the employees exempt 
under Section 142.108(b), that requests recognition of the association as the sole and exclusive 
bargaining agent for all the firefighters employed by the municipality, excluding the head of the fire 
department for the municipality and excluding the exempt employees, the governing body shall: 

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=142.108


03/21/19 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

(1) grant recognition of the association as requested in the petition and determine by majority
vote regarding whether a public employer may meet and confer under this subchapter without
conducting an election by the voters in the municipality under Section 142.105;

(2) defer granting recognition of the association and order an election by the voters in the
municipality under Section 142.105 regarding whether a public employer may meet and confer
under this subchapter; or

(3) order a certification election under Section 142.104 to determine whether the association
represents a majority of the affected firefighters.

(b) If the governing body of a municipality orders a certification election under Subsection (a)(3) and
the association named in the petition is certified to represent a majority of the affected firefighters of
the municipality, the governing body shall, not later than the 30th day after the date that results of that
election are certified:

(1) grant recognition of the association as requested in the petition for recognition and determine
by majority vote that a public employer may meet and confer under this subchapter without
conducting an election by the voters in the municipality under Section 142.105; or

(2) defer granting recognition of the association and order an election by the voters in the
municipality under Section 142.105 regarding whether a public employer may meet and confer
under this subchapter.

If the meet and confer process is adopted by the City Council or adopted through an election: 
• The City may meet and confer with TPFA over wages, salaries, rates of pay, hours of work, or

other terms and conditions of employment;
• The City Manager must select one or more persons to represent the City as its sole and exclusive

bargaining agent(s);
• The deliberations must occur in a meeting open to the public;
• The City and TPFA would not be required to reach agreement on any particular topic, or any

agreement at all;
• An agreement on any issue must be in writing and ratified by the Council and a majority of the

firefighters;
• A written meet & confer agreement preempts all contrary state statutes, local ordinances,

executive orders, civil service provisions, or rules; and
• While a meet & confer agreement is in effect, the City may not accept a petition requesting an

election to adopt collective bargaining under Chapter 174 of the Local Gov’t Code.

Within 30 days of the petition being filed, the Council must take one of the following actions: 
• Option 1: Grant recognition to TFPA as requested in the Petition and determine by a majority

vote that the City may meet and confer under Chapter 142;
• Option 2: Defer granting recognition of TFPA and order an election by the voters in the City to

determine whether the City may meet and confer under Chapter 142; or

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=142.105
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=142.105
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=142.104
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=142.105
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=LG&Value=142.105


03/21/19 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

• Option 3: Order a certification election to determine whether TFPA represents a majority of the
affected firefighters.

Option 1: Granting Recognition 

The Council may choose to grant recognition of TFPA as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent and 
determine that the City may meet and confer. If the Council chooses to grant recognition, the Council 
may withdraw recognition at a later date by providing TFPA not less than 90 days’ written notice that 
the  

City Council is withdrawing recognition and any agreement between the City and TPFA will not be 
renewed. 

Option 2: Order an Election 

The City Council may order an election to allow the voters to decide whether the City may meet and 
confer. The election must be held as part of the next regularly scheduled general election for municipal 
officers which would be May, 2020. The ballot language would read as follows: 

“Authorizing the City of Temple to operate under the state law allowing a municipality to meet and 
confer and make agreements with the association representing municipal firefighters as provided by 
state law, preserving the prohibition against strikes and organized work stoppages, and providing 
penalties for strikes and organized work stoppages.” 

If the Council chooses this option, it may, no earlier than the 2nd anniversary of the date of the election, 
order another election to determine whether the City may continue to meet and confer. 

Option 3: Order a Certification Election 

The Council may order a certification election to determine whether TPFA represents a majority of the 
affected firefighters. This option is typically used in cases in which there is a question as to whether the 
association bringing forth the petition indeed represents a majority of the firefighters. If Council orders 
a certification election, Staff would work with TPFA to determine how the election would be conducted. 

If after a certification election is conducted, a majority of the officers elect to have TPFA serve as their 
representative, the Council retains the option to grant recognition (option #1) or order an election (option 
#2). Option #3 is a method to ensure that TPFA does in fact have the support of a majority of the 
affected firefighters. 



03/21/19 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Below is a table outlining the fiscal impact of the meet and confer options: 

Option Fiscal Impact 
Option 1: Granting Recognition Not Applicable 

Option 2: Order an Election Funding for the 2020 General Election would be available in the 
future FY 2020 operating budget in account 110-1400-511-2517 if 
needed. 

Option 3: Order a Certification Election The fiscal impact will revert back to either Option 1 or Option 2 
(with funding available in FY 2019), depending on the outcome of 
the certification election. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Petition 
Resolution 



Petition Requesting Recognition 

RECEIVED 
FEB 27 2019 

CITY OF TEMPLE, TX 
CITY SECRETARY 

Pursuant to TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE §142.103, the undersigned non
exempt fire fighters employed by the City of Temple Fire and Rescue do hereby 
designate the Temple Professional Firefighters Association, Local 846 of the 
International Association of Fire Fighters as the sole and exclusive bargaining 
agent for all the firefighters employed by the City of Temple, excluding the head of 
the fire department and exempt employees of Temple Fire and Rescue, and request 
recognition as provided by the statute. 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

TrA.v)S &~b .. ::. .. ~ [1)9' L 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

\(. ~ v...i \.Q.O ')_. 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

~oben ~.tf 7779 
Print~d Name and Employee Number 

od,·e. ~(6>/\.d ~ lY7 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

T .~ N J-IA L TOW1 .:;)() (o 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

---- ----li "~a±h( o\ z)o ~ N,>o N ~ 12. S 

Signature 

~ 
7/ 

IJ-(;r/JP 
Signature Date 

\2/1'1/18 
Date 

I '-/ 'b u I E> 
Date 

/"7//Y~:f 
7 

Date 

12/14/ £1' 

Date 

///14- -~ /2/J<f ~~ 
ig~ture. /J / Date 

4~ JL/t'fl!f 



Printed Name and Employee Number 

Bitt 
Printed Name and Employee Numbe 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

K "\"'"ely 2>4rr~ S 2 G:, ~ 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

J:sv/1 fe:// 73Lff 
Printed Name a Employee Number 

Brett- Eer fOcJ(\ 6 fJ 3) 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

~+~eM oit4hVK 7~&~ 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

' 

if>-tn.c?-r"'.•"'- w;\lic;..t"'•S ~95~ 
Prin ed Name and Employee Number 

1\15' 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

RECFtVED 
FEB 27 2019 

;~/;rlv 
Date 

L 'J.It c.t It o 
Date 

IJ.-!Y-Ir 
Date 

12 -tv-r~ 

Date 

-::> I 'Z. -JY-19 
Date 

;L-;r ... ;<;( 
Date 

Signa re Date 

~---~/t'-f/18 
Signature Date 

~-
Signature 

Signature 

ignature 

~ 
Signature 

h/1'1/I:J 
Date 

Date 

i?-14:-LR" 
Date 

JJ-/¥-1~ 
Date 



Printed Name and Emp oyee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

,·) () ZJ(.... "{ q77 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

s-(£6 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

e r ~s b7b9 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

:fa 

Clr~~ 3 
Printed Name and E ployee Number 

'k?tdv.l\. 1(0.5~ 74Lf a 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

:r: A." J !1-tA-/{ ~t'( 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

6 ef>Go R'f ), '( Nt w d 3 B" I 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

C rlGt '"~ M C!Lo-fk 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

Signature 

Signature 

~~ 
S1gnature 

~ 
~ 

RF~I=IVED 

FEB 27 2019 
\,II Y OF TEMPLE, TX 

ITY Jt7';~~p 
Date 

Jl-l'f-1'? 
Date 

\1-l \,-1~ 

Date 

l"l-/(,-11 

Date 

/Z-19-1~ 

Date 

l.l:-/I!J-/8 
Date 

1?--11- \Y 
Date 

(-;).._ -!?- ( 6 
Date 

&~M 
/fignaHne ~ 

~t ~ -yY( __;f_j 

I;;) It f/1 ff 
Date 

Signature 

I "Z.- 19- f t 
Date 



Printed Name and Employee Number 

b~t,Jia_ vv(q~ G/1 ~ 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Cnoo=( &Sou 71$3 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

AJQI.~(I ~\t..L"' t.-\ ~>'
Printed Name and Employee Number 

-r fOwls Jbyt;t,v() 7'6 (a 6 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

RF~W:IVEO 

FEB 27 2019 

Sig::1ature ~ffY OF- TiMP~tXX 
f/.~tTV SECRETAI'/ = D !'~~/ !L/;1/tB 

Sig ature Date 

~ 

~ 
Signature 

~~rs~ 
Signature 

I. 
Date 

Date 

Date 

I ;1-J~,../j 

Date 

~l,.(.~~~c.e~...!D==.r~~:::...___....:..s_-~=--.!...9....!../ ___ -,j~==::~..~~~,pt!!::~~~___!_;S::2.=..!..-/7 -~& 
Printed Name and Employee Number Date 

f,,.~~, L./Fit;4Jr --fJ'i 1 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

3u~-\-', \jQc,\ ~SC:,5 
Printed Name ~nd Empl~yee Number 

~Ct"n ui l {..f-cn~(~Vl'S ~ ll ~ 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

Juo! M141•/~~ 75"'t3 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

Jl ... ,,_,~ 

Date 

(;) (r V« 
Date 

1.:2 -t -Ia 
Date 

I CZI)~ ?/f 
Date 



Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Signature 

Rt:~t=I\IEO 

FEB 2? 2019 

H .. 1 de-. G ... r,.eH 7864 12--20-18 

Printed Name and Employee Number Date 

lhomtl.S Pec:.,h41 og55 1o/~~18 
~P~rin~te~d~N~a~m~e~an~d~E~m~p~lo~y~e-e~N~u~m~b~er------~~~~~~----~D~at~e 

_P_1~~~~r~e~~--~~~~~~1~1~----~~~~~------~~~~~~~~oft 
ployee Number Signature Date 

_B(_\C4._11\_,___<)_Jt_~_er_\v._)=----~~-~___._1 _ ____._dJ--=--~-·-d:lt£L~~· -=----J_z._;-z. (I z..ar6 
Printed Name and Employee Number Signature Date 

___ s~,',.,.:..u.::::Mc.L.L..r1 -=Crc..~...::-..,;~ __ 7_1_-t _6 --~-~-..-_c=:-.____;;;=--'2--!....--/2,/ f2c ,;g 
Printed Name and Employee Number Signature Date 

·i..-eno;J !11.1vut/ ))Oto ~ ·~;z_~;';Z;/'6 
Printed Name and Employee Number Signature Date 

Ju>f/ (~c k ~" 3/ 2_ ./ . .--7 /1- 2//18 
Printed Name and Employee Number D te / . 

~~~~~~~~,&~ ___ Y_~_1ff_' __ / __ /~~~~------~IL+-12/Jf 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

--~=-~~~~'~~~~~----~~~~--------~~~~·~k 
Printed Name and Employee Number Date 

/}1qtfltetv (fi/J'rlt:..- J 06'/ 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

7390 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

0 A ,., c ~. l-lot!$t~•tt J.. Yo" 
Printed arne and Employee Number 

/Z-2L/-/f' 
Date 

/:2 -,;}, 'f -I?; 
Date 



Printed Name and Employee Number 

R "' .!..Sc...l c t:.-1 • l'f' c r 1 7 r 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

Oa,ol e l Kvs.se ll b 9 5 3 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

D~5+\f\ M<-Grti:LV 6W2 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

,)'q vvO$ T /hc.1 M 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Rt:~J:IVJ;D 

FEll g1 2019 

Signature Date 

Signature Date 

I~-;.4M 
ate 

D~~ 
Signature 

Date 

1~~~ ~ f 
Printed arne and Employee Number Date 

~~~rf~a~ __ ~&~/~6)~o~A--~?~b~J~7~~~~----~--'vf~cy/;~ 
Printed Name and Employee Number Date 

~ &~ 0~ J)-J1- /<J 
Printed Name and Employee Number Date 

B(m 5tz>h ]t11o 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

~ J4nJk 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

osL 6, "'"' s-7 0 J 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printe? Name and Employee Number 

/Lfldaa.tl VOmiYlaY'D se .r I 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

/;?-dY-1r 
Date 

2 /;~ 
Date 



Printed Name and Employee Number 

!?)() 
Printea Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

·Scujf <!:,\:Nf(lll to--f~\o 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

~s~ \~OtJ 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

GDk E'a~o{\ $S~ { 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

SAtllcS Sc-,c$ 51aq 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

5"12-~ 
d Employee Number 

0~51\o -vJ ~\\ 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

/'t.v .f .l\1"'1.1 l"l S4rvlli/LJ (pJ '1 , 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

Ri=~S:IVEO 

fEB 27 2019 

Signature ~·~' \ Q~ TEMPLE[)cfte 
~n·'t SECRETARY 

Sign_ ture 

~ 

Signature 

~~ ---)Le -
===signature 

~O)J~ 
SiQnature ' 

?..-22-/8 
Date 

}/--;)~)<( 

Date 

!£--z,s-'.1 
Date 

Date 

J. 5'-'2ol~ 
Date 

Date 

1-- 15'-tJ 
Date 

Date 



• 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

n....\<... ~. e.,r 3q) 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

\3~o...u Al.f'o("c\ 5~7 -g' 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

er,c. W~,ts 6Vr' 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

~ 76-s-3 
Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

Printed Name and Employee Number 

o~rJ:IVED 

FEB 2 7 2019 

Signature"'' 1 y UF TEMPLE,[J~e 
CITY SECRETARY . 

_.JL, t/Lo/1~ 

Signature 

Date 

Date 

z./, 11 ,, 
Date 

2/13/11 
D\\kTsc~ 

Date 

Signature Date 

Signature Date 

Signature Date 

Signature Date 

Signature Date 

Signature Date 

Signature Date 

Signature Date 

Signature Date 

:LOWJrCVA.· / KATHERINE A LONU 
Commission t126917Stl 
My Comminion Expires 

J 118 3, 202 



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9605-R 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, TO TAKE ACTION ON THE TEMPLE PROFESSIONAL 
FIREFIGHTERS ASSOCIATION’S “PETITION REQUESTING 
RECOGNITION OF BARGAINING AGENT” AS REQUIRED BY TEXAS 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE CHAPTER 142; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on February 27, 2019, the City Secretary received a “Petition Requesting 
Recognition of Bargaining Agent Pursuant to Local Government Code Chapter 142” 
(“Petition”) from the Temple Professional Firefighters Association (“TPFA”), Local 846 of 
the International Association of Fire Fighters; 
 

Whereas, the Petition is signed by 105 Temple firefighters and requests that the City 
of Temple recognize TPFA as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all firefighters 
employed by the City; 
 
 Whereas, Chapter 142 of the Local Government Code allows a “Firefighters 
Association” to file a petition with the City requesting that the City recognize the Association 
as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for firefighters for meet and confer negotiations 
with the City - the petition must be signed by a majority of all firefighters in the City, 
excluding the Fire Chief and Assistant Fire Chief; 
 
 Whereas, TPFA is asking that it be recognized as the Firefighters Association that 
will serve as the exclusive bargaining agent for all firefighters - if TPFA is recognized as the 
bargaining agent for all firefighters, the City must select one or more persons to represent the 
City as its sole and exclusive bargaining agent to meet and confer with TPFA on issues 
related to the wages, hours of employment, and other terms and conditions of employment of 
City firefighters; 
 
 Whereas, recognition of TPFA as the bargaining agent does not require the City to 
meet and confer on any issue or reach a meet and confer agreement;  
 
 Whereas, the City currently employs 119 firefighters (excluding the Fire Chief and 
Assistant Fire Chief) - the Petition is signed by a majority of those firefighters; 
 
 Whereas, under Section 142.053 of the Local Government Code, the City Council 
must, not later than the 30th day after the date it receives the Petition: 
 

(1) grant recognition of TPFA as requested in the Petition and determine by majority 
vote, that the City may meet and confer under Chapter 142; 

(2) defer granting recognition of TPFA and order an election by the voters in the City 
to determine whether the City may meet and confer under Chapter 142; or 

(3) order a certification election to determine whether TPFA represents a majority of 
the affected firefighters; and  



2 
 

 
 
 
 Whereas, below is a table outlining the fiscal impact of the meet and confer options: 
 
Option Fiscal Impact 
Option 1: Granting Recognition 
 

Not Applicable 

Option 2: Order an Election Funding for the 2020 General Election would be 
available in the future fiscal year 2020 Operating 
Budget in Account No. 110-1400-511-2517, if needed. 

Option 3: Order a Certification 
Election 

The fiscal impact will revert back to either Option 1 or 
Option 2 (with funding available in fiscal year 2020), 
depending on the outcome of the certification election. 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 

interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their 
entirety. 
 

Part 2: The City Council hereby acknowledges the Temple Professional Firefighters 
Association’s “Petition Requesting Recognition of Bargaining Agent” as required by Texas 
Local Government Code Chapter 142 
 
 Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2018. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

03/21/19 
Item #14 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 
2206.053 finding that two properties situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract #5, Bell County, 
Texas, are necessary for the Outer Loop Phase 6 project and authorizing the use of eminent domain 
to condemn the properties.  

Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The City 
Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 
property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect on 
negotiations with a third party. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The expansion of Old Waco Road, the Outer Loop, is an important north-south 
arterial that will connect the Adams Avenue growth corridor to IH 35. This phase is currently under 
design with construction planned for FY2022. At this time, it is anticipated right-of-way will be needed 
from 17 properties owned by 13 private citizens or entities, under Chapter 251, Local Government Code 
§ 251.001. The City has acquired or is coordinating closing for three rights-of-way. Because two owners
of five of the needed rights-of-way are also impacted by the Charter Oak Water Line Project, Staff
decided it was in both the owners and City’s interest to acquire the needed interests at the same time.
The City has contracted with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc. (Stateside) to assist with acquisition
and relocation services for this project. Appraisals were conducted and offers made based on the
appraisals. After negotiations, the City was able to reach an agreement with one property owner.
However, after the City and the other property owner have been unable to reach an agreement.

The properties needed are legally described as: 

• being 3.825-acres, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract #5, Bell County, Texas,
embracing a portion of a called 7.28-acre tract conveyed to Barbara J. Cooper in Document No.
2007-00029394, Official Public Records of Real Property, Bell County, Texas. The property is
located along Charter Oak Drive, Temple, Texas (Bell CAD ID #396728).

• being 4.141-acres, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract #5, Bell County, Texas,
embracing a portion of a called 4.705-acre tract conveyed to Barbara J. Cooper in Volume 5574,
Page 453, Official Public Records of Real Property, Bell County, Texas. The property is located
at 4302 Charter Oak Drive, Temple, Texas (Bell CAD IDs #127051 and 127050).



03/21/19 
Item #14 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

The initial offer was sent to the owner of record on August 30, 2018. via Stateside. This acquisition 
does require the property owner to relocate. A relocation study was conducted, and results presented 
to the property owner as well.  

A final offer will be sent and if rejected after 14 days and if authorize, a condemnation proceeding can 
be filed. 

Staff is asking pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053, for the City Council to 
authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the properties described above. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the properties necessary for the Outer Loop Phase 6 project is available 
in in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, Line 320, account 795-9600-531-6557, project 
101585. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Surveys 
Resolution  













1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-9606-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, FINDING THAT TWO PROPERTIES SITUATED IN THE 
NANCY CHANCE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 5, BELL COUNTY, 
TEXAS, ARE NECESSARY FOR THE OUTER LOOP PHASE 6 PROJECT; 
AUTHORIZING THE USE OF EMINENT DOMAIN TO CONDEMN THE 
PROPERTIES PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE §2206.053; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the expansion of Old Waco Road, the Outer Loop, is an important north-
south arterial that will connect the Adams Avenue growth corridor to Interstate Highway 35 - 
this phase is currently under design with construction planned for fiscal year 2022; 
 
 Whereas, at this time, it is anticipated that right of way will be needed from 
seventeen properties owned by thirteen private citizens or entities; 
 
 Whereas, the City has acquired or is coordinating closings for three rights of way, 
and because two owners of five of the needed rights of way are also impacted by the Charter 
Oak Water Line Project, Staff decided it was in both the owners’ and the City’s interest to 
acquire the needed interests at the same time; 
 
 Whereas, the City has contracted with Stateside Right of Way Services, Inc. 
(Stateside) to assist with acquisition and relocation services for this project - appraisals were 
conducted and offers made based on the appraisals; 
 
 Whereas, after negotiations, the City was able to reach an agreement with one 
property owner - however, the City and the other property owner have been unable to reach 
an agreement; 
 
 Whereas, the initial offer was sent to the owner of record on August 30, 2018 via 
Stateside - this acquisition does require the property owner to relocate, however, a relocation 
study was conducted, and results presented to the property owner as well; 
 

Whereas, a final offer will be sent and if rejected after 14 days, a condemnation 
proceeding can be filed; 
 
 Whereas, the properties are addressed as: 
 

• Charter Oak Drive, Temple, Texas (Bell CAD ID No. 396728); 
• 4302 Charter Oak Drive, Temple, Texas (Bell CAD ID Nos. 127051 and 

127050); 
 
 Whereas, Staff is requesting, pursuant to Government Code § 2206.053, that Council 
authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the properties legally described 
as being: 
 



2 
 

• 3.825-acres, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, 
Texas, embracing a portion of a called 7.28-acre tract conveyed to Barbara J. 
Cooper in Document No. 2007-00029394, Official Public Records of Real 
Property, Bell County, Texas - the property is located along Charter Oak Drive, 
Temple, Texas (Bell CAD ID No. 396728);   

• 4.141-acres, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, 
Texas, embracing a portion of a called 4.705-acre tract conveyed to Barbara J. 
Cooper in Volume 5574, Page 453, Official Public Records of Real Property, Bell 
County, Texas - the property is located at 4302 Charter Oak Drive, Temple, 
Texas (Bell CAD ID Nos. 127051 and 127050);  

 
Whereas, funding for the properties necessary for the Outer Loop Phase 6 project is 

available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, Line 320, Account No. 795-9600-
531-6557, Project No. 101585; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their 
entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council hereby finds and determines that the necessity exists for 
acquiring, by eminent domain: 
 

• 3.825-acres, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, 
Texas, embracing a portion of a called 7.28-acre tract conveyed to Barbara J. 
Cooper in Document No. 2007-00029394, Official Public Records of Real 
Property, Bell County, Texas - the property is located along Charter Oak Drive, 
Temple, Texas (Bell CAD ID No. 396728)  

• 4.141-acres, situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, 
Texas, embracing a portion of a called 4.705-acre tract conveyed to Barbara J. 
Cooper in Volume 5574, Page 453, Official Public Records of Real Property, Bell 
County, Texas - the property is located at 4302 Charter Oak Drive, Temple, 
Texas (Bell CAD ID Nos. 127051 and 127050). 

 
Part 3: The City Council hereby finds and determines that the expansion of Outer 

Loop Phase 6 is a public use under Chapter 251, Local Government Code § 251.001(a)(1). 
 

Part 4: The City Council authorizes the use of the City’s eminent domain authority 
under Article 3, Section 3.6, of the Charter of the City of Temple and the initiation of 
condemnation proceedings of said property interests. 
 
  
 



3 
 

 
 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act and the 
Truth in Condemnation Act, Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 21st day of March, 2019. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    TIMOTHY A. DAVIS, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 


	11. 2019-4961: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance granting to Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC an electric power franchise to use the present and future streets, alleys, highways, public utility easements, public ways, ...
	URESOLUTIONS
	12. 2019-9605-R: Consider adopting a resolution to take action on the Temple Professional Firefighters Association’s “Petition Requesting Recognition of Bargaining Agent” as required by Texas Local Government Code Chapter 142.
	13. 2019-9606-R: Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053 finding that two properties situated in the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract #5, Bell County, Texas, are necessary for the Outer Loop Phase 6 project and...
	03/21/19
	Item #6(G)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 1 of 11
	UDEPT.  / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:U
	03/21/19
	Item #6(G)
	Consent Agenda
	03/21/19
	Item #6(G)
	Consent Agenda
	03/21/19
	Item #6(G)
	Consent Agenda
	03/21/19
	Item #6(G)
	Consent Agenda
	03/21/19
	Item #6(G)
	Consent Agenda
	03/21/19
	Item #6(G)
	Consent Agenda
	03/21/19
	Item #6(G)
	Consent Agenda
	03/21/19
	Item #6(G)
	Consent Agenda
	03/21/19
	Item #6(G)
	Consent Agenda
	03/21/19
	Item #6(G)
	Consent Agenda
	UATTACHMENTS:
	Draft Agreement Resolution
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution ratifying the purchase of property situated 515 South 18PthP Street in an amount not to exceed $10,500.
	The Bell CAD ID number for the property is 67159.
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of right-of-way and a temporary construction easement necessary for the Poison Oak Road Expansion Project and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase in an esti...
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of two rights-of-way necessary for the expansion of Old Waco Road, Outer Loop Phase 6, and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase in an estimated amount of $30...
	At this time, Staff is asking for authorization to purchase two rights-of-way necessary for the expansion of Old Waco Road, Outer Loop Phase 6, and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase in an estimated amount of $305,000 and relocatio...
	03/21/19
	Item #6(T)
	Consent Agenda
	UDEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:U
	Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner
	03/21/19
	Item #6(T)
	Consent Agenda
	03/21/19
	Item #6(T)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 3 of 4
	UCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:U The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan:
	03/21/19
	Item #6(T)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 4 of 4
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	ATTACHMENTS:
	(A) The Code of Ordinances, Chapter 4, “Alcoholic Beverages,” to include a general update of the Chapter, additional clarification of terms used in Chapter, a better alignment of City’s regulations with state law, and an addition of an enforcement pro...
	(B) Temple Unified Development Code Section 5.3.15, “Alcoholic Beverage Sales for On-Premise Consumption,” by clarifying Subsection 5.3.15(A)(2) with additional language and removing the reference to City Code, Chapter 4, “Alcoholic Beverages,” Subsec...
	03/21/19
	Item #8
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 4
	DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	Jason Deckman, Planner
	03/21/19
	Item #8
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 4
	03/21/19
	Item #8
	Regular Agenda
	Page 3 of 4
	FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable
	03/21/19
	Item #8
	Regular Agenda
	Page 4 of 4
	03/21/19
	Item #9
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 4
	03/21/19
	Item #9
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 4
	03/21/19
	Item #9
	Regular Agenda
	Page 3 of 4
	03/21/19
	Item #9
	Regular Agenda
	Page 4 of 4
	FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable
	DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION REVIEW:
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive Plan Compliance table but further described below:
	FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable
	ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING – Consider adopting an ordinance granting to Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC an electric power franchise to use the present and future streets, alleys, highways, public utility easements, public way...
	03/21/19
	Item #12
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 4
	DEPT.  / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	03/21/19
	Item #12
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 4
	03/21/19
	Item #12
	Regular Agenda
	Page 3 of 4
	03/21/19
	Item #12
	Regular Agenda
	Page 4 of 4
	ATTACHMENTS:
	Petition Resolution
	TPA FY 2018 Temple MC Agreement Final with signature pages.pdf
	DEFINITIONS
	ARTICLE 1
	Association Business
	Military Leave Time Account
	ARTICLE 8


	SAVINGS CLAUSE
	ARTICLE 13


	7th Street Roadway  Sidewalk Improvements - Map.PDF
	Sheets and Views
	PLAN AREA


	Oncor Easement CROSSROADS 2019.03.21.pdf
	Oncor CROSSROADS WR 3422729
	City of Temple - Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC EASEMENT

	FY-19-4-ZC Attachments CC 7March2019.pdf
	FY-19-4-ZC Attachments_PZ 4Feb2019.pdf
	1724.01 Site Plan 1-29-19.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	1724.01 Site Plan 2-25-19 (003).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1



	Chapter 4 - Alcoholic Beverages - current ordinance.pdf
	Chapter 4
	ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES


	FY-19-7-ZC COUNCIL ATTACHMENTS.pdf
	1a AerialMap
	1aa Zoning map showing subdivisions
	1b Future Land Use Map
	1c TFARE AND TRAILS MAP
	1d UtilityMap
	1e Notification Map2
	2 SITE PHOTOS
	3a Development Standards Table
	3b Permitted Uses Comparison Table
	4 Returned notices
	1 FY-19-7-ZC Lizama disagree
	Lynn-FY-19-7-ZC  Larkin
	David Sweet 2 responses
	Kinnison (owner) 3 responses

	Excerpt FY-19-7-ZC

	FY-19-7-ZC Site development plan.pdf
	Site Plan 8901 W Adams Ave

	McLean Construction (30-inch transmission main repair)-R.pdf
	UPart 2U: The City Council ratifies an emergency construction contract with McLean Construction of Killeen, Texas in the amount of $49,119, for the repair of a 30-inch transmission main.

	All-Tex Utilities, LLC (Ratify change order 20-inch transmission main repair 909 West Park)-R.pdf
	UPart 2U: The City Council ratifies a change order to an emergency construction contract with All-Tex Utilities, LLC of Hillsboro, Texas in the amount of $63,000, for the repair of a 20-inch water transmission main at 909 West Park, and authorizes th...

	Tax Appraisal Foreclosure Purchase (Bell CAD 67159)-R.pdf
	Whereas, Staff recommends Council ratify the purchase of 515 South 18th Street, Temple, Texas from the March 5, 2019 Bell County Tax Appraisal District delinquent tax sale in an amount not to exceed $10,500;




